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INTRODUCTION.

The wcord oontained in the following pagea is elmott wholly oon-

fined to eventi which (.courred, and faota which were diadosed, during the

PMlUmentwy term of 1904 to 1908. The Fhriiamectary review deak
moetly with the three Seasions of 1906. 1906-7, end 1907-8. If theee

raeorda and raviewi had been carried back to 1896, they would have mul-
tiplied the proofe that the Uberal Administration has been already too

long in power. The ezaraples furnished and the evidence presented in

this book are, however, suifioient to reveal the character of the Govern-

ment as it has been constituted during the last four yean, and to show
how the Ifemben of the Pariiament elected in 1904 have treated matter
of greve concern which have come before them. It is hoped that the facts

here presented may be of assistance to the electore in deciding whet»- - it

is time for a change of Government. 1 u 5 reader will notice the reft jes

to the original authorities, which will enable him to continue the research

through the records of Parliament, the Departmental reports, and the

evidence given before Committees of the House and Royal Commissions.
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FIVAVCIAL RBCORD.

Tantioa, Bxpmditnrt And Dtbt AU Ortatiy IncraaMd Bj
Lauritr Oovtriuiimit

, .

A n^ OtIT PLBoau.

SS lis
«»n*q««t undue taxaUon of the peopIe.'Cub,r»l PUt-

.Terv"v^tJltTw"L'?^
?rf,000,000 or more in the form of tuatioamry yetr—they tdce it from you, from me ail the people of the Country—

cjMt w » medium through which you pay to the i>)minio' Ga*erwnent-If
they,

( the people) nndeietood, the pre«»^t Ooremmenf . Id bedSSSTut
JmT"

" '^ ****'*^ **"* •*' ** '^'^P'*' '^' ^iWridUurier

" We are the party of loir ta«tion."--Sir Wilfrid Uurier in 1895.

TAXES ICCLTIPtlED BY TWO.

UN IIM
Ai.t«». Conwvativ*. LIlMral

""'••
7.»!l.00« 14.010.tte

INt
Ubwml.
•i7.i4l.tll

ll,7tt.lil

t>7.7Sf.M5
t5.4<

t<0,074.tlt

tio.oe
t7k.:*S.Nt
tll.7l

t4i.itt,«77, or lt4 pw cant

_ Total
Tax p«r hMd
InerMM, ItOI over UN ,,. .„

Now let ui look at the total taxes' ci'llMted in"ten"vears under Conaer-
Tative and under Liberal rule:
Total taXM eoueotad by Conatrva'ivn in Un yrara. Itt7-N ttt7ltlt71Total taSM eollMtoil by UN rata In t«n yaara, ltt7-ltN .. 4M,m|MI
*tM. taken by Ubwai over Conscrv .. Oovcrnmant 14t.ttl.4te

So, as regards «»e amount of t. », there can be no doubt of the Taat
ncrease made. The taxes n 1806 dmounted to $27,759,000. Let us seeWW this amount haa beer. ejr<*'-'id«Hi under Liberal rule

:

n llts Taxation under Conse-^^tivee . >--
In 1M7 thli amoi a waa exc*' !.<< by'.".

'
'ill'iZ

n UN this amou><t raa exceed 4 by i iiJ'S.
n UN thia amou..i .7aa exoMded by TiJI'SSn 1»M thia amount waa exceeded by lelii'S?!n UOl thi. amoynt waa exceeded by MmJ'SSSn im thia amount waa exceeded by.. .. USmSSh INt thia amount waa exceeded by m.mJS

1»04 thia amount waa exceeded by liiSt'tSlms thia amount waa excK>ded by.. .. m mi 22IMS thia amount waa exceeded by ii'iii'SSUOS thia amount waa exceeded by 4t|lt^»C0

Total exoeaa in U yeara above given tltt OM ONTotal exceaa In 11 yeara and • montha, U»7-l»07 ttlf.'lU.'oOO

1- o *
•^?i.'" *^I ^" """^"^ *° ^^^ *'>'« "" "^^fi to fiscal changes it wa'

iy » months. The taxatior for that period was $51.565.585, 'or $«3,806,30v/
Bore than the whole twelve months of 1896.



TAXATIONm TAXWt.
TBmt
IMi

*
"«»• o* Wwnllle* Taxation pw family.

IHi MMM tS7.«>

i»cr.i»w liinii^;; .;.:•.:•.:' "'"••^ "•••
•• 11.10

WHAT TRXT PB0XI8ED.

SSer wSJ ^ «2.000.000 or 13,000,000 per annum."-^ip WUfrid

maitYm'S,?-""' *«* {38,000 000, let alone $40,000,000 i. in my inig.

SHOITLD THIS BE VIEWBD WITH ALABK?
On current account.. . •J'"''' H07-8
Capttal and special. .

IS«,94J.142 | 77,641.461

Total expenditure .
4.758,241 S6,S5S.979

ipenditure per head 41.702,388 112,895.480

InereaTO, 1908 over 1896 .'. "•** $18.89
Increaae per cent .

71.198,047

170
Ten years LIb.-Con. expenditure. 1887 to 1896 ,a,, .«. ..«Ten years Liberal expendlturri897-1906: '^f'jff'!!!

Kxce» ,n the Liberal period
,2,i.,7<,802

Liberal-Conservative Liberal

rm the year .

,

. *••• "08
PWweek .

$41,702,388 $112,895,480

Per day. IndudlAv SundaV .'.'

Si'sM ''aiOMJThe expenditure for the year 1907-8 wa«$96 for evei^; family in Cani^da.

KECOBD OP ELEVEN TBAB8.

™^'^®i?"?'^^ ^ ™?°^. ^f^^ " *« «™oa°t by which the expenditure

^^L'i!"^ "^^ *'''*^ *"* <»' *« I««t Conaervatiye year.

^^^"^^^

? :!. ^'^P'n^'twe under Conservatives
.

.

,., -«„ .,„In 1897 this was exceeded by $41,702,000

In 1898 this was exceeded by 1.200,000

In 1899 this was exceeded by 3,600,000

In 1900 this was exceeded hy 9.800,000

In 1901 this was exceeded by 11.000.000

In 1902 this was exceeded by 16.200,000
j

In 1908 this was exceeded by 22.200,000

In 1904 this was exceeded by 20,000,000

to 1906 this was exceeded by 30,600,000
(

In 1906 this was exceeded by 37,100,000
|

In 1908 this was exceeded by 41,600,000

71,200.000

BT DEPABTHENTS.

IIMML^?^?^'* ^y Departmenls for 1907-8 in not yet reported, and

b2J;L^96%S'7j?fA*- *a' '°"r°« •' • comparia^ of SpenditureDwwwn 1896. and 1906 (Public Accounts 1906, pages 61 to 69).

8
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rUTUBB EXPBNDITUBB.

4„u,
^'.t**®.??««°t mcrease of expenditure is starfling that of ths immediate

future ig still more so 'Hie fiscal year 1908-9 began on April Ist, 1908.

. J^ foUowing table shows the estimate of 1908-9 compared with thoae
of tiieprenonsyear:

—

"^i" u«»o

». X lt07-8 itot-tSupplamenUry , 2,105.105 $ 6,81t,6S8'^n 108,689.619 iia«S7A«i

ofhrr^^^T*"**"^
"•**"••"' "J««>"Other Items.. lOo.ooo - 1,850 000

Bountlea (estimated) 8.500,000 MTsioOO
8121,418,839 tl40.967,Stl

Subsldlea-
""•-• »»•"*'»"

^rtf^es t 15,000
R»>lways 5,000,000

I ^ 85,015,000
[Loans

—

Quebec Brtdre 6.678.200
Montreal Harbour 8,000,000

I

C. N. Ry. guaranteed bonds

800,000

22,566,300

$88,666,See

Total 8186,106,429
Excess, 1908-9 over 1907-8 888,480,252

11,067,00*

8174,586,681



THE HATIORi^L DEBT.

mCREASED $14,289,000 LAST YEAR.

I

When the Liberal-Conservatives were in office, Sir Wilfrid Laurier and
hu present colleagues were greatly distressed over the national debt and the
increasing obligations of the country.

At the time of the change of government the net debt was $258,497,432.
The increase in the previous ten years had been $31,000,000 or $3,100,000 a
year.

In the six years preceding 1896 the increase had been less than $21,000,-
000, and the Oovemmen; in that time made reductions in taxes relieving ttie
people of burdens to the extent of $21,870,000.

Had these taxes been retained the debt would have been less in 1896,
when the Conservatives left office, than it was in 1890.

MORE TAX BUT MORE DEBT.

The Laurier Government took office in 1896. In ten years they took
from the people in taxation through the Customs and Excise department*
$142,398,430 more than would have been paid on the basis of 1896.

No great national work was carried on during that period. The Con-
servatives had completed the Canadian Pacific Kailway and deepened the
canals. Expenditure on the Grand Trunk Pacific had only begun in 1906.

From the pledges given, the country might have expected a great re- .
duction in the debt out of this enormous taxation and the Finance Minister's
boasted surpluses.

But this is what happened

:

Net debt, June 30th, 1896 $258,49?,4M
Net debt, June 30th, 1906 267,042,977

Increase $8,546,546

In the short fiscal year, 1906-7, the taxation was further increased and
the debt diminished by $3,371,117. -

But in the fiscal year 1907-8, ending March 31st, the net debt increased
00 less than $14,288,999.88. (See Canada Gazette, June 25th, 1908).

We have the following:

Net debt, June 80th, 1896 $268,497,482
Net debt, March Slst, 1908 277,960,859

Increase $19,463,427

And this in the face of $229,000,000 added to the proceeds of taxation
in 11 years and 9 months.

SHOULD BE VIEWED WITH ALASM.

For the year beginning April, 1908, Mr. Fielding in his budget anti-
cipated at least $14,000,000 increase of expenditure over the previous year.

He expected a loss of $6,600,000 in the revenue. That would mean an in-

crease of $32,500,000 in the debt during the year.

8



MOWS THAK MR. FIELDING EXPIXTED.

.•„ ?"* f1*""* '^^ V *^* prospect presented by Mr. Ficldinff in March the•Jtnatron half a year later wag much worse than his forecast.
He anticipated a decrease of $0,500,000 of revenue in the year But

Setble sZ.
:'' ^^"^ ^^^ ^"^''*' *' '^^^"'^ ''"^ '"'"« t^*" '^'''^ ""

Revenue, first four months, 1907-8 IM ••t ••Same four ..lontha. 1908-9 ][ [[ JS.MJtM

Dwsreaae .. ,,, ...
In the month of July alone there was a decrease of .*.'

|J.8»5,f80

«.„..??^*ri^t «^P«°f•t"'-^« have increased, the current outlay for the fourmonths of 1908 exceeding that of the dame period of 1907 by $629 443The capital expenditure increased $890,957
'

&) with a loss of $6 500.000 iii revenue and an increase of $i;500,000 inexpenditure, the financial position is $8,000,000 worse in the first one third

™««I^**%*
Moreover the July showing is worse that that of the other threemonths. If this continues throughout the year there will be a larjre deficiton current account, and the debt will have increased $40,000,000 during the

As a matter of fact the debt increase in Julv alone was $6,801 080
TTie increase of debt from July 1907 to Julv 1908 was $82 509 505
With regard to existing obligations the following statement by Mr Foster

set forth in a resolution presented to the House may close this rword.
Cash obligations incurred for O. T. P tie* 49. a.'.

Required for Quebec Brldre ".
iV.wl'.g-g

Bond obll tlon^*"'
''"* °''"*''"""' MOM^.m

Canadian Northern bonds sruaranteed t 9 386 <S9
O. T. P. bonds sruaranteed, 1903 68!o48',000

Total bond obligations ' «7,4S3.«39

Contingent cash liability, G. T. P., three years additional Interest on
cost of construction iiisacm

Grand total of cash and bond oollgatlons ,', 8Ko'i7K«i«
Public debt, March 31st, 1908 »7«ft0ftn«A
Add the above obligations, making *.

4M84BSM
If contingent liability accrues, It becomes 444'o41 973
Rendering necessary new loans of Kut'ntia'il
Loans falling due by 1910 ;; \[ [\ \\ \[ \ 74800000Add these to new loans, makes

|| 24o'64l'973

Yet in face of these accruing obligations the Government in the last
Session caused to he voted:

In regular estimates ti4an7»9si
Bounties authorized, estimated » «7k «««
Subsidies for bridges

800 000Railway subsidies, involving . .::;:::: ?2.5«e:300
Loans guaranteed Canadian Northern 11067 000
Total amounts voted and obligations Incurred In one Session .. 176!386'681



COST OF 6SAHD TSUHK PACIFIC.

AH APPALLnrO CHARGE ON THE COTJHTRY.

OoTemment PledgM of 1903, and Ooyemment Statements
To-day—^ow that the People of Canada were

ahamefttlly deceived.

1*

i kJ^^jS*^?*®!.*/ ?l®
Launer Govenunent as a biuiueBB administratioau beauWuUy lUurtroted by a comparison of the present estimated cost of theGwmd Trunk Pacific with the statements made by Ministers when the con-

tTMt was earned throngh the Honse, and with the declarations of the Premier
and bis supporters m the election campaign of 1904.

The Transcontinental Railway programme was the chief issue on which
the Goyemmait appealed to the people in tie last election. These de-
clarations of Ministers, made in the most emphatic and authoritative way
w«jB a pledge to the people of Canada as to the amount of obligation ani
outlays involved. The campaign literatcre of the Government party was
based on the statements of Ministers. Electors who supported the Govern-
ment undoubtedly gave fuU weight to these solemn undertdkings.

$13,000,000 WOULD PAT POE ALL.

What were these pledges?
The Premier's emphatic statement in Parliament, many times repeated

on the platform was that:

Th« sum total of the money to be paid by the Government tor the conatruo-
tion of the Jtae from Moncton to the Pacific will be In the neighborhood of
tU.000.000 or $18,00«,000 and not a cent more. (Hanaard, 1903, pace 7691.)

The campaign pamphlet on the subject had for its head line:
-A Transcontinental Railway for $13,000,000." and in the text thla authorlied

pnbUcatlon said: " It is an actual fact, an Indisputable fact, that IIS.000,000 wUl
eorer eivery cent of the Country's expenditure in connection with the railway."

Mr. Fielding in Parliament quoted the Premier's statement and declared
that it was substantially correct as to the $13,000,000.

XmCTIPLIBD BT THBKS.

In the session of 1908 the Minister of Pnilways and the Minister of
Knance made new statemente in the light of their present knowledge,
giving the cost to the people of Canada of this railway, on the same basis as
flie 918,000,000 statement of 1903 and 1904.

But so great has been the increase of cost over the estimates of fonr
and five years before that instead of $12,000,000 or $13,000,000, Mr. Graham
now makes the ultimate cost to the people on this basis $38,263,976 ^Han-
aard, 1908, page 12,676.)

^

10
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V iJ^^^' ^^ '*'°* ducuMioo* endonM this aonoimoemeiit But
in Mr. FMlding's statement of 1903 he included in the durge the intend
on foniHunths of the cost of the Quebec Bridge. In 1906 he left that ooL
thus reducing his estimate 'of the interest charge by more ^hvi a millioo.

Here we have the two estimates on the same basis, made by the —wyi

Muusf-nr, in a period of fife years, one of $13,000,000, and one of $88,000,000.
or, addmg the Bridge, between $89,000,000 and $40,000,000.

Yet the section to be built by the OoTemmebt is probably not a quarter
completed, and a large part of it was only placed under contittct in July,
1908, while the Mountain section is only partially located. What will the
estimate be when the road approaches completion?

THE BEAL OBLIOATIOIT.

Turning now from the frivolous and misleading $13,000,000 statements
we take up the actual cost and obligation which the people of Canada are to
pay and assume in respect of this undertaking. They were set forth by Mr.
Borden in a statement made in the House, July 7th, 1908, and recorded
in Hansard, page 12,243. Before giving this, it would be well to print
the return of the Minister of Railways, upon which Mr. Borden's statement
is based. This is found in a sessional paper brought down by Mr. Graham
and recorded in Hansard, on pages 12,238 to 12,242

:

'

Lenarth of the road from Moncton to Winnipeg I.SOS 6S mllM
Eatlmated cost per mile I (8,427
Transcontinental share of the cost of Moncton shops . . . . 760 000
Terminals at Quebec 2.000,000
Wlnnipesr shops 1,500,000
Winnipeg terminals. Joint arrangement with Canadian Northern

Prairie section 916 miiea
Mountain section 839 miles

Estimated cost of Mountain section $61,520,000

Take now Mr. Borden's statement of the outlay and obligations of Canada
in connection with this road, as based upon the Minister's latest statement:

EASTERN DIVISION.
Construction of Railway from Moncton to Winnipeg,

1,803.65 miles, at estimated cost of )63,427 per mile. tll4,89S,7S6
Allowing five years for period of construction, there

will be an average of 2H years simple interest at
6% per cent, during constructton, or 84,003,781 67
per year for 2% years 10,009,464

Coat of Eastern DHision at completion will thus be.. 124,408,219
To this must be added 7 years interest at 3 per cent,

(not compounded) after completion, during which
G. T. P. is to pay no rent 20,124,67<

Also interest at 3 per cent, for three years additional
during which no rent is collectable unless earnings
are «ufflcient ^96,190

QXrBBEC BBIDOE.

Cost of Quebec Bridge up to March 1st, 1907 (Oovem-
ment rertHrn'* , ,

,

85,423,288
Datimated coat if completion 9,000,000

TBRHIKAL3.
Estimated cost of our share of terminals at Quebec,

Winnipeg and Moncton, and ahops east of Winnipeg

i44>B

14,4M.SSI

5,470,000
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xouMTAur sionoir.

Com of Mountain BccUon (ll» mlica) m sUtod In
rotura broutht down .. Ml,iM,04>0

8«Y«Bty>flve per c«nt. of the above t4*.140,0M to' be
cuaranteed by the Oovermnent for conatructlon of
Mountain Section.

And the Govemmeat acreea to pay without recourse
the Interest on bonds so guaranteed for 7 years.
which at SM per cent, amounts to ]1,304,3M

RE0APITt7L&TI0N OF CASH liPENDITCRE.
Total cash expenditure and interest in respect of

Bastem Division as above 124,403,21*
To this must be added 7 years Interest at 3 per cent,

(not comp<und) after completion, during which
O. T. P. la to pay no rent , ., ,-. 2<,i24,«7«

Also interest at 3 per cent for three years additional
durlnc which no rent is collectable unless eamii^s
are sufficient lUH,2t*

Coat of Quebec Bridce as estimated 14,422,2Sa
Cost of terminals at Moncton, Quebec and Winnipeg

and shops east of Winnipeg 5,470,0O«
Interest to be paid by the Government i"lthout re-

course on Mountain section 11,204,300

Total cash expenditure tlf>2,920,72S

BOND GUARAMTKE.
In addition to the above cash expenditure the Oovem*

ment Incurs the following obligations on its guar-
antee of bonds;

Guarantee on Bond Issue on Mountain Section as above 46,140,000
Guarantee on Bond issue on Prairie Section, »1< miles

at $18,000 per mile H,»08,000

Cash expenditure tl>2,>20,7'>8

^
Bond Guarantee 68,048.X>00

Total $260,»«6,726

ADMITS $230,000,000.

A^'ter Mr. Borden made tiiis statement, Mr. Graham and Mr. Fielding
took four days to study it over and then made their criticisms. Mr. Graham,
vent-ired to dispute only three items. One was the charge for terminals at
WiTuUpeg, concerning which the Minister's own statement had been ambigu-
ous. Assuming his objections to be correct, there would be a reduction of
$878,750. The Minister also objected to the inclusion of the Quebec Bridge
in the statement, though the bridge will be part of the G. T. P and Mr
Fielding himself, in 1903, stated that four-ninths of the cost should be
charged to the Transcontinental. The only other item ibo which Mr. Graham
objected was the $11,196,290 interest on the cost of the Eastern section for
the three years during which no rent is collectable unless the earnings are
Bufficient. Mr. Graham believed that the earnings would be sufficient and
Mr. Fielding contended that the amount would in any case be charged against

!

the Company. Anyone who believes that the G. T. P. Company will admit
j
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thftt it earns sofBdent to ptj thin reiit«l may itrike ont 911,196;i90. Xm
than, if only the ihare of the Quebec Bridge which Mr. Fieldibg wiahai to

include in 1903 ii allowed, the coats and obligations will still exceed

$280,000,000.

A FKW OOMPAUaOKS.

Take now the statement of construction coat as made by Minisbers it

1903 and 1908.

In 1903 Mr. Fielding made an elaborate statement, said by hun to be

tm high authority, and repeated in 1904. He declared that iiie road from

Ifoncton to Winnipeg v. mid be built for $51,300,000. (Hansard, page 8684.)

Mr. Graham, Minister of Railways, now places the cost at $114,893,766.

In 1903 Mr. Fielding computed the interest during conslnruction at

$8,80^,676.

Mr. Oraham now says that this interest will amount to $10,009,764.

In 1903 Mr. Fielding estimated the seven years' interest at $11,468,030.

Mr. Qraham now admits that this interest will be $86,184,676.

In 1903 Mr. Fielding declared that the guarantee by the QoTenunent

on the Mountain section "cannot exceed $14,400,000."

Mr. Graham now gives the cost of the Mountain section at $61,680,000,

and makes the Government guarantee $46,140,000.

Mr. Fielding and all the other Ministers in their < ilculati'ons of 1903

and 1904 left out the cost of terminals in the Eastern division, which they

now estimate between $4,000,000 and $5,000,000.

In 1903 Mr. Fielding gave the cost of the Quebec Bridge at $4,500,000.

The Government is already liable for more than $6,000,000 in respect

to this enterprise, and the bridge is yet to be built.

In 1903 the Ministers estimated the cost of the road from Quebec to

Winnipeg at $28,000 per mile.

They now admit it will cost $63,000 per mile.

The Ministers procured official statements that the road f^-om Quebec

to Moncton would cost only $25,000 a mile, and only be 400 miles in length.

The Transcontinental Commission now estimates the cost of one division

at $32,573, one at $42,000, one at $45,000, one at $51,000, one at $65,000,

one lit $83,000, and one at $110,000. The distance is increased to 456 miles,

and over part of the distance there is a " pusher grade," requiring an extra

engine to push the train up.

The total estimated cost in 1903 of the Quebec to Moncton section was

$10,000,000.

On the present estimate the cost will be in the neighborhood oj

$35,000,000.

Such were the pledges on which the Government secured the assent of

Parliament and the consent of the Country to the Grand Trunk Pacific

contract.

Such are the admissions which the Ministers new make of the absolute

• 'orthlessness of these pledges and declarations.
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UTIRCOLOBIAL RAHWAT.
A Twtlve Tmh Racord Of Dimtrom Opentioii.

iida!K.?5«h!^ 0®»«ffl»«nt took oiBee th« Intereolonitl had tlmort

• j«^ "^ ^°** '" *• '*"' ^^^^ ""^ •**''"' -" '"V 0' tMss

w«„i?ifl*^"
Unmr Goremnent took oiBoe the Minitten declu«d there

TW ™ged ttie Qrtnd Tnink deri, and in 1897 (HanawdrpSrSw?)

thr««rt|«Z« vlJSSS'h^^
worklna npMiMa tt,tM.OOO. la other wordi^

«K!-5-«??r^
r^WMUlbk tor tho ni«iu««ment of the Intoreolontel mUbiau t^

JSSI/?' w » -urpta. of tiM.O«0 In th« ttrM yMf. op.r»tton of the t C^H. «fewded to MontreaL Now. U 1 deduct from thV««,l5w torr^ntS of MlOOoTi
ii ."ilirS %T;!!lru' "•««'.«>' -"•3'"* oTthT.'poCo'^^SSS.i

. ^-^t S^ JL
hiitonr thie promised surplus did not occur. There was

!«?i?i^.v°*^y^ of $809,978, followed by two surpluses of $68 664Md $170,667. Then in 1901 came a deficit o/ $488.18?^ fdTowed by t»o

^J^'^i^J.^^^'^^^f^ •1»'''«^0- For the «;en 'ySnJ Sm iS?to 1903 the deficit r-iounted to $360,303, or $50,040 a jL
mH,r?d2^of Wm""""

"^^ ''^*"- ^- that year there was a

?*^J!?^ ¥/• ^™«"on beat it with a deficit of $1,786,804.
in 1906-6 Mr. Emmerson declared a surplus of $61,916
to 1906-7 the Department claimed a surplus of $818,139.
But m 1907-8 Mr. Graham alleged that the surplus was $16,183

A«tiJ^ * ti,^?
years since the Liberal Goyemment took office, the net

fleficits of the Intercolomal amounted to $2,680,000.
This is the acknowledged deficit. The real Phortage is many timesiuger. For, in addition to the expenses charged in this account, there hasbeen capital expenditure of over $88,000,000.
Therefore, the railway has cost in these twelve years $2,500,000 a yearon the ayerage more than it has earned. •

. > «
jcor

In the ten years before 1896 the average annual expenditure above theearnings, mdudmg capital on the same basis, was less than $700 000And It should be remembered that the later period has b^ 'one ofunexampled proepenty to railways on this Continent, most of which have
earned good dividends, while twelve to fifteen years ago nearly all American
railways were run at a loss. •

"=""*"

It has been claimed that last year the Intercolonial paid its way if we
leave out of account several millions charged to capital

?«t there is no such record this year. In the first two months, accord-

creased $186,735 and the working expenses increased $136,667. maSnir a
change for the worse of $383,898, or at the rate of $1,900,000 a youT^

The earnings continued to decrease through June and July, but no
statement of expenses is available.

'*
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THE PUBLIC DOMAIN.

HOW rr HAS BEEN ADMIIIISTERED BY THB
LAURIBR OOVERIIMBRT.

Duriog the lut thiee or four years the Lanrier Qovemment hai been

many times and in many ways called to account in respect to the adminifltrar

tion of the public domain in the West The immense valae of this estate,

the tremendous importance of preserving it for the benefit of tiie people to

whom it rightfully belongs, the constant efforts of speculators, monopolists,

politicians and their friends to obtain possesBioh of these resources on easy

terms, call for vigilant, firm, strict and just adminiatration. The Qovem-

ment is a trustee for .the vhole nation, and especially the guardian of the

rights and interests of settlers who have been invited from oth provinces

and all parts of the world to seek homes in Western Canada.

How has the tnut been kept in respect to these public resources?

The ordinary farm lands.

Grazing lands.

Irrigation lands.

Timber.

Coal and other mineral wealth.

Lake and river fisheries.

Town sites.

The pages immediately following throw some light on these questions.

U



8A8KATCHBWAR LARD DEAL.

aSOfOoo Acrw of Choice Land Sold by Ooyenuntnt For One
An Acre—Bight DoUan to the Settler-Ooyemment'i Friends
Make $1,750,000 at the Bzpenae of the Working Farmer.

m t J^JS'''**r*' P'**'^™ 0' 1893 declared thst "the uIm of puMio lands
^of tlw Dominion ghonld be to actual settleni only and not to ipwulatori,
upon reaaonable terma of tettlenient, and in auch area as can be nasonably

"ooenpied and cultivated by the settler."
In the early part of 1902 there waa a great nwh of aetUen into the

^1*^« n
**• * ^'°* °' ^"*e™ '*>™ l»nda was advancing with a

"••^ «*"*'*y cwnpanies and land companiea were raising tfeeir prioea.

SST**?." *"y °' ***" '^*" ^*^^ "P " '"* " they could be found. In
1908 the Canadian Pacific Company sold 1,368,478 acres, or more than four
ninea the quantity aold the year before, receiving a much higher average
pnoe. In the Regina district alone the homestead entries increased in that

Cir to 4,158, as against 1,308 the year before. Prairie land which couldw been bought a few years earlier for two to five dollars an acre was now
hdd at eight or ten dollars. There was great money to be made in buying
land and holding it for an increased price.

OOVXRNMENT OFHOER PRAISES THIS HEaiOK.
In these circumstances it was important that the land remaining un-

granted should be held for the genuine settler, so that speculators and mid-
dlemen should not hold up the working farmer who desired to go on the
land. At this stage, C. W. Speers, General Colonization Agent of the Gov-
ernment, wrote to Mr. Sifton, then Minister of the Interior, calling his
attention to the land adjacent- to the Saskatchwan, Long Lake ^ Regina
Railway, between Lumsden and Dundern, the former 20 miles and the latter
130 miles north of Regina. The ajrent entertained a high opinion of this
regicm:

"I have no hMltatlon," he said. "In itattng that a great many very good
districts can b« found along thl« line of railway between the points mentioned
I hare observed very closely this stretch of country and am thoroughly convinced
fbat some progressive settlements can be placed along that line that will estab.
Ush the fact that that country Is all right.

"I beg to point out that there Is not one bushel of wheat produced within
ttlsllS miles, and I am persuaded that If a few hundred acres of crop were
crown about half way between Lumsden and Dundern, demonstrating the fact
that the esuntry was good, that a great deal of tliis land would rapidly fill upwltb settlers.

Mr. Speers went on to say that for nine years the Soo line was without anyMtuen, and yet In one year that country was entirely filled up. He dosed by

"I anticipate that some of the country referred to will be settled during the

**K L?-"^'" *"1
**'!l

^*'"° °' *•'« Odd-numbered sections very materially
tnhanosd." (Hansard, l»06, page 41S7.)

mait^nany

A CONCESSION TO POLITICIANS.

No action was taken on this recommendation, though a German-
American settlement had been planted in the neighborhood and was already
giving signs of prosperity. As Mr. Speers said, other settlers were arrang-
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log to looate {d the area of whiui he ipoke and then waa e^eiy proapact that
the land vonld aoon be in good demand.

But another thing happened. A group of land ipeculaton, aoma of
them political frioida of the Miniater, aaw a good opportunity. One of tiiaaa

vaa Mr. A. J. Adamaon, then a prominent politician, now a member of Par^
liament, who had the fortune to be a brother-in-law of Mr. J. 0. Turriff,
Chief Commiiaioner of Dominion Landa.

Thia gratleman and hia aaaociatea began bv buying the land grant of
the Qn'Appelle, Long Lake ft Saakatchewan Bailway Company. After thia

purchaae, the OoTemment generoualy enlarged by 8,000,000 acrea the area
of landa out of which the company could make aelection. The effect of the
diange waa to allow the new purchasers to go outside of the originiU bou2t-

daries for the whole of their purchaee and pick up the best land in eight
E. B. Osier, M.P., whoae firm were agenta for the Qu'Appelle ft Long

Lake Bailway Co., declared in the House that neither his firm nor any
officer or member of the company had receired notice of- thia enlargement,
which was made in Angnat^ 1902, three montha after the sale of the land to

Mr. Adamson's company.

850,000 ACBKa AT ONE DOLLAR AK ACRK.

Haring acoompliahed thia, the purchasers approached the GoTemment
with an offer to buy 280,000 acres' originally set aside as free homesteads
for settlers. The outaome waa an agreement for the sale of the above area

to these land speculators at one dollar an acre, with the privilege of making
their selections over nearly one million acres, and five years to complete pay-

ments. The purchasers cheerfully agreed to settle in each township twenty

settlers on free homesteads nob includ d in their purchase, and twelve more
on quarter sections contained in their grant. Thia settlement undertaking

was to the advantage of the investors, as they were aUe to offer to farmers

who would buy from them an additional 160 acres of Qovemment land for

nothing. That was the way to make their money out of their own lands.

A GREAT PDRCHA8E.

After the deal was completed the purchasers organized the Saskatche-

wan Valley Land Co., aud immediately offered their lands at six to twelve

times the price paid. The Order-in-Council confirming the contract waa
passed on the 24th of ATay. 1902, three months after the report of Mr. Speers

commending thia land. In July Mr. Speers wrote again, stating that he
had been over the country and was positive that the settlement would be
rapid. Mr. Speers said:

''I have alwajra been i)ersuaded that this country was St for lettloment,

and I am (lad to be able to Inform you that at an early date everything will be
done that can be done to make thU country productive. I review the fact that
for some t!m« I have been communicating with you on this stretch of ceuntry
and In former correspondence have i>olnted out the necessity of havlnsr a portion

of It settled."

The purchasing company went through several re-organizations. Per-

sons were taken into the deal who could not conveniently be known at first

in connection witti it. For example, Mr. Turriff, who was Dominion Lands

Agent at the time the deal was made, and is now a member of Parliament,

denies that he had any interest in the deal at the beginning, but does not

contradict the statement that he was afterwards connected with the purchaa*

ing companies.
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Tb* hxtn pw» of tilt tSOfiOO »em wm mod told tt fion K to fit
•B MN. Om larm bloek tmm to bcft bom told to • oompuiT ut $6.50
laoM^atolyaftortbtMnfeaM. Thi* appMn to bt tlM lovwt prioo obtaiatd.

Bvt tiM limit of GoftraoMiit gaMraiity bad not yot boen mdiod. Tho
ooatnet nqaired tbo oompuij to Mttlo • oirtain nombor of peo|^o on
homttMd laadt btfon uqr of tiio 100,000 aem ooald be iM^rated to thm.
Tot btfort thMS oonditiow wn Mtiiflad Uw CommiMioner '^f Landi, Mr.
J. 0. Turriff, brothtr-ia-tow of Mr. AdiMon, pttented to the purehaMn
iMtrly 160,000 acret. Mr. Tarriff doai not eontrtdiet the ttaieineiit that
be bmune ficanoUUy intereeted in the Beikitehewm Co. or eome of ite nb-
•idianr organintione.

In one of ita pami^ileto the company made thia boast:

"Ow vrhrOacaof Miction diffen Irons Um ordinary nUlwsjr mnt liuunBuali
as wo are not oMtgod to tako aay apooMo nambor o( aootioaa in any on* towadilp.
Wo tevo tho prlvlloio of aoleeUn* tn tlio diotrlot roaonrod tor no any odd-num-
kONd aoottona to tiM tewn^tp, oxoopUnc tho two aobool aootlona. . . . Wo aro
M( iatoroaUd la any ocoond olaao land. . . . OwIbc to tho oeadltton andor
wliieh wo aoqalro oar land wo In ovory oaoo ostond to tbo purehaaor tbo privlloiio
of maklnc hia own oolootioa Tbia prlrtlog* cannot bo oror-ootlmatod. •apocially
to tbo purebaaor of any conatdorablo traet of land."

Tbo adrcrtlaoneat prooocda: "Land oan bo pnrobaaod from our company
at l< to tlO an aoro, aooordinc to looatlon."

"Wo bar* aoeured our land," aaya tbe company, "at a price which pcrmltow to aoll good land ohoapor than any other conpony In Wootom Canada."

91,780,000 PBOriT WITH HO IKTI8THKNT.

It was a beautiful part of Uie arrangement that the company did not
need to eelect or to pay for the 260,000 acres until iho land had been sold

to the settler, and ibat then there should be |k right to roam orer an area
of 76 townships. Farms, large or small, could thus be pick^. .. out where it

was convenient to the settler, and when he had signifi' .1 his choice, the oom-
pany could go to the GoTemment and select in lots so small as 160 acres

the land thus sold as part of the 260,000 acre grant. The Ooremment re-

ceived no pajrment until the speculator had made his profit. For five years

this could go on, until the company had sold the whole grant and was in a
.position to close up the arrangement and make a final payment to the Oor-
emment. No doubt the average price received by tho company for first

class land—and it would take no otiier—is over $8 an acre, leanng $7 as

net profit, or $1,750,000 on the whole transaction.

The deal works out in this way:
The goremment receives t 160,000
The aettlera pay 2,000,000
Speeulators obtain 1,760,000

This sale of land was made secretly without public notice.

It was made in violation of the dedared policy of the Qovemment.
It was contrary to public interest, which demands that the man who

goes on the land should have the benefit of the oritdnal low prices.

Moreover, the purchasers were allowed to pay for the land in scrip

which had been bought up at a fraction of its par value, so that the actual

amount paid was much less than the $250,000, probably not half i^t sum.
They were allowed long credit, so that they did not pay until they sold

to the settler. Therefore they required no capital.

A CASK OF OFFIOIAI. KBKDAOITT.

Announcing the sale of 1903, the late Minister of the Interior said

:

"Whllo I waa away the ofllcers of the department made an examination of

IS
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m,m Mtw^ la wiMu .

TiM taad WM MM at om IMmr u
A HC* Win.

Saeh is Um Miniitor't •ccoant of tht miim lud deMribed by th* iror*
ehMinff compuiy m

•• Thtojriat itrvtoh «r toval pralrto wtthoat a tfM or at«m« to blo^ Um plow.
toffMW with Um nMvnttcMt mU. Um ataateaM o( tk* irl*M aad Um arad* ofOw pro«Mt. tea and* Um Saatetotewaa Vallor Um aaportor of Um world aa a
wfeaat aad flax-trawiav oattntoy."

The lame tuthoritj ipraks of tht toil "aa a rich, black loam, tan to
" thirty inchei Cyip, on a chocoUta colored clay aub-ioil, with water easily
"obtained."

Not only was tiie atatonent of Mr. Sifton oppoeed to the description of
the land giren by the pnrchaaers, bat it was flatly oontradictad by bia own
oiBoer's repwt qootdd ibim.

jl uroui Bftiioraa

Among the resolutions nored in the Houae daring the session of 1906,
corering cases like this, was one proposed by Dr. Roche, M.P., for Mar-
qaette. Manitoba. It set forth that:

"Tho pnbUo landa of Canada, aituattd la Um provlnew and ttrrltorfta west
of the araat lakaa, ahottld b« made aTallabU for aottlamont with tho leaat poaalbl*
delay:

<* That to this end all railway companies, eorporatlona and pemons now entitled
to seleet any Unds earned br way of aubsldy ehould be obllced to complete their
•election of uoh lands within the earliest possible period, and not later than the
first day of November IMS;

That In arranslna fm the disposal of the odd numbered sections not so velrcted
and which will thus be released from all such subsidy claims, provision should bemade to preserve them solely for the l>ona fide settler and to protect them from
the exploitation of the speculator;

"That the goveramont should take such administrative measures and Intro-
duce Into parliament such legislative enactments as may be necessary fully to carry
Into olleet the tonaa of **\la resoluUon."—Hansard. IMS, p. in.

This motion wak rejected by » vote of 111 to 58. It was a straight
party division, except that Mr. Bonrassa, Liberal member for Labelle, voted
for thp motion. In explaining his vote, Mr. Bourassa said

:

" These are a few principles that I prMtehod when In opposition when opposlnc
the Conservattve party, to which I adhere. I am ready to lay aside my own Juda-
ment and have done so many times Ir the past, and have supported the covem-
ment on some quesUons that I did nc ipprove. . . . This Is one of the few
principles of the old Liberal oarfv to which I still adhere, and I am not prepared
t>. vote acalnst a motion simply because It mlsht imply blame upon the govern-
msnt, when that motion condemns a policy that wo have denounced time and time
again in the past: and which aa a Uberal I am prepared to denounce now." (Han-
sard. IKW, p. 107«.)

*
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FAKE H0MESTEADIN6.

Close SettlAiiiient Impossible—"Daring Cold-Blooded Hold-Up"

—Suppressed Government Reports.

Travellen in tiie West expect to find all the fertile lands along the line

of railway, and especially near towna and villages, well occupied and largely

cultivated. They are surprised and disappointed to see great stretches of

accessible and apparently rich land lying vacant. The stranger is apt to

conclude that something is the matter with this country since nobody goes

to live in it. These unoccupied lands along the line of travel are the worst

possible advertisement for the Western country.

The stranger does not know of the settlers in the more remote places,

deprived of the comforts which close settlement affords, and having long

hauls for their supplies and produce. It is not from choice that the pioneer

travels through ten to fifty miles of largely unoccupied land to reach his

home. He has settled in the back country because he could not get a home-

stead in the front.

But how has it happened that lands set aside for homesteadlng, are

neither settled nor open for settlement? The law requires homesteaders to

occupy and cultivate their land.
" Fake-homesteading"is one of the curses of the West. It has pre-

vented settlement in 3(Mne of the best localities, and those nearest to the rail-

way. It is the reason why thousands of farmers are living without the

comforts and conveniences that they should enjoy.

No one can describe the condition more truly than was done by the

Manitoba Free Press on the 3rd of March, 1906. Discussing blanketing

homesteads, that Liberal journal said:

A COLD-BLOODED HOLD-UP.
•• The • Free Press ' has reason to believe that this fraud Is being practised on

a lar(« scale. In some districts the homestead lands are all tied up in this way.

No doubt the official records In the land offices show that each of these quarter pec-

tlons has been duly entered for in the name of some individual and the condition*

fixed by the Act complied with. Superficially the record is probably quite correct,

but behind the forms of law, A DARING, COLD-BLOODED HOLD-UP AND
SWINDtiE IS BEING PERPETRATED."

The same paper published a statement from Mr. Richard Waugh that:

"There are districts In which every homestead of any real value is blanketed

with names many of them fictitious, a practice which necessarily drives the bona

llde settlers a long distance from railroads, or makes him turn away with dlsgust."^

In the House of Commons, Messrs. Lake, ilcCarthy and Herron, speak-

ing in 1906, in the interest of the settler, showed the extent of this injustice.

Mr. Ames, M.P., also produced evidence. Mention was made of eight per-

sons holding homestead lands in one village without becoming settlers. One

had held a quarter section four years and never been near it. He was a good

Bupp* " .er of the Government and held it in spite of applications of bona fide

settlers. Government officials held homesteads for their sons who never lived

on them. Settlers equipped for fanning were refused a chance even to buy

land afterwards sold to speculators. T'litioians, officials and speculator*

are able to pick up homestead reserves refused to genuine fanners.

A SUPPRESSED REPORT.

The Go'- nment cannot plead ignorance of Ibis state of affairs. Here is
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what the Government land agent tt Battleford wrote to' the Commissioner
of Lande in July, 1905

:

"There U no doubt that a conalderable proportion of the homestead entries
made two or three years ago were made by speculators, and a number of thoae
entries are still beinr held by persons who are yet to make an appearance. Neii^-
bors are complaining bitterly of this, as an obsUde In the formation of school dis-
trict* and impedinc settlentent as a whole. In the interest of settlement I would
suggest that steps be taken to throw open, as soon as possible, all lands so held,
making same available for actual settlers."

This is plain language. But the authorities at Ottawa were anxious
not to have the facts known. Reports of the land agencies are printed in
the Departmental blue book. iPut this particular passage of this particular
report was carved out, and the remainder was printed without any sign of
omission. The deliberate mutilation was discovered when, after a hard
struggle, Mr. Ames obtained the original documents and was able to con-
front the Minister with the report of his own officer, of which the above
damaging part had been suppr^sed.

8,315,360 ACRES OF UNOCCUPIED HOMESTEADS.

Interior Department reports for 1905 tell of homestead entries which
have been standing from six to twenty years and never perfected. Mr. Ames
has shown by the record that in 1905 nearly 15,000 entries of more than three
years standing were neither perfected nor cancelled. Here is the proof:

Prior to the 30th of June, 1902, there had been recorded In the department 108,-
409 homestead entries. In the ordinary course of events by July 1, 1905, all of these
entries would have been patented or would have been cancelled. But the number
of patents issued to homesteaders up to 30th June 1905, was 49,455. Thus there
remain to be accounted for 58,954 entries. But the cancellations must be deducted
from that. We find that the total number of cancellations of entries prior to June
30, 1902, was 33,063, that in the year 1903 there was 4,756 cancellations of home-
stead entries, made prior to the 30th June, 1902. That during the year 1904, 4,29S
more were cancelled and that during' 1905, 2,10S wore cancelled. Thus at (he end
of the three years, out of these 108,409 entries, there have been 49,456 patents
granted and 44,218 cancellations made. That leaves a residue of 14,471 or nearly
15,000 entries unaccounted for..

HOMESTEADS CONTROLLED BY LAND SPECULATORS.
Of the 2,315,360 acres, so held, without actual settlement, a large quan-

tity stands in the name of speculators and others living in distant towns,
and simply holding these lands for sale at a high price. These very home-
steads are now offered by land agents in connection with other properties

they have to sell. This is what the Liberal Free Press calls " hogging " land.

Besides these homestead lands so improperly held there are hundreds
of thousand of acres of scrip lands, which have been secured in the best

areas along the line of railway, and are held for the unearned profit. Much
of the scrip was given to half-breeds abroad and bought by speculators at a
fraction of its face value, so that the lands cost a mere trifle. Scrip lands

are often held in the middle of settled townships, keeping the settlers apart.

During the sessions of 1906, 1907 and 1908, Mr. McCarthy, Mr. Lake
and Mr. Herron, with Dr. Eoche, Dr. Shaffner and Mr. Staples, Conservative

members from Manitoba, and the strong support of the Opposition Leader
and his party, have been struggling to obtain for the genuine settler the

available farm lands, and to prevent the speculator from blanketing the

country. As the result of their campaign a Departmental investigation was
held in the four land districts, and in these alone, during the fiscal years

1906 and 1907 more than 1,700 cases were found where the officers reported

that the lands were held contrary to law.
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GRAZING LAND DEALS.

Fortunate Men Get 37Z|749 Acres Under Irrevocable Leaiet Not
Open to Others—Freehold Lands at $z An Acre—When
Friends Are Satisfied The Doors Are Closed—Mr. Oliver's

Deceptive Statements.

On May 30th, 1906, Mr. Borden asked for a select committee of nine
to be appointed for the following purposes:

te) To inquire Into t!ie management, alienation and dlapoaal of the Crown
landa of Canada (includlngr timber and mineral lands and all other Dominion
lands) managed and controlled by the Department of tlie Interior;

(b) To inquire whether there have been any Irresular, improper, unauthorised
or improvident dealings or transactions in respect thereof and who have been con-
cerned therein;

(o) To inquire into the practical operation of the Dominion Lands 'Act and
the amendments thereto and the regulaUons made by virtue thereof and whether
any abuses have arisen thereunder, and.

(d) To report to the House upon the matters aforesaid and whether any
amendments are necessary or desirable In the said laws and regulations.

l%at the committee have power to send for persons, papers and records anrt to
examine witnesses .1 j oath or affirmation.

That three be a quorum of the Committee. (Hansard, 1906, p. 4187).

Among the subjects which Mr. Borden proposed to have investigated
was the granting of grazing leases in the Northwest.

The following facts were disclosed by returns brought down to the
House:

FOHMEB LEASES BETOOABLE.

When the present Government took office the section of the Dominion
Lands Act dealing with the grazing leases read as follows (Hansard. 1906.
page 4163)

:

v , ,

The Governor-ln-Councll may, from time tp time, grant leases of unoccupied
Dominion lands for grasing purposes to any person for such term of years and at
such rent In each case as is deemed expedient, and every lease shall contain a
ccndltlon by which the Govemor-in-Councll may authorise the minister at any
time during the term of the lease to give the lessee notice of cancellation thereof
and at the end of two years from the service of such notice such lease shall cease
and determine.

The lease could be cancelled at any time on two-years' notice. As the
leases covered large areas, which might be required for settlement, this con-
dition was in the interest of the public, though it reduced the value of the
lease for speculative purposes.

MB. BITTOm TAKES DOWN THE PENOE.

Changes were made in the law and regulation. Mr. Sifton took au-
thority to grant twenty-one year grazing leases without the power of cancel-
lation. He also took power to give to th holders of these leases absolute
grants of land to the extent of ten per cent, of their holdings at the price
of $1.00 an acre.

Down to 1905 only one irrevocable lease was given. That one went to
A. T. Mackie, of Pembroke, Ontario, a member of a family of well-known
Liberal politicians. He obtained a lease of 41,888 acres in August, 1902.

The practice of granting irrevocable grazing leases was then discon-
tinued for more than two years, but between April and August, 1905 such
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leaaes were handed out to eight applicants, who leceiTed areas of 330,461

acres.

THB FKKOB PUT UP AFTBB FBIBNOB ABB WITHIN.

After August, 1905, no more irrevocable leases were granted, so that

t^ie persons who came in during the short period when the gate was open

have Talnable and exclusive privileges.

Mr. Sifton left ofSce on February 27th, 1905, and Mr. Oliver was

appointed in April, 1905.

Following is a statement of leases given in the short open period

:

Area
Date. Acres. Grantee.

April 9, 1*05 66,747 Brown, BedlngfleM -ft Ca
* 26,1905 42,777 Geo. Lane.
" 28, 1905 60,000 C. B. HalL

May 2, 1905 1S,794.

.

.'. Glengarry Ranch Co.

5, 1905 47 615 Jaa. D. McGrefor.
'• 9, 1905 48,867 A. Hitchcock.

July 17, 1905 1,280 Duncan Cameron.
March 10, 1906 60,381 H. P. Brown.

These leases, with that of A. T. Mackie's 41,288 acres, comprise 371,749

acres, or 680 4-5 sqttire miles withdrawn frwn settlement for twenty-one

years, no matter what the demand for homes may be.

WHAT THBT OBT.

The last of '^hese leases, though given on March 10th, 1906, was dated

back to August Ist, 1905, a date previous to the change of policy.

The irrevocable grant to A. T. Mackie of 41,288 acres embraces two

townships on the United States boundary, through which flows the south

branch of the Milk Biver. On two sides are irrigated lands growing large

crops of sugar beets and wheat. The south side of this ranch is fenced

by the international boundary fence, built at the expense of the people.

The grant of April 26th, 1905, to George Lane, of 42,777 acres, is in

two separate areas, ten miles apar^ located, at the head of Willow Creek,

near Steveley, on the MacJjeod branch of the Canadian Pacific Railway. It

is in a section rapidly filling up with settlem.

The lease to C. E. Hall of 60,000 acres was transferred to the Milk

River Cattle Co., Ltd.

The lease of May 2nd, 1905, of 13,794 acres, lies north and east of the

Porcupine Hills. Two streams run through it and it is surrounded by

homesteads that are occupied. The lease was taken out by a prominent

Liberal worker.

The Brown-Bedingfield lease was at last accounts in the names of the

original grantees.

A VALUABLE PROPERTY.

The two leases of May 9th, 1905, one of 47,615 acres, taken by James

D. McGregor, and the other of 48,867 acres taken by A. Hitchcock,

transferred to the Grand Forks Cattle Co., Ltd., which thus held 96,482

acres. These lands lie in the elbow of the Saskatchewan, within five mila

of the Pow Island station on the C.P.R. Crow's Nest Pass Line, immediately

below and adjoining the C.P.R. irrigation belt, and immediately northeast

of the area of settlement. The history of this company is given farther on.

The lease of March 10th, 1906, of 60,381 acres, was assigned to the

Qalway Horse & Cattte Co., Ltd., under circumstances to be related.
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Under the special regalation adopted shortly before these l<>a8ea were
giren, and discontiniied immediately afterward, three of these grantees have
noeived absolute titles to one-tenl£ of the area covered by their leases by

Sying one dollar an acre. The Grand Forks Cattle Co. on the 89th of

itober, 1905, bought 9,453 acres, and the Milk River Cattle Co. 5,831

acres on ibe 27th of January, 1906, on the same terms.

rABM LANDS FOR $1.00 AN ACBE.

Now, the original idea of a freehold sale of a small portion of the

leased area was to enable the rancher to own enough land for buildings and
farm at headquarters. It was not understood that this would run up ini»

the thousands of acres, and that the grantee should thus obtain for $1.00

an acre land that was worth in the market ten dollars.

But see how it worked out in the case of tr. Grand Forks Cattle Co.

That concern held about 150 square miles of territory under an irevocable

21-year lease, and instead of being allowed to take a ranch farm at some
convenient point, it obtained the privilege of selecting its 9,453 acres of

freehold land in quarter sections or half sections over the whole area. The
company was able with this freedom of choice to select lands valued at

$12 an acre.

WHAT THE MINISTER SAID.

On June 12th, 1905, Mr. Lake, one of the western members, questioned

Mr. Oliver in regard to sales of land. Mr. Lake said " I would like the

"aaaurance of the Minister that there will be no sale of land en bloc made,

"or no sale of land to any but the actual settlers."

To this Mr. Oliver made reply :
" There will be no sale of land en bloc

" to any one, and so far as the interval between now and the next session is

"concerned, there will be no sales of land to any one but actual settlers."

As a matter of fact, these two sales of land, amounting to 15,283 acres,

were made before the next session. Mr. Oliver has said that they were

made by virtue of contracts of agreement already entered into before he

became Minister, but the records show that the transactions were not com-

pleted, or the property acquired, or the price paid until after Mr. Oliver's

pledge to Mr. Lake and the House. If there was an agreement made by
Mr. Sifton to sell this land to political and personal friends, Mr. Oliver was

guilty of duplicity in concealing the fact when the question was put to him.

There are no more 21-year irrevocable grazing leases. There are no

more 10 per cent, grants of land at a dollar an acre. For some six months

it was the privilege of the chosen few to rush in and gather up these lands

on terms that are no longer available. Then the door is shut and the priv-

ileged parties are left in exclusive possession; at least, until contributioaa

are wanted for another election campaign.
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ROBmS* IRRIGATION DEAL.

Politicians Obtain Leases of 96,000 Acres With xo Per Cent.

Freehold and Sell For $350,000 Profit—Same Men Get 300,000

Acreb Irrigation Lands and Sell The Bargaui For $500,000

—For the Middlemen $1,145,000; For the People $9,4SO-

When the Liberal party was in opposition it had an excellent policy re-

specting land in the North-West. In convention in 1893 the party declared:

"No middleman In land tranBa.tlons should he allowed to come between the

Government and the aettler, for the middleman's italn la the settler's loss and th«

Government's loss as well, iM-canse It retards setllement and checka progress."

The party also condemned " The policy of makinir pasture land leases to rattle

kinss at a nominal rent of one to two cents per acre without asking for bids or

seeking competition, and only with a limit of Hfty thousand acres as the amount

that mi^t be covered by a single lease."

Previous chapters tell how favored individuals obtained grazing leasen

under special conditions. Among those were A. Hitchcock of Moose Jaw,

and James D. McGregor of Brandon. Mr. A. Hitchcock and Mr. A. E.

Hitchcock, who figure in the transaction, are energetic party men. The
Hitchcock grazing lease was for 48,867 acres. James D. McGregor obtained

47,615 acres. Mr. McGregor was formerly a campaign manager for Mr.

Sifton in Brandon, where he was a livery stable keeper. When Mr. Sifton

took oflBce he made Mr. McGregor a liquor commissioner in the Yukon;

also Inspector of Mines and a collector of royalty. A few years residence

in the Yukon enabled him to return a capitalist, but still an active political

campaigner.
Mr. Hitchcock and Mr. McGregor merged their grazing leases, and

formed the Grand Forks Cattle Company. On the 23rd of December, lt05,

the Government gave this company an absolute freehold grant of 9,4.52 acres,

approximately one-tenth of their holding, for $1 an acre.

A NEW AND BIQQER DEAL.

The Grand Forks Cattle Compan\i now proceeded to exploit its conces-

sion. A scheme was devised to obtain a grant of lands for irrigation, add

the Grand Forks lease to this concession and float the whole on the English

market. Having s nred the twenty-one year lease and the freehold grant,

at a very small r
. Messrs. McGregor and Hitchcock prepared for the

new venture. A r from England, mmed Robins, spent a few months

at Moose Jaw, an(, ,s the Hitchcocks and McGregore had been sufficiently

in the lime light in land deals, this gentleman came forward as the visible

applicant for the next concession. In the winter following the grazing

leases, Mr. Robins obtained an irrigation grant of 380,573 acres. Bv his

contract with the Government the nominal price was $3 an acre, less a rebate

of $2 an acre on condition that the purchaser should irrigate one-quarter of

the land. The *1 was to be paid in fi;e annual instalments beginning with

1910, four years after the grant was obtained.

This deal went through in the name of Guy Tracey Robins, representing

the Robins Irrigation Conpany. But the Robins Irrigation Company, as

shown by the prospectus issued in England, was really owned as follows:
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"• ** Mcortgor II p^f i)tat,O*. St Aabjm 1 p^ oMit
Oajr-Tnusey Robins p«r oaot
The main operators were no strangen to the Deputment of the Interior.

Thqr were men with a poll.

WHAT THBT OOT.

So the Ontnd Forics Cattle Company and the Bobinf Irrigatimi C<mi-
pany, oompoaed of the same group of politicians, obtained three ctmceaaiona.

Firrt, 95,000 acrea held under a tweniy-cne-year irrevocable graxing
lease, which coat two oenta an acre rent

Second, 9,450 acrea freehold selected in choice lots over six townshipa
and pnrchased for $1 per acre.

Third, 380,000 acres for which the purchasers agreed to pay $1 an acre
net within nine years, and to irrigate a fourth part.

The next step was to sell these concessions and take the profits, as the
owners had no idea of ranching or irrigating. For this purpose another
concern was employed, called ttie Canadian Agency, Limited. This company
bou^t out the Grand Forks Company and the Robins Irrigation Company
on tiie 18th of September, 1906, and sold out on the 9th of October to the

„ ir^ ^"!^ I*»^ Company, an Endish corporation, which assumed
all me financial responsibility, and proposedto get its monw back with large
pn^ts by selling out the land to the settlers.

iOtJQHT FOR $9,452, TALITED AT $113,424.
A valuation was made of the property of tho Grand Forks Cattle Com-

pany. Robert Hall, of Brandon, was selected by the English purchasers to
examme this property. He looked first at the 9,453 acres for which McGre-
gor, Hitchcock and their associates (J. C. Murray, wholesale liquor dealer
in Dawson, and partner of Colin McGregor; D.A. Boss, formerly liquor
deiUer m Vancouver, afterwards in the same business at Dawson, and Hon.
J. H. Roes, a member of the Canadian Senate, formerly Chief Commissioner
of the Yukon, and later member of Parliament) had paid $1 an acre. The
valuation was made less than a vear after the nurchase from ttie Govern-
ment, and Mr, Hall stated that
'•thwe lands have been selected out of an area of 100.000 acres, held under ieasoby the Qiand Porks Cattle Compahy, Limited, and are. In my opinion .easily of thevalve of $12 per acre under present conditions, without reference to any futurepeculatlve possibilities." (Hansard. 1907, pare 2495.)

Mr. Hall added that some of this land had been cultivated, and was
worth $5 an acre extra. Leaving this out, we find a neat rake-off amounting
to 1,100 per cent, on eleven months' ownership.

$350,000 PROFIT ON THE GRAZING LANDS.
The Grand Forks Cattle Company had placed some cattle on the land,

and had certain contracts with railways to supply meat. The appraisers
for the English purchasers valued all these assets at $444,000. But the
valuator found that the Grand Forks Company had expended £60 000 or
less than $300,000. ' '

•J?J*«£*^'*^
Agency, or English middlemen, paid £135,000 sterlinjr,

or $654,850 for the Grand Forks property. McGregor, Hitchcock and their
fnends got back all the money they put in for improvements. They got
in addition a profit of $11 an acre on the 9,450 acres freehold for wMch
they paid $1 an acre, and they received nearly $250,000 extra as the value
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of the irreronble leus obtained by tbem the year before, and on whidi tlm
had paid only the TjMr't rant at 2 cents an acre. On tiiis put of the deal

their profits were $354^000.

KIABI.T $500,000 PBOriT ON TUB IBBIOAnOX OOWOMnOV.
At the same time the McGr^r, Hitchcock syndicate sold to the Eng-

lish middlemen the benefit of the irrigation concession of 380,000 acres.

For this contract of the Bobins Irrigation Company, on which not a cent

had been paid except the cost of snrreys, tiie ^glish middlemen gaid

£100,000 sterling, or $486,000. This was to be paid eittier in cash or part

cash and part stock, and as the stock was over-enhscribed, the pay wonld be
taken in cash if the sellers desired it.

BAKE-OFF IS $840,000 AND $315,250.

So we have the Hitchcock, McQregor concern obtaining picked land

from the Government in 1905 at $1 an acre and selling it in 1906 for $12
an acre; obtaining a tweniy-one-year lease in 1905, which other people

cannot get at any price, and turning it over in 190ti for more than $250,000
profit; obtaining a concession of 380,000 acres in June, 1906, and turning

it over in Sept^ber of the same year for $486,000 profit without paying a
dollar.

The total profits on these three operations amount to $840,000.
Now comes in the next group of middlemen, the Canadian Agency,

Limited,- which bought the concessions from the McGregor, Hitchcock syndi-

cate for £235,000. This concern probably had in it some of our Canadian
political friends, but they kept out of sight, leaving only Mr. St. Aubyn
visible. The Canadian Agency, Limited, added another £65,000, or $315,250,
to the price, and sold out to the Southern Alberta Land Company for

£300,000. This margin included promotion expenses, and a large rake-off

which went to persons not known.
The final purchasers have thus had to pay $1,455,000. If they can sell

the assets, other than land of the Grand Forks Company, at the alleged cost,

the outlay for land alone will be $1,155,000, and they will still have to pay
the $1 an acre for the 380,000 acres of the irrigation concession.

THK SETTLER MCST PAY ALL.

This $1,155,000 will all have gone to promoters, political favorites and

middlemen, except the $9,450 paid to the Government for the land sold to

the Grand Forks Cattle Company, and the few hundred dollais paid as rental.

The people of Canada, who owned the land, received only $10,n00 or $11,000
^ "f the $1,155,000 that was paid up to the time the Southern Alberta

Land Company got possession.

Now, the Southern Albei-ta Land Company, which pays this $1,155,000,

and expects to pay $1,000,000 more for irrigation works, together with

$380,000 for the land in the irrigation block, hopes to get it all back from

the settler, with, substantial profits.

The company figures out that it will realize the following prices

:

Tor 85,000 acres of Irrigable land In tract A an averag« price

of $23 per acr«, or $1,955,000 00

For 50,000 Irrigable land In tract B at 120 per acre 1,000,000 00
For 59,823 acres in tract A at an average price of $12.50 per

acre 741,537 60
For 18S,2(>? acre* In tract B, at $5 per acre 931,250 00

Total $4,«27.787 60
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TIwM neeipte would girt the Soothera Alberta ComMuir a good profit
In any cue the Caoadian politicians, who recdred theae apecial favon and
oonceaairau, will hare bagged their million dolUrs or to without ha?iiur oaid
or risked anyUimg. This million will be paid bv the farmer^ettlerif theacneme succeeds.

NO NKKD or IT.

TJere was no necessity for the intrusion of the McGregors, Hitchcocks.
and other pditical speculators between the Goyemment and the settler, orMtween the Goremment and the genuine inveetor. Irrigation works are no
toiiger an expenmrnt in the West. Ther- is no secret or mystery aboutr itwquiring the subsidizing of a go-between. All that is necessary is for theQoremment to ded directly and honesUy with the genuine investor, so that
* e^t^ h» legitimate profits and sell the land at a reasonable price

The whole subject was discussed in a debate on the following

Z! !f ^.*i'
*•>• Ctovernment In the matter of the Robin. IrHgmtlon contract ^!tag of opinion that the Oovemment ha« failed to eafeguard the rlrtuTf' thePMpte, has rabordlnated the public interest to that of .pecutatore and^ tL !h!

!:SSL?-lVth" *''*^***. **' ?'• ^-«"«^t«tion. irSd ?^'ente.SJU7o 5:trrwlMded with promoters' prollte. which muet in the end be paid by future set-

On the Tote the deal was sustained by a majority of thirtv-three, a
atnight party dimion, except that Mr. Bourassa voted with the Opposition
and a number of Liberals shirked the vote.

U
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TBB 6ALWAT DBAL.

iMse Hdd Two Tears For The Abeent Kr. Brown While Tht
Real Party Was Adamson, M.P., Who payal6oo And Sells

Out For About $ao,ooo—Mr. Oliver's Surrender.

On the S7th of May, 1908, the Department of the Interior received an
application for a cloaed grazing lease of 60,000 acres, or nearly 100 aquara

miles, weab of the conflaence of the Bow and Belly Kivers in Southeaateni

Alberta. The applicant signed himself H. F. Brown, of Grand Falls, Moa«
tana. An Order-in-Council on the 83rd of March, 1903, directed that

Brown should receive his lease. The regulation required six months' ad-

vance payment of the rental, which was only two cents per acre. The Secre-

tary of the Department wrote to Mr. Brown asking him to pay $603.81 and
take his lease.

Mr. Brown did not reply. The secretary wrote again, saying:

"If th« amount of renUl, beinc t<03.81, Is not received here wltbln thirty daya
from this date. It will be understood that you do not wUh for tha lease of thesa
taada.'*

No reply was received. In the ordinary course the application would
have lapsed on the 27th of August, 1903, and Mr. Brown would have been

heard from no more.

Strange to say, though, there were many applicants for grazing leases

in this neighborhood, and though farmers desired to settle on the land, the

Department still held the 60,000 acres subject to Mr. Brown's order. The
secret of this astonishing patience is disclosed by t4ie appearance of three

initials connected with Mr. Brown's original application.

J. D. m'obe(K)b is behind it.

Though Mr. Brown's letter asking for the land was dated from Grand
FaIIs, Montana, it was received at the Department on the day after it was
written. It was written in Ottawa. Now, J. D. M. is James D. McGregor,
veteran in th€ Robins dea!, hero of the Grand Forks grazing lease, friend

of Hon. Clifford Sifton, Minister of the Interior. If " J, D. M." was inter-

ested in Mr. Brown, the Brown lease must be protected, even though Mr.
Brown could not be foimd for many weary years.

So, on the 24th of December, 1903, though Mr. Brown had not been
found, his name was included with two others in an Order-in-Council which
set forth that he was entitled to an irrevocable closed twenty-one-year graz-

ing lease. It was then a year and a half since Mr. Brown had been heard
frmn, and he had not paid a cent. He did not own a single animal in

Canada, and had probably not seen the land. Yet this Order-in-Cotmcil set

forth that he was to be offered the twenty-one-year leaae on the ground that

he had, since March, 1903, "been in possession of the lands described in

this Order,"

AS INVISIBLE POSSESSOR.

But while the (Jovemment declared Mr. Brown in possession the Depart-

ment was still unable to find him. Government had kindly forgiven him
half a year's back rent, and proposed to date the lease from the first of

December. The Secretary, who was not in the Departmental secret, wrote

»



^^S?Zf* *SS!!^ ""'^ th« hMi to U ti«Md, and addiiff for

IS«J TK. f-

*""^ I*i£»o •ttention. He had no interest iXtiS^
nearer the Mmieter. Bat u they wom not ditpoMd to par any rent it ««•Mcemry to keep up the form of dunning Mr. Ko^ ^'^ ' "^

-^ wo OHANOB FOB 8KTTLEB8.

K. .uLT •^' "t**"®"
deeired to homestead this area. A petition siioMd

5w^"'*"!i*™**' P«>*«^«»«^t the continuance of tlfflSuS VTminjustoce to the faimen. They declared that ffood crops couldTs ^^on this and and that settlen were ready to tiEiip tom«te3s onTS
r"^" ?\r!.'}!^^^ ^ «»«'»«^- sibordinate^SS^cruidiS
dW not want i^ refused to sign the lease, paid no rental and had™ aihswjred one of the seven letter, mit him. The SecreUiy of the DepuSmS

Mr. BiSl^shS ^'^^ * "*° °' Parliament, had stepped into

u ?Jl: '^* « Martin, agent of Dominion Lands at Lethbridee. wrote onthe 15th of March. 1905. that he was ,n receipt of appli«itiS tTwstoid th«» lands, and aa the lease had not been taken i^d Se wit had^
llT'n^^ ^'' *^'- ^*"* ^^ **" ^'fP^^ office, and Mr. Olivet

w« ^ol,^o/?r°*1' 2*".''"l " »''«°« Minister, and the eituatbn

So on the 17ft of July, Mr. A. J. Adamson, memjer of Parliaitient

THB OCCUPANT OP THE WOODPILE.

Department of Interior, Ottawa.
'*'""• **' <'«'»««""• O^Uwa, July 17th. 1>05.

(HaMard. 1»07, pace 3480.)
^°"' *™''' ^^^ '• ^damson.

the sSL'^^Bnt f^\^^ **1 '®1'^'M ^'"^ '««° Mr. Adamson on

mJ bS >«5 • ^2^?^* contained the astounding information thatMr. Brown had assigned his lease a year and ten months before Itk
Hoi^'L"*S£'comn.^* '*\ *^"« ""': ^"'^^^^^ G'J-y

«K ^ comprised the Galway Company? Three names are iriVen aa

^^^.rt^nt"""^^^*tr^'^^'^\ Onei.A.J.ldt^rme.r-
TW?i 'i i^^*"^",." *^ '^'«' ^' M. Adamson, sister to Mr
Mr i 'tTh"*™^

of ParUament for East Assiniboia.^ TlTtUrd JMr. A. J. Bell, cousin of Mr. Adamson.

ao



. Mr. AdiBMii ww mr7Ib| afoiiiid tfw MrifmiiMit inm Mr. "Bttmn

•U Um tiiM tbt DntrtoMBi oc tht latorior wh lookinc lor Mr. Brown.
Mr. Admnon got Meted to Fwliontait tfter he obUined thii MiigBflMBt.

wu oboat to DO can>It WM only at tlM end of th« iweion, when the le

oeUed, that he diMsloaed himelf the holder of it

Mr. Adameon had paid no rent He had pUoed no cattle on the land,

nia Hone Compaiqr had done no bnaineaa. He had obtained the aMign*
ment from Mr. Brown after that gentleman had forfeited all daim to it

The eeaignment waa the tranefer of a leeee that did not exiit to a oompanj
which did not exiet No doubt the Miniater who had retired and conunie*

lionod Tnrriff knew the whole etoiy, and that wae the reaion that the leaae

wae kept alire.

SDBPIUBB) <^vnOIAU

Mr. Byley, Accoontant of the Department of the Interior, wae rather

enrpriaed when he receiTed a cheque for $650 and with it a daim for a
nractically forfeited lease, nearly two jtm old,- on which there wae dne
f2,41S. So he proceeded to write to Deputy Hiniiter Cory the history of

flie transaction (Hansard, 1907, page 3480). Mr. Ryley pointed ont that

a lease had been prepared in January, 1904, that rent wu due from Decem-
ber, 1903, that Mr. Brown nerer took the lease and never paid the rental,

and that now an assignment had been received' to the Galway Company,
which offered to pay only one half-year's rent. The accountant wanted to

know whether the Department would accept this partial payment or would
diarge the full $2,415.

OLtTXR BVLXa AND ADAK80K 0HOO8S8.

Mr. Oliver was still in the innocent steRe of his incumbency, and de-

cided at once that Mr. Adamson misrht take the lease as a new one on
new conditions, or as an old one on the conditions that existed when it was
given. The old lease was a twenty-one-year irrevocable grant The De-
partment was giving no more of these. New leases were revocable on two
years' notice. Mr. Adamson's company could have the new lease and com-
mence payments, or take the old lease and pay arrears. The Minister might
have refused either and opened ttie land for settlement, or offered it for

competition. But he did not go so far.

Mr. Oliver's instructions were (Hansard, 1907, page 3481):
"Mr. Ryl«T. I think it can b^ auutned from the annexed report that it w*»

the intention to tnue to Mr. H. B. Brown a closed lease without any provision for
cancellatim thereof upon giving two year's notice.

This being: the ease I tee no objection to a lease belnc issued to the assignee of
Mr. Brown, and that the rental should commence to accrue from the date upon
which the first half year's rent was paid, provided a clause be inserted in the lease
that it may be cancelled upon (ivlnr two year's notice."

Mr. Adamson elected to save his money and take the new lease.

Still the member for Humbolt was not going into the cattle business.

He was in land speculation, and the lease was hawked about among cattle

owners in the West But cattle men were not paying their money so gen-
erously as Mr. Adamson wished for leases that could not be cancelled in

two years, when they saw the McGregors, the Hitchcocks and other favorites

holding twenty-one year leases with no power to cancel.

Mr. Adamson had chosen the other kind. This is shown by a letter

written by tiie Secretery of the Department on the 28th of July, 1905, to

M. S. McCarthy, M.P.:



"Tk* torm 9t the Imm !• twantjr-oiM fMtn, tk« natal I mbu acr «• m*
l^r^^SUT^^ "•*•

II?*
•*•"•* *»•• Oor.n>m.ln.<>mn^a at aiTu^aS?

Ill* tba twm of Um I«w« eonaidar it In th* puMto latwrMt to twmlnata tb* mam
^Hf?/.?*^* *"• ••»*•' •' »•»• latwtor can and mar, on tlTin* two mam notlaammmt tko tmm at any Umo duriac th* iwrtod of th« loa«o."

^^
Ml. OU?U SUlt«£>IDKU.

But in the wmt«r of 1906 it wu impraiMd upon Mr. Adaniion that if
lie wanted to make big monejr out of hit deal he mtut have a twenty-one

l^ tT .r****
°°. cancellation clauee in it Mr. Olirer had eetUed

the matter the year before, but found hinuelf unable to reuet the combinaUon
of memben of Parliament, ex-Minitten, ez-ConuniMionen, with their iiiten.
oouttM and annta. On the «7th of February Mr. Oliyer wrote to Mr.
Campbell, laymg: "Ixwk up the term* of the Brown lea«^-it is claimed

«SL^''' f"'"" *"•* • clo^ Jew* WM ordered before the regulation of^^^ "Jl..*'* f?"^' ^* "* ^^^ definitely on thia point." Of
oourae, Mr. Oliver did not need any information. He had ahown in his
letter to Mr. Byley that he knew all about it. But Mr. Campbell did what
hia Minuter required. He told him that the order originally intended an
irreroeable leaae.

o
j

—
'^ereupon, Mr. Oliver aurrendered fully to the land hunters. He

"

gave Mr. Adamaon the leaae, and the clauae providing for cancellation waa
ttrrck out The Minister made this order on the 6th of March, 1906, and

•o?!^°°*
^'^^ ^'"* ^*'*™'<"» *>*^ •ol<l the leaae for a price aaid to be

9*0,000.

Another atrange thing happened. Though Mr. Adamaon waa again
nut in the plMe of Mr. Brown aa the original holder of the irrevocable leaae
he waa still forgiven the back rent that Brown waa bound to pay. Mr
Oliver had offered him the alternative to pay the rent and take the old
iMae or not to pay it and take the new one. Mr. Adamson did not pay
the rent and he got the old lease. He played the game of heads I win. tails
the Oovemment lose. His total payments were between six and seven hun-
dred dollars, and the whole transaction probably cost him less than a thousand.

OENUIXE RANCHKR FOOTS THE BILt.

The man who bought the Icc^i f >, Mr. AJHUison was a member of a
genuine cattle ranching firm. He had tried to geb a lease from the Oovem-
ment, such as Mr. Adamaon had. He would have been more than willing
to pay the rent which Mr. Adamson escaped paying. But there were no
irrevocable leases for him. These were all required for political speculators
who did not keep cattle. Therefore, Mr. John Cowdry, who had ten thou-
sand cattle and no ranch to feed them on, had to go to a member of Par-
liament and the cousin of a member of Parliament, and to the wife and
sister of a member of Pariiamenl^ and had to pay them a rake-off of $20,000
or thereabouts, to obtain the right to pasture his herds.

'

This transaction was discussed in Parliament on the 21st of February
1907. on the following motion of Mr. Herron, M.P. for Alberta:

"'*»* tho eboumstanees attendant upon the aequisltlon of, and diaposal by
tbo Galway Hone and Cattle Company of sraain« lease Number 205» reHects die-enoit upon the Oovernment and should receive the disapproval of this House."

Besides the Minister of the Interior, who waa a good deal confused
over the affair, the transaction was excused by Mr. Adamson, the chief bene-
ficiary, and by Mr. Turriff, brother of another beneficiary. In the end the
motion was defeated by a straight party majority of eiirhty to foriy-nine
(Hansard, page 3542.) "^

'



TDIBIR LIMITS.

FoUtical FAToritM Bay Oafhsnd Them In—Brothtr-in-Uw
Bnnrowi And Hit Pulp Oomptny—Startling Tramartiww

Dragged To Light In Spite Of Oorenimrat Obftruction.

Aa the prairie coantry is moetly without trees, the whole rut r^on
between the Red Hirer and the Kocicy Mnuntaint ia dependent for lumber
•apply upon reUtirelj small and scattered areaa of Inmber landa. Thoae
meat heiVily timbered or most acccsaible hare become immensely raluable
within a few years, as settlement has adranccd and railway construction has
made, or is likely soon to make, the timber arailablc.

rORMBB CONDITIONS.

Down to 1900 littie waa known of the Northern foresfs. British OoI»
ombia and Ontario supplied the small demand for lumber. For the promo-
tkm of lumber manufacture in the West the several governments lud granted
timber limits rather freely, but imposed such conditions of manufacture that
most of the leases lapsed. The best timber limits were not within tuj
nacfa and local markets were not sufficient to encourage investment. Specn-
latire headings were discouraged by the terms of lease requiring operation.
Leaaea could be terminated by Government whenever the land waa reqoind
for other purposes, and this did not favor purchase.

TIMBER LIMITB IK CONSEBVATITE TIMES.

It was, and sfcill ia, a favorite charge of Liberal loaders and their snp>

ders that the Conservatives, when in power, granted large areas of timber
ts to their friends. As a matter of fact, the leases then went to any

who sought them and would comply with the conditions, which, however,
were so severe that 94 per cent, of all the land granted before 1896 reverted

to the Crown. While Ministers now excuse their lavish and reckless timber
concessions by telling of large grants made by their predecessors, the fact
remains that when the Lauricr Administration took office only 1,8(50 square
miles remained under lease of all the timber land that had been granted by
all previous Governments, Liberal and Conservative.

IT IS DirFEUENT NOW.

To-da,' the pick of all the Western lands are under lease. Speculative
purchasers have not only been allowed to select single blocks of timber that
suited them, but have been given the privilege of picking out for sale as many
as fifty blocks of ten square miles each, within a region of over 7,000 square
miles and to buy in a single transacticm. Altogether there are now under
lease 6,400 square miles of timber lands selected throughout practically the
whole available supply south of the witershed.

Since the value of these lands k ?,tcter underatood, and rapid settlement
makes it important to guard the timber supplies for the people, one would
expect the conditions to be made more rigid, and that the Qovemment would
exercise greater vigilance over this heritage. It would be expected that
timber l^md not yet available for lack of transportation facilities would be
held until there was a demand for it from genuine operators. If standing
timber waa to be kept for a rise in value, it should be held by the public
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•nd not by speculaton. Especially those timber regions whose extent and

IiIinM'ZI'l^°^'^S*?^^''''*"'°^°* "»^ ^ ™«»* P«"iWe purchasers
•honld not be sold nntU the department had explored the land and obtained
some Idea of its character and resources. If it were decided to sell this
tanber. It was the clear duty of the Government to explore it and settle
Its minimum value and to give ample noUce to all possible purchasers withtme to examine the territory. Then there would be real competition, and

miSr
speculators they would get it fairly at a competitive

THEY TOOK THE OPPOSITE C0CB8E.

GoveSji ^'r^^"^
'*°^ °°*' *^*^'*'*^* ^^^ operation has not been held by the

It has not been explored by the Government before sale
It has not been offered in lots of such moderate size as to bring itwitnin the means of the average purchaser.
It has not been offered with sufficient notice and publicity to allow thepurchaser to examine the lands, or even in all cases to reach them

« «o Jf 1.
•'^ *^ conducted as to give every possible advantage

to tlie speculator as opposed to the genuine operator; to make competitifn
a farce; to encourage collusive and fictitious bidding; to justifv thfwide.
spread suspicion of the honesty of the proceedings, and generally to dis-
courage the genuine lumber operator and the honest bidder, and to enrich
a group of machine politicians and mi -- understood to be in theen^yment of Government favor and patrc Suspicions are strengthened
by the Government's secr^ methods; b„ , and misleading ministerial
statenients; by refusal to furnish records Tva.ch ought to be free to all- bv
deceptive practice on the part of fortiinate bidders; by the almost invariable
mixess of certain groups of individuals, who, bidding under various names
and m irregular ways, and with remarkable manipulations of cheques have
always managed to secure the limits they sought by very small margin^ over
their nearest competitor.

^

SPECULAriVE HOLDINGS.

/xj xu?
^^^'^'^ ***® *'^* covered by timber licenses was 6,400 square miles.

Of this quantity 3,061 square miles, or practically half, was in speculative
ftoldings. Only 1,952 square miles of timber was even partially operated, and
the remainder was held as reserve for lumbermen.

Out of the speculative holdings, between 1,400 and 1,500 square miles
were acquired by a group of politicians, of whom Theodore A. Burrows M P
18 the most active and the most fortunate. ' '*

Mr. T. A. Burrows is the member of Parliament for Dauphin, Manitoba
and ifl a brother-in-law of the Hon. ChT^rd Sifton, under whose dispensation
as Minister of the Interior almost every acre of his timber land was obtained.

Mr. Staples, M.P., speaking in Parliament, repeated the remark of a Man-
itoba pioneer, who pointed to the lonely tree on the prairie with the remark
ttiat It was the only tree in the western country that had not passed into the
hands of the Big Pour. Mr. Staples continued—" I enquired, Who are the
Big Four?"

« Why," he answered " T am surprised at you, an M.P., who have been
there three sessions, and do not know the Big Four: Turriff Burrows
Adamson and Sifton."

' '



While other members of the quartette may extieed Mr. Burrows in their

acquisitions of farm lands or crazing leases,, he is easily ahead in the matter
of timber lands.

The country has lost millions of dollars by the premature sale of these

speculative holdings at prices that make the timber a gift. Consumers of
lumber will suffer by the concentration of the lands in the hands of so few.

Most of these speculative holdings were obtained after 1902. In 1903
two abnjpt and important changes were made by Mr. Sifton in timber regn-
lations. These changes were greatly to the advantage of limit holders, and
espcfh \ t? those who bought for speculation. They were of greater advan-
ts.i to All. Siri'-n's brother-in-law than to any other man, and, perhaps,
gi ater than to aii ather men put together.

FORMER RESTRICTIONS.
I'v. rlovs to 1903, timber leases were subject. to revision of the rental

and royalty, ux^l also to the condition that any portion of the limit might
be opened for settlement to homesteaders, the limit holdw having a short
time to clear away the large timber. Neighboring settlers were also allojved

to get wood and timber for their own purposes on the licensed premises.
Section 3 of the Begulations of 1898 reads as follows:

" When a licensee has compiled with all the conditions herein set forth In his
license and the regulations, and where no portion of the timber berth is required
for Mttlement or other public purpose, of which the Minister of the Interior is to
be the judge, the license may be renewed for another year, subject to such revlsloii
o( the annual rental and royalty to be paid therefor as may be fixed by the Oov-
emor-ln-Councll."

Sub-section 2, of Section 10 of the Regulations of 1898, provides that
the license shall not interfere with the settlement of any lands within the
limit which may be desirable for settlement, and that the only recourse of
the licensee is that he may within sixty days after notice remove all timber
over ten inches in diameter. It also provides that individual homestead; set-

I'ers with free permits shall be allowed to cut and remove from land covered
by a license such building timber, fence rails or firewood as the permit
might set forth.

LEASES HADE IRREVOOABLE.

In 1903 the Government changed all this. On recommendation of Mr.
Sifton an Order-in-Council was passed on the 14th of April of that year

KepeaUng the above conditions and substituting the .following (Hansard,

1906, page 4177) :

" So longr as the licensee oomt>lles with the conditions of his license and of
the reffulatlons he shall be entitled to a renewal of his license from year to year
while merchantable timber remains upon the area licensed. When a substantial
portion of the said area hoa been denuded of timber, the minister may dispose of
the same under sale or settlement regrulations, provided that no such disposition
shall be made of land immediately contiguous to merchantable standing timber, or
In such a way as to endanger destruction thereof by flr«."

This change makes the license permanent on the terms of the grant,

whereas it was previously renewable year by year at the option of the
Miniister and sul^'ect to the revision of rental and royalty.

The same Order-in-Council rescinded ihe regulation which allowed set-

tlement within the timber berth, and also the provision allowing neighboring
settlers to obtain timber on the limits for their own use.

WHERE BROTHER-IN-LAW BURROWS OOHES IN.

Mr. T. A. Burrows, M.P. for Dauphin, Manitoba, is a brother-in-law
of Mr. Sifton. The above Order-in-Council increasing the value of timber
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limits and giving the oimen greater secarity waa passed as above stated
on the 14th of April, 1903. Th6 following is a list of berths granted to Mr.
BniTOws between 1898 and 1904. It will be seen that the majority of them
were obtained immediately before or soon after the above changes in the
legnlations

:

.Sept.

No. of Barth.
U4
8J7.........
9M
998 D*c.

1,000 Feb.
1.001 Teb.
1,002 Feb.

Date Granted. Area.
May 30. 1898 IS square miles.

4, 1898 44
60

30, 1901 40
10, 1902 f

10, 1902 6
10. 1902 4

1,046 March 7, 1903 40
1,047 March 7. 190S 50
1.064 Aprn 8, 1903 1
1,068 June 24, 1903 6%
1,073 July 15, 1903 20
1,0M Not. 11, 1993 12

11, 1903 27
11, 1903 44
27, 1904 15
7, 1904 60
7, 1904 60

1,094 Nov.
1,099 Nov,
1,120 Jan.
1,191 Dec.
1.192 Dec.

According to Mt; Burrows' own statement, made in the House of Com-
mons (Hansard, 1908, page 8756), he secured in all in his own name 434
square miles, or 341.760 acres. He has also a half interest in the Imperial
Pulp Company, which has acquired over 400 square miles, and was inter-
ested as a silent, but exceedingly active and highly profited partner, in a
purchase of at least 250 square miles more. This brother-in-law of the
Minister would be a. large gainer by the Order-in-Council making his licenses
permanent, shutting out lus berths from settlement and from use by neigh-
boring farmers.

A MAN WHO GETS WHAT HE WANTS.

In the address of Mr. W. J. Roche, M.P. for Marquette, Manitoba,
1906, it was shown that Mr. Burrows had other exceptional privileges.
About six months after Mr. Sifton became Minister of the Interior, he re-
quested Mr. Burrows to inspect the Swan Biver Valley. Mr. BurrowB re-
ported concerning the " unfailing supply of wood and building timber in the
"wooded districts, and also the immwise areas of solid timber on the Dude
** Mountain to the south, and the Porcupine Mountain to the north and weet"
Since then Mr. Burrows haa obtained large timber areas in those districts.

In July, 1898-, a r^fulation was pawed allowing the Minister of the
Interior to grant permits to saw-mill owners to cut over a definitely de-
acribed tract of land not exceeding 50 square miles. KTo tender was required
for this privilege, intended for mill owners who could show that they needed
timber to keep a neighboring mill running. This order came into e^ct
on the 13th of August, and eight days afterwards Mr. Burrows applied for
a permit for 60 square miles. Mr. Eoche states that some others who own-
plied with the conditions obtained permits and those who did not were
refused. Mr. Burrows was the only one who did not comply and was
not refused. He did not define his limit. He did not manufacture the
lumber in a neighboring saw-mill, but sold the timber to the Dauphin Bail-
way & Canal Co.
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At the same time another applicant for a limit was refused on the

ground that he did not indicate that bis supply was exhausted, and that it

was absolutely necessary to get a supply to keep his mill running. Still

another was refused on the ground that the berth would produce more if

put up for competitiun, and a third, because he did not furnish the Depart-

ment with a definite description of the laud. But Mr. Burrows was not

troubled with these questicMis.

At this time Mr. Burrows was writing to the Deputy Minister of the

Interior in the following lan^age:
*< I cannot define by cectlona the timber I want. Now, Mr. Smart, I want ttatl

permit, and ownlnar as I do berth S14, I am entitled to first right of permit.
" Kindly have permit sent me. I Intend cutting ties on it this winter.
" Sorry I did not see you when I was last In Ottawa."

It is hardly necessary t» say that Mr. Burrows' brother-in-law's deputy

kindly had the permit sent to Mr. Burrows at once. '

There was one range in one township, however, that the Deputy L.in-

ister withheld from the permit. He wrote to the local agent :
" You may

*' issue a permit except for township 32, range 22."

Nevertheless, Mr. Burrows went on and cut timber in this forbidden

area. Afterwords he wrote to the c^ 'partinent that he had cut it inadver-

tently, and added :
" I b<?g, therefore, to ask that the lands I have defined in

" townsliip 32, ran<je 22, be included in the tract covered by my permit."

They were included.

CnUAT DAYS FOB MU. BURROWS.

When the leases had been made permanent by Mr. Sifton, speculators

had soniethinjr wliieli they could bold indefinitely or sell to advantage. But
this change increased the need of caution in making leases, since, however
much the concession might be against public interest, no matter how trifling

the price might be, or iiow much the land might be required for cultivation,

the bargain could not be cancelled nor the holder dislodged while he left

merchantable timber on his land.

Under these conditions Mr. Burrows made rapid acquisitions of timber

He was singularly fortunate in his biddings. In three" years he bid

nineteen limits and git eighteen of them. In his bidding little went
lO waste. His offers were iiiffh enough to get the property with little to

spare. He had a singular and unique method of submitting his offers and
j)eculiar arrangement of cheques wliich worked exceedingly well.

A MY8TKRI0U8 PULP COMPANY.
Mr. Burrows would have been deemed fortunate above all men in pro-

curing timber limits, but for the sudden appearance and astonishing success

of what appeared to be a rival concern, called the Imperial Pulp Company,
which began to bid for timlier limits in December, 1902, and c(mtinued foir

'at a year and a half. During this period the Company made offers for

nine limits. Some one had always to ask that a limit should be put up
to tender, but the Imperial Pulp Company never did. The request always
seemed to come from another source. The company did not always bid in
its own name, but had agents, who sometimes used their names, and often
borrowed names for tlie purpose.

Other striking facts may be noticed. One is Hiat the Imperial Pulp
Company never bid on a limit that it did not get. Another is that thd iotoL

of its bids for the nine limi*^? amounted to $54,97.5, while the total of the
next highest bidder was $51,771, only 6 per cent, difference. To be Me
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to keep as muJI a margui as this and never once get too low is an achieve-
ment which <mly Mr. Burrows conld match. A third notaHe feature was
thftt the Impmal Pulp Company's tenders were not in tl .

' r form,
wnally not mentioning the amount offered, but leaving it to oe .omputed
from the two or more dieqnes enclosed, which Beverally bore a remarkable
relation to the competitiTe tenders, and collectively were large enough toeme tiie limit with very little to spare. This peculiar scheme of tenders
and cheques was so like that of Mr. Burrows' that it would have infringed
his copyright if he had one.

ORIOmAL D00UMBKT8.
It was in connection with these peculiar methods that the controversy

over the production of original documents arose in Parliament January 13tli,
1908, and continue* at intervals until the 27th, vdien the Government sur-
rendered and the papers were produced. The value of an original record as
compared with the copy which the Government wished to bring down instead,
had been established the previous year when the original papers in the Gal-
way Company and H. B. Brown grazing lease disclosed J. D. McGregor's
connection with the deal.

On the 13th Mr. Ames moved for original applications and tenders for
three berths. Mr. Oliver refused. The minister was supported by the Pre-
mitae and his majority. Mr. Ames explained that he only needal "the papers
half an hour, and that he wished to see the handwriting and marks which
the copies did not disclose. He also stated that previously he had been
allowed to examine these papers in the office of the Department, and had
even been invited by the Department to come there and see them as often
as he liked. This privilege had lately been withdrawn, and he had been told
to move in the House for the papers. Now when he had done so the documents
were refused. Mr. Borden and other Conservatives asserted the well estab-
lished right of members to see public records of this kind, but Mr. Fielding
four times stated in several discussions that this recognized right of u.embers
to Bee the records meant only such rights as the majority chose to allow. On
this occasion the majority refused.

FOCGHT THE MATTER OUT.

The Opposition did not accept this decision and on the 21st Mr. Borden
moved a resolution declaring:

., ^V*i" V^l
undoubted ilsht of the people'. representatJve» In Parliament assem-bM to b« Informed of everything necessary to explain the policy and proceedlnjrs

Of the Government and for that purpose to have an opportunity of seeing andtmmming all documents connected with the transaction of public busln^^ss- andme tadal of such Hght by the Oovemment, Justifies the refusal by this House ofnutner supplies to the Crown."

Sir Wilfrid did not dare dispute this general proposition and accepted
the motion, which passed unanimouslv. Nevertheless the original papers
werew+hheld. ^ ^

On the 23rd January, on motion to go into supply the Opposition again
rwsed the question, when Mr. Northrup moved an amendment that:

"Subject to such consideration of the public policy as can be validly urged In

ss;^enT2rto*'Lr?hi'^ivS.T "*• ^'" *' '""" *^ *" »"• ^^'^^ « ^^^^

This statement was taken verbatim from language used by Sir Wilfrid
Lwner himself in the previous debate. Yet the Government and its majority
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voted down the motion, and Sir Wilfrid voted repudiation of hit own wdonn
affirmation.

With the Premier and his oulleagues involved in this tangle of repudia-
tion of their own statements and doctrines, and still refusing to members
the rights which they admitted to be their due, there remained only one
course for the Opposition, which was to stop supply urtil the original papers
were produced. Not a dollar was voted in the next two days that the House
was in supply, and Sir Wilfrid was given plainly to understand that he
would get no money while he held back the papers wnich he had himself

admitted the members had a right to see. On Monday, the 27th, Sir Wilfrid
announced his surrender and the original ay>plications and tenders were laid

on the table.

THE CAUSE OP CONCEALMEXT.

Then came to light the peculiar metliods of the Burrows and Imperial
Fulp Company tenders. Thin also was revealed some interesting features

respecting the Imperial Pulp Company, and concerning Mr. A. W. Fraser,

Barrister of Ottawa, former President of the Liberal Association, and in 1908
the candidate for the Liberal party in Ottawa for the House of Commons.

First, as to the Imperial Pulp Company. In the original documents
discussion there was much conjecture concerning this corporation, which
bought so much timber at such ridiculously low prices in such mysterious
ways; which did not disclose its domicile; whose officers and stockholders

were unknown, and which was so modest that when the Department trans-

acted business with the Company, they had to apply to a bank to find the
address. It was suggested in the House that Mr. Sifton had some connec-
tion with the company, but he denied it. The Minister of the Interior could
or would give no information. Mr. Turriff, M.P.. who had been Commis-
sioner of Ijands when the Company was acquiring its estate, was asked in
vain for information, and Mr. Burrows sat in the Hoiise day after day hear-

ing these questions and giving no sign of intelligence.

MR. Bunnows discovered at last.

But an examination of the original documsnts showed that Mr. Burrows
\V!i8 giving cheques to pay the rental on the Imperial Pulp Company's pro-

l.orties. In the Public Accounts Committee officers of the bank were sum-
iiumed to give evidence about these checiues. Concealment was no longer
possible, and Mr. Macdonald, of Pictou, was authorized by Mr. Burrows to

fiill his friend and associate, Mr. Fraser, and have the disclosure made. Mr.
i'raser was asked:

Q. Do you know who the people connected with the Imperial Pulp Company
are, Mr. Fra«erT A. I know some of them.

Q. Will you kindly tell us who they are? A. I have received authority from
my cUents to answer the question. So far as my knowledge groes the principal
members of the Company are Sir Daniel jifcMlUan, who U he President, Mr.
Theodore A. Burrows, and Mr. Pattlnaon, the Secretary. (1 .oer limit evidenc*),
pagre 64.)

Sir Daniel McMillan is Lioutcnant-Govemmcnt of Manitoba, and was
n colleague of Mr. Sifton -i the Government of that province. On May
litth (Hansard, page 8767) Mr. Burrows admitted that he had a half inter-

<st in the Imperial Pulp Company. It should be stated that the Imperial
Pulp Company was incorporated in 1902, and began to buy timber limits

at once. In the six years since it has never cut any timber, has never made
imy pulp, and Mr. Burrows has stated that it does not intend to go into the
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pulp biuiMu. It u partly a speenktive deakr in Wattern tfinb^r lands.
It It can be called ipecolation to pnrchaae land from the Oovemment at a

£IL^ ? ^ ^t'*?^
"*^ ^^ »* '»*»'" *•>« «'««>* °««»«»*7 «*«»pel« opera-

tions to pay the holden enonnona profits. The eridence in tiie Committeeand the onginid papers show that the bids of the Imperial Pulp Com-

Kf^',^"!* "^^"^"^y^ di«erent names, wero dictated by Mr. Burrows.

SoiSdte
"" fnnushed the cheques and arranged how many there

ajLi
"».«•*>""*«? that the Imperial Pulp Company's limits, acquired for

•«4,976, have a value to-day running into millions.

A OOMVIUIIBKT 8B00KD OHIQUB.
Let us nowtekeupsome of these transactions, beginning with those of«r. iiurrows in his own name.
Timber berth No. 1046 comprises six blocks amounting to 40 square

Srt^ «n n^'^r^^J^, "' ^^ aqnare* miles on the Pembina River,
40 to «Ojn'J« Northwest of Edmonton. From the time the advertisement
was issued at Ottawa until the tenders were opened in that city was 37 days.^ left about 23 days in the winter season for any person who saw the
advertisement at ishe first moment possible to leave Edmonton, travel to the
limits, CTuise the six blocks, return to Edmonton and send forward his ten-
der. There were four tenderers.

CrafU * ZiM, Edmonton • bk
Jamea A. Powen. Bdmonton % „„
D. B. Tnmer A Co.. Edmonton " .' r„,,
T. A. Burrows, Winnlpea "...'.'.".

".'.V.
'. 3 500

_
The Edmonton bids were all on the forms of the Department, mention-

ing the amount offered, each accompanied by one accepted cheque. The

Knn^ w 5"*^"!? contained two cheques, one for $3,000 and the otherfor^500. Had the first of these cheques alone been enclosed, D. K. Fraser

Mr'^BuTrows 1?;^^°'' ^"^ '°"' ^^ *''^"^° «^ *^^ ^'' ^^^"^^ «--

A SUCCESSFUL COMBINATION.

«!. I'^w^'
^^"^^ ^°- ^^'^'^' '^^'^ '^ <>°« <'f **>« ™«9t yaluMe limits in thewhole West, comprising 50 square miles, to be selected from seven townships,

or 252 square miles The advertisements were printetl in Ottawa 38th of

.T^^^l !f ^^^ ^''^^ ^^^ ''P^"^ °^ ^^^ ^t^ of March, 1903, leaving iu-

^Zlf rJ°i !u^ ?^'^' ^ ^^*"^<' *^'« P"P«^y- Fi^« offers were
received, of which the following are the three highest:

Mutchenbacker Bros, of RosseaU • re-
H. & K. McDonald. Ottawa '^^J?
T. A. Burrows 13.524

«-t„vST ,^
"""1'°*^ documents show that the Burrows tender was accom-

tt^fa n^n r*
cheqii^ of $6,000. $5,000 and $4,000. It will be seen thatthe $6,000 cheque would have taken the limit if the McDonald's offer hadnot come m, but that it required all three to take it from McDonald. These

STSil !fr ' "^"""^ f i'^*""
*^* *^^ ^^^^'^ ^^« ^VM ike chequesm tins case was summoned before the Public Accounts Committee and 3ced

^Ztl oll^fK
^^ ""T '''"?? ""^ '"*^*^' *°^ ''^'^" *hey were .11 putUirough at the same time. Mr. Ames stated plainly in th- House that the

purpose of this inquiiy was to learn whether the cheques were all there before
the tame of opemng the tenders. But Mr. Macdonald and the other blockers
on the Government side objected to the question and this part of the inquiry
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WM headed off. It is stated that an adjoining limit of 1047, contaiiiiiue onlv
38 square miles mstead of 60, was sold in 1907 for $100fiO0.

THBBB WORKKD OUT RIOHT AOAIK.
Timber limit 1099 comprises 44 square miles. There wwe three bids.

J. w. BUia mt^
T. A. Burrows TZiZ

•,500
Here agam Mr. Burrows out in two cheques, one for $3,500 and one

for $3,000. The next highest tender came in fifteen minutes before the
hme limit. If it had not arrived the $3,500 cheque would have been suflt
cient to take the limit The question is naturally asked whether these are
all co-incidences.

Timber b( th 1192, 50 square miles, was pcquired by Mr. Burrows for
C^',600, The i^ext highest ofTer was for $5,060. Mr. Burrows' bid con-
tained two cheques of $3,000 and $2,500, which combined exceeded the next
highest bidder by a small margin. In ttiis case 50 square miles had to be
selected out of 250, and the berths were in ten different blocks on tlie Pem-
bina Hiver, west of Edmonton. Yet from the time notice was given at Ottawa
until the tenders were opened there was allowed only 40 days.

Mr. Burrows also obtained berth No. 1191, 50 square miles, in ten blocks
to be selected out of 234 square miles, with only the same length of notice.

So much for some of the Burrows tenders obtained in his own name.
Take up next some of those obtained by the Imperial Pulp Company and
A. W, Fraser.

"^

A BONANZA FOB MB. FRASEB.

The Cedar Lake limit is one of Mr. A. W. Fraser's acquisitions. In Sep-
tember, 1903j this Ottawa lawyer and politician applied to have put up for sale
a timber berth on Cedar Lake, which lies north of Lake Winnipegosis. He
asked for 60 miles to be selected around this lake and on the islands. The
Department cheerfully responded, and on the 12th of October called for bids to
be received and open&i at Ottawa on the 2nd of December. The notices were
?ent west to be inserted once in the Government paper in Manitoba, and once
in a Dauphin paper. If they were seen at all in the West it would not be
before the 20th of October. Before a cruising party could reach the grounds
tlie regular steamers wou'J have been taken off. It was too late for canoe
expeditions and too early for travelling on the ice. Yet) only four weeks time
was allowed for a man to go to Lake Winnipeg, reach Cedar Lake, follow
around it to a distance of 150 miles and explore this limit. Of course noth-
ing of the kind was done. There was only one bid and that was from Mr.
Fraser himself, who evidently knew beforehand the value of this lot. He put
in the modest bid of $500 and obtained the limit. Still he was not satisfied.

He asked for and obtained an increase of 30 miles, making his limit 90 miles
witliout any addition to the $500 bonus. Moreover he was allowed to select

his 90 miles over a large region and was kindly given four years to pick out
his lands and file his surveys. Having settled all this Mr. Fraser and those
interested with him offered the limits for sale. Here is an extract) from the
prospectus issued by J. Haffner & Sons, real estate agents of Winnip^, offer-
ing this property for sale.

" Cedar lAke, >.whioh Is situated on Saskatchewan waters, is comprised of
something over 100 square :..iles and Is estimated at 250,000,000 feet The timber
on this berth would work to advantare In connection with the former berth. As
you will' notice by tlie accompanyinjr plan there la one short portace to land the
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CMsr LalM to UdM Winipagoate, a dlatoiiM of from two and half to
tteM niloa. TiM watMW la both lakM aro of tho aano I«t«I and tlM eountry lying
to botwMn tho two lakM la of 4 low flat natwo. Tbo Unriktr to imoMdlatoiy Bur-
reoaauv tho shorw of tho lako statod. for olzty oaaro miloo, togMhor with thi
kdaado or portloiia of tho tolaada that haro bom aotoetcd. Tho anrroy haa born
m»a», bat ap to tho prooont I am not la pooM—Ion of tho plana. Tho tlmbor la of
•004 qvHtUtjr and falrlr eloan. mora oo than tho Umbor in tho Brwood and Red
Xtatr <Uatrleta. bat not qolto m largo. Tho prtoo for thto blook to |S0«,00O.

This cost Mr. Frager 9600, and it offertd for 9500,000 with good argu-
ment to ahow that it is worth that. As there was no competition or chance
for any, the property was yirtaally a goTemment gift t. Mr. Fraser and his
silent partners.

MOOSB LAKI LIMIT.

This is the transaction out of which the dispute concerning original
docnmeniB arose. Moose Lake is a large sheet of water draining into the
Saskatchewan with water power convenient The lumber can be floated into
Lake Winnipeg and to Winnipeg City in barges. Mr. Fraser applied for this
limit at the same time that he asked for Cedar liake and was given the same
opportunity. There was the same inadequate notice with no time for exmina-
tion. Mr. Fraser asked for 60 square miles and put in a tender for $1,000.

The tenders were to he opened on December 2nd at noon. Mr. Fraser's
offer of $1,000 is dated on that day and signed by himself with a cheque for
$1,000 enclosed. But something unexpected happened. Mr. James Currie,
connected with a firm that understood the lumber businegs, presented on the
same morning a tender for $6,420. But Mr. Cume did not get the limit.
A ttiird tender signed " W. H. Nolan," and also dated the same day, dropped
in offering $7,000, and the limit was awarded to Mr. Nolan.

The application of Mr. Fraser and these offers were the original papers
which Mr. Ames desired to obtain and which were withheld for a fortnight.
When the papers were produced the interesting discovery was made that tho
name of Mr. Nolan was in Mr. Fraser's handwriting. Further investigation
revealed the fact that the $7,000 tender was not Mr. Nolan's at all, but was
Mr. Fraser's, though Mr. Fraser had made the $1,000 tender.

Mr. Fraser swore that Mr. IJolan, of Montreal, was a client of his and one
of the friends who allowed Mr. Fraser to use his name when it was required.
On this occasion Mr. Fraser wished to conceal from the public his own con-
nection with the businesp in hand. He testified that he wrote the figures
$7,000 in the Nolan tender by direction of Mr. Burrows, and was in fact
using Mr. Nolan's name for Mr. Burrows. Mr. Burrows had asked him to
prepare this tender and he had done so, handing the letter in an unsealed
envelope to Mr. Burrows, who passed in the tender to the Department.

Five days after the limit was awarded to Mr. Nolan, the latter assigned
it to the Imperial Pulp Company, that is to Mr. Burrows and Sir Daniel
McMillan.

Did Mr. Burrows discover that $7,000 would be required to take this
Kmit, or how was his guess so fortunate?

This Moose Lake limit has been explored by an expert and is found to
be heavily timbered. The property has h<M?n offered for sale and the pros-
pectus sets forth that " it contains 250 to 300 million feet and the price asked
(mr the claim is $2 per 1,000, to be determined in bulk or to be established
by grbitration." This fixes a value of $500,000 to $600,000 for the limit.

C(jnceming this deal Mr. Ames (Hansard, paire 8719) said-
"I gwy say that Mr. Currie firmly bellevea that he was euchred out of that
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h«rth. H* bcltovM that th* otkvr t«id«r wm aiUMr bocoa or that it omm in too
Imto: and I wooM oartalnlr aajr that tba drounataaeM an aueh aa to toad atraastb
tu raoii a balM."

Mr. Borden made thia canment on the tranaaction and on Mr. Oliver*!
explanation

:

MR. BOSDKK'g COUMCNT.
If there is anything more extraordinanr that th«*ivpearance of thaaa doommota

it it the aaawer which the hon. Minister of the Interior cave on bebalf of Mr. Prasor
In thl* House to-nlsht. I sincerely trust that the Minister may have misunderstood
Mr. Fraser. The answer was that Mr. Fraser, on behalf of himself and oertaln othor
ansoclates decided to put in a tender for 11,000 and they did put in a tender for tl.004.
Then Mr. Fraser received from a client in Winnipeg (Mr. Oliver had not slatad
and Mr. Borden did not then know that the client was Brother<ln-law Burrows) a
teleirram to put in a tender for $7,000. It never occurred to him to withdraw his own
tender as it would be absolutely inoperative as a«atnst a tender for 17,000, and it

never ocourred to him apparently to tell the client in Winnipec, that, boinc a tea>
derer himself for the same property, he could not possibly act for a client who
warted to r>ut in a bid himself. I certainly think that Mr. Fraser must have beon
thorouchly misunderstood by the hon. Minister of the Interior in that regard. I
do not think that any solicitor would put himself in that portion, but assumlac
that he did put himself in that position, what did he doT He declares that he
could not put in another tender in his own name. I do not know anything to pro-
vent it He did not see fit to take any of the partners in his office; he did not
select any person In the city of OtUwa, but it seems that he had a sUndlac
authority from a gontleman in Montreal, Mr. W. I^. Nolan, to use his name In
respect of all tenders for all possible amounts, in respect of all timber limits and
possibly In respect of overythinc else under heaven. With that comprehensive
authority and without aequaintins his client in Winnipeg that he was a rival appli-
cant for the same property, he tenders in Mr. Nolan's name, sicns that to the ten*
der without even putting his own name underneath to indicate that It Is dona Ixy
him as an agent, passes that tender into the Department of the Interior and. by
the most extraordinary coincidence In the world, that tender of $7,000 happens to
be Juat $200 or $800 more than another tender which had in the meantime Rone
In. It la so plain, so simple, so easily to believe this story that there is not the
slightest pretence In the circumstances to Justify any demand for an investigation
bjr hon. sentlemen on this side of the House! Well, if that is the view of the gen-
tlemen who sit upon the treasury benches and of those who sit behind them they
are at liberty to enjoy it and to record their votes accordingly. I venture to think
that perhaps it is not an ^Bxplanatlon of what appears on the face of these docu-
ments which will greatly commend Itself to such of the people of this country as
realise what the appearance of these documents is to-day. Hansard, 1908, p. 2588.)

PEINCE ALBERT DEAL.
Til is is a case where the area was entirely too large for one sale; where

the nouce was so short as to make examination iiupossible; where the sale

was made against the protest of the Board of Trade and citizens of ihe
neighboring town of Prince Albert; where competition was prevented;
where a bona fide lumberman who was a Conservative and required the limits

was obliged to take political middlemen into the partnership and give them
$80,000 rake-off; where the public treasury lost hundreds of thousands of
dollars.

To begin with this transaction gave opportunity for a contemptible mis-
• opreseniation by the Minister. When it was charged that the CioTemment

^

fnvoured its own political friends in these timber deals one answer was that
tlip valuable Prince Albert limit had been granted to a Coneerrative. Mr.
Oliver said:

" One illustration will serve. There is a berth cf very large area, 250 square
miles, situated north of Prince Albert Two tenders were put in for this berth.
One tender was for $2,610 by Muchenbacker Bros., another for $5,000 by William
Cowan, of Prince Albert William Cowan <s not a oiember of the Liberal party or
a supporter of this Oovernment. He was Mayor of ^Mnce Albert for Oiie or two
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a OMMnwtN. aw)«Mato NMlMt Um prMMt 3w*f Tia—t la dM
In UM. Mr. Omtmi p«l ta Ik* higfctrt ««,Jar for tiM Unit« IM cot it and IM waa not a (rimd of UUa Ctovcrnimat"

Tliit MMMd to ba tlM tiiigle eiampk of ttm ooooeHfol OenserratlTe
taider, for other monben referred to it on tevriai occuior.s.

The fact wu not then known oatudc the Oovemment circlet that in
Older to get tiui limit Mr. -CWan had to pay to broth«r-in-law Borrow*
•ad Mr. A. W. FrMer $74,000 in addition to $6,000 paid to the Ooremmcnt.

HUTOBT Of THE TBAKAAOTIOIT.

The following ii the hiitory of the transaction. On^ 17th of January,
1903, a firm of retl estate agents wrote to the department making applica-
tion for SO Uodts of timber of 10 square miles each, at the head waters of
the Chmidull Biver to be sdected from an area of 7,020 miles, reaching to
within tweniy-flTe miles of the town of Prince Albert. This enormous order,
corered a great part of the reserve supply of the whole Prince Albert dis-

tiici There are many lombermen in taat country, but few in a posiUon to
take up sudi a pvopositioii as this. The area from which the timber was
to be sdected is more than three times the size of Prince Edward Idand,

- (me-third the size of Nora Scotia, and equal to ten Ontario counties. To
exDlore that area, to find the best 50 blocks of timber, and ascertain their

Talue was a work to employ surreying parties for montiis.

But the QoTemment did not hesitate. Less than a ifortn^ht after the
application was received advertisements of sale were issued. The advertise*
ments left Ottawa on the 281h of January, and bids were to be back there
by the 7th of March, or 38 days from Ottawa to Ottawa. Less than a month
was allowed to local lumbermen^ after the advertisement reached them to
explore the land and send forward their bid. The territoiy to be covered
was 100 miles by 70, so that examination waa absolutely impossible. For this

great timber sale an advertiseTr-nt was inserted once in the Manitoba Free
Press and once in the Prince Albert Advocate.

THE FEOPLK PBOTEST.

When news of this sale reached Prince Albert there was a general pro-

test Lumber operators throughout the district saw that the sale of this vast

reserve supply to one purchaser would be dangerous. If the timber were sold

in limits of reasonable size, it would give everyone a chance, secure larger

returns for the Government, protect the interests of the settlers and be for

the general advantage of the country.

The Prince Albert Board of Trade held a meeting and passed strong
resolutions against the propraition. The Mayor of Prince Albert sent this

telegram to Hon. CEflford Sifton:

Following is the Board of Trade resolution:
"We consider that in the Intoresta of the Town of Prinoo Albert and the

country at large the area tendered for is too large, as few have sufficient capital
to tender for such a large block, and respeotfuUy suggest that these berths be
withdrawn and new tenders called for in bijcks of 60 square miles, that the time
for receiving same be extended for six mcmths to enable lumbermen to examine
the limits for themselyes."

To these reascmable requests from the large community mterested Com-
missioner Turriff made the reply, that as the sale had been arranged it was
not thought advisable to make any change.

ICB. BUBBOWS WAS THB XAK.
The sale was made in two limits, 1048 and 1049. The first one was

for the first choice of 250 square miles, and the ottier for tiie second choice

44



d( s like qnuttify. Thcra wwb two bids only for the ftnt and on* for th*

Bo it will bo Nca that tha dadgn U) prvre&t ooapatitkn was iw^

The namea of the tendereia for 1048 ware Machenbaclcer Bvoa., |>^10,

•d William Cowan, $5,000.

Vor the aeooBd ehdce 1049 there waa only one tender, Jebn M^ain,
Ottawa, $1,000.

Following ia Mr. Cowan'a tender:
OttoWB, Mareii (th, IMS.

*Oa b«half of WUItlun Cowan, of Prine* Albwt. wo b«c to ton«c. for timber

fterfh No. leM, end wieloao borowltli cho«a«i for bcnui for wnM. Toum tmty.

(Bed.) Pcrktaa, Frawr * Burbrtdgo."

Thia tender was written by Mr. A. W. Fraser end the cheque for $5,000

waa aopplied by brother-in-law Burrows. It will be seen that no price in

MBtioned in the tender. That omission is a sort of Burrows' Trade Mark-

nUSXB OOT THIS ONB.

As bertii 1049 belongs to the same deal the tender of Mr. McBain may
be quoted.

OtUwa. March Tth. IfOS.

*'I>oar 81r:—X boc to twidar for timber borth Ko. IMS, and enoloaed herewith

aM.'ted ohoqna for bonus thereof. Tonn truir.

John McBaln."

Here again the amount of the tender is not mentioned and the form is

inegnkr like that of 1048. The fact is both were written by A. W. Fraser,

and Mr. McBain had nothing to do with the tendering in his name. He was

another of the persons who lent the use of his name to Mr. Fraser. For

this we take Mr. FraHer*8 own evidence. (Page 63.)

Q. By Mr. Barker. I wleh to aak thU wltneH If that tender waa made on
bflialf of Mr. McBain or did he merely set hia authority to algn It In hie name?
Aaa. I merely had hla authority to fan it. It was on my own behalf the tender

waa made.
(Pa»e 7J.)

Q. On whose behalf was this tender ct John McB^'ln put In? Ans. On my
own.

Q. Tou have that limit still have you? Ans. Oh, .10, I have not
Q. Did you sell the limit? Ans. Tes.

Q. For how much? Ans. That Is my business. I am not aroins into that part
«Clt

As to the Cowan tender Mr. Fraser'g evidence shows who managed that.

(P»ge 71.)
By Mr. Bristol. Now with reference to 1048, where you say that your tender

OB behalf of William Cowan for a berth and a cheque for $6,000 Is appfu-ently en-
cJoaed. Tou wrote that did you not? Ans. That is my writing, yes.

Q. Was William Cowan's name used for Mr. Burrows in this instance? Ans.
MEr. Burrows instructed me to put in the tender. I understood that Mr. Cowan, Mr.
Barrows and Mr. Moore—I think it waa—were associated.

Q. Then you did it on Mr. Burrow's Instructions, you did net trouble Mr.
Cowan at all? Ans. Not so far as I recollect

Q. And you received the cheque from Mr. Burrows? Ans. Tes.

Mr. Fraser went on to testify that it was from Mr. Burrows that ho
reoeiTed all his instructions as to this deal. He claims, and Mr. Burrows also

statet^that uie purchase of thft savond choicfi was his own.

We now perceive how the Consenrative lumberman, Mr. Cowan, obtained

the lease concerning which Mr. Oliver had so much to say.

TAKING THB BAKE OFF.

What happened next is eafiily told. Mr. Burrows and Mr. A. W. Fiaser-

•old out to Mr. Cowan and the genuine lumbermen of Prince Albert. Mr.
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Sl!l!r? ?i?i***L*' *•* ^''^ thit he had nude the Mit of the FrMer

cm. Rob. M«nb« >pMk now.

aauuMilJr!!!!!'!. 3?T* * * "f"** •' **•• ^'"^ who hM ••w »U th* aoeummta

^b!%zs rsSi^sir ^ •*• •«~"'*^ »« -j^ «»»•» »•". iin.it wnt to

Aa Boa. Mombor. fc it did.

S^l^S^^iiSJITr.'H'^ 1"L^" »-'"»"» "«»• >*'• Cown Could

Md Mp^SSL, JSTk. i^*.":'*''.''/ *"• *•«"'•»••" o' the Intorlor of that diur,

Mm. Uiiwr^«n»ln/»7.i. ^^ "^i i'
"""^ ""*«f "«»*» »»<> »»^« put up 50 mllM

...rx^'^d?^o;s•':'?h;^^«iT,r^hSrt ;T„r"-
''•'"''' '»"•- »'"

fh. .S!T„ M ?,"'"»*' contradicted emything that he could, but admitted

S! nii^^n^'"!'? ""K^^ °°* ^*°y *^« •SO'OOO P"«»- He pleaded thSthe lunit could not have been worth a mfllion or he would not hove soldhu interest, or Mr. Fraaer his, for $80,000.

. .
A BETTEB WAY.

«, aii 1?"*"*! P"
o*°

*^* Qovemment for the whole 500 milea was $6,000,

Z their^^kt'iff "i^ T^ T "^- '^^' middlemen received $160 per 'mile

^JT^I ?ir f '
^^''^^t^e lumbermen would have been equally wHline toW^mto the treasury if they could have purchased directl? from the Gov!

AiK.5*^*^^'
^;5°^'«'d Mr. Turriff complied with the request of the PrinceAlbertBoard of Trade and put this timber up in 50 mile blocks, which wouShave be^ large hmita, giving six months for examination, th^Z^ wouldcertainly have been larger than one man was willing to pay for^a^nlhalfor one-third mter^t in the whole property before it had be£n «plo?ed

IhiB is proved by a subsequent sale of 35 square miles bv the Denarf

Xrt 'and' r fT- J'^ '""i""^
'^'"^^ Stu'rgeon U?e ttn £^

ti^^i^
the limits above mentioned. This comparatively small lot wasadvertised six times m one paper and three times in three others whereas^e 500 mile limit was advertised once In each of two pap2„. "sSSJ

«*^^T"fi.^^'° 'V ^^T«^ examination of the property. The rSwas that there were three bids of $21,300, $27,609, and $28,000 The ?mwas sold at the latter price, or $800 per square mile, more than five t^iaa much for 35 mi es as Mr. Burrows paid for 250, and 28 times as mSaa A. W. Fraser paid for 250. It was sold for $1.25 per acre whul R„^^,
ajad Fraser together paid iie Government 2 cenl p^r'^cre On fte bLT othis Mile Mr. BurrowB and Mr. Fraaer would have pdd some $4oS,000.

OKB WOB THB IICPEBIAL PULP COMPANY
Having discussed the methods of Mr. Burrows and" Mr. Fraser indi-

4(1
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Tliii WM Um fliti limH porditMd by the ImperuU Pulp C<MB|»^]r, taA
k a ^icftl initeim of its methodi and of the method of the departnMit
in deuing Witti Mr. Barrawt and hit alliea. In tlie •ntntner of 1908 oertaia

BdmoBtim Inmbemen eiplored the timber on the apper waten of the Nottk
Saakatchewan. AftoiraMa they asked the Department to put up 11 blaak^
amounting to 118 aqnara mika, stating that titey wi^ed to put up a aav
mill and commenee operationa at once. Mr. Burrowt and his friends iPSff

not in this group, and so the department did not ruah the matter. TlMva
was a delay of two months and the Government inspector was sent to examiat
the timber and report Thia (pne an opportunity for tiie favoured poU>
ticians to acquire information without expense. Outsiders were left in igiKW>

ance. November 19th, 1908, notices were printed offering the whde 11 uodn
of 118 miles to competition. Six weeks waa the time allowed after nottea

waa issued at Ottawa until the bids should close. That left about four w«^
after advertisement in Edmonton before the Inda must be sent from Hm*,
No man could txpkn in thai time, and W. S. Dwinnell, repreaenting eapi>

talista desiring to invest, wrote to the Department:
** I have bMn •ndaavorinc to aecure infomuitlon whtob would •iiabl* m* to ael

laMMlwitly, feut have not had sufflolent time to do so. I would Mk you to hava
this Ml* poatpmod tor thirty or aUtjr days, preferably the latter, to the cnA that
I may eompleto an examination and make a subatantial bid for the property. I
am aattaaed that th^ Intereate of the Dominion government would be ubasrved
thereby, and that a much larger bid would be received than If the tale took plaea
at this ttmo. This tract, comprlstnc, aa it does, lis square miles, ! so ezteaoiv%
that the time tlven under the notice Is altocether Insufllclent to permit any oaa
to BBke prober examination thereof."

There were other inquiries and intimations that it would be more ad>
vantageous to the Government and convenient for purchasers if theae limitl

were sold in parcels and time given for examination.

But the Government paid no attention and the tenders were opened on
the 31st of December, 1908. They were as follows

:

Northwest Lumber Company | t,EB4.0#
A. O. Bonne t.54a.e0
Theodore A. Burrows S,06T.0a
Jamea Roes IT.OlO.Tt

• H. * K. McDonald tl.lSl.oa
Imperial Pulp Company tl,57t.M

This was a rare case in which Mr. Burrows did not get a limit for which
tie bid. But bis failure would be no surprise or disappointment because he
«-a8 bidding a^inst himself, and it was he who made the offer and supplied
the cheques which took the limit It may be as well to print the regular form
of tender as supplied by the Department to timber bidders,

sir:—
I hereby offer a bonus of dollars for a timber berth No.

comprising an area of square miles, situated
for which publlo competition Is being Invited, and I enclose an accepted cheque on
the bank of for dollars being amount of the said bonus.

I undertake to comply with all the condltiona of the timber regulations."

Now compare this with the Imperial Pulp Company's tender, as follows:
Toronto, Dee. 2S, 1M>.

To the Secretary, Department of Jbiterior, Ottawa.
" Sir:—^Enclosed please find tender for timber berth No. 1031.

Tours truly.

Imperial Pulp Company, Toronto."

It specifies no amount and the si^ature is typewritten. This letter

was accompanied by two cheques for $17,576 and $14,000, as stated by a
marginal note written by the officer on the original paper. The chequea
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ST." ?fJ?!^ JwjMh^fte Bm* of eit>iF% oWiAwd hf Ifr; T. A.
gST?.^ ««hwg, ftrji d»porii It iriM b> awl^ tfart tiie5^ cLS

«^awpt to cany off tl» priie. This nice ndjurtment i^t be • m^d»e hrf tiiere b^^noptheni of the kind. It mi^ dTU « coindW
ItjwddW to« qmte. Bniple fting, hrf the Rm ten/er been t^wS«gli^for» fnendly depsMment to hand bade tiie $14,006 cheque (if tt

S^dS* ™*"^^' «nd rtiU leare the Imperial Mp ComJ^y the

.
^

f
mpreaenUtiTe of «ie Edmonton eyndioate who went to Ottawa.retanwd mth a eteteiDent, whidi was repeated on tibe platfoim by DnJ^mj^ ^« P«)pw*_b«»g a charge of coUnuon in thia traoaetion. It ia

Mtinttted thi^ ^» hmi* containa 75,080,000 feet of Inmber, Ijimr doae toUK riTBT, and ^i ,t »- worth today 1260,000; and would haJebronght a^oesomethmg near its yalne if ifr had been offered in smaUer lota wi*opportnmly tor inspection.

» A FBw arrssm inbtanoxk
For. timber limit. 1062 there were three tenderers, and aa in iiie ofiwr«asa^ Inqienal Pulp Company mentions no sqm of money, hmb enokaea* "S?"^ ^"^ lowing oppertanity for oollnsion and fhmd
Pot berth lt)58 there were three tenderers. This also was a aman limit

^f 2 1-2 square miles. It fell to the Imperial Pulp Comnany on a bid of
irOO, tte next^ghest being Crafte & Lee for $360.^ W^^n^ s^ rf

III.
"*^^ \^T^°^^L the endorsement showing that there were two cheqnea

llf: one for $350 and the other for $150. Thelowest tender was fromB: BFerguson for $310, and there were only three. It will be seen that the $350
dieque would have taken the limit from Ferguson, and that the two cheqnea
take It from Crafts & Lee. Is this another coincidence?

For limit 1907 there were four bids

:

Colin Campbell
,

Ajrlen & Fetherstonhaugh "" ' Jf? •

H. ft K. McDonald ???
Ih»p«1al Pulp Company "'\ "" j"'
This time the amount of the tender is mentioned and the $1 000 is in

^il i^
amount is written in with a pen, while the body of the letteru typewritten, and the signature is stamped.

i.:.i;i--^°'*S
10^8 tl'*'^ were three bidders, the Imperial Pulp Company

bidding $2,500, and the next highest $1,860. The Imp^ Pulp Compinyi
letter IS i^rpewntten, the signature stamped, the amount of the bid written
in ink and the money sent in cash. In all these cases where caah was sentand the amount written in ink, coUusion if possible, as the mim could bevnrten after the tenders were opened and the ca^ paid thm.

ALL IN THE FAMILY.
Berths 1118 and 1119 together amount to 120 square miles. Thev lie

160 miles up the North Saskatchewan Hiyer from Edmonton, and could not
possibly be reached and explored in the time allowed after notice was jriven.

• Jf^Zno^ *?P^^ ^°L^ the Burrows group and advertised ii thewmter of 1903. As a matter of fact they were not advertised at all in
Edmonton, where the principal interest would bo. So, as it was evidently
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expected, tiiere www no bids eaoqit thoM pwmded for by Mr. Bnrrowa Um-
jiM. As tfas piAIic vera to be penuaded thtt thert wm otanpebtwB Mr.

Bwiowt arruig«d with A. W. Fnaer to pat in more th«n one bid for eidi

limit In this ceae i^^ Mr. Fnwer used the nunc of Mr. Nolan. waA. the

4aie8ed cwnpetitiTe ta»der was by Mr. Burrows. Mr. Nolan oflwed $500 on

January 19tii, and 'At. Burrows, through Mr. A. W. Fraser, oBsnA. |400.

For the b»tti 1119 Mr. Nolan offered $600, and Mr. Barrows $600, both

«n the same date. „ , « «
Both limits were at once assigned to the Impenal Pulp Cwnpany. Mr.

Fraser testified (page 68) that he suggested Nolan's name, that Mr. Barrows

fixed the amount, and iwovided the funds and that there was an undnstand'

ing from the hflginning that Nolan was to assign to the Imperial Pulp Com-

pany. He innocently stated that he did not know why the two tenden were

put in by the same interest Though the sesigmnatt was made at oooe the

transfer was not registeed in the department, which kept up a form of deal-

ing with Mr. Nolan, thouj^ that goitlonan had no interest in the traasaciion.

These two limits cost the Imperial Pulp Company $1400, and are said

4o be worth $150,000.

UMII NO. 1122 K STBIKlXra CASE.

This is a limit oi 110 square miles in 7 diflermt tracts on the MacLeod

and Pembina Hiv^, tributaries to the Athabaska. It would require a jour-

ney of 460 miles from Edmonton, simply to yisit these limits. Yet only the

usual six weeks notice was given from the time adrertiaements were issued

4t Ottawa until tada were to be (^>aied tliere. Examination of the timber

was utterly impossible and without cruising the territory no one could hate

Any idea of ite Talue. Mr. Burrows had this advantage, and it was hie

cruiser, Archie McLean, who mi November 27th, 1903, applied for the sale.

The bids were opened on the 27th January, 1904, and were as follows:

McDonald * Frtth, Ottawa $1,420

X H. Lamtrnt, Prince Albert 4.000

Kenneth MacLeod, Edmonton 10,025

A. W. Praser. OtUwa 11.300

Mr. A. W. Fraser bid in his own name for the Imperial Pulp Company.

His bid went in just an hour and a quarter before the tenders were opoted.

With it were two cheques, one for $5,000 and one for $6,000 The bank man-

ager testified that the cheques were obtained by Mr. Burrows on the same morn-

ing, and that the $5,000 cheque was accented first. It will be observed that

the $5,000 cheque would have been sufficient to take the limit from Mr.

Lament, but that the additional $6,000 were required to beat tlie MacLeod

ofTer. This limit was transferred by Mr. Fraser to the Imperial Pulp Com-

pany the day after he obtained it Mr. Fraser testified (page 58) that h6

received instructions from Mr. Burrows and acted upon them. He refused to

state what tiie instructions were and was supported by the chairman in doing

so. This limit has been the cause of many protests from settlers, who have

been shut out from obtaining building material, but is a magniflcoit invest-

ment for Mr. Burrows and his associates.

These cases illustrate the methods of this group of timber speculators

and show how at a comparatively small cost they have been able to «waer

eo much of the timber supply necessary for the Northwest Thqr and the

persons to whMn they have sold at a great profit almost control iJie nipply

3f the Edmonton district, the Prince Albert district and that of Winnipeg.
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opened. Whereno^^^l Tm^n^ "* "^ *!** »'*"'• *^*^ •"»

•We for wch nrnf^lS^ S^ ^!?^' ^'/*$^«°* ^*««« »««W be .nit.

dependent nponTe^TioS ^Ti„ . ^'^^'L^^T » ™«>«oned, lii

•nd aa has been shoim^X n?^«Zl iL ^ cheques, and 8ome.imee by cash,

the whole ^l^^mTriS^iri^.^f ?r^.*^*»°
*° «>e othJrSS?

bidder, while if the nSt hiS w^^ ?"* *** '""'* '™" *e next highest

the Imperial Pulp 0)^74^ Zitt '!?™'** *^ ^'- ^""«^ «'
If the suojessful^tenS^fo^d ^V^T^i'^^*-''^ """^^ ^° *« ^nder.
last minute, whatS wlha! tl^Ll* t^!

'*** P^'^'^t^' ^"^ «^en after the
cheques to 'the pr^o« ^pil^tt cwZi^^r^r"^^ "^^ *"»« «' «>««
would only be necessary fovZnT+^r '''*?°«?« *« fo™ of his bid. It
one 5jthe^i^"|^iJ^^i.\lrSt:^^ infonnatfon, or that s«„e

r n^5te?f; s^ng nbS5\?S'^,^™'^ •''^^ P»^«« A->-ts
UnservaSe memb^^ BuThe Zl^X T"'

**^ '"satisfactory to
ing the methods of tendering adopS^Mr B^rSi""^."P?^°° *^°<^™-

-~rt«fa«« by th. che<,u^ teat^^*^**"?!*' »• *»«»«. and the amount ?,^^way to pot in a tendw. Taiitl^y^T^^^}^}^^'*^- ^^^ is not a good
POMlbUlty that a ch«,«; might ^ISL^X *, *^w*

•"«»•»*<« that there Is a

(Tlmber Inquiry evidence page 95.)
•«>"»•»''>» of that sort might be done."

B„+ , • • 'f'^
'^W'8 WAT OF OPENING TENDBHS.

are taken that the^ hou"d I ^o ch^o. T*",T ^^^ ^'^;?*«»t Precautions
under lock and key bo Sat ^^L^i of

.

collusion. Tenders are kept
opened by two br more reSoonsfhlfT T T°°* «"* *em. They 'art

nous to 1902 the^Sri374L2TJ°^'^^^^ ^° ^«°^^«' "J^'' P^^
Mr. George Hugh Ryley who wr?5L ni

\'-''\°° *^^ proceedings.
branch for seveifl y?/™ ^reTbusT MOfi w'?J^u*''"

'^'™^^ «°d Mines
of 1908 the tende™ f"rSS iLl i.?*'^"^^^^^^ ^"'^ *° t^« ««™°i«
were the Deputy Minister^d Mr i^llv ""^^ ^T ^^o P«"ous. These
fte Deputy llSister SSS ^re£?ofTf'n" '°. ^r Kyley's absence
now a member of Parliament Sw-n^n,^ •

^^P«";*™e°t- Mr. Turriflf,

had nothing to do with3n«r t^Tfl^ ^'l'?"*' "^ ^^^» i° 1898, but
dnty the p4tice was S..S fs^yr^vLwi'^^ ^^° ^' ^^^'^ *«*

Mr. Turriflf did not h^e tl? Dp™S^- ^ ^'^^°'^' P*«® 2'' »°^ 28.)
Department present nkTZ^LT^^r'^' °' *« Secretary of the
ographeV, Mi« MunroTwho S5S& iJ^^iL^T," f"^^ '^"^ ^^" «*««.
writing down any memoran^ffhe ri^lST "^'^ h«,oP«>ed the tenders
.I.e was there a»^tenographrrml^^y'1otes^S/- ^^^^^^^^^^
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Mr. Turrift himadf tatified that he did not oongider it iiece«ary th»t two

persona should see the tenders, and he did not have Miss Munro there for that

pnrpose. (See Tnrriffs evidence, page 172.) ^^« „ h.„.
^'Did yott h»v« MlM Munro th«re baeauM you oonslderad it neceasary to Have

more than on* pwton preient. Ani. No.

Q CDw wa« Blinply there to take tenocraptalc notaaT Ana. She wa« tnera aa

my atanocrapbar. I «ld not conalder then that it waa naceaaary to have anybody

elaa.

Q. Than aha waa aa your atenocrapher to take notea? Ana. She waa there ai

ona of the offlclala of the Department to take notea."

It was also stated that Miss Munro attended in this way except when

she was on vacation, and there is nothing to show that anyone was present at

the opening of tenders when she was away. This is Mr. TurnfPs evidence.

(Page 116.)
" Thar* waa no obligation on your part to liave Miaa Munro preaent when you

opened tha tandaraT Ana. No.
Q. Ton had the aole right to open tendera alone, or not alone, Juat aa you

ohoaeT Ana. I took it for granted I had."

Evidently neither Mr. Turriff nor Miss Munro assumed that the lady

was there to watch proceedings, and it appears that the stenographer paid

no attention to the documenta further than to write down what Mr. Turriff

said concerning them. So it comes down to a question of this one ofiBcer.

MB. TUBBIFF AS OOMMIBSIONER.

Mr. Turriff was an active politician before he took this oflBice, and he

left it to go into politics again. It was he who, as commissioner, recom-

mended the grant of the Blairmore Town site to Mr. Mackenzie. It was in

liis time that the Saskatchewan land grant passed to Mr. Adamson and his

associates. Mr. Adamson is Mr. Turriff's brother-in-law, and while Mr.

Turriff denies that he was interested in ttie grant at the time, he has never

contradicted the statement made to his face in Parliament that he became

interested in the succeeding and subsidiary companies. It was in Mr. Turriff's

administration that the grazing lease was given to Mr. Adamson's Qalway

Horse Company, who obtained it by assignment from the mysterious and

undiscoverable H. P. Brown. Mr. Turriff's family connections are concerned

in that property. Mr. Turriff was Commissioner when McGregor and Hitch-

cock got their Grand Forks lease and when the Robins Irrigation deal was

carried through. Nearly all the splendid acquisitions of timber lands by

the Burrows, Fraser, Imperial Pulp Company group were obtained during

the time when Mr. Turriff was Commissioner. All- these peculiar tenders

and these remarkable combinations of cheques went in to him. It was he

who refused extension of time or division of territory in the case of the Prince

Albert timber lease and the Pembina River limits.

TWO TCBHlFr LETTEES.

It was Mr. Turriff, as Commissioner of Lands, who had to judge between

two applicants for a coal area in 1902, and who gave the lease to Mr. GrifiBs,

who applied last, on the ground that the prior applicant, Mr. Gihnour, had

withdrawn. How Mr. Gilmour was induced to withdraw may be gathered

from the following two letters written by Commissioner Turriff to Mr.

Howard, who waa acting in the interests of Mr. QrifBs, the later but success-

ful applicant. These two remarkable letters were not among the papers which

Mr. Turriff produced in Court, which he declared "constitute all the cor-

• resTJondence we have with Gilmour, Howard and Griflls in connection with

these lands."
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Tourt truly (ggd.) J. Q Tumurr.
"(Private) Ottawa, 8«vt If, noi.

Mr Dmt KraraHl:

hold up tor rae XiSSTot w^irf ?^t«^" /•"<!l"t *^* '^"^^ 0"™«»" ''J*
to put you m th*rB«Sa"n^d ,^.i^1l!^i"

"*•
'*?'i??^

and I do not wanC
a wry trUtec amoVmUt wSl bS b.ttlr L?l r^**" 1^. ®"°«>«''» withdrawal

.
for

Conunissioner J. 0. Turriff'' nii '£7" was ih^'^L.t^' ^"^J' ,HmM ,.4,«. u:. <_• y -^ *"'"*»
fl'''

"•*^., was tne omow who in cnticaltmeB, when h« friends were seeking concessions right and Irft, had the^«unp of these timber tenders. He was the one officer to whoTJtiStmjarhahty, Tigilan^ regard for the public interest, watchSkl .£l

n,.i«^
following are among the resolutions voted down by the Governmor^majority m regard to timber leases:

' "UTeriuner.

May 30th 1906 MoOon of Mr. Borden aaklnc for a select rommitf.. .into the manasrement of Crown lands In c7^ (HaS^d Sg??^ ^ *°'"^*^

im^^^rzT ""' "'*"°" *" *"• ^»'" '« oU^«n^?iim,t documents.

«a£^hlfc"L^St (SSrd^'pSe S?,'"^
"«* "^

"
>>»- * ^^^ t.

January 30th 1908. Motion of Mr. Lake "that a rom«,if»-- -# . ..
pointed to InvestigHto the granting of tl^er Ks. Se "»• >

"^ '^ *"'

speculative purposes and asklne th^t^^ Jk* • "i v - "*'• *" "mber lands for
be reatored ?o the pub^c domal* *'Si^''^87?S) *^ '*'' '""** *' imposition shouhJ
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BLAIRliOKB TOWW STTB.

Worth Saoo,ooo, PoliticUui Got It For «4B<H-JudgeWould Haw
CancdlAd Th« Patent Am Fraudulently Obtained, But Mr.

^fton Interpoied.

The town of BUinnore is on the e«tem riope of the Hocky Mountiun.

at Crow'. Ne»t Pms. It is a pioiperou. and busy
^J^' ^7^? ^"^

bnriiiM. establiriunent. and splendid p«»pecte of giowA "d der^pment.

Ktown site of Blainnore ia the property of Mr. Mdcolin MwKe^e •

member of the AlberU Legislatnre, who was a Government <»njidate tor

the Honae of Commons in 1904. Mr. MacKenzie « a hwyer, whoj»ide»

tt MacLeod, forty-five miles from Blairmore, and has been oneol^lsad-

er. of the Lanrier party in that neighborhood for ^'^^yj^^ tw. «Ste
more town site he has a property esbmatod to be worth $200,000. This ertate

cost Mr. MacKenzie $480. How he got so. much wealth at so htUe cost i»

sn interesting story.

IHB STOBT FBOK THE SIABT.

In 1898 the Canadian Pacific Railway employed Mr. Henry B. L^,
local agent for the railway, and Mr. Felix Montalbetti, an Itahan, secbon

foremai. Both occupied quarters on what was aft«;wards the towii sii^

The Italian occupied a tent while the raUway was buUding hm a residence

on the company's ground. Mr. Lyon put up a shanty on ij* town site.

Both made littie gardens, but, as it was judicially declared ««ther m that

season or the* year after did anything in the way of establishing a permanent

residence. The ItaUan moved into the company's house Mr. Lyon rmained

in the railway employ until 1900, when he built a store on the to^ site

and applied for the quarter section as a homestead. He was i^ormed that

this was an odd numbered section and could not be homesteaded. Then he

tried to buy the land at the usual price," claiming preference as a »qi»tter.

He proposed that if his claim and monejr were not accepted the land should

be put up to competition, and he shoulrf have a chance to lad on it J^oa

was the first person to ask for the land as a homestead. He was the fi^

to try to buy it His store was the first permanent building on the disputed

property.
jarrEB haokenzie.

Mr Lyon did not get the land. It remained ungrantcd. In 1901 thia -

town site WH> valued at over $50,000. Blairmore had a population of over

STa^d p^pie were coming in rapidly. MeanwhUe Felix Montalbettj^
M^acquaSmce. Mr. Malcohn MacKenzie, forty-five miles away at Mac-

Sod tad Ms^ eye on this town site.- The Italian found himself at thos law-

v5b Xe There he swore to an affidavit prepared for him by Mr.

S^kS or his partner. This PoUtici-n h",«id that he did not taow

MonSdbetti's statements were untrue, but he obtamed and retained all Um

SraSa^ tlSf^uld be gained from them. Montalbetti ««i^ed h»

St?Mr. MacKenzie at the time that the affidavit was made. The papen

™ forwarded by Mr. MacKenrie to the Department, and it became neoea-

«U7 for the Government to decide who should have the land.



inxoir wjm va man.

Ott.w. .«.p5rS^e?^J?n' th? L^''^
tW« "port WM received .t

buaineM thai Mr Rtenrt «^u ! P^^^^^'f^ »ho were managiM ttua

liMte a morsatirftSorStS wm decided to send up in
rob-agent of Dominion LSrafMwLS ^TJ^^ "P^° ^'^P^ ^^^'^
Mr. MacKenae in campaS wlitia hT;.. fV

^"^ 7*' * ~°'"'<*« <>'

lected in his ofSce con^u^Ku T® *" afterward found to have col-

DominionlU^ 1S^ hk oS^ri^t
revenue which failed to reachZ

faUe records SiZe^uea^i ^iM^T "^T.*" "^^^^^"^ °"^««>'"
and refund the miaaSfSJ Bn^t L^if7 '^^ .*!°.^^« ap hi. office

ceiVed an appointaSt to Ser M-itioi « '
^^ * ??"*^**^ ?""' "^ *«-

Nixon went to BlaimorT mV m-^ °° as good as the one he lost Mr.
.^turned toge^lf M? NiiJn ^tolTS^^^t '^P ^.^ "'"^ *«^°- They
Italian had assigned hifSn^wt ^"'l^ '?*°* '° ^" ^^P^^ that thJ
MacKenzie beforhTsSt^ ^L^ V

MacKenzia Mr. Nixon told Mr.
Of course, Mr. Nixl'^^^iiXortf tt? MoS^lif- T- «"^ *^ -*y-
favor of Maloohn MacKS!^ Montalbetti claim, that is, in

Tur^'^CoSiJii^^^r^^dlXtt.^' • ^** ^"'P'- *« ^-
'

^»- TCBBIFF AS A LIOHTNINO OPMATOB.

Obtains Kiiitn*rjStaiL*rt •''^7' '^^' «-* ^-^-^«
gram was sent tfMrS ordSni^Wm ^ ^'" f™f ^^*^ *^** *1^« ^l^-
for delay until he estaSS S o"teii^»f tr'^'m?'*^'

.^'•- ^^^^ ^^^^d
which MacKenzie's ck^ w^ blSi IL S ?! I^^^7'^ °' *« I^lian, on
opened his court on j2 T?tk Tf;w dav«^

^^"^^ ^'^' ^""^ ^'- Tu^iff
Fas a short sitting of the\nWud Z Mr T^Sfff'^'""*.

^' ''^'^- I*
aider. He at onci decided ^f^oV^f Mr Jl^ required no tiine to con-
Turriff set forth the stotLTnfa of tl^f;i^^^l'^f ^^ ^ d««"io" Mr.
had asked a chanS to coSct ^^ i^T.""^'^ statements Mr. Lyon
Court to be absolutelyfX' ^ ^"^^ P"**^*^ ^ *»»« Exchequer

lori^l^f^'ol^'l^^^^^^ BWore, then
He paid $3 an acre or $480 for the land »nl' *

w "^""^^^ Mr. MacKenzie.
cost him. All the eviLce g^ to Sw l^UrCl^ ^ "^? *^* ^* «^^'
for his claim.

*°** *°® Italian received nothing

throuS Sfso'lidtors'li'bS^watd^^^^^^^^^
patent without his havingT^^Zmt to^Iw^.'t^fi'"*^

i'"^^ of the
albetti was false.

opportunity to show that the affidavit of Mont-

provliiv that the statement, ot UontSb^m m^/Z^fL "^ '*^* "> opportunity"?



This wMmu eonld !»• »•«« pro*W«« »•*>«« «>• ""?"i*^ ii^..n»«tti'«

2S»^W hSi:^. wM_not r»nt,4 «
«ff

> ^^^^"Hf^.^
ngnamt Our oant la impurad. U n i oiwnr. to Mac tlw wltnsMM to Ottawa

la of4«r tbat tbay aajr bo «aunlB«4 in tb* dopartnoBt.

jumoiAL mqmHT.

At Mr. Turriff and the Department would not wwt, Mr. Lyon proceeded

to attack the patent through the Exchequer Court. He fubmitted^ steto-

ments to Hon. David MUta, then Miniater of Juitice, aalang that tiie patent

obtained through fraud ahould be declared void. Mr. Mills was not m favor

of frauds of thia kind. He granted a fiat for trial in the Exchequer Court

The tribunal appointed Judge Wetmore, of the Supreme Court, to V^o^
to Blaiimore and take evidence. Lyon had asked that the patent be declared

to have been issued through fraud or in error, and that the same should be

declared void for cancellation. « _. u j x j «-.
The first thing Judge Burbidge, of the Exchequer Court, had to do was

to ascertain the facts. He appointed Mr. Justice Wetmore to mvartigate.

This referee found no difacu% in reaching the conclusion that the Montal-

betti affidavit was untrue and the claim was fraudulent upon which ttie

patent was obtained. Montalbetti admitted on examination that the essentud

paragraphs in his statement were untrue. He confessed that he had not told

the truth when he swore:
xi. i j •«

(a) That he erected other outbuildings than the stable upon the land in

question.

(b) That he cultivated a portion of the land in 1901.

(c) That he erected the stable in 1899.

(d) That since 1898 he had kept on the land certain stock.

Judge Wetmore also found that Mr. MacKenzie had not paid one cent

to Mont'.'betti or given him a scratch of a pen to show indebtedness. The

Judge 1 sorted that " the untrathful statements and misrepresentations which

I have found to have been made in this declaration are so many and of such

a character that I cannot resist the conclusion that they were fraudulently

made with the intention of infiuencing the minds of the offiicials of the De-

partment of the Interior in determining to whom the right to purchase the

land in question should be given."

MB. 8IFT0N GOMES 10 THE BESOUE.

The Exchequer Court would have proceeded on this report to cancel the

patent but Mr. Mills was no longer Minister of Justice. His successor began

to be bombarded with letters from Mr. Sifton, the friend and patron of Mr.

MacKenzie. On the Ist of March, 1902, Mr. Sifton wrote to the Minister

of Justiw, asking that proceedings be delayed. On the 12th of April Mr.

Sifton wrote again saying, " I have a report from the Land Commissioner

(Mr. Turriff) which inclines me to the view that the fiat ought to be with-

drawn." On the 7th of February, 1903, months after Judge Wetmore had

established the fravd, Mr. Sifton wrote that if Lyon failed to establish a

right the department had no reason to re-<q)en the case or for deeinng to

withdraw from the sale that was made to Montalbetti." Mr. Sifton was

urging that a sale based on a fraudulent ckim and judicially reportwl to be

founded on a series of perjuries, should be allowed where it made Mr. Sifton s

friend and supporter a rich man.

MIXISTEB HOLDS UP THE COUBT.

Judge Burbridge, after commenting on the report of Judge Wetmore,
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t « ooHMiI ftr At nnTni«Biiil
fr:-,r "" r". *"^ r;?''^' '• " <3nyAr, K.0, bad snttnd in

ir"-r^.^. *"™"* <* the towa uie. Bat Ja^ Bvrbidsv had to dalircrgjijjjt Whemipon Mr. SiftA wrote to ti^MiaiierTf J«ti« JSSJ
22^

^proper course wm to bring the matter brf« the jSJJ'S^

«j^if
***' ? *"^ *** P**** ^«* *^ ^nd wWch vitiated tha oatnt. Mr

S^ ^i"*lf*^
-tatiiig phuBly that the oo«Mel £? tte CrSS^riuJuMk to have the case diacontiimed » without coat to eitlusr irtv

.«.« f« +rT^^'";^.*^. ^^'^^ ***«»« inatructioM, and on May 13th 1904wrote to the Deputy Miniater of Jsstiice-
u «« juy lam, i»04,

withoiit ooats." .

'n-iruouoM Mke4 that th« acUon should b« dismlsMd

be dismiBsed wiaMt cat ^ * consented that tl^e action

The action was dismissed without cost aminst Vr T„«« m.were assumed, not bv himself ni- Tur^ to^^t^^^u^ I
^^'^^ ^^ costs

As a consideration for his La^ Mr if̂ ^^^ ^* ^^ *^' Qovemment
Mr. MacKenzie any more Si^h^Z^ ^L^ "^ °«* ^ ^'^^^
teetion of Mr. MaJxS in h™i^S''"^,?,? ^^ ^ *e pro-

tfce Juatioe Department was i2%«?^T;u Pit ^^ **' *^*»' *«ed by

Seut'lLi"£lV'&^SeZkt?fiSit*^y*' ^' '^ ''''' ^
Ae Houae of Commons in ^d^o^tt^'^^'T^'^^^}- f<"
wtBin in political serviw* fnr +>.«> u-t.j I_ ^^ ^^ '^^s *M pven a

G<ryer-nien?^tri^cru^;SL ;°tr^ '^«^ «»«
The whole matter was diLS in tff^^^ ^ S"""

^^^'^ »' ^''^*'
mr,.on a moaon of Mr. tS^S-S t ^^.X^'^^iAfJ^.
a«ld« a patent Issued to Mal^^ M^ScfSTSlL L!?'

Exchequer Court to wt

66

.iiiL



That I iliMM m takw ttf tk« MM amMltawi MMr* On Ban. Mr. J«Mo«
Wetmor* m «Mtal nCwm^ w* It •»»««• «r M« w«—w. ttet^ !!!JtE^
Moatalbattl. la nMOdac aivUwtloa tor tlM mU v^taai. ted b»«« «»*">• ^•^T!!M to tte aaUrtel Acta sad ttet tte Mid vBtnw Utnuata www fmvaaMatlr

mada wKli Um iatamioa af laiyojariy la«MM otat tba atada ad tka nfllolato of ttia

DapurtBMat ot tlM Intwtor.

Ttet tba Mid nadlnc (rf Mr. Jaattea Watmora aa apactal rafarac, wm apprevad

aad wearrH la br tte Han. Mr. luattoa BwMda^ fndca aC tte Mid Biilhaviir

Ceart
Ttet Botwtttetaadtiic tte mM ftndhic tte CtoranuBMt hy Ita eo«»Ml appaarad

In tte Mid Exetequw Court aad wttkdraw tte Mid proeeadlnci aad eonaMtad to

aa ordar wlil4di eonflrowd tte Mid Matealm MacXaaala la hia Utla to tte aaM town

Ita M aoQulrad hj Craad.

Ttat <te Mid MaoKanato to a praalnant aapporter of tte praaant admlaMrMan
and WM thtir aandidatU M tte iwiaral alaeUona M 1M4. lor tte atoatacal dWrtel

of Alterta. aad to naw a MaaMar of tte paovlnetal lactolatara «( tte pimrlMa t€

Alterta.
That tte aaid town alta la Tiiry vaiaabla, and to aatlmatad to te worth tetwoas

tlM.*M and nM.OM. ^ . ^ .^
Ttet tha c<dlualva action of tte Ooaanuaont threach tte Dapartmart ad tte

latarlar In tkua oonllrailag a polltleal aupportar la tha poaaaaidOB aad owaorahip

of proparty obtataiad by fraud. daaarvM and ahould rooclTO tte ationcaot eo*'

damnatlon of thto Rooaa."

THX DKAL KKD0B8BD BT PAKUAMENT.

Thia motion wm rapported in the debate by Mr. Macdmmell af To-

ronto, Mr. Hemm of Alberta, the leader of tin Oi^Kwition and Mr. Barker,

of Hamilton. Mr. Lake's motion wat rejected by a ttraight party majority

of fifty-six to twenty-seven.
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THB nroiAlS PBPEAroiD,
A SALB OF LARDS FOR OHB TBRTH OF fHB VALUB.

ynmthy Fritnds Of Tbt Miniirtw Uak» $91,843.25—RakMW
At The SzptnM Of The Poor Indians.

T J-
''^

"i^ T* ?' *•** "^^ ^y GoTemment of lands held in trust for IIm^duns. The luds were sold without competition, at leas than one-tenth

p»2! ""i*-?.
^»^'»^*o • 8«>«P »' political friends of the Minister in charge.

f!f^i^°.?!*^° I!'"**
presented the specalatiTe sale pf these lands was

S^iSiX^ QoTenunent and flnaUy the middlenum were able to seU

£ oS i^° *^ '"^ '"^ ''^*<* *•» Goremment had given liiem for
19,987.75, a neat profit of 920 per cent.

The story M told in returns and correspondence brought down in the

V^SfisTt 13,W9)^"*
*' ^*"* ^^*°™' °" ^"^^ "*' ^^^ (Hanwirf,

A UFTOX COMBIKATIOK.

«..j
'^*^ ^^ "S^^

oomprised 29,301 acres in Algoma. Application wasmade for them, July 26th, 1899, by one A. H. Gale, of Oxford, England,who uked for replies to be sent to W. P. Wilson, of Brandon. Mrfoale
thai drops out of the story, and Mr. Wilson in March, 1900, takes up the
matter on his own account, and explains to the department: "Mr. Gale

« o-,T* ^\."i *?* "****'' *°^ ^^ <»° *or^f «n«ier ei*er appUcation. Mr.
Hifton wished the application put in Mr. Gale's name at the time."

41, "r- )^"«»n was a prominent supporter of Mr. Sifton, then Minister of

S*- ^'" « Superintendent of Indian Affairs. He lived and operated
politically in Mr. Sifton's town of Brandon. Mr. Wilson had two pTrtners

^Jta!r «fV cV" ^'rJ^- Fu ^^"P' ^"^r^^, of Brandon, formwly law
partner of Mr^^ Sifton. The other was D. A Reesor, also of Brandon, and

JCT"*^ f t^\«
P«l>ti«»l operator.

. Mr. ^' ,on was the man in sight in
the land deal. Let us see how he proceed*-

n.n„^''*uT"T ^'^' f""^ ^^^' ^^ '^ 1^"«" *o J»™«» A. Smart,

«Z1^, ?'''*\^°*°.T'^'
P"«'. "'^^<^>- ^« «??"«• 'o' certain hardwood

tanber iMds as he and his associates are very anxious to establish a saw-mill
ttere. He has been over the ground and can furnish affidavits to show «uitthe lands are unfit for settlement.

K«. 2!!i*?-„^\^"^°."'^* *? extraordinary proposition. He proposed tobuy the land by valuation and proceeded to recommend the valuatorT^is
choice was one Mr. McAulay, who lived in the neighborhood of the lands. Itappears that this man was afterwards engaged as Mr. Wilson's agent.

THE WILSOX PROPOSITION.
'ong with tiiia letter was the formal application for purchase. The

application set for^ that the lands were covered by a timber license to a
Jamber company which had been merged with a New York paper concern.

SlTLiTfr f T^^^^^} tJ^^^ °° ** ^^'°"«' *>°t h»d cut birch logsand towed them to the Umted States.

!.,•« fi^**^"**" ??^*'?^- 1** ""^^^^ *" *'«• " *e ^^^ ^ere sold to
his firm they would estabhsh at Batchawana Bay a saw-mill with a capacity
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of tiiTM to iTo millktt fMl, and would jplaot MtUon on the land fit for

ooenpotkni, fonitehiiif trnjiajmoA for tMM Mttlen ud othcni nour by.

H« stated that the hairdwood timber on the land was growing old and ooght
to be ont, and asked the Goremment to have the lancb examined.

Mr. lIcAnley, the proposed disinterested Talnator, wrote to Mr. Wilion

April 8rd, stating that the licensees had taken off all tlie pulp wood, and
that if Mr. Wilsim would be sssisted by a petition from the district, he was
at Mr. Wibon's serrice, closing by expressing Uie hope that Mr. Wilson
wonld SQCoeed in his undertaking. (Hansard, page 13,099.)

It did not take the Government long to settle this matter. April 18th,

Secretary of the Indian Affairs Department wrote to Mr. Wilson telling him
he coald have the land, and setting forth the conditions, which were the

tame as Mr. Wilson proposed.

aOTCBNMKTT AQBHBB.

Lands and timber were to be valued; lands fit for settlement were to

be occupied with one settler for each section, who was to have a house on

the lot and cultivate the land; timber leases to be protected as regards pine

and spruce, the licensees to have three years to remove it; purchaser to

build a saw-mill of three to five million capacity, and to give the Indians the

preference in employment; t^e title to the land was to be given in three

years after the fulfilment of settlement conditions, the erection of the mill,

6tc«

The Government accepted Mr. Wilson's friend, Mr. McAuley, as valu-

ator of the land, which seems to have been the same thing as appointing

Mr. Wilson himself.

The deal was concluded, and Mr. Wilson's frioid, Mr. McAulay, made

his valuation, appraising the property of 29,301 acres at $9,987.76, or 34 cents

an acre.

MILD FRUTEflTS.

W. A. Orr, Secretary of the Department, was surprised at this valuation.

He mentions that Thomas Bishop, foreman of the lumber company which

had been operating there, had stated that the quantities of timber were much

greater tiian Mr. McAuley had estimated. Having cleared his conscience

in this way, Mr. Orr added, that McAuley's statement was sworn and that

the uAawom estimate of Mr. Bishop should not be taken against it

Some time later another protest against this low price was made by

D. A. Gordon, Liberal Member of Parliament for Kent, who wrote to the

Deputy:
"I have b««n Informed that a larre tract of Indian land was recently told

for the ram of SO eenU per acre. la It poMible that such a traniaction was put

through? If so would you mind clrlnK the names of the purchasers and the

quantity of land purchased. No further particulars wlU be required." (Hansard

pa«e 18.114.)

Mr. Frailk Pedley, officially replied, givinjr the quantity of land sold and

the price, and atating that the price was " based on the sworn examination
•* and valuation of each section," " the sale being made on specified conditions."

Mr. Qordon asked no further questions as far as the record goes.

A« Mr. Boyce points out^ if the Deparbnent considered Mr. Bishop's

estimate insufficient because it waa not supported by oath, it might have

obtained a sworn statement from him, or have made inquiry as to the rela-
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«*'

*w..
•«*•«?• •PPwtaw to the paitliMK. Mr. Wtym Om fiiam avt^ u» fwort oMtiiMd BO ixikM or dtliili of fdmlor MoaShTvImm

^mkb *w nfoiliiMtiiy kot
-«—?,

I
.

e i«taator tnnM the |Mtie aad eiiniee left hy tiM llimeet at tr04.
Tfce lutatity of oidM wm opiMreBtW bige oad the pwchMer iMilaiod th«tttwi lie timber *'we beeed our liupee «i BMeth," thoagh he told the
nepe'mtBt that he was after the iMrdwoad. Before pmment wae made
the f rrrl

« en owi $1,167.38 for iateieat. Bat they were let off by the
IWseut the prineipal, made at rarimie timee aad aftm a good deal of
ntgi'^r •« part of the officiaU.

STKHT ooiTDmoir OAKOn.i:A>.

' VN i' »n aiul hi« aedociates did not build a mill at Batchawana Bay
or * )re Ise on thit land.

Thn T fi not brirg any wMera.
Tbcv <:i.! not m" >t the other condition! of the agrw^iient
/- vu It' ' ,et with the Govemment was made they trie.1 to

Mil .1 pr„p.n,- .;, ' ii.n'nnen in the United States who intended to raft
ttf .

r-, .-.-!, !ii.- own country, and mannfaetme it there. To accompliah
ttat u pa V as netpusary to cancel the clanse requiring the erection of
a mil and rhi itnufacture of the lumber on the ground. It was al««o
necv ^ry to ,i;..k. Mire of thv right to export the timber on theae Indian
land grants.

At tJie end of the year Mr. Wilson had done nothing to carry out the
«oii.i)tion8 and had paid only a small part of the purdiaee price. ThereWTP other applioentfl for the land, and a year and a half had passed .incc
Wilson had been hurrying up the Department, so he could get to work at
Ills mill. The Secretary began to make inqniries and Mr. Wilson asked for
poetponemenfc In December, 1901, he was allowed another two months.When that time was up another applicant was on hand ready and anxious
to ffiteblish a hardwood industry on the premises, but was told that the land
was not open for sale. Four months later still Mr. Wilson made furthor
CTcuses. At the beginninp of 1903 he promised to take immediate actio.i
The matter was allowed to drift till the end of Mav. 1903, when Mr Wilson
wrote, explaining thnt a permanent saw-mill would be very inconvenient
and suggesting a small portable mill instead.

OUT GOES THE SAW-Hai, 0L*tT8B.
Mr. Orr, of the Indian Department, was not severe and rocommendetl

flje change m the contract so that it should read, ' the purchaser to place
and operate a portable saw-mill of large size on the lands purchased," in-

vtead of the original clause which required him to "establish a saw-mill at
a point in Batchawana Bay with the capacity of from three to five miUion

**feel per annum."
Shortly after this a Chicago lumberman named W. S. Gunn, wrote to

the Dqmrtment of Crown Lands in Ontario, stating that a man named Wil-«« w^ trviag to sell him the land in question, and asking whether loss

S?" ,T**tJ!'^ **"'^ ^ •*"* *° ^^ States free of export dutv. Two days
latw Mr Wilson himself wrote to the Department of Indian Affairs objecting
to the Bi^tnte saw-mill clause proposed. He says, « I am very much disafv
pointed in the terms of the same. I have delayed eommentine on it till
I ooald see Mr. A. E. Philp, of Brandon, who tells me you assured him that
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-"bfpMptrnftMwtetkBaftlM CMS jott would abrogate etevcsii.'' (Haa-

Mrd, iwg« 18,U7.)
TtM abfogatiMi of eUiue tU wovld froe Um fHiroiMnn altogoUivr from

Um oMintimi ^ mannfactaring in Canada. Meanwhile, an On)«r-to-

Council had been puaed m liM)l defining the manufacturing etniditiona, am\

it was made clear tint all kindi of hardwood timber might be exported from

tbeae Indian lands.

Tha eoBTWMtioiia of Mr. Sifton'a former law partnw with the Depart-

ment of which Mr. Sifton was the head, and Mr. Wilaoo's own repicaeiita-

tiena were finally ioceewiful. C'lnoie lii wm aboiii»he«l altogether.

Thii waa in Norember, 1903. It was more thar a year after Uie

«OBditiona had been swept away that the department eiplained to Mr. Qof
don, M.P., that the land had been sold for this Urn prico on "specifietl

conditions." When clause six Tanished Mr. Wilson had not yet finished pay-

ing for the land. Ultimately this payment was made, and when the time

for issuing t*ie patent arrived Mr. Wilson and liis colleairB«i got theiir title.

They were charged with $1,167.32 interest, and this st»K)d against them

until February, 1906, when the Minister recoiujueuded tliut this interest

be remitted, on the grwund that tlie purchasers hsd not removwl any timber

')efore they paid the praicipal. Tliis last proceeding was Mr. Oliver's. AH
the previous trani«actions were carried through wl.ile XIr. Sifton was head

:' tho Department.

TOOK THEin 92^) rrtt cent. PitoriT.

Having removed all restrictioM. Wilson, Philp sikI Uksof completed

Iheir sale to the United States lumbermen. They had, in fact, sold the land

in one township before their own patent had been obtained, ami the land in

till other two townships was sold immediately after the issue o tho patent

The lands were in three townships, Fisher, Ilaviland and 'iiiley. Tho

following is a statement of the prices paid by fho partners to tlie (invemment,

and the prices received by them from tiie foreign purchasere:

Township Acres. Government Partners Proflt.

Received •^''eelved

Flstaer 1»,358 -J.SSl.TO 37,M6 |2;6«4.3«

Havliaad 10,701 4,397. i>S 4»,00« HfiOZ.Si

Tiney 6,242 1,909. f>" 15,4«4 13,575. Of

Total 29.301 $9,987. T. Uo) -.:» $»l.«4a.25

THE BKCORD

1. Mr. Sifton's political fncnds ask for a grant of Indian land on the

plea that they wish to establish u lumbering industry, and setting forth that

licensees are exporting logs instead of fumufacturing lun.i>er on the ground.

8. The applicants name as G-^rer meat valuator a friend of tlieir own,

ready to give them all possible assi tan e, who seems afterwards to have l)een

employed by them in effectine the -alo to the Americans.
3' Government appoint he valuator named by the purchaser.

4. He makes valuation ai less ihan one-tentii the market price of the

land.

5. The Indian Agent of the Government says the valuaticm is low and

refers to a higher estimate madt- by lumber operator on the ground.

6. Government accepts the lo valnntion of the purchaser's nominee.

7. Contract is made with H)n , uuus proposed by the purchaser that



m

I"

:

I f

I
!'»'.!'•';

•

.'%'-'

he ahaU IraiM a penuaeiit mill of « tteted capMibr.bniig Mttlen and hall
employ Indians. .

8. The puTchaaer does nottung to fulfil the conditiona and the dame
reqmnng the building of the mill and manufacture of lumber ia (truck out
at his request

X
^' ** "**^* ***•' ***** .'"K* '"™ **"» Sfant may be shipped to the

10. The grant has been meanwhile offered for sale in the Umted States
and the OoTemment knows it.

11. Payment of part of the purchase price is delayed for years, the
Government refuamg to cancel the transaction and sell to others who desire
to manufacture <m iba ground.

JJ* S® Government remits $1,167.32 due by the purchasers for interest.
18. When all conditions are swept away, Americans buy at the market

pnce.

,.-*^x,-'"li'
™"''®* P"** " $101,830, or $91,842.25 above the valuation

which the Govemmrait accepted and the middlemen paid.

NO SXOUSS OB DsrsscE.
The Government could have sold the land with the restrictions wiped

out at the same price that its political friends sold it. But the land was
never offered to public competition. It was never offered at private sale
without the reetrictions, and the rake-off was simply a gift to the middlemen

For this deal absolutely no defence was made. Mr. Oliver spoke for
a few minutes, declaring that he had no time to go into the details of the
transaction, but said that if the land had increased in value in the hands
of the purchasers the Government could not do anything about it. The
speech will be found on pages 13,122 to 13,128, and is simply a refusal to
answer the charges or explain the deal.

„ J*.*'^P' ^'- ^^"'^^ thought he had already gone too far in defending
Mr. Sifton's transactions.

^
HAJOBITT APPBOVE.

Mr. Boyce's motion will be found on page 13,122. After reciting the
facta, it declares that the transaction " was not a sale for the best price ob-
" iainable, nor to the best interests of the Indians, but constituted a grave
" breach of trust by the Government, and deserves the condemnation of the" House."

The motion was rejected by a straight vote of 61 to 101. Division list
will be found on page 13,138 of Hansard.



COAL ASEAS.

How Government Fnvors peculator In Coal Deposits.

The Interior Department controla the coal lands of the Northwest The
Qovemment refused to give up these Crown lands to the provinces, though
they are provincial properties in other parts of Canada. Speculators and pro-
moters, with the assistance of m\^ ' ten and officials, have had the same oppor*
tunity to exploit coal lands ef ather in farm lands, grazing lands and
timber.

It is true that r^itdations limited the area of ooal lands open to one per*
jon, but regulations are not for favorites.

One illustration of evasion authorized and encouraged by the Government
was investigated by the Public Accounts Committee on February 18th, 20fli

and April 3rd, 1908.

BELL BOTS AND COAL LEASES.

Regulations of 1902, reprinted in 1904 and in force in 1907, provided
" not more than 320 acres shall be sold to one applicant."

In March, 1906, Mr. C. F. Caldwell sent in lists of 235 applicants each
for the full area allowed (testimony of Chief Clerk Bowatt, page 4). There
was one batch of 11, one of 118, another of 51, another of 34, and so on,
each batch on one sheet of paper. Also, for greater certainty, Mr. Caldwell
sent in the 235 names that had been in these batches, all typewritten, in one
eight page list.

These covered 75,200 acres. Mr. Caldwell and his associate were after

thran all.

Did the Department suppose that these 235 applicants were genuine
seekers for coal lands, each for himself? Not at all. Before action was
taken the Ottawa Journal published the following paragraph, in its news
columns: *

" Looking for a coal mine—Novel way of procurlnsr clalma—11 paid for slaned
application.

" Stranaer at Russell House causes some mystification amonar bell boys and
other employees.

"A auest who rather astonished a larre number of bell boys and other em-
ployees of the Russell House was registered there last week. He was alvlng them
tl each for what they considered rights to coal mines In the west of which they
had never heard and about which they were decidedly mystified.

" The stranger save his name as Mr. C. F. Caldwell, of Alberta, and e]q>lalned

his work to the Jowmal readily enoush. He said that there were, without doubt,
many rich coal fields In Alberta. It was impossible, however, to buy a larae block
of land or secure options upon It from the Government, as this Is all belnr kn>t
open for settlement. To overcome this dlfflculty he was getting different parties

to make implication for a stngle section. This he buys from them for $1, and as
he has not to finish the taking over of the section for six months, he will prospect
each claim for coal in the meantime. If coal is foimd he completes Ue transaction

with the Qovemment at a nominal fee.

" Mr. Caldwell said that Mr. F. H. Clergue, of the Soo, was interested In his

plan, and that his work was being done by other parties In the west. I<arge blocks
of land wbleh have been held for speculative purposes have to be thrown open to

settlers by April 1st, said Mr. Caldwell, and many apptioations for sections ara
being made on these lots.
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Chtef Ckukot the Mines Bruch, tastiiied tfart he knew that CddweUSrii
tte m«n who nwred in the metter, ud that the othen were net morins on

S^n'^JS!^**,^ (PM»61). On page 6« Mr. Barker adalSout
Mr. Gamjubeiri suroicKnu.

'* **• J™** •'• t****^ WM th« Mai mui after all, that tb« aanMa of tb* otbam
" Q. Ton did think that?. Ana. ftp.

"v Tw" °"^' **"* '^" *•** *^ lUnJaUr that? Ana. Taa."

_t*^'',^^r* ** "*"* "^ canjtmction witt> P. H. Clergw, who seons
wtotetely to ImTe Attained all tiie areai that w?ie aUotted under these appU-
ojrtioas. Mr. CaidweD did not get aU the areas he applied for, because someof
ttoi were covered by previous applications, some were school lands or Hudsoik
Btij lanoa, and many were abandoned after expknatbn as having no value.
But the speculators got aU the coal lands that W5 (Pennine apidicuits would
nave received.

T^ statement that Mr. Caldwell had procured applications by paying
fl rach for them from beU boys, chambermaids, boot blacks and any other
employees whom he could find around tl» hotel, was tiie Uteral truth. Here
are some of the names printed as found in the applications:

K»t« Ambrove.
Katla Barry.
Mary Barry,
Itmzli Cfamvh
MBia* CMttOB.
AJaate Hacmo.
Kat« Faynty.

Pat Uahonm
Mr. UagnOu
M»nft» SamiiMrs.
Kate Hudwm.
X<is>le How*.
Minnie Taraer
Jack Schench.

Mr. Colyasre
C. C. Pamty.
Lottie MeMab.
Maatle Powen.
Dave Ormney.
Mike Murphy.
Mra. AUoe CTireet.

In a number of cases no Christian names were given."" The whole list ifr
so entotiy fictitiOBs as applications for coal leases as to make it clear to the
iJepartmaBtal officers that the whole purpose was to enable one man to -et
aOfc or 300 tnnes as much as the law allowed.

Yet it weirt Aroi^h without difficulty.

- AXOTHEB REGULATIOK BBOKEK.
• Something eke hi^pened respecting these CddweU coal laa^. The
rafluen^ of a member of Parliament was used to prevent the lapse after pur-
<*Me when the grantee had failed to make paymrait. One half-section stood
in file name of A. Perron, who, of course, had nothing to do with it There
iros $800 to pay as as iostalmcnt on tiie purahaae price of $3,800. Mr.

S*T*" I"/*"'^.^® ••y' '™" ^^ I''* °^ September to pay this sum.On the 13th of November W. A. Galliher, M.P., wrote to the Cihefof the Mine*
branch, giving the rather peremptory order: " Thne should foe extended forW|^ «f «»e for 60 days after survey now beiag made is eompleted."
Tim (Met Clerk reported

:

—or
ta. U^lJ^^^ teetrwrtlone are that not more than «0 4aya AotM be alloweS

f!ZSS^ «^ <ta»t pe^eirt on aceoont of coa! mlnta* lairtle. and that aay re<i«estfwftwtber ttaw la to be reftsrred to htan. maun. Vmxx and Pww« laive ehrmar-bem «iTw <• dsye—«ie extemrion of time cannot be graated trndw the MtaiHtecir
tastrucUone except by hi* special authority."

«-«^ *«- —ra™i»r»

The B^tar was safamitted to Gu Minister who m^actsd Hie seeretery
" wire tiiem no extension will be given."

Mr. Galliher, M.P., was not put off that way. He wired again to flie
Chief of the Mines branch: "Don't cancel till I see you Monday morning.
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Sgd. GalUher." This wm Novouber 17th. Mr. Galliher went to Ottawa and

bad hu interview, after whidi tfae fdilowing memOTandtun was made:
"TlM applleant, Mr. A. Perron, wm civen up to Um 11th tnat on whlo^ to

porolUMO thla half aection. But Inatmetlona ar« to accept payment from him or

om hto behau; notwWhatawHag tb* fact that the period Clven him within whleh
to make eucb payment had expired."

Another memorandum stated that " Mr. W. A. Oalliher, M.P., bands in

an unaccepted dieqne for $1,645, which he tendered as payment of the first

instafanent** This payment applied to two other areas aljo, and the officer

testified ftat it was Mr. Cleigu^s cheque.

So we hsTe in tins case a ddiberate erasion, by collusion of the Depart-

ment, of the rule limiting applications to 320 acres, and afterwards the yiela-

tion of the rule requiring payment wittun a certain time, and a snrrender of

the Mmister to the Galliher influence, after having positiTdy lefosed ex-

tension.

XOBB Of THS SAin.

The Caldwell case is one of several. Mr. Talbot, M.P., a liiidc-and-thin

Govermnent supporter, admitted that he and certain associates had srait in 75

names in the same way, and the ofBcer who testified stated that there wem
many more of the kind.

In this way and through other evasions and operatiom, three-quarters of

the coal belt has been obtained by speculatDrs. Mr. Amss, M.P., has care-

fully gone over the returns and states that out oi 318,000 aeRs of coal lands

sold and leased, not 40,000 acres are held by operative companies, and not

10,000 acres are worked. This reserve supply of coal should have been held

by the Government as a protection to the settlers and to genuine operators.



WKSTBliy USHSBIES.
GovemiiiAat Bands Tliem Ofvr To Speculaton and Monopolists.

The Mftrine Departmoit Yum d«rit with the Western inland fiaheries in
the same free and easy geoerona way that the Interior Department has dis-

tributed the land, timber and oooL It was not nntil Janoary, 1908, that
the public was given to undorstand how completely this lishery wealth had
been given away. Hansard, 1906, page 1684, ccmtains a statement by Mr.
Brodeur in reply to Mr. Herron giving partkulaia of five leases.

In 1903 a five years' lease, whidi seems to be renewable, waa given to
Coffey and Merritt for the fishing of Cumberland Lake, which haa an area of
1G6 square miles, and of Namew Lake, 66 square miles, all for $100 a year.

In 1905 the same firm was given a similar leaae of Cedar Lake, 235 square
miles; Moose Lake, 552 square miles; Cormorant L^e, 141 square miles, and
Atikanag Lake, 90 square miles—all for $100 a year.

In 1904 P. H. Markey, a Montreal lawyer, obtained a 21 jears' right of
fishing in the following watere :

Nelson River and its tributaries, from West fiiver to its mouth,
the estuary cf the Nelson extending for some liM) miW along the
Hudson Bay.

The. Hayes Biver, the Pigeon RIvct.

Great Slave Lake, a water of 10,71C square miles.
This enormous concession was passed over, to the Briiisn-American Pish

Corporation, Limited, an American concern, which is now fisiiing out these
rivers and lakes, and is preparing to do so more extensively when railway com-
munication shall be established.

The cost of this concession is $10 a year.

In 1904 J. H. Mackenzie, representing the Athabaska iHsh Comnany.
Limited, obtained the right to fish Lake Athabaska, 2,813 square miles, and
Lesser Slave Lake, 4«0 square miles. This is a lease of nine y^rs, renew-
able for nine years more, and costs $10 a year.

In 1903 Archibald MacNee, editor of a Government organ in Windsor.
Ontario, obtained a lease, to run for 21 years, to fish around James Bay, from
North Bluff to the northern point of Moer's Island, r.pposite Solomon's
Temple, 150 to 200 miles. Mr. MacNee's lease also givjs him the right to
fish " in tidal waters of all rivers." This costs $10 a year. Mr. MacNee's
Company is waiting until railway cranmunication makes the concession better
available.

Of course, it would never do for the Government to > -it until these
waters become more accessible, and give sU the people a change, or sell the
fisheries for what they are worth.

YALTJB OF THBSB FISHEBI^.
A committee of the Senate in 1907 took evidence on tbp resources of the

Northwest and published the results in an interesting report called " Canada's
Pertile Northland." It is reported that " the rivers and laker of this region
teem with fish of various kinds."

Elihu Stewart, Superintendent of Porestry, testified that there were im-
mense quantities of fish of excellent quality in the Great Slave and Athabaska
Lakes.
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Mr. McC<nu^, of the Oedogical Sarrey, said that 140,000 white fish

were caught just below Great Slave Lake in ten davs. He saw salmon trontr

weighing 15 to 20 pounds.
Mr. Dowling, of the Surrey, said that all the rivers emptying into James

Bay abounde(f with white fish, perch and other fishes.

Mr. O'Sullivan, of the Survey, stated that all the lakes through the
country are full of fish.

Mr. Mclnnis, geologist, testified that fishin'^ companies hooed to do a
great business when the Canadian Northern reached the Pas of the Saskatche-
wan, and they were now hauling them over 100 miles to be shipped to Chicago.

The sturgeon, which is a very valuable fish, is found on the lower Nelson.
Mr. Conroy, of the Indian Department, had seen trout in Lake A.thaba8ka

weighing 20 pounds. These lakes, he said, were full of flsb.

Mayor Cook, of Prince Albert, had seen 32,000 white fish caught in two
nights. He had seen trout ttiat weighed 60 pounds, and there were sturgeon
running from 10 to 100 pounds.

W. P. Bredin, M.L.A., said that Lake Athabaska was full of white fjh,
that the fish were exported from Lesser Slave Lake in larjre quantities.
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FIVE LAUD DEALS.

mm'

MIDDLBMAH ALWAYS THERE FIRSTWHEN OOVERNMENT
BUYS LAHD FOR RAH^WAY PURPOSES.

Ezaovlei from Moncton, Halifax, Truro and St Boniface.

Total cost of land $303,970.00. Of which

$161,887.00 is Rake Off.

The following is the circumatantial account of fiye purchases of land

made by the Government for railway purposes, four through the Department

of Bailways for the Intercolonial, and one through the Transcontinental Com-

mission for the Grand Trunk Pacific. All but one of these deals were

investigated by the Public Accounts Committee, and the facts stated below

are taken <rom the evidence. The details of the Truro deal may be found

in papers brought down by the Minister of Railways in response to an order

of the House.

THE FIRST MONCTON DEAL.

Government Paid $13,880; Middleman's Profit $8,505.

In January, 1904, Hon. H. R. Emmerson became Minister of Railways

and Canals. At the time he was President and General Manager of the

New Brunswick Petroleum Co., whereof Mr. Matthew Lodge, of Moncton,

was Secretary-Treasurer. Mr. Lodge was an active campaign operator in

Moncton for Mr. Emmerson and his friends. He was the local manager,

and the dealer with the Government of the Eastern Supply Co., an organiza-

tion incorporated in Newfoundland, apparently for the purpose of selling

supplies to the Department of Railways. It will be seen that the relations,

political and financial, between Mr. Emmerson and Mr. Lodge were remark-

ably intimate.

A PRELIMINARY nNDERSTANDINO.

In the spring of 1904 it became evident to Mr. Emmerson, and, at the

same time, apparent to Mr. Lodge, that the Government would require to

purchase a quantity of land near the railway shops and station at Moncton.

In May Mr. Lodge was at Ottawa, and, according to Mr. Emmerson's evi-

dence, told the Minister that a lot of five acres, called the Tannery Property,

could be purch^ised from Mr. R. W. Hewson, who controlled the land and

was part owner. Mr. Emmerson knew this before, for Mr. Hewson had for

years been offering the land to the Government, end had long complained

that the railway department was trespassing on his property. Mr. Emmerson
took no action then, but acted at once on the hint given him by Mr. Lodge

and communicated with General Manager Pottitigcr, telling him that he was

offered the Hewson lot.

LODOE SECURES OPTIONS ON THE RIGHT PROPERTIES.

Mr. Lodge returned to Moncton and took an option on the Hewson

property at $5,000. He also engaged Mr. Hewson to negotiate with the
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ovnen of four other properties lying farther away fnan the railway worka,

indading a piece of marsh. Mr. Hewson carried ont inatructiona and
aecnred optiona at ^55 to $484 an acre^ on nearly 14 acrei.

In August Mr. Enuneraon accompanied Mr. Pottinger in an examination

of the Hewson property, kiwwn as the Tannery Lot Mr. Emmenon, in

hia evidence and speech, said that on this examination and in subaequent

diacnssion with the railway oiBcera, it was found advisable to purchase a
certain area.

It turned out that the land found necessary to take included exactly

those lots which Mr. Lodge had oigaged Mr. Hewson to obtain for him,
and no others.

THE LAND DEAL IN DETAIL.

On the 15th of September, 1904, Mr. Hewson, as the agent for Mr.
Lodge, acquired a property, held under these optiona, called the Jones lot,

including 6 3-10 acres, for which he paid $3,0.50, or $484 an acre.

On the aame day Mr. Lodge purchased through Mr. Hewson the Gibson
lot of 3 3-10 acres, for $925, or $880 an acre.

On the 10th of October, twenty-five dajrs after the purchase, Mr. Hew-
son, as agent for Mr. Lodge, transferred to the Government his own five

acres, together with the 9.6 acres contained in the Jones and Gibson lota,

receiving therefor for Mr. Lodge $14,600, or $1,000 an acre.

On the 6th of May, 1905, Mr. Hewson, acting for Mr. Lodge, took
over the Milner lot of 3.93 acres, for $1,000, or $255 an acre. On the
same day he acquired the Gibson fraction, 35-100 of an acre, for $100, or
at the rate of $286 an acre.

On the 29th of May, the two last-mentioned lots, amounting to 4.28
acres, were transferred to the Government for $1,000 an acre, or $4,280.

This completed the sale of all the lands inclucled in Mr. Lodge's, options.

167 PER CENT. NBI PROFIT.

In his testimony before the committee Mr. Hewson stated that he re-
ceived for his services from Mr. Lodge the sum of $300. His own property,
whidi was much more valuable than the rest, he regarded as a good bargain
at $5,000, which sum he received directly from the Government at the time
that the Department of Railways took over the land.

The other properties, for which Mr. Lodge paid $5,075, could have
been bought by Mr. Hewson for the Government at the same price.

The following table gives the profits in an easy form for reference:
Price Price

I*«*Perty paid by paid by Lodce'a Percentac*
IiOds» Government profit of proftt

Jones $3,050 16,300 13.250 10«
QJlwon ass 3,300 2.875 SS7
Milner .. 1,000 3,930 8,»30 193
Gibson.- 100 350 250 250

Total $5,075 ns.880 $8,805
leaa exptnamm 100

$13,580 $8,605 167

This is a fair rake-off for the Minister's friend to make on transfers
which gave him no trouble, but were all arranged for $300. The transaction
means that the Government purchased the Hewson lot at about the lowest
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priot lor whidt HewMm would mU, and for Hat othor lots ptid mort tiua
two priflM for on^ and mrao Ifeui throo prioM for the rait;, tlw middlamaa
laeeitiiig nearly twice as muoh for hi* few wedta* ownership and his fiifliienoe

aa the owners of the propertiea obtained for their whole poaaession.

THB minaTBB'a two ruua nr ravuroB.
Now, what defenoe did the Minister offer lor this sstouishing tnms-

aetionP Mr. Emmerson's speech in the House contains two pleas. The
flxst is that he asked some Moneton business men to place a Talne on the
property, ai^ thqr pronounced the whole lot worth a thoosand dollars an
acre. The other was that in 1884 the late GoTemment had purchased 55-100
of an acre adjoining the Tannery lot, and had paid for it $1,000, or ap-
proadmatdy $2,000 an acre.

THK riBST HAS KO TALUB.
The first plea confused tiie Hewson lot with the other purchases, that

lot being fax more Taloable than the lower and more remote properties. The
true test of the value of the four properties is the price at whidi the ownera
hdd them. Not one of the owners demanded half the price which Mr.
Etaimerson says tiieir land wss worth. It will hardly be supposed that
fltey conspired against their own interest to sell the land for one-quarter
to ooe-half its Tidue in order that the go-between should make -$8,000 out
of them. The commercial value of the land in tiie open market, was esteb-
lidied <m the spot and at the time by Mr. Lo^'s purchase, iiurough Mr.
HewsMi, and ibe average price was not $1,000 an acre, but $366.

THB SBCOKD BASED ON MIB-8TATBXKNT.
The second plea is disposed of by an appeal to the facts, and the fact

is that the purchase in 1884 for $1,000 was not a half acre, but 6V« acres,
and the price per acre was therefore not $2,000, but $168.

For the sske of a complete record, Mr. Emmerson's statement it here
quoted (Hansard, 1906, pages 5832-6834)

:

" Bwt In 1884 the Intercolonial IUiUw»y purchased rl^t off this block of land.
rl»ht adlaeent to the property we purchased here in 1904, half an acre trom Mr.
miner. And how much did the Intercolonial Railway pay for that? One thousand
d(dlars for one-half acre."

And acaln Mr. Emmerson says: "We were able to purchase It at $1,000, when
the administration of the Intercolonial Railway in 1884, at a time when my honor-
aMe friend (Mr. Ames), the mover of this resolution, would have every confidence
in the then administration of the Intercolonial Railway, boutrbt 55/100 acre and
paid 81.000."

Further on in his speech Mr. Emmerson made the comparison entuM, saying:
"Judaed by what transpired In 1884 when half an acre was purchased by the In-
tercolonial for $1,000, we in 1904 made a good bargain when we bought the whole
aereace at the rate of $1,900 per acre, not at the rate of $1,000 a half acre."

Mr. Fielding, who camt to Mr. Emmenon's rescue, also dwelt upon this

1884 transaction as a justification for the Lodge deal.

It ia a pity to spoil an argument which was <>Tpected to accomplish bo

much, but the registered description of the land > chased for a thousand
dollars in 1864 gives its size and boundaries, and is with the words

"Containing in all Six 55-100 Acres (6.55; more or less."

PSOOBBSS OF PBICK8.
So now we have the following: It is stated by Mr. Emmerson that in

1875 (he should have said 1880) "some 28.100 of an acre was purchased in
the same place for $30.*' This is at the rate of $107 an acre.
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In 1884 >oni«Uilng orer dz aeiw vas pwrdiaMd at the piiot of 9168

per acre.

In 1904 Mr. Lodge pnrchaaed from* Tariona parttfla nearly 14 aerea at

an arerage price of $366 an acre, which he immediately turned om to tte

Ck>remment at 91,000 an acre.

TBI DIAL IKD0B8ID BT IHI LTBIBAL ICnniU.

On the Slat of Jane, 1906, Mr. Amea set forth the abore fade in iht

preamble of a readntion, dodng with thia motion: " That the acti<m of tta
** QoTemment in paying to a middleman the stun of $8,50S more than waa
** necetaanr in order to acquire the said property, waa nnjnatifiable and d^
" aenres the cenanre of thia Honae." Thia motion waa defeated by a Tota

of 89 to 46, erery Liberal member of the Houie preaent, voting againat ii

Thus the Moncton land deal haa the endoraement of the Qoremnuol
Bupporters in the Houae of Conmona.

SECOND MOHCTON LARD DEAL.

Tnuiiaction $10,490; Rake Off |a,xoo.

The aecond Moncton deal waa leaa profitable to the middleman. The
Auditor-Ganraal'B report for 1905-6 (part W, page 46) contains the follow-

ing statement of payments made for land in Moncton

:

Hewaon. R. W. I10.4N
rronta«« on Ham Street. 274X100 ft, O tlO t.T4e

Balance of land l>eyond the 100 ft. back IM*
Bulldinr on White property: S houses, 11,000 and t700 fl.eee

Buildings on Hannah property; house tl.SOO; |>am tlSO l,aie

Bulldtncs on Fownes property; house and outbuildings, $1,200 1,200

Bulldlnsa on Graham property; house and bam SOO

This makes the total of $10,490 at the head of tiie column.

LODGE STILL THE MIDDLEHAK.

As in the year before Mr. Hewson's name is a deceptioQ. The land

was not bought from Mr. Hewson bat from that happy favorite Matthew
Lodge. Mr. Hewson bought the land for Mr. Lodge from the original

owners, and Mr. Lodge sold it to the Government immediately. Mr. Hew-
son was called before the Public Accounts Committee in the session of 1907,

and testified that the price he paid for the land waa $7,900. Mr. Lodge
afterwards paid $150 on a damage claim and allowed $250 to Mr. Hewaon
for doing the business. The total cost to Mr. Lodge was $8,300, and hia

rake-off $8,190.

Questioned by the committee, Mr. Hewson expressed the opinion that

he could have bought the land for the Government as cheap as he bought
it for Mr. Lodge.

In the last deal Mr. Lodge bought the White property for $3,000, build-

ings and all, and the Government paid him by the foot for the land and
$2,600 for the buildings. Mr. Lodge bought tiie Hannah property for $2,000,
with the buildings on it, and the Government paid him $1,950 for the
buildings alone. Mr. Lodge paid $1,350 for the Fownes property and waa
allowed $1,200 for the building on it. 'Altogether he received for the build-
ings alone $6,550, which was only $1,350 less than he paid for the whole
property. He was allowed $3,940 for the land alone.
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HAUPAZ LAID DIAL.

TRAKSACnOII l45t40o; RAKS-OiF ta8,39a.

Him. B. P. PMnon it tht IBddltnian .

One of th« moit teuKUknu tiaiiMctioiM bioiigfat to the notice of Pmv
Uament dnrjig the Minon of 1906-7 wm the Halifu Lnnd Deel. The

nun of it is that the OoTemment bon^t a block of land at Halifax to pro*

Tide for a nmnd-hoose and other bnUdiogi for the Intercolonial, paying

145,400, of whidi more tiian $28,000 waa rak»-<^.

It waa found on inreatigation that two intatmadiariea or middlemen

had boogfat np tiiii land Jnat before the Qorenaent jroidMae, and, before

paying for it, had tnmed it over to the Department of Bailwayt at a profit

lor themielTea of $28,899.48. TheM facta are established on the evidence

of (me 'of these parties, who swore that he received the cheque from the

Government and that he paid to his partner $14,196.21, as his fnll share

of the profit. The purchaser who received this telf riiare was no other

than B. P. Pearson, M.P.P., now a member of the Nova Scotia Administra-

tion, and pn^etor of the Halifax Chronich and the St. John Bmi. leading

Government organs in Nova Scotia and New Brunswick.

AS STATED IN THE POBUO AIOOUNTS.

The Halifax Land Deal is rcprceenlMd by the following statement in the

'Auditor-General's report, under tie head of "I. C. Bailwi^ capital account;

increased accommodation at Halifax " (Auditor-General's report, 1906, part

W, page 25).

For land and damages:
Renderion, J. R. land n«ar cotton mill aiding (|46,4Se).

Windsor street, lot 1, 28.S00 ft; land, 11,500; damacM, 11,000 12,600
Windsor Street, lot 2, 36,800 ft.; land, tl.SOO; bulldtnfs, 11,700; damages.

$300 3.300

Windsor Street, lot S; SSS.TSO ft.; land, ST.SSS 7,800
Windsor Street, lot 5-6a, 2(2,SBI ft; land. $3,160 3,160

Kempt Road, lot S. 941.186 ft; land. $26,000; bulldlnir!!. $600: damaces.
$600 27.100

Kempt Road, lot t, 26,862 ft.; land, $1,0S0; damasea, $1,000 1,060

Total $46,400

AS BOUOHT BT THB KriH>LEMAN.

The following table shows what these lots of land were bought for in

the open market a few days before they were sold to the Government:
Lot 1 $ 600

Lot No. 2.. 8.600

tot No. 8 4,000

I^tNo.5-Sa.. 1,099

Lot No. «. 7,28»

Lot No. ». . 1.100

Total I18.SS8

HOW IT WORKS OITA

The middlemen claim to have paid $330 taxes in addition, but on the

other hand, the most of the payments were made by notes falling due after
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41m iMd VM §M to tiM OovemiMiit, tnd tht ooft iadodci intemt That
tiie total «Mt to Jot^ B. Hodtnon and Hon. B. F. Peuioa» M.P.P.,
WM bttwwB $18/00 and 919,000. Th«|f iMtivtd from Um OorenantDt
$45,400. A portian of tho land boni^t l^ tho Biiddleman wm ratainad hf
Mr. HoadariOtt at • Talnatioii of $5,000, tha propcrtj havinf grtatly in-

fireaaad in Tslae by tha QoTenimant's pnrcfaaaa of tha remaindar. In thia

adjaatment the diviakm of profits gave the partner* proflta of $14,196.S1
aach, aa atatod bj Mr. H«nderMm on oath before the Public Accounta Com-
mittee, and corroborated in hia testimony in a libd action againat tha flalifaz

THS AnucTiixi aoHxm.
Wa now take np tha hittoiy of the deal in the order of time. In 1903

the Department took up the qaeation of building a new roond-houae at
Halifax. Then the chief engineer of the I. C. B., the engineer of main-
tenancy the iupnrintendent, with aix oUier expert offioera, examined all

convenient aitea, aad decided that a place called Africrille was the only avail-

<ible place. The diief engineer prepared plana and estimatea. Thia waa
in September, 1903, bat nothing was done until September, 1904, jnat before
the election, when the authoritiea b^an to diacuaa a rectangular engine
hoiwe at Bichmond.

TRB BICHMOKD IDXA.

Plans of this work were prepared about election time and served their
campaign pnrpoaea, and then the matter went to sleep until Auguat, 190S,
when ti^e general manager was writing to the engineer on the asaumption
that Bichmond would be liie place. Mr. Carney, one of the members for
Halifax, was in danger of being unseated, and waa active in the matter.
Beplying to one of his inquiries on September 4^ 1906, Mr. Pottinger said,

" We are endeavouring now to secure the land for it (the engine taonie) and oar
people are at work on the plana,

A week later Mr. Carney was still anxious, and the manager wrote him

:

" We are now endeavourlns to get the land matter settled, and Just as soon •
this is done the other work will be gone on with as soon aa po^ble."

On the same day Mr. Pottinger wrote to the chief engineer:
" Mr. Pearson, Jr., telephoned to the Minister to-day that the land questloii

at Richmond was in shape to close if a valuator b« sent out at once, and the name
of Mr. H. C. Read was sunrestect as valuator. Tha Instructli. ns of the Minister are
that Mr. Read be instructed to ro and appraise property to be taken for the englns
house and yard at Richmond. Have Mr. Read ao there without delay.."

HAD PEAB80K OFTIOKB AT BIOHMOin)?
Mr. Bead is Hon. H. Emmerson's uncle, and he proceeded to make

a valuation of $40,300. There is nothing to show whether Mr. Pearson

had obt&bed an option on the Bichmond propertiea; but the interest which
the Pearson firm diowed in the tranaaction, and what happened afterward

in regard to the other property, would indicate more than a friendly intereat

in Mr. Pearaon'a intervention. As the Government made no purchase, Mr.
Pearson did not dose his options, if he took any. On a sudden change of
Qovemment policy in favor of purchasing land in another place it waa
found that Mr. Pearson roae to that occaaion alao, got in ahead and secured

options there.

COTTON FACTORY BITE.

November 7, 1905, Mr. Pottinger wrote to Deputy Minister Butler that

he had written to the mechanical manager recommending him to. examine
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MM* gfoaad on th* Osttoa ffeotonr aidiaf. Tb* Miaiiter and Mr. Bntkr,

vilh hk niaoiiMl oOem, Tiiitod ttiU spot JaovMy tbt 19tb. It tmm to

ksft bMB diwiM at this vi^t, if not aoooer, tlut th« land would be p«r-

Aatad. On tb* 9th of Ifaidi Mr. Butler wrote to tho Minuter giving •

dMriptiflB of the peopcrtjr nqoired at the Cotton Factoiy aiding, and cloaing

Ma kMer with theae wotda:
** TlM wkol* of tbte pro9«rty ahottKI b* M«nr«« (or tli« purpoM* of tha MocIwbI-

Ml Pmertewnt at tlM oarllMt poMlMo momont. It ta » tmXiXy laval placo vt

I aaa OM wlioro tho bopo eaa b« ooBatmctoe at roMMMbla ooat, and no otbar

U aroond la tho vlelatty of HatUaa la « aU oonvaraMo wUh It for isneh

fgg It la not adrlaablo ttaat It ahouM ba kaowa that tha raUway la dcatrouai

•TaaoBrlaa thia property oBtll tho purohaaa la eioaed; and I tharofor* raconunond

tfeot «imr-^«*** atapa ba takaa to aaeuro firm optloaa, and to complau tha purehaao

«( tha pnpattr ribova daaoHbad. <Ib4) M. J. Butlar."

THB xroDLKiOW WSBX AHKAD.

Bat while Mr. Bntler may have thought that he waa proceeding with

saeraoy, the partiaa who were to haru the rake-off teem to hare been well

infonned of the proceedings and poiMbilitiee. On the 16th of March, one

weak after Mr. Bntler'a letter to the Miniater, the Deputy wrote to Mr.

Pottinger, ianiing the following order:
Mpj^^ Inatruct Mr. Maollrcith to go ahead and cloaa tha omttar, uainc Ifr.

HOBrr Road aa valnator. I undaratand that we can aocure tha whola of the pro-

party for batwewi thirty-flva and forty thouaand dollara ... tha mttar ahovM

ba praaaad and eloaad aa qnlekly aa poaalWa."

It will be obaerred that the same valuator was chosen as m the other

eaae. Mr. Bead arrived at Halifax on the 12th of April to make his valua-

tion. Some tiiie before options on the whole of the property required had

been obtained by Measrs. Henderson and Pearson, aforesaid.

THBY WEBS SHABT ON TIME.

Now, eoBsider a few dates.

Lot No. 1 waa acquired in February for $750 an acre by Mr. Henderson

for himself and partner. »TI» puiwhase was completed later. Mr. Hen

deiaon's testtmway ccmoeming his purchase is as follows:

I had K undaratood In February with my partner, and he and I own about aeven-

atehta of tha concern; and I explained the matter to him that Mr. iVarson and I

wwa daalrlns to own all that dUtrlct. and he acreed that I ohould have paaaad a

Binivto of-aale by Hendaraon and Potta to Henderaon at the rate of $750 per acre."

' Mr. Henderson testified concerning lot 2: "I purchased it outright

about the middle of Mardi." The negotiation had commenced about Feb-

mary 20tli.

Mr. Henderson testified that he bought lot 3 on the 14th of March.

NegotUtions with Mr. Stephen, who held the mortgage, began shortly before.

He had heen discussing the matter with Mr. Stephen previous to the 10th

of Mardi, but was not clear as to the exact time, Mr. Stephm, who testified

in the Halifax libel suit on this subject, swore that negotiations were opened

in February.

Mr. Henderson testified that he took options on lots 5 and 6o about

the 9th of February. The purchase was completed, as the documents show,

tiie 86th of Mardi.

For the Veith's properties, lots 6 and 9, the options were obtained Feb-

raaiy 8th.
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BATM.
Tiui purduMi w«Te complelad by Heodenoa and Pearma u follovs:

ijot No. 1. Agra «, 1M«.
VM No. X. Iterflh It, ItM.
tM No. >, March ST, 1M«.
L.ot No. (, to, lurch 28. t»0«,

U>U No. • und ». April, *, 1M«.

It «M on Um 9th March that Deputy Minister Batler wrote to Mr.
Xmmenon that the property should l>e secured before the intention to boj
ibonld be kaown. It waaon the 16th of March that Mr. Butler asked Mr.
Pottinger to ioatruct Mr. Macllreith, as lawyer for the Department, " to fo
ahead and close the matter, using Mr. Harry Bead aa valuator."

Thus, the middloBm secared their options after the official risit ol
the Depu^ Minister and before public notice was given that the property
would be bought

A VALUATIOV TO MATCH.
Keeping thete dates ia mind, we go back to the routine. Mr. Bead

went to Halifax on Hhe 18th of April and proceeded to make hit Taluation,
giring the value of each lut. If Mr. Read bad gone to the late owners he
would have learned exaLtly what the lota were worth in the open nuu^at,
tinoe everyone of them hu4 just been told. Mr. Read testified that he did
not go to the ngiBtry <M(X to learn Hi what price these lands had been
recently transferred. Mr. Eoul, di>i not go to the office of Mr. Pearwm,
the partner in the transaction Ho learned that Mr. Henderson had ac-
quired about all the property that Ihe G^nernment needed, and waa willing
to sell it at 3 cents a foot. Mr. Read submitted his valuation of lots.

These valuations totalled up to exactly the iigure reached by Mr. Hrudenoit's
proposal to sell at 3 cents per square foot, and was considerably mor» than
double the pnce for which Mr. Hfuderson and Mr. Pearson had just pnr-
chased the land.

In his examination Mr. Read testified that on the first dav he w«!!;' <a>

the land he discovered that Mr. Henderson had recently purchasM. • pi;
perties. Yet he did not ask what price had been paid, uor ir.^^.ui lv,>;.i

the-assessed value. His valuation included damages for compui- ^•',' <s •j;\

though the land was bought for the purpose of re-selling. Tl;t; V 'w^uiMi
turned out to be more than 50 per cent higher than Mr. ButW > : ..a^
but the Department put the deal through on that basis, though ii >vae, in
respect to the largest property, 300 per cent, above the recent selling price.
On the 25th of May vouchers for $45,400 were sent to the Auditor-General
in favor of J. H. Henderson and the agent of the Department of Justice.

LITTLE CAPITAL BXQtTTBED.

Now, Messrs. Henderson and Pearson made the payments aa follows
to the persons from whom they bought the land:

Mr. Robinson waa paid for Lot No. 8, $2,500 some time in March.
For tho Reeves property. Lot No. 3, $1,000 was paid in March and the

remainder after the money was received from the Government.
For the Hendry proper^, I^t 5 and 5a, $300 was paid in March, $100

in May, and the ronander after the money was received from the Govern-
ment.

For Lot No. 6, the Veiths were paid $105 in May, and the balance after
Ih*- money was received from the Government.
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It will fae seal that the middlemen did not require much capital to

inance the tranaactioQ. Mr. Henderacm stated that he receiTed tite chequQ

on June the 11th, 1906, and on the same day paid hia partner, Mr. Pearson,

$14,19G as hia share of the profit

THE HALIFAX "HEalLO" EXPOSCKE.

The inaide atory of the Halifax land deal was first disclosed by the

Halifax Htrald, which aaeertained on the apot the price paid by the middle-

am for the land. The HtnU stron^y denounoed this graft, and mentioned

the name of Mr. B. T. Macllreith, agent at Halifax for the Departmmt of

Joatioe, who waa in duty bound to protect the pnUic interest. According

to tbe Aoditor'a statement, Mr. Macllreith received in that fiscal year fnun
the Chiremment, 910,814.78 aa legal expensea and taxed costs.

As the result of the HenUd'a criticisms, Mr. Macllreith, who ia one

of the Liberal leaders, instituted libel proceedings against that journal. The
caae waa tried out at Halifax, before a jory, and the whole facta disclosed.

The result waa • complete triumph for the Utrdd. The jury found in

favor of the defence^ and Mr. Macllreith paid the ooats of ^ trial.

BXVOBX PUBLIC ACC»UNT8 OOKXITTES.

Meanwhile, the deal had been investigated by the Public Accounts Com-
mittee at Ottawa. The facts were established on the evidence of Mr. J.

B. Henderson, one of the two partners who purchaaed the land and sold it

to the GtovemmenL Mr. Henderson penonidly had no political pull. He
had tbe advaniage of being in posseesion of a small part of the land required,

and was in a better position than Mr. Poirson to buy the rest Mr. Pearson,

on the other hand, had tiie political influence, and contributed this to the

partnerdiip, with s{dendid financial results to himself. Mr. Henderscm,
before the Committee^ told hils story freely and frankly, though Govemmoit
snpporters in the Committee did the best to head off the disclosures.

ntCZa AND nOFITB.

It remaiiia to set forth in convenient form the prioe the Govemiaent
paid for eadi lot with the price received from the middlemen by the previoun

owners. In regard to the first item it may be explained that the inter-

mediaries paid $750 an acre for the lot of which it forma a part, and whicli

waa not all sold to the Government The price of this lot is worked out

proportionately. The small additional profits oivided come from the land
left over.

Previoui Owner. Partners Qovernment Proflti. Profit
paia paid Per Cent.

Henderson and Potts 9 see 9 3.M0 f XSSO 400
A. Robinson.. 2,(e« S.tee SS* »
Jamea Reeve 4,090 7,300 S.SOO 82.5

Jamea Reeve 4.000 T.SOS S,300 S2.6

W. A. Hendry.. S,0«> S,1S» 61 2
Vleth EsUte , 7.Sn 2T.l«e 19.«11 372
uaan Veltli.. 1.300 2.«t« SBO 71

Total $12,588 845,(00 UMIS 1«
The evidence in this case will be found in the Reports of Public

Accounts Committee, lOOT, pages 487 to 545.



TRURO LARD DEAL.

Rake-Off in M<mey and Land.

This story begins in 1903 when a vote had been passed for increased

accommodation at Truro. In July various sites for a proposed engine house

were examined by the engineers and superintendents. They reported against

the site finally chosen. In October, Hiram W. YuUl submitted an offer of

this property for $11,000. Tradcmaster Ardiibald reported " I do not con-

sider the price reasonable." Mr. Yuill had acquired an optitrn from tiia

previous owners and was the middleman in the case.

'ITie Chief Engineer reported favorably on the "Doggett" property,

which was offered at $100 per acre, regarded by the engineer as a reasonable

price. This officer prepared plans showing that the completed building on

the " Doggett " site would cost $180,510, while, owing to increased excavation,

etc., it would cost $233,200 to furnish the accommodation on the site offered

by Mr. Yuill.

A CAHPAION PURCHASE.

This was in the beginning of 1901. Nothing happened until June o£

that year, when the elections were in sight, at which time B. F. l*f«"o°»

M.P.P., the principal figure in the Halifax deal, came in sight He iifVitod

the Chief Engineer to meet him in Truro to consider the land purchase,

adding: "I am very anxious to get this settled before I leave for New-

foundland." At the end of June Mr. Pearson, Mr. Laurence, afterwards

Qovernment candidate, the General Manager of the I. C. R., and Chief

Engineer, had their meeting at Truro. August 30th Mr. Pearson's son

salt forward a certificate from certain local people that the land was worth

as much as Mr. Y^uill asked for it, and on the 19th September Mr. Emmer-

Bon, after meeting the Pearsons, gave orders for the purchase of the land.

There was a hitch in the proceedings, and on Oet«l>er 3rd, a month before

the election, Mr. Emmerson ttlographed to the General Manager of the

Intercolonial
" Secure that land for Truro round house Immediately at price named In paper

" appraising value. Get Mr. Laurence to search the title. Rush the work with all

" possible spe«d 8«d. H. R. Bmmbmok."

So the General Manager was obliged to take the Innd which his engineer

had condemned, and of which his district oflicer had said, " I consider it not

worth our while to further consider the place." There was some re-adjust-

ment of boundaries, and the price paid was $11,500.

Mr. Yuill's option was at a considerably lower price for a still larger

lot. He had besides his cash margin a block of land 893 feet on Queen

Street and 130 feet deep.
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ST. BONIFACB LAUD DEAL.

Rftke-Off $161,887.00—Transaction Carried Through By

CommiflKmar Young.

In tha Siunmer of 1906, it li«d been decided by the Oovemment Com-
iiviuion which it building the Eastern eection of the Tranacontinratal, and
by the Grand Trunk Padfio Cknniiany, that the terminals and shops of the
railway qrstem should be near the Ciiy of St Boniface, across the Bed River
trom Winnipeg. Mr. 0. A. Yonng, one of the Conmiasionerst, who is a
brother of Senator Yonng, and was, before his appointment, an actiye poli-
tician in Manitoba, assumed the duty of porchssing the land required.

Mr, Young did not hurry about it He allowed tiie Autumn of 1905
«nd the following Winter and Spring to pass. In Norember of 1906 he
considered that matters were ripe for a land purchase.

KABKKT TALUS $125 FEB AORK.

Meanwhile the middlemen were moving. John Henry Kern,, of Moose-
jaw, who kept a saloon in his own town and had a business of the same
kind in WinnipMf, appeared on the scene about the time the location of the
termmals was settled. At the end of September he had sized up the situ-
ahon and bought from Finley Mcintosh 160 acres for $120 an acre, or
$20,000 for the lot Apparently there was some reduction made, as the
amount paid was only $19,200. Half the money was paid when the option
was taken.

"^

About the same tune Mr. Kern took an option on 480 acres adjoinine,
at the same price, $125 per acre, or $60,000 for tiie lot He made a emdl
payment down. This purchase was made from the Arctic Ice Company
composed of clever business men, who thought they were making a good gale.

In May, 1906, Mr. Kern to<* an option from James Hamilton on 32')
acres more at $126 per acre, which seemed to be the current price of this
land. This tmie he took in ano«jer Mooeejaw saloon keeper named E. C
Matthews, as partner in the deal. He assigned his option to Mr; Matthewsm whose name the land was afterwards transferred, but retained a half
interest

Kern had now 640 acres in his own name and a half interest in 320
riore. These options had been taken in the open market, under the eve
of Commissioner Young who lived in Manitoba, knew where the shops aA.l
Jfrminals were to be, and could have bought at the same price.

OOVEBNMEKT PATS $250 TO $325 PER ACRE.
In November ld06, Commissioner Young proceeded to buy the land ho

wanted He concluded ttiat he needed 800 acres and he first bought 480
nores from Kern. Mr Kern kept back 160 acres, and agreed with Mryung on a price for the other 480 acres, on condition that the workshop.

Si „«^f? '^IJ 'v *° ^^ '1**«'*' F'"'" '«™»»°''^» ^"«rter section. On
this condition Mr. Young paid Mr. Kern $287..'K) an acre, with the undor-standmg that the pnce was to be $325 an acre, or $18,000 more if the shop,were not so located. So we have tjie following transaction:

^
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Mr. Kwa p«M I U4M
0«v«rniB«nt paid Kani (at iMst) 1U,0M
Proflt 7MW

Or Its p«r cant

Not came the purchase by the Commiaaioner of the 820 acres held

under aptioa hy Kern and Matthew*. In KoTember, 1906, Mr. Young
bought tiiis land for $84,000 ($880 an acre for one 160 acrea, and $875 for

the other). £em and Matthewa had hdd their option cmly ainoe May, and

had paid only one-third of their pnrdiaae price of $40,000. The other

two-thirds was not paid until the GoTemm«it had made an advance of

$30,000 to Kern and Matthews to enable them to acquire their title. So,

not only did ibe Commiasiimer allow ihe middlemen a profit of 110 per cei\^.,

but he furnished them the capital to carry thtvugh the operation. The two

deals together work out as follows:

BAKS-OFF 125 FKB CENT.

Paid by the middlemen.. S M.SOO
Paid by the aovernment 222,00A

Pronta 12M00
Or 12> per cent.

There was never the slightest need of these intermediaries. The Com-
missioners knew better than Kern or Matthews what land they would require.

They could have bought from Mcintosh, the Arctic Ice Company and Ham-
ilton at the same price that the middlemen paid. If lands increased ^n

value afterwards, it was because of Hieee terminal works, and even if the.

propert}' had been expropriated the Govenunent would not have been made
to pay for the prospective value caused by Government operatitms.

It is a clear case of unnecessary and improper expenditure for which
no decent excuse was or can be found. This $188,800 was simply taken

from the people of Canada and given to middlemoi who were not required

in the matter at all.

Taking the five transactions together we have the following:

THE FIVE DEALS.

Paid by Oovemment
Ist. Moncton Deal I l>,Me
2nd. Moncton Deal ie,4Se

Halifax Deal .. 4S,M*
Truro ll.BSe

8t Boniface 2S2,00«

Total 802.»7e

" »

R«ke-oC
< S.60f

S.1M>

2*^2
caA and laad
lSS,l«t

ISIJST ptaa Trw*,
caali*laad.

That is to say, the original owners of the land got a good deal less than

half what the Govermnent paid. Evidently it is better to be a middleman

than to own land. Pull is worth more than property.
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MASIHE FIHASCE.

A DBPARTHXIIT WITHOUT A COHSCIEirCB.

So Said CommiMionen Vytbit tnd Baziii. Charge Borae Out
b7 fha ]liiiittar*t Travelling BUI—Tha Falconar Deal—The
Merwin AccoimiiT-Tlie Arctic and Montcalm Scandak and

^
tiie Tranaactiona With the International & Canadian

Fog Signal ConqMmy.

The Deptrfanent of Marine and Fisheries offers numerous and startling

iOnttntions of graft and extravagance. Many scandals brought to light
daring the Sessions of 1906, 1907 and 1908 were connected with this

Department These instances go to show that the astonishing increase in
Marine expenditure is largely due to negligence, extrayagance and waste,
and perhaps still more largely to methodical, systematic and continued
plunder.

After some examination of the condition of this Department, Mr.
ThMnaa Pyshe and Mr. P. J. Bazin, Royal Ciril Service Commissioners,
both life-long Liberals, reported that " zeal for the public service and ragaid
for economy are conspicuous by their absence"; that there was no sign of
"an intelligent purpose unless it be that of spending as much money as
possible"; tiiat there was "a lack of conscience"; that "Government offi-

cers were serving two muters."
let us see how much the expenditure in this Department through its

various branches has increased during the decade. (Public Accounts, 1907,
pages 62 to 66, and Estimates and Supplementary Estimates of 1908.)
!••« t4J7.«l $4««,0e7 $3«.683 »181.452 $2«.321 $1.187 784
IW' 448,687 445,748 88,131 183,258 26,888 1,187.557
"•' 441,725 474.217 88.163 145.558 26.342 1.126 000
"•• 412,868 645,646 37,358 330,264 28,035 1.363.655
I'M 411,470 528,486 37.741 247.786 27.968 1.248 447
IMl 481,861 678,618 36,141 233.162 29.248 1.368 5'>2WM 648,895 686,811 61,827 4»6,1»1 27.494 1.820 718
1»W 627,829 M4,144 48,760 417.137 30.172 1.988.033
1««4 634,319 1,276,017 50,302 566.547 38.609 2,569.794
1»08 979.889 2.507,307 51,732 1,052.677 50,188 4,841.790
1W6 968,702 2.63C,308 50.731 1.013,683 37.67fi 4.601.000
IWl (9 mo*) 693,686 2,026,642 38.156 679,155 32,460 3 470 099
IMS (voted) 1.866.806 3.040.173 70.500 1,064,916 47,500 5,679,i9fi

There is a great amount of patronage in an expetifiiturp of five or six
millions a year, most of it controlled by the Minister and his fri«ids, and
practically all except the salaries were paid out to favored perBons without
tender or competition.

MB. BRODEUR SETS THE EXAMPLE.

^
Hon. Mr. Brodeur, Minister of Marine, is not in a position to check

lavish expeditnre. He is too reckless in his own spending out of the Public
Treasury.

In 1907 this Minister went to England as a delegate to the Imperial
Conference, proceeding thence to France as a Comraisn^m, to nejptiat*
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• oommodid t>«aty. Mr. Brodeur d^vted at the bqpimiBg of April and

ntarned the Ist of Octriier. He took a ran to Harabug to inqnin aboot

ios-bTeaken and made holiday excunions into Switseriand and Italy. De*

legatea to the Imperial Cwference with their staff and their families were

flnt«taincd white in England aa gueats of the Imperial Qorernment. Mr.

Brodcnr left there May 20th.

SEVSNTT DOUJUIS PKt DAT.

For the remaining period of four montha which Mr. Brodenr was on

the other side of the water, the expenses charged to the Country were u
follows:
Advanced before he left Cmn»da out of the vote for Ice breaklns on the

St. Lawrence J'^JJ
Paid to the Minister In Parle •••'l
Paid to Mr. Brodeur on his return Mit
Pntd later by the Trade and Commerce Department HBOO out of which

the Paris advance of $2,&M was re-couped, leaving *****

Total •••??•

l«ss refund January 1908 •• •• *"

i<,8sa

This does not include the fare to Eugiand, which is a story by itself.

We find Mr. Brodeur receiving $2,200 a month. From May 20th to

September 24th is 126 days. The expense come to exactly $70 per day.

(See Mr. Brodeur's evidence in Public Accounts Committee.)

LIKE AN EABTEUN POTENTATE.

Not only is the Minister extravagant, but he is careless in his public

account!. His account as charged, audited and paid, included the passage

of ladies in his party. Afterwards this was refunded. Hie travelling ex-

penses seemed to have included those of his pleasure trips. Hia Secretary,

whose bills ran up to $1,954. or over $15 per day, for tlie whole trip, tried

to explain to the PuWic Accounts Committee that his large expenses were

partly due to cab hire and tips. Apparontly these were for Mr. Brodeur's

whole partv. as the tips were on an Oriental scale. The Secretary swore

that he paid $41.50 m one day, and $40 in Biother, all for tips.

HAJtn TO GET THE FACTS.

It was no* until near tlw end of the long Session of 19t« that the full

details were o uainwl. Mr. Brodeur bad pnaaiscd to make a general state-

ment eoncerninff hw European expenses before asking the lUmsB tn vnta

further suppiv IV his IVpartment Notwithstanding this pltdg( f|ie MUt-

ister iittisted cm iuiving his v<^e, aliating that the information wiis tiot ready

but wonld W provided aftenwirde. As other Ministers had estimates ready

and could have proceeded while the Miaister of Marine was obtaining hit

information, the Opposition proposed to hold him to his promise. Mr.

Brodeur persisted in demanHinp his vote, and actually kept the House from

doing any other business during a 57-hour sitting, from 3 o'clock in the

afternoon of Thursday until midnight on Saturday. But not a dollar was

voted during thoae three dava, and in the end Mr. Brodeur had to furnish

a ffpnoral ststement before he obtained further supply. It is, perhaps, not

anrprising that this information should be withhdd aa long as possible.

The details of tip§, etc., were given in evidence months afterward.

A Minister who sets a pace like this, and trimsacts bnsineis in inch

fashion could hardly be expeeted to carry through with sncceaa any economy

g|
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OT nlnmi in hit Dmrtmst It It not nurpritiiig that the Ci?U Swvka
OommiMioB, eonpoaid of Libank, dtoald raport of this DcpartoMat that

"otfuiisatioii, dneipUa^ laal for poblie aervioe and ragaxd fi>r aeononajr

ara all conapioaona by thair abaaaea"; that than ia "oaoBtaift Uondariog
and obnfasiQn," with " no aisn' viaiUa of a aingla diraeting haad or intel-

ligant pnrpoaa onlaaa it be uat of spending aa much money as poasible."

THB wAjjooKwm BooX'XJEBFiirQ mux.
But Mr. Bvodaar deriaad one -reform sefaeme. In 1906 he engaged a

Now Toric book-keeping firm to re^iganiaa the acoonnting of the Marina
and Fishery Deoartment. Thia contaMt, made with the Montreal agent
of the Nov Tone eatablishment^ tamed ont to be an eztraTagani* and nek-
less transaction, which was itsdf condemned by the BojH Commission.
Mr. Brodenr made an indefinite contract with tiie agent There was no
price fixed for services, no limit to the total cost, no question whether the
woit wss to be performed by alien laborers. The result was that payments
were made, on account, as follows, for the services of persons mentioned.
(Hansard, 1907, page 511, and Auditoi^General, 1906-7, pages 77 and 78.)

THE PAT UST.
NUM and IlMldMtee Paid p«r day ToUl Paid
J. U. Onnn, New York ' I7B t ISt.ll
W. B. RlobardB, N«w Tork.. 71 '

l.tTT.Sl

W. F. RuneU, N«w Tork M • 2,S10.S9
Oaorga T. SlawMtt, N«w Tork SO 504.S9
KtBBtth SUoonM', Montroal 40 7.0>3.04
tk R. Afton. New Tork SO 1.1S0.S4

r. H. Inland. New Tork SS S,aSl.SS

OeorB* Pare. Montreal 2S l.STS.SS

M. Pooley, New Tork SS 2.1S1.S8

H. A. Marven. New Tork 20 t,2S2.0S

A. T. Dowd. New Tork 18 1SI.41
F. B. Whlttet. New Tork IS 1,B24.SB

Sk Xettrld«e. New Tork IB M07.SB
J. J. Moorman. New Tork IB 47S.04
. B. Mnrray, New Tork IB 1.BS1.04
L. B. Come. New Tork IB B4a.Sl
H. H. Petse, New Tork 15 1.044.48
H. Hlpwell, New Tork.. .. IB S,27S.8B

J. R. Ellle. New Tork IS 748.81
H. B. Croaa. New Tork IB 78.aa

PADORO ACOOUMTS.

There were also payments to Btenographers at $9.50 per week, and to

otiiers at $3.60 per day. Notwithstanding the high rates the QovemmeBt
was charged with tiie transportation from New York to Montreal, and with

board of the expert while at Ottawa. Tlie board charges for the principal

imported bookkeepers were as follows:

For four men 88 per day each.
For Ave men 84 per day each.
Wor nine men 88 per day each.

After the bills were paid it was learned that some of these men were

boarding at private places at the moderate charge of $1 per day.

The bookkeeping job was never completed. In the absence of Mr.
Brodeur, Acting-Minister Templeman made up his mind that the aflfair

waa « waate 'and an extravagance. He said that no bookkeeper was worth
the amounts paid, and doaed out the business abruptly. W. B. Richarda,

(me of the New Yoi^ partners, testified in the Public Accounts Committee,
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that thqr vtn atoppei in tht midit of their work, whereby • great part o(
the beMfit would be loat.

The total paTineiiti to the New York firm were $48,315^1. (HuMrd,
1908, page 10516.)

BOOOUHO AXO WA8TI.
A sidelight on the condition of the Department ia afforded in the repoft

of Mr. Leland, <m» of the above accountanta, who stated tiiat he foond at

the agencies an^ brandies "no proper record of anv sort"—tiiere was no
assurance that the materials paid for were recoived—were is no &nbt what-
ever that the Department has paid for materials whidi were nerer received.

The condition of tiie Department is mnch more folly described by the

Royal Civil Service CommiasioB.

KKRWIN AB A TAVOBKO OOMTRAOTOB.
Geoige T. Merwin, who came from the Umted States a few years ago

and opened an office in Montreal, has been one of the most fortanate Gov<
emment contractors. He has dene a large bosiMss w^ the €h>venBn«it
in lighthouse ontfits, buoys and other supplies, (rf a special character, and
also in common n»chinery and ordinary goods generdfy dealt with by ^e
trade. In all these transw^tioM Merwin seems to hav« made his o«« tenns
and received very special priees. Part of his business was done in his own
name, and part in the name of F. L. Brooks & Co., represented to be a New
York roDcem of which Mr. Merwin is the Canadian partner.

The following, amoiig other amounte, have been paid to George T.
Merwin

:

Ut tW* tlS4,SSS

te 190S, In his own name tlST.SSl

In ISOS. M Brooks & Co 37.2S8 195.111
In 1906, tn hia own name 114,6*2

In 1906, as Brooks & Co 119.417 234,07»
In 1907, In his own name te,S41

In 1907, as Brooks * Co. 56.C79 lOT.tSO

Purchases continued in 1908.

In March, 1«J06, Mr. Brodeur stated that $404,308.87 had been paid

to George T. Merwin down to that time, and none of the goods had been

bought by tender (Hansard, 1906, page T67). This method of purchase

has held gcod to the present time.

A MAK WITH A PUIX.

The Department showed a remarkable preference for Mr. Merwin and
his firm. It bought from him gas buoys, spar buoys and all kinds of buoys,

fog-signalling apparatus, lanterns for lighthouses, and all sorts of apparatus.

It took from him wire and shafting, pumps, boilers, engines, cranes, der-

ricks, capstans, turning lathes, pillar shapers, hoisting engines, underfeed

stokers, lumber, cement, store holders, planing machines, ropes, smokestacks,

drilling madiine, and general hardware, all without tender, at any price

the contractor demanded.
Undoubtedly a large line of merchandise bought from Merwin withost

tender could ha/e been obtained in the open market anywhere in Canrfa
at much lower prices.

STRUGGLE TO OKI THE FACTS.

During the Session of 1906 members charged that on standard articles

the Department was paying Merwin from twenty-five to one hundred per

cent, above the real value. These charges were supported by price lists and
letters from manufacturers and dealers.
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Hmm ckttgN tk0 MlMJrtw of IfariM oMUradicted, kit vwy UtOs !»•

loffDatiMi ooaM be got fn«i him.

Mr. Menria, tinMMaed by the Pablie AeocNUiti Comuttee, abeolntdy

refiued to diicloee the meniifietareri price of the trtietei la qaeetiMi. He
wu sapporte<I by Mr. Fieldiac and otbiir niaieten in hie rrfnML Govern-

neat eiipportna m ikm •oouBittee beeked up the contractor at erory etage.

OovcfBBMBt eapportne is Ute HoiMe dcnonneed 1^ OnMdtion durgee.

For wteka OppoRitkm manbem of the PaUie Aeomate Committee etrog^ed

witii the ofllom rf the Depnteent end trith Mr. Menrin to obtain a etaie-

it of the current price at ^ articles, aad Ifbored in the Hoote to get

decent explnnet^on of the traneactione.

A PABTUL DISOLOStm.

At length it was aecertained tiiat Mr. Merwin had bongfat certain en-

gine«, bmlen, pampe and other common madiinery from William* ft Wileon,

a M<»itreal fiim regalarly handling these articles. Mr. Wilscm of this firm

was '^npd as a Witney's. Before he reached the stand he was seen bj Mr.
Meruin, and when questioned he declined to give the prices Merwin paid

hi'ii, unless Micwin should consent. Once more the Government supporters

in the C<mtmittee stood out for suppreasion. Bnt Mr. Northmp, who was
conducting the examination, announced his intention of appealing to the

House and making the afFair a matter of record. In the end, Mr. Merwin
aad his associates surrendered, and Mr. Wilson's story was told. His evi-

dence covered a list of 15 arttclps sold by him to George T. Merwin's firm

and forwarded direct to the Marine and Fisheries Department. The follow*

ing table gives the price at which these articles were bou^t by Mr. Merwin
and the price which the Government paid to him :

TlIE TABLE OF PROnTS.

Mor.vln GovemnMnt Iferwin's P«r
paid paid Proflt Cent.

Wilson. Merwin.
1 Hendcy Norton lathe, etc. } MS.OO H.tBO.OS $2S5.00 2«
1 Underwrtten* pump l.OM.M 1.BU.M S2S.00 51

t Underfeed atokera l.SSO.OO S.UO.et STO.oe 16

1 Tubular boiler «0.00 t7S.OO 31S.00 48

1 Sturtevant engine 335.00 MO.M 62C.00 187

1 Sturtevant engine IS&.OO BEO.OO 284.60 107

1 Beaty hoisting enaln« .. .. 770.00 1,1««.«0 130.00 43

1 Rendey pillar thaper .... 505.00 800. AO 2B6.00 58

1 Steel derrick 756.70 l.?50.00 4t8.30 65

1 MCO. * G. boiler CSO.OO •75.00 SIS. 00 4S

1 CapsUn SSO.eo UO.OO 2S0.00 67

1 Sturtevant engine 262. BO 650.00 217.50 10»

1 O. * 8. boiler 576.00 362.50 277.50 48

1 Travelling crane 1,640.00 2,500.00 360.00 62

Bltamastic solution 1.120.00 1.500.00 SCO.00 34

Total $11,838.70 318,<}T2.50 $6,173.80 53

A DROP IN THE BTCKBT.

This little bill of goods should be studied carefully. Tt shows that on

a list of articles such as are bought and sold every day, in every city of

Canada, the prices of which could be ascertained from agents in Ottp^'a or

by telephtme to the jobbing firm or the manufacturers, the Bepartmen! paid

Merwin from 27 to 187 per cent, above the jobbers' price. The good«= could



have been bou^t by the Deptitment firom the maken at the Mine prk«

thttt the Montreal houae paid.

But thia $18jm affair k a trifle oat of the whole tranaactiooa whidi

the Qovenunent haa had with Mr. Merwin and hia aaiociatea. It is a matter

of arithmetic how mnch ont of that tiiTee^aartefa of a million went into

the pocket of the piddlonan, aianming the proportion of rake-off to be th.)

WHn> RE HAS Uia UAXV OHAVOB.

There is every reason to believe that the profit would be mnch greater

on articles which Merwin claimed to be spedaltiea of hia own than on thone

whidi are handled every day in the remlar coarse of trade by all dealers.

If ^ middleman is able to maka aa high aa 187 per cent on an ordinary

engine, soeh aa is bon^t and sold every day in sight <rf the Department,

how mnch does he make on his imported gas-buoys, hia store-holders and

his lighthouse equipments? Take, for inntsnce, the following list from the

laat report printed. (Auditor-Gaieral's Report, 1907, pages P. 9.5 and 98.) :

1« IniMs at tn»M eaeh » <•••?

IS iMiMa at 130.00 each •
"•••'»

naahlicbt for Bambro ".»2?
rUahlUtht for Cap* Bauld »s;««

FlaahUfht for Seal Island »' «•«

FlariiUclit for «ii»pisan «.6"

B Lantama '-^^^

S Lantema 1"«
B Lantama *•""

WI*nt««.
J^.««U Laatmu »-•*?• „

Sli boor slaaaaa *^*-"'

If Mr. Merwin oon coUect from a department $960 for an ordinary

engine orderad bj him from the jobber at )|38fi, what percentage of profit

woold satisfy him for his speeialtiea in lantoma, flash lights and knses?

The profits are probably several hundred per cent, on these.

OOKTBADICTOBT BXPLAKATIOK8.

The same officer who certifiwl to the accounts and prices of the engines,

derri^ and other common machinery, settled the price of the lanterns

ftafh lights and other apparatus, and doubtless did it with similar generosity.

This technical officer told the Public Accounts Committee that he cer-

tified to the price of the underfeed stokers bttnuse, after consultation with

one Mr. Wiser, he concludal the price was reasonable. He testified that

the price of the Sturtcvant engines appearwl to him at the time to b« rea-

sonable. He stated further, that he based the price on the hoisting engine

on what was paid for one on the steamer " Scout." Such was the statement

made in 1»06 in the Public A^vounts Committee.

Rut when this officer was called before Juiljre Cassels in his investigation

•f the Marine Department, he testified that he hail objected to the price at

tiie time the articles were bought, and that the Minister had ordered him

to pay it.
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TBI TPOVICTOl.

How MvwIb

m
BMgbt A Tng, RtBtid Bir to OovmnitBt and Got
Hv Cott BMk ia Ftvt Months.

An enmpi* of Am OomniMiit'i daaiufi vith Itewin wm fanUMd
fa th« PuMIe AflMuti OonmittM fa 1W7. (Itoport for ICudi JL April
• tk and Jnn* M.) '

W. H. Kobk^ AMiitaat CoauniMioiMr of Ll|^ti, taiiiflvi ftmi tto Gov*
eminent Ud ben cnp^jfag tbe tog «« BMtm," poyfag fSO « day, fht ovnor
fumMhfag tiie crev and ifadfag ofoiTtlifaf. On Jont SUt, 1905, • ooBtimdWM Bud« by tho Deportment with Oeoigo T. Merwin, Mff^nr hk tu
\ictor" for lightbouN and bnoy Mrrioo. The '^Beom"wMthONBpoD

diachaifed, thoB|^ the wm ofterwaida ro^ofogod.
Mr. Morwfa WM jMid $25 per day, faefadfag Snndoyi, for the •• Victor,"

the Government fninidiim the crew and paywg all ezpMNi. Tho pay ran
for 147 dayi, Mr. Merwfa laoefTfag $3,676.

/*r ^'? o' crew and other ezpenMa brought the oort np to $6,951.85.
(Xoble'i eridence, page 24.)

For the "Beater " the coet wonld have bem for tlM Mme tfaio N,410.

OTHXB VATOia TO HSIWIK.

Mr. Noble tartiiied (page 25) that the " Beaver " was more aoaworthy,UTO having better engfaes, and wm not eo old. He iwoiv that the^ !? li^ boat, and that he would conaider her better value.

* u
™>^tne Victor" wh engaged aha wm out of imair. She wm

token to the Government worki and repaired at Government ezpenae. ao

Sltil trtgth.*
**"* *****" ^ ^ *^'* °' ^""^ tha tog did not go towork

On the 1st of November, Asn'stant Commisdoner Noble, who is in
Charge of the work at that point, gave notice that the "Victor" would not
be reqinred longer and her charter term was out Mr. Merwin communicated

r^ '/^ " "P*"*""!*' «id Noble was ordered to continue the «Aarter

uTl^ i'^ ^''°^'- '^^® ""^ *"«' discharged and the vessel tied up.
but stiU tfie rent went on. She wm stopped for repairs during the summer
and the Government paid for that.

80 HE OOT THK BOAT lOE KOTHINO.

The remnfnder of the story is that Merwin had bought the tuir iust
Iwfore he had chartered her to the Government, and he sold her wh«i the
charter ran out. Mr. A. W. Stevenson, in whose name the tug wm bought
lor Jtterwm, testified that the price paid wm either $3,700 or $3,800

If tfie price was $3,700, Mer.in got back from the Government' in five
months the whole purchase price less $26. If it wm $3,800, he got $125
lees than the full price, and his tug seems to have been returned to him inmuch better condition than when he boi^rht her.



TBI MMCnC

OraiM Whidi Cotk s Qoartv of ft MUlioii—An AitimMiim Bin

of SuffUii sad ft Pftrtiftl latwtifftlioii.

TIm ttninflr "Aictfe" wm boo^t Meond-huid hj the Ck>T«nuiiMii of

OnadA ia 1908 from Gamnj. fib* ii • woodn ?«m1, 16fi fMt long.

761 tona ImidtB. Th* eoatnet priot wm $70,000. Sha arrivad afc Quebec,

JuM 14th, 1904, aeoompUahinff tba mjrafa in 86 dayi, or a 4 knot gait.

RapaiiB made at Leria and aztfaa bron|^t tba ooat vp to 188,111.

uwrni noroamow or $10,500 a tbab.

Tba Oovermnent propoaad aanding tba ^Aretk" to aiploit the coaet

of Hndaon Bay and ottiar NorthMn waiaia to afflnn and anforoe Canadian

Iniiadietion. In 1908 Mr. Sifton prbataly notillad Mr. Borden of thia

intntion, reqncating bim to Menre tba liknca of our own frienda in tba

Honae aa it waa an affair of intematitmal aigni&sanoa. Mr. Sifton gave

tbr following eatiinata of ooat:
" Oatilde 9t the ohuttrta* of the rtMnwr Md the waaM of th« er«w and the

" coal tha ooet waa to ba par month, for a aarcaon tlOO, for a photographar I7>, and
•* tor matntananea tTO* a month—a total of MTI par month, or tlO.toe a yaar. Tha
*< waaaa of tha erow wara aatlmatad at ll.SOO a month and tha nnmbar of persona

to be takan on board waa to ba U."

aroBT or thi jacnt.

Tbe "Arctic " uiled from Quebec, September 17th, 1904, and waa back

in a little OTer a year, not baring inoceeded in getting as far u Port

Chordiill, the ordinary deatination of Hudson Bay trading vessels. She dis*

covered nothing, did no patrol work, and acccnnplished no useful purpose.

Sailing S^tember 17th, the "Arctic " arrived at Port Burwell. Ungava
Bay, October let, and at Fullerton, October 16Ui. Fullerton is where Mr.

Low of tike Oecdogical Snrr^ bad wintered with the " Neptune " the pre-

vioua year. Hare tiie "Arctic" apent a comfortable winter in Company
with tiia United Statea whaler " Era " and a number of Esquimaux, men
and WQinen, estimated at thirty to one hundred, who come to stay with the

ships and bAve a good time. The steward of the "Arctic " gave interrsting

testimony of tbe entertainments given to tbe natives and of the relations

establisbed between them and l^e ship's company.

Frmn October to July the "Arctic " was at Fullerton. Then she tried

to go to Churchill, but broke her propeller. A new one was fitted, " when
" it was found that tlie slot to take the shaft key was not cut in the proper

"place.** A propeller from Qermany was substituted and the ship pro-

ceeded to Erik Cove.

Superintendent Moodie, in command of the expedition, Ray.*. "With a
"good steamer, with plenty of power, there will be no difficulty in forcing
" a passage through almost any of the ice encountered and no danger." But
the "Arctic" was not that kind of a ship.

By tiie 18th of July the ship arrived at a place visited and described

the previous year by Mr. Low. The ship had to do somethinfr to distinguish

the Ctovemment, so the place waa christened Prefontaine Harbour, and the

neighboring headland Cape Lanrier. Both names were given with expen-

diture of champagne.

87





MKROCOPT MKXUTION TBT OMIT

(ANSI and ISO TEST CHART No. 2)

/APPLIED IN/MGE
'653 East Main SIrnt

(716) 482 - 0300 - Phon.
(716) 288- 5989 -FoK



For a month the "Arctic" lingered about these well-known waters,
anxiously awaiting a relief boat to bring more supplies.

HOMEWARD FOB |<OBE SUPPLIES.

By the middle of August the "Arctic" got back to Ungava Bay on
the Labrador coast. There she had a good time with the British flagship

and a Newfoundland steamer, exchanging entertainments and hospitalities.

Fearing that the supply ship had gone by, the "Arctic" turned back for

Prefontaine Harbonr, but finding bad weather and ice returned to Burwell.
She arrived at Quebec after an absence of over a year, having made a

voyage which an ordinary Hudson's Bay steamer would have accomplished
in a few weeks, and performed no service of value.

The ship's company numbered 47. There was a superintendent with
his secretary, an inspector, a sergeant, two corporals, and six constables of
the Northwest Mounted Police, a historian, a photographer, captain, phy-
sician, two mates, two engineers, electrician, boatswain, purser, quarter-master,
chief steward, second steward, three waiters, cabin boy, cook, assistant cook,
carpenter, lamp trimmer, two oilers, two firemen and eight seamen. The
party ran largely to oflBcers, cooks, stewards and waiters.

SUPPLIES BOUGHT WITHOUT TENDEB.

As th\i "Arctic" had arrived from Germany in June, and did not sail

for the north until September, ample time Was given to purchase by tender
the supplies required. But no competition was wanted. An extraordinary
bill of supplies was made out and favored dealers furnished the goods.
Anyone who had friends in authority and wished to unload additional sup-
plies upon the "Arctic" was given a chance, and the goods were taken at
his own price.

Here is part of the clothing supplied for the "Arctic's" crew of 34
men, the members of the police force having been otherwise provided for.

(A. G. Report, 1905, pages P. 194-199) :

SOME OF THE CLOTHES.
1 Uniform at I 35.00

25 Uniforms at $30.00 750.00
12 Uniforms at 8.00 9S.00
12 White coats at 1.60 18.00
80 Suits blue pilot cloth at 19.00 1.520.00
40 Camel hair suits at '9.80 792.00
23 Overcoats at 25.00 576!oO
40 Pur coats at 30.00 1,200.00
40 Fur pants at 22.00 880.00
40 Coats fur lined at 15.00 600.00
40 Ulsters, rubber with hoods at 14.00 560.00
80 011 coats at 1.26 10(j!oO
80 OH pants at 1.25 100.00
40 Jackets, with hoods at 5.50 220.00
40 Jaclcets, leather at 10.75 43o!oO
80 dozen shirts and drawers at 16.50 l,S2o!oO
7 dosen shirts at 12.56 87!60

40 Camel hair shirts at 2.50 10o!oO
10 dozen wool undershirts at 14.50 145.00
20 dozen navy twilled and plain over shirts at $15 300 ! 00
10 dozen navr knitted guernseys at 18.00 18o!oo
6% dozen pyjamas at 18.00 120.00
7 dosen drawers at 8,75 61 2S

40 Pants, fur lined at 3.60 14o!oO

$10,129.76
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The assortment of boots, socks and mittens includes the following.—

80 pair. o« rubbwr boot, at 14.90, leu 30 % dl.count
,,„ „„

40 pairs of rieepta* oclw. at 18.25 "»•"»

84 doicn soeln at $8 ,«hnn
40 pair moose, htsh top socks at 84. each ""•""

40 pairs of mltU at 82
°"""

40 pairs of mitts at 88 am no
80 pairs of moccasins at 85 onnn
Seamen's bluchers, 40 pairs at 82.25 »»•""

10 doz. pairs gloves at 84.25 a doz ,,«««
40 pairs of Esquimaux skin boots at 8425 a pair

llaMt
120 pairs of buckskin mitts at 84.50 a pair IImm
120 pairs of shooting gloves at 4.72 a pair .. ,,«'««
40 pairs of arctic boots at 85.50 a pair

,n'nft
40 pairs of slippers at 81.50 a pair ..

i «non
25 sleeping bags at 870 each 'ilinn
3 sleeping bags at 200 each !«««
8 sleeping bags at 225 each onnnoo

80 sleeping bags at 25 each • ^^l""""" „-

The clothing bill, as reported by the Minister of ilarme, was $23/J98.76,

making $700 each for the 34 men to be provided for by that Department.

(Hansard, 1906, page 6519.)

PLENTY OF SMOKE AT A HIGH PRICE.

The smoking account includes the following, bought from G. E. Amyot

& Fils, Quebec:
600 Havana cigars at lOc *

5a'2S
4,000 Laurler cigars at 865 :?;„„
Toronto D.C.C. cigars 4,000 at 835 linn
5,000 cigarettes 50.00

Tobacco, T. & B. smoking, 805 lbs. at »5c '**'I«
Tobacco, chiwing. 200 lbs. at 78c

II, Jl
Excise dues on 1005 at 89c

^\'ln
Express charges "'"
400 pipes 126.99

From C. Gratton & Co., Montreal,

Tobacco, 528 Ibs". at 53c., and 272 lbs. at 60c 443.04

Prom Rock City Tobacco Co. Quebec.

Tobacco, navy, chewing and smoking, 600 lbs. at 76c .. 8466.00

Tobacco, navy, chewing, 144 lbs. at S9c 99.36

Tobacco, navy, smokln?, extra, 342 lbs. at 80& 273.60

Tobacco, navy cut, 192 lbs. at 75c 144.00

Tobacco, Wlgwam,\ 70 lbs., at 8100 70.00

Tobacco, Poker, 60 lbs. at $1.00 60.00

Cartage 3. 00

81.095.96

PART OF. THE LIQITOE BII-I'.

From U. Patry, Quebec 10 cases Champagne 8320.00

From Plouffe & Co., Ottawa,

5 cases Port
^^-^J

5 cases Salsaparlelle •• 40.00

42 gals. Spirits 179.82

From Lawrence A. Wilson, Montreal.

Old Jamaica Hum, 108% gals 484.00

Alcohol, 110 gals *'®i:
Cognac. 5 oases ^^'^^
Burmesta, fine old crusted Port vintage of 187«, 6 ca)«P8, . .. fifi.OO

From Lvman & Sons, Montreal.

Alcohol, 20 gals **"*]??

Brandy, 5 cases **> "*

Jamaica rum, 5 gals
^^'nn.

Sherry wine, 15 gals «0.00
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801CB THINGS TO EAT.

ing to Swl^n^et'oirinHt^nS.^'^ *^^"«^ '^' P™"''"" bilk, amount-

They\r^ZTJtoTi^^L^^^^ p"''"'^'?? *" *^« ^iniBter's statement,

at Da/e P 194 1 r / ^ Auditor-General's Report for 1905, beginning

^ri^coni^r.fii^fT''^'''^ ^ $12,931.13, purchased from' one Mon^real nrm, contains the following among manv other items-
Prewrved frult«, 65 cases at $3.50 .

.

" '

.
California ralalns, 1,250 lbs. at 8 cts

»227.50
Concentrated extracts. 100 bottles at M.W J?"""French sardines. 50 cases at $15

^^"•<*"

Red currant jelly. 1,020 lbs. at 10 cents
^•'''•'*''

IMarmalade, 300 tins at 75c "2. DO .

Walnuts 236 lbs. at 1314c. 225.00
Almonds, 213 lbs. at 13Uc ^^-^^
Filberts, 100 lbs. at 10c. 28.76
Canned fruits 242H dox I'O-OO

•• •• 424.40

gm IctfnT^r^o:: ^Tl'^^^^r' ^^ ^-'"'- ".^-.30

With other huge purchases at fancy prices.
"'^^

A HESTHICTED INQUIBY.

:^tthT:?eyr;;x:ri^^ !^i%ror^^rr"^^^^^ -^^^^
excessive prices nre?e co^nTotirnAJH „? i

*'*^
l^^ '^^^ *°*^ ^^^^^^^

cials of the DepIrSient ^ ^ ^
'

''''^ '^'""'"'^ "^^"^^^^ ^«°«^^«^ by offi-

Mr. Borden moved in amendment that:

the extndrrfof ^ub^'l'^"Kr\Vtrn ^' JJ"
'"''^'•^ ">*° *"<> '"^"""^'e

from and after the 30th day of June 1902 Tn^
^^^P-^^"'

t'
^""'*' """ Fisheries

gularltles. Improvidence, w maladiSinls'rkfion V= ""'l*
^^''^^^'' *"" *»"'^««. "-r-

of such expenditure, and whTther T^v n«t.r *'*^«, "^"^n »•• occurred In rpspect
said department havrSroflted th^ebv *3" ^^^1°'^*' '" °'" ^"•"'^ted with the
should be provided In respect of th»»V hu^'*'^'" ""^ additional safeguards
said department and t"o 7ZVt\tXr^:utl'lZr!L^^'''' """^^ *" ^ •>- ^'^^

INVESTIGATION BUHKED.

"as uSused and fW .? \ the goods reported now on board the "Arctic"
tSL «w ' Ta ?** *bey be at liberty to examine such goods as thevTi fit

"

"SldX^t ett'r r'To SSL?r'" ^^ f ''' diffSent%:i'on
"this commit™ "*'"* ^°' inspection and examination hv

.he .h,p sw„. Wo. «,, c.mmi..« that in r.^.rdVfhr'^e"paKT
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roppliM they had no personal knowledge, but certified as ordered by their
rapoiors. The majoritj also refused an examination of the goods remain-
ing to ascertain the quality. It was impossible to learn whether the special
clothing and sleeping bags, etc., were charged at the right price, or two or
three times the correct price, without inspecting the articles, Riid this was
not permitted. The majority also refused to hear the evidence of an expert
from the establishment of William Davies Co., Limited, of Toronto, who
''•^-j V V-*

*** *e8tify the price for which pemmican could have been pro-
vided by his firm, and also refused to refer to the House the resolution for
these further examinations.

As might be expected, the majority of the Committee reported that
there was very little wrong. Their report was brief and general, and only
found fault with the price of tobacco.

IHE MINORITY BEPOHT.

The report of the minority signed by Messrs. Stockton, Bergeron. Bennett
and Northrup was much more full and complete. It set forth among other
things that though $125,000 worth of supplies were purchased from various
firms,

^
"No tenders were Invited nor prices even asked for from any Arm, nor was

» w." ">y Imitation as to price except that the favored tenderers were Informed by
u V v^"*?ll"* *^® *"**' '^'" ^^^ department that the supplies were to be fur-nished at the usual market price, and this, althou^ the vessel did not sail within
• two months of the sending of the said letter."

Though Cap. Bemier was promised that the " Neptune " would be sent
^ch year with relief stores, he was instructed to send in requisitions for
three years' supply.

••TiZ^^ ^*7'"»'^
'';t' !2 '1'' "^"'""lon. which was based not on a trip to Hudson

..^^,.- *f '^^°f'h Pole-these requisitions were wantonly and extravagantly
increaseu oy t!ii olilclalB of the Department."

The report proceeds:

NO RESTRAINT ON PURCHASE.

" No one seems to have exercised a control or displayed any Interest In the

HfiA*/. *" ,
PUfchases or the determination of prices. The expenditure of over

«2,000 for clothing, of $7,691.11 for an electric llghtlnir plant whose power was tobe furnished by the engines (although It was expected that the Arctic would be
i«*J^"!? - f?L°<r J"*"*

Jnonths each year), of $4,827.27 for medical supplies andappliances, of $3,500 for tobacco, cigars, cigarettes and pipes, of about $2,000 for

riS'fK*"
V"'^

i"°*
Includlnp the liberal supply thereof In the medical stores).and the purchase of seventeen dozen packs of cards, amply Justify this conclu.'.lon."

WANTON WASTE.

„ JJI*®.
*^*''«''<'e o' the purser, steward and others show that a iar^e quantityOf provisions was used In feeding the horde of Esquimaux, at one time .lumbering

aL*^ '***".? '^? ^^ *" ""• ^^° '*" ^** °'" "even months lived around the

*f^;f"
considerable quantity must also have been used for refrp^hments at the

^!n ^„rlt^ Z"^ ,**/"" fortnightly on the Arctic for the Esquimaux men andwomen during the winter spent at FuIIerton.
A comparison, too, of the Inventory of medical stores taken on beard with that

it^*«fS^ i^ '*I"!?t'''
'^"^^ **•*' *"*'^'" * ''^'••fe Quantity of speclflc medicines

^.^r:^^LV'^^}^''
^^

^.t?"
«t'"»«ted, or that an Investigation should bo held Intothe conduct of the expedition during the winter at Pullerton, which was refused by

n,^*. ^' "** committee. Your committee also finds that wines, cigars and
~.^^tif^

^*'"! purchased by the Department of Marine and Fisheries for thepersonal use of the officers of the Northwest Mounited Police, and were given to
tliem, but no evidence was adduced to Justify or excuse such expenditure."
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CiBELESS ACOOUNTINO.

"Freight on Um Urger contlgnment of Bovrll waa Mid by the Mctnt or th.

the same amount to the Invoice of the Bovrll Company and paid the same An
d^^JLlTt 'I?' ««"-f.<'t"«» <" the payment wa, made byV company of ^^department, but no notice waa Uken thereof and no demand tor rerayment wil
wrrefunde^d*"''

'^'"" •^'""""•" •"" '"•~"*'^ "'^ "*-*« fac.rwr^rt"; moH^

PEMMFCAN AT THBEE TIMES THE HONEST PRICE.

namely"^vHi^'nT^'"" °/ °" '\^ """'"'"' ^"^^ *"""«"* ''^""•« y"' Committee,namely, Bovrll and Pemmlcan. An expert In the game line of bnslnesa wwore that

id^ri"wn„?rH
'*"""'' *?.**"'*•' "^ ^°^^^ '^ ". equivalent, he wouW ha^ t?n,e?.ed and would have suppiled practically the same article, for $1.10 a pound! whHethe department paid J1.65 a pound for 5.900 pounds. While PemmlcanMnonliefl

neve'rlearT'if TVrlA '•^"-\"°-" «"•"'•'«»''- -meTxTert teXd th^^t Kal
evidence of Mr XXi t,,""'"*'*'*'*''

""*" ^^"^ "'''"•' ^»"<^»'- af-cordlnw to the

Sundrwere^ure^a^eH ;» Jf,?*"'*'" "!.*'"' ^''^" Company, from whom S.OOO

nh,J!ly 7 purchased at $1.25 per pound, was made of ordinary meat dried and

tSr n*»r«r *?. *^ *"* •"•"* *" Pemmlcan. your committee can only re^TThat
whonntssfmnari^d^tT" »'^»^'«,f

««»"™*rce was applied to a new p^uctton
Sven thP mTn ff '.t

" ^""^"^ •""" "^"^^ '''"'=''• J^^K'ne by the materials used asrven the mwiufacturer. waa grossly excessive. Tour committee alfo reirr't, .hf

rn^«?ert'from";!;r^,n'
"»!-'«'"'"*« ''^ ""'" '"^^ evSe of Mr V?n Bever!

100 PER CENT. PROFIT ON TOBACCO

that he purcha^Bd T A B smol^L'^riK,^?'*?" '^•" practically unchanged, and
tain Bernler tesTlfl^' thafth^ ^„^*

tobacco In plugs at «7 cents per pound. Cap.

ha^nrroW F if "S-^"^
was excessive, the majority of the CommittJhaving refused to allow this mvestigation. But in view of tlie prices paidthey feci justified in findinsr that the mere statement of ^qStHfsupphes purchased. is fn itself evidence of corruption, neSLSJcT o7 in-

JS-s^mX ^t^o::^'""''''
''''''''''' -^^^^^^^ ^^y

band' Of rH?'Tj;r4 '^V.Vl'^H^.ZrSl''^ "\1 T"'"^ "' *>« Ks,u.Manx
out Of the stores pu^h^dr 1^-1^ e^xtdl^'^ VtVUXronrrre"
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imrehaaed on a baali of feeding forty men for twelve hundred d«yt, It la obvious
that to iBcreaae this number by from 125 to 130 per cent, for six montha would
entail a consumption of morp than one-dlxth of the provisions, which would cost

fully $10,000. As no explanation was even suggested by the Department of Barina
and Fisheries, your committee regrets that Its efforts to Inquire Into the reasons
for the presence and maintenance of so many Esquimaux was prevented by the

majority of Its members, who refused to allow questions Inquiring Into the conduct
,of the members of the cxpertltlon during the winter, and their relations with tha
Esquimaux."

The last paragraph in the minority report refers to the purchase of

$',080 worth of an article called liacto-Globulin. The person who had this

to sell hunted up a member of parliament, and the result was the following

order, sent by the Deputy Minister i a letter dated August Sth, 19C4

:

" Sir,—By Instructions of the Honourable Minister of Marine and Fisheries and
on the recommendation of Mr. nervals, M.P., I have to request thr* you will foi «rard

to ' Arctic ' 16 gross of Laeto-Globulln,. No. 174, of samples sent to this department.
Tours trulv, (Signed) F. CtouKOKvu.

The goods were put on board the ship. Of the tea gross two were

disposed of in some fasliion, and the other cijiht werp Iwought back.

THE FACTS CONCEBNING PEMMICAN.

Reference is made in the minority report to the purchase of pemmican,

of which the Department bought 8,000 lbs. at $1.2"), or $10,000.

Four members of the Committee sent a telegram to J. W. Flavelle,

of Toronto, of the Wm. Davies Co., Ltd., the largest producers of meat

products in this country, asking him to testify as to the cost and value of

this article. Mr. Flavelle was unable to go, but when requested to do so,

sent the manager of the company, L. C. Van Bever. The majority refused

to take his evidence, declaring that the investigation was closed, but the fol-

lowing .statutory declaration was made and subsequently read in the House:
"In the matter of the Arctic investigation '.nto the supplies purchased for the

Arctic under reference to a special committee of the House of Commons, by a
resolution In the House of Commons, on May 18, 1906:

"I, Leon Constant Van Bever, of the City of Toronto, In the County of York.
Manager of the Canadian Departments of the AVIUiam Davies Company, Limited,

do solemnly declare:

1. I have been for a number of years engaged In the manufacture of meat
products, Including meat extracts, such as fluid beof, solid extract of beef, beef
cordial, powdered, dried and fresh beef and various products made therefrom.

2. I have examined a sample of the Pemmican (so-caMed), furnlshe'' 'or the

Arctic expeflition and the firm with which I am connected would be pleased tu

furnish to the government, or any Institution, or individual, an article similar and
equal In quality to such samples In lots of one thousand pounds or over, packed
In ten-pound tins, boxed, strapped and ready for shipping, freight prepaid, to any
railway station In Canada at the price of 3,^ cents per pound.

3. My said company have been willing to supply the same article at the «ame
price at any time during the year 1904.

And I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing it to be true and
knowing that It Is of the same force and effect as if made under oath and by virtuo
of the Canada Evidence Act, 1S93."

(Signed) L. C. "Van Bever.

Declared before me at the City of Ottawa, in the County of Carleton, this 26th
day of June, A.D. 1906.

(Signed) F. M. BtrRnntDGE.

Notary Public for Ontario

Similarly 5,000 lbs. of Bovril were bought at $1.G5 a lb., which an ex-

pert declared he would have been willing to sell at $1.10 per pound.



So Ae DqMrtment paid $10,000 for pemmican which could h»vp K«.»

i:ri6%!"'
•*''^' "^ ''''* ''^ ^**'^ whichVid h.~"'Je^?outht

-«^^* L"/"^*'.?"?? ^* 0"* °' ' ''»00 ll*^- of Bovril only 441) lb«were u«sd dunng the thirteen months ol this expedition BhoidM S fkI•npply purchased would have been «ifficient for thK Jwn^ ^ ^^^^ ^^*

PB0TI8I0KED FOB THEIB LIFETIME.

they hJIw iLnl!;
^,''',"»™\«>''t by the quantity used on the ship,

864 v^ i^, ropply of fancy biscuits, 7^ years' supply of sausage^^Js PP'y °' "'*«* chocolate, 14 years' supply of currv g vea«'

MP^S^iS *»' Lact«vG obulin, bought at the r^uest of Mr. Gervais'

The minority report was signed by Mr. Northrup. Mr Bennett \rrBerpron «id Mr. Stockton, but the ma ority of the House L a Sv vol
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A DEAL m FILES.

Shipped From France to RolUnd PrefonUine—Bought at Leit
Than Half Price and Sold at Full Price to Government

In the Auditor-Generars Report for 1905 (page 163) ttie following item
may be read:

Strubbe, Charles Montreal:—
Cool iteel bars, 4,981.56 lbs. at 45 cents.
Files, 12 dos. nat bastard $ 58.77
Plies, 18 dos 287.57
Files, 30 dos. half round .. .. 328.34
Files, 80 dos. round bastard 328 . 35
Files. 30 dos. flat half smooth 379.87
Files, 60 dos. half round, half smooth 759.84
Files, 30 dos. flat smooth 425.45
Files, 30 dos. half round smooth 425.05
Files, 30 dos. round smooth 425 35
Casln» 621

Discount 8844.65
Amount Paid 14.786.45

Practical business men in the House were curious about this. Prices
for steel files, used in saw mills and machine shops, are much lower. And
no one could understand what the Marine Department wanted of 270 dozen
files.

Inquiry in the House was useless. Finally the papers were moved for
in Committee and oflBcers were summoned. They stated that they had
neither made nor received requisitions for these goods. The oflBcer in charge
at Sorel, \vh«?re dredges are built, said a few dozen a year were bought there,
but tliat he never asked for the huge supply sent to him. It was learned
that a grefl^ part of the files purchased were piled up in these shops, and
the rest i • , 'buted among the lighthouses, much to the surprise of the
keepers. - little filing to do.

THE HISTORY BGVEALED.
Fin, . mystery was cleared up by the evidence of Mr. Busteed, a

Montreal lawyer, summoned as a witness.
In 1904 Mr. Busteed was asked by a firm in France to collect an account

for some $5,000 worth of files and steel shipped to Mr. Holland Prefontaine,
proprietor of mills at Ste. Agathe. Mr. Prefontaine had refuse<idit> take
the goods, and they were in the control of the customs broker. Thelawyer
pointed out to his clients in France that collection might be tedious and
costly. Meeting Hon. Raymond Prefontaine, then Minister of Marine,
father of Mr. Holland Prefontaine above mentioned, Mr. Busteed asked him
to assist in effecting a settlement, but the Minister declared himself to be
in no way responsible.

So the matter stwd. until ]yrr. Thiirles Stnibhe, of Montreal, told Mr.
Busteed that he would take the consignment of files and steel if the firm
m France would l^t him have the goods at half price and pav him a further
commission of $500. The shippers decided to accept this offer rather than
proeeciite the lawsuit.
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THI8 KAxa-onr was 107 vmm oknt.

Haying acquired the hardware for $8,313.45, 31 1. Stnibbe immediately
turned the goods over to the Marine Department for 4,786.45, making a
profit for hunaelf, or mne oue with whom he divided, of $2,470. or lOT
per cent

We have, therefore, Ihi^ state of affairs:
Mr. Holland Prefontainc was a«ked to pay for goods on an order

which he disputed.

The Department of MariuA at the same time made an extraordinary pur-
chase of files at an extraordinary price.

The files so purchased were the identical good* which had been shipped
to the gon of the Minister.

"^

1 J^* ?*^' f*"** '°*'» ^'^^ "*""^9 "' * friend of the Government at $500
less than half the invoice price.

This gentleman was able to turn tlicm over to the Ooremment immedi-
•teiy at more than double the price that he paid for them,

of st^fll"^*"*
°' ^*rme thns acqaired thirty or forty y«ar»' supply

THIS 18 svaatarrm.
A discove^ was made in the Public Accounts Committee from an ex*

iSmw^L? fir^^lf^x?'^"'
^°' $4,786.45 given to Mr. Stnihbe by theDepartment AJthou^h this ueque was drawn on the Bank of Montreal.

^ivJ^vr" S!''i*""°*
°""' ^^^ ^"*«™ ''<«»'. »»»«« the cheque wai

X.^%« /,; ^^^^ V^^l ^? companion, whose name was not dS
T^Jii' ^^ °°*"™ ^'"'^ ."°^ presented the cheque. The teller's figures

; ZftT w'^lT^ ^"f,P'^^v ^': ^^'^^^' ^J^« ^^^ ^ Montreal, took

?n ^ '«^^«2f^?,
payable m that ciiy, and drew the remaining $8,286.45

S-^i^v '"'^*'- ?** ^^"'"inatio". Mr. Strubbe admitted that he had

?2loo^>J![""^'°*' ?^ ^^^""''^ ^' ^°^ ^^ '*<"ring a deposit of
$2 500 to h« own account The remainder of the money he could^t or

a OMlrr° w\*ff' °°^y explanation he gave for drawing this su^

hLi^l
Strubbe would hnre a fair profit out of the $2,500 draft evenhe had to leave the remainin? $2,28fi in Ottawa.

. <=" -
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THB "MOHTCAUrS** BQUIPMBHT.

Ia,758 For TIm Ice-BrMker*s TaUtwar»—An InterMtinc Utt of
SUvw, Cttt OlAM and Cutlery—Pour DifFtrtnt OoYtnunent

PoUdM About Coglilin'i Bill.

a^*^t "¥?'*c^"'" "• wrew .twl icfl-breaker," wm built in ?«•!•»,

5^„?:i: "^ *r ' *^ *"°°^ «' ^'43» **»•• It '• »««•») stated thatdunng the fiwal ye»r 1905, the "Montcalm" wu "employed in ondearoring
CO Keep open the ice-bridge whi i tomv above the ChauditVe near Quebec."

«fh«?^SJ^"*" •J*,** i^•* ""'^^^K »« " •«=»«^^°t to the machineiy
^^

the Montabn waa delayed for three week., and during this time the in
^accumulated to an immenae depth, but the steamer broke through Kveral

"?«ll?
' T"**^ '?,

hastening the departure of the ice bridge, which
finally moved on April 20."

Prom a detailed statement by the captain, the "Montcalm" startedDemnber 83rd and completed her work April 13th. The total number of
trips was 39, the total number oi hours 208y» This was her first season.

DID LITTLK WOBK, BUT COST HIOH.
The contract price of the " Montcalm " was $865,833, and a bill of

extras broqght the price up to $871,644. After arriving on this side she
required a good many alterations. A Quebec firm was paid $4,164 to putm heatmg pipes and radiators. Another firm $5,848 for work on the engines
and boilers. A Montreal firm supplied blades to the value of $17603
There were many small bills, including $3,870 for labor at Quebec. A* the

A .,^'J^n' i^*/ ^® ''^"^^ "^"'""t the «hip was $301,833 for construction
and $37,190 for half a year's maintenance. Included in the maintenance
charge are such itema as $80 for a raccoon coat and $10 for a silver rac-
coon cap. The Captain .nentions that on April 9th the Minister of Marine
and Fisheries and a party of friends were on board, and there is an entry
in the Auditor-General's account, "Thibandeau, M., Quebec, sundry dp^-
"visions for Minister -d party, $75.15." The following interesting bill of
Silver, glassware ar ner table fittings was furnished by B. J. Coehlin
& Co., of Montreal, ua account of this strenuous ice-breaker. (It will be
found in Part P., page 84, of the Auditor-General's Report for 1904-5.)

:

B. J. Cofhiln, Montreal, ($2,758.32):—
AN TCE-BRGAKER'a OUTFIT.

'Breakfast cups and Baucem, 72 at ti A4 >><i<.»

Teas. 72 at "
" * 1! !«!k_

Ere hoop., SS at Js«oh%
Individual butters, 18 at ll tl?.^
Badges. 872 at.. .:;; [1111^
Meisens and nappies. 6 at i is pnnh

??.r<.'"s%'r-.r .V .

.•; ;.•
•• m - ,^-

p-jn-r' «"•'•<- .' :::::;: :n:;3S::
FiBh dishes, « ;. J-°"
Cover dishes (10 in.). 24 at •'

K« Moh
Cover dishes C8 in.). 24 at 2 08 eachBoats and stands. 12 at i ,, !«!k
j»*^»o ..::::;:::;: si:"""''
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l.l*
1.41

I.N

Suaa, comiROfi mount, • at . .

Flatoi <• In.). • at
PtotM^ enpa (lo In.)). « dot. at
PMaa <M In.), 71
ruttm (I In.). « doa. at
Plataa (T In.). • doa. at $!!
• diah eorara
I orvata (4 gtaaa)
I plokia framaa
I piekia fork!
I Jally fraiDM ....""
t Jam apeona
I eoSaa pota
I taapota '.' .". '[

4 wMt ittgt (eov«r<>d) '.'.
..

4 eraam )un
I auiar bowla
4 augar apoong
4 annr tonga
• aalta, plamed
to napkin rinca, plum»d t<tga .. .. .. ..
I tabia balla

fnrita atrndt
bvtteri and knivas
toaat racka
lea pltebora
trajri ,.......!.
emmb bri««he«
cr^mb tn t

'

'. \\ \\
'\

doa. e.p. d^.. ?rt. cbavrd on on» tide ....
caaea for dMa«rt
doa «.p. fl»h #ater«
caa«n for flail caters
a.p. flih carvers '.'.*.

bread platen and knives
doa. salt spoons

S

I
t
I

t
9
S
t

I

I

I

t

1

Soup tureens, 2
Cake baskets. 2 . . .

.

Afternoon tes. sugar and cream
1 cheese dishes and covers . . .

24 ntit cracker*
« spittoons
« aah trays
S« a.p. table forks
«« daasert forks
M soup spoons .

.

M dessert spoons ..

M tea spoons
« gravy spoons ."

I ao'ip ladles ..

• poppers, plumed
4 0fBh covers
74 Iherrtes. cut and badged .. .

7J ruby hock glasses
70 champagnes
75 tumblers
7§ tumblers
Case
Meat and game carvers, 3 sets ench
5 doa. tab'-- spoons
5 dos. dei>.4(>rt spoons
1 case flsh <»ar\'pr=

5 doa. knives and forks .

.

B pairs carvers
8 staela

each
»aeh
per doaan

per d«>8«n

p^ dpaan
*11I.M
1S.S»
iR.ea
t.ts

t.so
4«.M
4t.f»
M.M
M.M
B4.A0

LIS
18.M
lt.6»
i.n

iii.(«
if.ir
t.«t

•0.00
31.04
10. BO
i.oa
H.Ot
10.80
•O.OD

11.78
11.80
24.80
s.o-^

24. 28
30.2.'^

22.r.ft

ss.oo
27.00
«.00
2.75

18.80
n.oo
28.28
21.00
12.00
8. no

5.00
22.50
21.82
80.01
52.85
41.58
32. «r
14.23
3.80

30.82
21.50
18 4»
5.87
9.35
B.IO
1.8?



t>lat»* MMi tn«l»Mn nnpplva

IJ pnon* . . .

.

'"•* and Mtamp
D«Mwrt and Mup
FtAlM, 10« ..

« aiahM
Cortr 4lxh#ii, J* .

.

« bMU and atanda .".'

1* Ju««
T2 oapa and aaucara ....
ChacM Ktand and co*'»r

lea pltrhem, 3 .

.

2 tray,
2 omaia
2 pickle framea .."..'

Coffaa pot
T»a pot .

.

2 milk Juki .. ..'..

2 lUfar bowU . .
.'.

-^ruinb wiiop bruah and VraV
« Mit cfliara and < p»ppers
12 napkin ringa. plumed ....
2 fruUg Dtanda ....
2 toaat racka
t buttrrn and knlvfi .

.

2 'loa. table forka ....
2 doa. desMrt forks .

.

2 doa. soup ipoona .

.

Plih'Lii'^'" T- "• *' ^'*'"'''"« kind."ah knife and fork .

.

Braad tray and knifo
Soup ture»n and ladle
3 braaa spittoons ....
Etching plate* .

.

Caae*

Cr«w:
Table

jioim: >roDEST.
cup», eto . . .

.

fiirkx, spoon.,, knives,

Commission at T, % on $2.fiis. t;

THE COXFUSED

4.M
«.W

ttil.lS

17.41

«.n
30.

U

4.1«
1(.14

tl.M
4.M

to. 47
40.

M

4(.00
13.00
0.00
7.00
«.oo
• .06
5. SO
f.tS

18.00
0.00

3£.eo
4. so
i.75
4.50
8.00
4.50
7.58
6.?S
B.75

25.16
8.00

x-.oo
7.5U

141.10

: 31.35

DEPARTMEXT.

Champlain," brought out a note from the

ware in

A
;-rinii!pr quantiPies
'i tor-General, wlio

"I-. wlifch ai jot passenger or

the bill.

for t!l^.cSr" '"••"'''' """'"' ''"""

wanted to know:

«^nrl"
'^ «a8 customary to equip these vescarrying vessels, with silverware, cutlery et^ ' .,,«i, ,

-
. ^

'a. that whkh appears in tlve a^unt
''"' " ''' "'' ''"'°'"^'' °"*"'-«

>nL* S;?hTm^;r*s?oU'wh;S ^i'^''"''
•^"•^^•^ ''''' PO-* -d paid

«esc,on a nSionTaS made^ tiJ ?nKr "a*""''
'"''^° ^^"'^- ^arly in the

bearing on Mr CoSilS acco± tt^'^""^IFT"'-"^ '»' *»•« P«P^"

Tio right to charge rtradTDrafi iJ I'
^^ '"• ''*',^''^ ***'<^ t^"«' ^e had

I
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A OHANGBABLE DSPAttTHBITT.

1. P^ *^® **®**" concluded that Mr. CoghUn was aimply an agent of
tne Oovemment and should receive a commission without profits. The next
question was to find out what the profits were. The Anditor-General tried
in Tiun to get the onginal invoices from the Department. Finally he ob-
tained them from private sources. As the result of this investigation, Mr.
Coghlin made a refund of $1,171.87.

'

*i. X ?? £°8^1i°
*ol<l the story himself to the Committee, making it appear

that the Department was in a rare condition of panic when the Opposition
members started out to investigate these accounts.

*u * J®^?^'^
t*^®

V^^ °^ih« session the Deputy Minister of Marine announced
that he had made another discovery. He found out that Mr. Coghlin was
not an agent of the Government, but simply sold the goods to the Depart-
ment. So, after aU, he was entitled to the profits which he had been forced
to refund.

We have thus the Deparianent at first paying on demand both commis-
sion and profits; secondly, paying the profits and withholding the com-
mision; thirdly, returning the commission and demanding a refund of the
profits, and finally, concluding that the previous decisions were wrong.

NOT MUCH OF AN ICE-BREAKER.

1.- i" *^° f"l' "?''? *^^°' *^ " Montcalm " has spent a large part of

S^L «°* ^® ^°?"Jf^' .*°^ ^^'^ ^P*'"" '''"s h«^e been enormous But her

!Sl ii'*''
« probably m good order, and she seems to be employed occa-

sionally on political and official excursions.

^«JS ft***lf"''L'''
this ship for purchase, repairs and maintenance is

given by the Minister as follows. (Hansard, 1908, page 8441.)

:

iK:: :: :: .::: ;• :: ;; 'lllillit1906 7 (9 n,o„th»)
;. 'H^HH"""''

91.921.80

'^*"*' mTiI^
Of this the contract price was $265,233.32

!^??J"
''*^« «*"'* 119,377.22

Furnishings
g g53 jgAnd the remainder for maintenance.

• A ^^A ?"^ '^*^' ^^^^' *^^ " Montcalm " having spent the whole winterm dry dock in consequence of having run against a rock in November, 1907,
was making her first trip before going out to break iie for the summer, she
got into collision at Quebec and afterwards sunk. She will probably be
ready for ice-breaking at the close of the winter of 1909, with another charge
of $100,000 against her. The House had voted $61,447 for repairs in conse-
quence of her last accident

So, if the "Montcabn" ice-breaker has not brcAen much ice, she has
broken large holes into the Dominion Treasury, and has enabled a number
of Ministers and tiieir friends to pass certain luxurious hours around her
well furnished table.
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THE WILLSOK COKTRACTS.

Royal Commission Reports That Willson Ruled the Department
Which Paid Him a Million Dollars-Chief Engineer BeUeves
There Was Collusion And That The Contractor Arranged
Government Appointments—Auditor -General's Low
Opinion of Marine Department Certificates Is Sup-

ported by Officer Noble's Testimony.

BOT, ^H ^^P*^e»t has done large business with Mr. T. L. Wm
r^™f. 7'i°.J'"'«T''

°*™^ """^ **"»* of *« International Marine Siena

?°Zl^l !!?
"' ^^' ?^<^^^, ^^'^^^' Company, which are his ereatioifollowing are payments made to these contractors:

The

Date
1M2-0S .. ..

lMS-04 .. ..

1M4-06 .. ..

U06-M .. ..

lt06-07 .. ..

l>07-08 .. ..

Grand Total

To Willson

$192,600
336.106

14,343

1542,947

Carbide Co.

$ 617
5.464

11,088

14,346

19,117

23,431

$74,063

Signal Co.

238,284

198,921

Total
617

6,464

203,688

360.461

271,743

222,352

$437,206 $1,064,215

THE CARBIDE CONTRACTS.

onri h!"^
^"'^^ Department biys carbide from Mr. Willson for the light

tTe Ottir^'l:-. ^n
^' ^'^°°'°^ "^ t^'^ ^'>°*™«t Mr. Willson organ^f^the Ottawa Carbide Company. The transactions of this concern with the

BL7n™"tt:^ Tt"**"y 'j^^""^^ ^^ ««>«^ ConunissleTFyshe ^J
cSs JudJT/.?'*^

«!°'=«™>°g them were bTought out by Commissioner

of^Vrine tfboW
^"^^^"^'' ^'''''^' ^^o was appointed by the Minister

wJ wn? ^ V^^""^ i"^"'^ ^"to th*^ Marine Department.
Mr. Willson testified before the Commissioner that when he or-anized

S'hi^'^C/ »^Vti°'^,«^«'000
worth of stock for himself as S vd^

In a^^±. t^'^ ^^^^''' *^^'^^^ ^ '^'' l-^t^ Hon. James Sutherland,then a member without office in the Government, with which the comoanv

TthtT*™?*"'-
Mj. Willson's statement was that this st^ck was auJSS

O^iiL^oJf^" ^^\ '° tfie concern. How far the prospects of profit frtwnGovernment contracts would be an inducement to these^d other investors

^iS K "?^*^ A'^fe^V*^' "^^* *»' ^' f^* that over $75,000 iai b^nreceived by the Carbide Company from that source.

A MILLION DOLLAR CONTRACT.

»^°* ^^' y*"'**°> richest contract with the Government is for automaticac^lene gas buoys, for which the carbide is used. For these, Mr. WillsonBod his International Marine Signal Company received, down to the end
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SLJL^' ^^*'- •!»^/l»2- Th« i°"n i>'"ine8s began in 1904-5, and thecontractor organized hw company in 1906-7. Mr. WiUson received over half

the ielrt tio.
^**" """^ *"" ''""P""^ °*"^'y *""•' * ™'"'°° ^°

»K«oJI*^ ^*'v'
^<>'»'^'88ioner8 made a close examination of the records ofthese transactions and found ground for stem censure. Their review isgrven on pages 133 to 170, and 803 to 275 of the report. They J^LTouthatthe firs sample was offered for test in August, 1904, and that it re-quired only two months for the Department to decide to adopt these buoys

i« «7°^n
expensive and serviceable apparatus then in use. No less than

46 of W.Ihons buoys, costing $148,000, were ordered off-hand, and Mr
Willaon was allowed to import material free of duty. Concerning this the
Hoyal Commissioners say:

e "^

«..irj.'\ "^1 *
f"**.!

"««"«>'''» 'Of Mr. WllUon and with the splendid facilities

!!it tt^.**? ^l"l,^^
*"* Department he has not been elow to better if Tt mayseem that in talcing up with the new idea so largely and so suddenly the iJenaS

Se« I^no^rt^lll^^'''' *?" /•?^«"*>* """^^^ ^y^^ clrcum.t';in«..^^rw

wnsWe^tZ i^..M I ^ l"'"'^*
developmeat all at once and the most ordinaryeonsideration would seem to have called for more caution."

HOW MR. WILLSON BOSSED THE DEPARTMENT.

...». ^",*'if v'"^
*^*' discussion, the Commissioners suggestively observed that•* the Light branch of the Department has within th« i».f tw'

""wrvea mat
be almost entirely bound up wlth"a private concern fn Otta^^^^^

iZ^tir^^""'
^'^"^ ^'""'""^ °' -*•"=»• Mf- T- ^- W.nsoTrj^r«Mr„t*and'S

».« ^^r""
''''*'^'=^"-? the first contract the Royal Commission follows upthe dealings, observmg that by March, 1905, the Commissioner of Light.

and ••15^med^he whn'?!'""*"*.
"'' ^**'' Profee-ive ideas in regard to these buoys."

«no« iJ^™ K ?]!
^^"""^ appropriation, amounting to J380.000 invested atSi al" be dE T^X ''Prvarently having considered beforehand where Theynuuia all oe placed or If they v/ere really required."

•Q^nn^®
officer recommended the purchase of two at $15,000 each, 30 at

fhl ? /fu : ^."'^.^•V^t ^^'^^ each. The Royal Commission comments on
the fact that Contractor Willson had, hv October 10th, so far obtained control

«PS-l'L?'''"i?°"t*^** ^C^.™** ^"^^ ^ t^« »g^°t of tl^e Marine and
^Fisheries Department at Halifax in a style pretty much as if the latter
were an employee of his own" (page 155). The Commissioners charge

that the order for $360,000 for buoys was rushed in without authority of
Council, and they point out that while the Ottawa authorities were always
satisfied, the local ofTicers and sea-captains who had to deal with these buoVs
were continually pointing out defects. The Captain of the « Lady Laurier "
protested agamst the large buoys as not practicable, saying, "that the smaller
size would be quite suitable." The Royal Commission savs that the Depart-
ment pretended to think," and the Commissioners "affected to believe"
that the Captain s objection arose from his lack of gear to handle the buoys.

A PACIFIC "dumping OHOUND."
The correspondence quoted by the Royal Commission thows that local

^ents East and West were imploring the Department not to send so many
of the Willson buoys, aa they had no room to store them. The Britiah
Columbia agent hoped " no more buoys would be shipped to the coast until
we are in a position to place them." At one time the Victoria agent had

nx of Willson's gas beacons and four buoys on the wharf, and only one
•teamer to handle them. He begged pathetically that no more would be
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^- .i? ^V^ ^7" l'*^ *^« ConmiMMoner tpld him that nine more bM.
«j. were about to be forwarded, and in another three month. orfe^wSl

^SS5J^t« ''J^!i.^T°A"^*'°*'" "»y' ""^^ Department is evidentiydJ^
« wEfol^ ""t^?*.?- ^- 'Ti'y *^ dnmping'ground for all the tao«

190«^n/«5® "^ '*^^*". '*" '**' * '^'^^^O WiUeon buoy bougU, in Angust

was then returned to the same manufacturer, who had secured an order i«Brazil for a buoy of that kind and had none to fill it. SoTm w'nin^request the Department took in its place two smaller buoCs at $5S SShand paid him the $450 difference. The Royal Commissioner' rema-
in thiflSl'Jitt." ''^. !!**"? *•' *^* **"""*' «" "»• Department to serve the ComMi»

»>,m^^'*l!^'" '^'."f

**"nt„no'' bo°™ wa« suggested. The two sn.allor buoys wei«

JwS!f XiT^'n*"
^"'^ ^'""*' *^« Government, of course, paying the

TZ^\u The Commissioners suggest that as it seemed only one buoy was

(^g« iSrifie'
"'' ''°* "^'' **"' '"'""' "^ ^*^°^ '^" ''*'«^*"

MR. WILtSON "a branch OF THE DEPARTMENT"
Commissioners F.vshe and Bazin sharplv criticize ihe Department am»

Its deputy for unqualified endorsement and recomm^ndatL of tirWilSnapparatus to the J, aval Secretary of the United States and to the BritShGovernment They say that when thes. ndorsements were given the Stpartment had in its possession reports
^

<o the CouX.^ (Paie m )

International Company at enormcus cost

The Commissioners point to a letter from Willson early in 1906, explain-
ing what style of buoys he will make for that year; "as if it depended
wholly upon himself, the Department having to take what he says." All

of which leads the Koyal Commission to conclude:

re«riL''K^'"lK*'"JL" '?"'' °^ " *"« International Marine Signal Company w^r.

fl^ur^d on"; at'th^tT*"^"*
"' ^ ''''""'*' "' '""^ D-Partment of MaXe «fi^

THIS IS A LIBER.AL VERDICT.
The language quoted was not written bv Conservatives It is thedeliberate judgment of two lifelong Liberals selected by ire GoveiJLi^to mquire into the condition of the Civil Service. One has bSTSemanager of two of the leadings banks of Canada, and is regarded aVl hShauthority on financial and business matters. He has beefa strong pS

rCf.*""'^
undoubtedly have been glad to submit a favomble^rS

S iK.^ L'' f PT'"^"^^"11°^' """^ '° Q"^'^^' ^1»« has been the ChaiiSan

«fJi%^ tT^
^'

"i o'
^'^'''''''' ""'^ ^"*« ^^^ offered the Liberal nomin-ation to the House of Commons. After Mr. Brodeur had in the Houaedenounced their report, Messrs. Fyshe and Bazin appeared before Commr
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A 8B00ND IKQOIBT.

But Mr. Brodeur complained bitterly of this report and proceeded to
appoint another Commiasioner to review it. Judge CaeseU was named aatommiMioMr. and Mr. Aylesworth gave him as counsel to prosecute the n-
quiry Mr. Watson of Toronto, a prominent Liberal lawyer who has done goodwmce for his party in other inquiries, and for assistant counsel Mr. Perron,
Ji..O., of Montreal, fonner law partner of Hon. Mr. Prefontaine, the Min-
ister under whom some of the Marine scandals occurred. This was not a
very promising organization, and from May till September it made little
progress.

'^

Yet one of the first witnesses called made some important statements
reapectang the Willson contract. Col. W. P. Anderson, Chief Engineer of
the Marine Department, has been in the public service since 1874, and Chief
Engineer since 1880. He had charge of the lighthouse equipment, buoys,
etc., down to about 1904, when this part of the service was taken from hia
control and given to a new officer called Commissioner of Lights. One of Col,
Anderson's assistants was placed in charge of this office. It was at this
time that the contracts with Mr. Willson were made.

MR. WILLSOK AND MARINE APP0INTMKNT8.
Col. Anderson testified that he was not in favor of million dollar con-

tracte with Mr. Willson. There had been no suflicient test, and much of the
F-iimt su^rceued was satisfactory.. He had reported against these wholefiale
and rapid chang^, and they could not have taken place while he remained
in charge. So, if Mr. Willson and his partners were to have their way thisawe and vigilant officer must be got out of the road. Some statements made
by Lol. Anderson were extracted from him by counsel and were evidently

^ .
'^]"}„™^".''*«°<'«- ^ questioned, he declared his firm belief that Con-

tractor Willsona influence was used with the Government to have Mr Frasei
placed in charge of this branch. While he had no proof of dishonesty on
the part of the Commissioner in the matter of these contracts, he could
not help entertaining suspicions. As the court insisted upon his giving
his opinions, he did so. though he explained that thev were not evi-
dence. They were based upon the fact that the extravagant expenditure
and the unjustifiable contracts l)egan when he himself was set aside and
Mr. Praser promoted. Contractor Willson afterwards swore that he had
nothing to do with Mr. Eraser's promotion. Of course he could not testify to
the influence exerted by important persons whom he had made partners in
some of his companies at no cost to themselves.

THE AUDITOB-OENERAL'S CONTEMPTUOUS OPINION.

T, A
^° *bi8 «o?n^'«on the evidence of two other public officers' given beforeJudge Cassels IS m point. Auditor-General Fraser was cloeelv questioned as

to his observahcns of Marine Department contracts. Mr. Eraser swore thathe considered certificates that prices were fair and jupt to be valueless when
ttey came from certain eading spending officials in the Marine Department.Hp was led to that conclusion by the Deputy Minister's acceptance of Cogh-
#

^ L L^**''^"'*!^
^'*'" *^ ice-breaker "Montcalm" (on which a refSid

of over $1,000 was afterwards made) ; by certificates of Commander Spain's
travelling expensai (of which some $800 had to be refunded in one year)
and by the remarkable transactions with the two Fog Signal companies.
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HOW OBBTIFiCATES ABK ICADK.
Mr. Noble, who hu been Aasutait Conunissioner of Lishti at Pr«K.nf*

j"!t '^ ^«ri J?^ ^u"^^^ '^'^''^ ^ "^'^^y P"c«» to be « fair and

with Mr. Merwm and other contractors the pricea for supplies delivered at

Zt the^i,?.
™^'^1''°***' ^"''^ °^ '^'^ Auditor-General, certified

ThlhJ^ T ^"^' i"*^ "™°8^ ^y ^^« Department at Ottawa."This biought down on him the wrath of the Deputy Minister ; id Ch^fCommissioner, who told him that if he continued to « antagSe" the De-

SS^o^tin^i^l,^"''
•^^".'•'^rignation. Mr. Noble says he dofiS themand continued his course, but suffered heavily in consequence and flnalivfound a young man promoted over his head. He had SXmany p3against «rtravagance at Prescott, but found no sympathy, and condudST thatt was "buttmg against a stone wall " for him to go further.

UNHAPPY BXPLANATI0N8.
Commissioner Praser, before Judge tassels, undertook to explain his

fnS'n
P*y?«°*«*« ^e^vin, stating that these bills were pai^uSr dirStinstructions from the Minister. He admitted that in the Public ZcouSlCommittee he had testified that he believed the charges fair and reasonaWeNow he refused to teke the blame any longer. As to his courL in ?rdeW

Jhnn? .f°P'
^'•- ^°^^'' ^eS'^^^y accounte that the latter knew noth n|about, the Commissioner of Lighte said that he would take the same standIf It were to be done again, to which the Judge laconically replied «Smyou would take a wrong stand." ^ repuea, uien

tI I ' ' I V-
'^^'^^'^ ^"'^ *^® Government down to last MarchThe buoys must cost him a mere fraction of what he g.fs for them. His^et

profits are probably somewL.re abort three-quarters of a million Mr Willson IS now counted one of Ottawa's wealthy mer^.
•

nr. wiii-
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CANADIAN FOG SIGNAL COMPAWY.
A Concern Which Gets Over y6oo»ooo in Five Years And Makes

1,000 Per Cent Profit.

OnW 11,887 of Hiniafd, for 1908, are following queition and answer:
Mr. Tajlor (by Mr. Bennett) aaked:

^Borw nrach aa. been paid by the Department of Marine and Pl.l.erle. to tl,wwmaa Fojr B^al Company of Toronto, in each fiscal year from 1»02 to date?j^jwer Bjr Hon. L. P Brodcur.

i|*4lj 116,600.00

llOB.g 428,298.12

II0«.7 46,900.71

<M7.a 55,015.20
' 69.648.21

rpu "I?* 'J'-'
"^' ".:: W06,462.24

alarJofli^T^n-^**?
bignal Company, of Toronto, makes a kind of fag

S« .?^1L^*
"Diaphone." The bill of 1905 includes the following, with

t slCiial pianu at tK7Kn»»„h
r t alcnal plants at «'IbS !ffh
' I altnal plant at JkIoo

X algnal plant at "/-""
» alfnal plant, at tsoVo ...h

*
tt alrnal plants at MC !^oh

> 1 alcnal plant at 8825
t 1 alcnal plant at I'Hl

> alcnal planta at «%Ro„.h
1 alcnal plant at «*«n
1 alcnal plant at ..W [^

«*^J

-«#„?"
the Attorney-General's Report for 1906 there is an account for sub-

rtituting 21 low pressure for high pressure Diaphones an.l for four or fivenew plante. In 1907 there were bills for three substitutions and twelve new
plants, one of which cost $12,500.

Judge Cassels made a little inquiry into this contract. The secretary

? ..®«^"P"°y testified that instruments sold to the Government for $4,000
to $6,000 cost the producer $400 to $450 each. Mr. Northy, the head of
Oie company, admitted that he was selling diaphones at ten times what they
cost him. He had no other customer than the Government, and ap the Can-
adian Government had given him a patent he had a monopoly. No capital
was required as he had no plant but has the diaphones manufactured bv
contact. He could not, or would not, tell the amount of money made out
of these Government contracts, bui the Judge was able to partly figure it out
from the secretary's statement. When the Cassels' Commission adjourned
to June this mquiry had not been completed, but with the information before
nim Judge assels expressed a few opinions.

In Judge Cassels' view, if the Government gave the contractors a patent
for diaphones, «f which the Government was to be the only purchaser the
price should have been limited. On sales which gave a net profit of $150 000
the contractor should only have been allowed $25,000. That is to say 'the
eontractor should have been allowed onlv 170 per cent, profit instead of
ometbmg over 1,000 per cent

This seems to be a reasonable view, but it was not the opinion of the
Marine Department, which has paid five or six times the amount to the
Canadian Fog Signal Company, that the Commissioner considers just.
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PATRONAGE PRICES.

Small Transactions Are Like Large Ones.

«««J^\-^^.L ?i"'.
®*"'** Commi»8ion gave a litUe attention U .4heS tL^p/""'" ^'^l^'^' P*id f«? -uPPlie* under the pah^nSK^ The CommiMionere found large amounts of money paid by allSl^paitoienta to m«chant« on the patronage li.t, and reported that of iSyears the evil had become more Berioos.

i »- «i «w

.j^^^'n
^°"'^^«"' J^«P"ty Minister of Marine, testifying before Comnxi*.«oner Cassels computed that his department hid paid $200,000 to^^m^

aLZJITtW* ? "*"^ P"«'« ^^^ d^*!*" on the patron^e St
tfT^S Leland who assisted in reforming the books of the DepStmenL
rey rted that quantities of goods were paid for that were never re^ivedlS

tr^J^'IT ®' ^ ^^ V^' ^«y»^ Commissioners' Beport a Z^ri,o«
18 made between prices paid at Quebec to merchants on the patron^ liM^d those paid at the Sorel shipyard, where goods are bought by tend«JHere is a comparison in some articles:

««"uoc

Quebec Patronage Sorel Contraot

Washing sod*. p*r 100 lbs TjM ^«
Parailn candles

«J;
• •••

Lanterns, per dos «o„ ^^*
Comfort soap, case ?«* "J
Manila rope ^J?

»•«

Galvanised shackles i„ **'
Lantern globes, dox ," •'

Steel plates. 100 lbs l«n ,15
Galvanlaed nails, per lb ?;

^••*

Hammer handles, dux jjg
"

White and grey paint, enamelled, per" gal!." 3.'o« 9mSoft soap, per 100 .lbs ,fl nn fS!
Scrubbing brushes, dox. ... ,?; '"•
Com brooms, per dox. tl^ lli
coal Shovels, per dox ;;;; ^l^^ |*J

And 80 on through a long table. Yet all these patronage prices are cec
tafied as reasonable and just. This kind of thing leads the Kmi"ion1S
to accuse the Marine Department of "lack of conscience"

'^ *'"™'^'<»°«"'
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HOSTH ATLANTIC TRADDG CO.

COST8CAHDAL0US IMMIORATIOir COHTRACT WHICH
CANADA A THIRD OF A MILUON.

Deputy Minitter Gives Contractors Better Terms After Bargain-
ing With Them to Resign Office and Join Their Company,
Bums Correspondence, Refuses to Answer Questions.
Commissioner Preston's Relations with the Company.
Names of Contractors Withheld for Fear They Will

Commit Suicide.

-nn«!?f ^^n^ ^' ^'*® ^<"^ Atlantic Trading Co. contract with the Gov-ernment of Canada u so intimately connected with Mr. W. T. B. Pregton.

* .kS"°i?T°*i*'^^'?™'^*^''°' *^* '^ " »«" to ^e^ the record with"a Sketch of Mr. Preston's political and official history.

BEOINS WITH MB. PRESTON.

in l^i f'^^^^f/PPointed organizer of the Liberal party in Ontariom 1883, and held that position for ten years, f-, 1885 he was a candidate

r^i„r^
Commons m East Durham and was dc.v -d. In 1893 he was ap-

fffo™«i
*° 1° the Legislature of Ontario. While he held this offiwthe events occurred which led Mr. H. H. Cook to assert in public, and after-wards to testify on oath ,that Mr. Preston had demanded from him $10,000

as the price of a senatorship.
'

™„«5'' Z""*!®"
resigned in 1896 to contest West Toronto for the Com-mons, and, after defeat, was re-appointed librarian. He again resiened to

SJrit^P^'i^'*^ organizer. He had charge of the c^paign machinedunng a number of bv-elect.ons which resulted in some of the greatest scan-

fwili utr' ^'T^''^
a political party. The last was the provincial

election held on January 12th, 1899, in West Elgin. Mr. McNish, the
liberal candidate, was declared elected, but afterwards abandoned the seat.

HUGGING THE MACHINE.
The following confession of Mr. McXish shows how his election was

•• Messrs, Crothers & Price. .

®'- '^^'"^' J""* 2«. "S*-

Barristers, etc., St. Thomas.
Dear Sirs:—We bej? to advise you that Mr. McNIsh has diacuMiPii nf i=„-.u

:!1LI^X'°V"' *""
"i?"^^'

'=°"**"'«^ "> *•>« petition Which S.%^*e„''"fl^Sacalnst b- return as member of the legislative assembly of Ontario for West El^n
f^^ ? ^^K^.^^^ *° * considerable extent investli^ted the ctargercontaInedtherein and other matter, which have come to their taowledge In connection with

Sitstr^pecr. Z :ref
'"'"' ^^^•'*'' ^^^ ^•'^ '°»-- statementfa°nd"a'^'?

1. That a larare number of persons were specially sent into the const»i«no»^by men worWng on behalf of the Liberal part/for the «prl", purpo^rof t^W^
Sf'J VL^I\^f"^^' *'**'*" '" *•'** '''«°"'»" »>«'«» *»» January 12, 1899. Tnd we bellivfthat ^^udulent and corrupt means were u«.d by some such persons to T^uri hU

2. That Bsveral of the said persons illeeallv and withnnf a„t>,r^^t,. * ..

d«,aty retumln, offlc« at the «Ud electlonf^HTd toVKLTth^rS^'^^llS. ^o'^i^t^'

106



te the BunM of r*patebl« looal m«n. tevlng; ondar mmubm mm— bcm latrodaottf
to tte inKuratB* oOoOT br loaU acoaU of Mr. MoNtoh.

»wwi-u««

. Li's!? • "*^ •' *•*• '•""•^ «ib.<HTteloM of tlM Hdlnv tharo w«r» »•tarccalMrtUM eouMotMl with tl>* ratiini of Om Iwllot-boxM uid their oontentTtho
COST '^"* "^ "^ ooanUn* of the ballou thM«at

ownwnw, um
^^^*

*• T**** "»•»• '»'•«» !«•«• numbort of ^..iraoiia broncht Into tha rldlnr for tho«preM purpoMw of paraonatlnv U»ttlmate voters and aaaiatad by aoma of Mr.McNiah a auivortara. auoh poraons did peraonata quallflad votMv In votinf for Mr

8. That tha daeUrad number of votea for Mr. MeNlah larmly excaaded thaoombar of bona Ada TOtaa for him.
«««««'a ma

«. That a larc* number of balloU caat for Mr. MaoDlarmld ware In aoma i«.f»nou8 and corrupt manner manipulated, whereby tha reault of the alocUon waa
rendered doubtful, and that In thla connection tha votint at Bhedden and Middle-
march, and In the aeveral dlvialona In St Thomaa where aald atrangara ao acted
aa deputy retuminv offlcera, merlta apeclal mention.

7. That there are good reawna to beUere that there are many apeolal and well-
authenUoated caoea where agenU of Mr, MoNlah concealed at thrlr homea aome of
the atraagera, who there paid large auma of money to electora to Induoa them to
vote for him.

>. That Mr. MoNlah will forthwith delWer to the Speaker of the Legtelatlva
Aaaambly hla realgnatlon aa a member thereof for tha aald electoral dlatrlct."

Wltneaa, (Sd.) I>omau> McNibh.
(Sgd.) A. B. ATi.uwomTH.

Mr. A. B. Aylesworth, who signs tiiis confession with Mr. McNish, is

the present Minister of Justice.

MB. PB£8X0K OELIOHTEO.

Mr. Preston, organizer of the Liberal party in this campaign, was so
proud of the performance that on the evening of election day, after the
fraudulent vote was counted, he sent the following telegram to Mr. McNish

:

"Heartleat congratulatlona. Sorry to the bottom of my heart, I cannot ba
with you to-nl^t. To be aupported by auch a noble army of workera ahould make
you the proudeat man In Ontario. Shake handa with the boya for me and hug tha
membera of the much abuaed threahing machim for Auld Lang Syne."

(Sgd.) PaaaroN.

On the day following the West Elgin election and the despatch of the
above telegram, commending the workers mentioned in Mr. McNish's con-
fession, Mr. Preston was appointed Commissioner of European Immigration.
Since then his activities have bt-en confined to other continents.

BtlOINNlNG OF TIIE DEAL.

Mr. Prestos had not been in England long before he was negotiating

a contract with certain my8teriou8 persons, whose names have not yet been
made ;jublic, though they received ov6r $300,000 from the Canadian treasury.

Mr. James A. Smart, then Deputv Minister of the Interior, afterwards
Canadian Agent of the North Atlantic Trading Co., went to England and
discussed the matter with Mr. Preston, and with some of the contracting
parties whose names he has refused to disclose. Mr. Preston, against the
opinion of Lord Strathcona, and without Parliamentary authority, was au-
thorized to enter into an arrangement to cover a five-year term, which was
followed by two contracts, extending the time and making the terms much
more favorable tn the unknown contractors.

By the original agreement the Government undertook to pay to this

company as a bonus on all immigrants from continental Europe who were
agriculturists intending to settle on farms and were over 12 years of age,

a sum per head of 178. 6d. sterling on all numbers less than 10,000 in each
year; 20 shillings per head on any number between 10,000 and 15,000; 25
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^tS Tf^L" fo^iSri"«J*'*^- '^^« '"- • ^'•^i'i^n tl»t each

4, iS!*
•«™^*°' '• •«^<*d by the Government of Un.da, November

tb«^«rKi!^l^/u^'*»"' ^^:" ^° ^ P*'*' "° -» immiitrant.. whethertbq^ were hrought by t)M» effort, of the contractor* or not. Thousanl of

">'«D 8TIUTHCO.VA 0B.IECT8.

it"" J;n!w7h?'
"'°*"'* ^"^ ^° ™''"^*'' *^^ «'«»> Commissioner said-

MI8IUCPRE8ENTINO THE HIGH COMMISSIONER.

Win£ Mr*'Si«TjJ*'^*if'' " ^^^'"^ °' ^^'- Sifton, of his Deputy

Mr PrSton WW ;el.2Z^^^ °^'" '^^ *^^ ^"""W^' «°'J notablv of

BETTEE THAN THE EARGAIX.
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WM I'raqueutly Uifer than the Dumber of grown people, thw coaceMioa
made a largv difference. Later changes -re alM made iu favor of tlM
company.

Aoditor-Oenerai Mr. J. L. McDougull, noticed tliete improper pay*
mints, and culled the atteutiuu of tlie De|iurtiiieut to them.

'i'o tiiie Deputy Minister Smart, afterward agent of the company, repliod

:

" It waa the Intention ol th« D«partm«nt to pay twnuiea naintd tu ail ineinb«r«
ct the acrtcultural or dom'^etlc Mrvant eUaa: thla would Include of courM, men,
women and chtl<fr«n."

On page ti? and pages following of the eridence given before the Public
Accouatii Comtuittee, in I'JUti, Mr. Smart was on the ^tand. i<'oiiowing ia

an extract fruni the evidence. Mr. Barker is the questioner:

VERV YOUNO AORICULTURI8T8.
Question. Would you call an Infant on the' brcaat on* that cam* within tlMa»

words ,<' coming hero as an agricultural Immlsrant?"—Answer. Tm.
Q. Or a domestic servant?—A. I think so.

Q. With the Intention to live In Canada.—A. I would th'nic so.

<. Now Mr. Smart, do you think that it was a reasonable construction of the
•Creement that you were golnc to pay on a baby in its mother's armsT—A. Tea.

Q. Aa a bona fide apicultural ImmigrantT—A. Tes.
Q. With the Intention of settling in Canada?—A. Tee.
g. You really think ao , that a baby perhaps twenty-four houra' old wonM

have a deliberate liTtention of aectllng in Canada?-A. Tea, I do not know what It

came here for If It did not.

Q. So that . . . every infant that arrived was worth fl to that trading com<
pany?—A. Yea.

OAl'HKBINO WHEBE THEY HAVE KOT SOWN.

It has been stated that the contractors received their bonuses on intnii-

granta, even though they had nothing to do with procuring them. An
example of this is given by the immigration of Jews sent out by the Uirach
Association. The statement comes out in tiie evidence of Mr. Smart (page
78 of the Report).

Queatlon. Theae were brought out at the expenae of the HIrsch peopl«T
Anawer. I think so.

Q. How many came out? A. 200 the flrst year came out and a little over 100
came out the next year.

Q. And in the bringing of theae out the Xorth Atlantic Trading Co. met with
no expense?—A. No they had not anything to do with them at all aa far as I know.

Q. Did they get any bonus on them? A. Yea.

FURTHER CHANGES IN THE CONTRACTORS' INTEREST.

Soon after the agreonent was made, the company began to seek changes
in their own interest. Mr. Smart explains:

Queatlon. Did I understand you to aay that under your flrat contract of {IHt
jrou paid the company a bonua on children? Anawer. Not under the flrst one. No.

Q. When did you commence to pay on children? A. I think In 1901. I am
not certain.

Q. Under what authoilty? A. I think It was a departmental regulation of
the Mlnlator.

Q. What was the duration of the flrst contract? A. I think It only lasted
a few months. There were a number of other restrictions In It which we thought
better not to have. For instance, we restricted payment on certain persona unless
they had so much money.

Q. That w«a done away with afterwarda? A. I think It only lasted a few
months altogether.

In November, 1904, a new aiid formal contract ^^ n^ade for a period
of ten years, with the right of the Government to : if the company
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nn pmiotu contract wm tormiiuble on two yean' notice.
WKAL OOKTRACT WITH THE BOOCt OOIPORATIOK.

A*i -« 'm J-
•^^ent »«• the form of » contnet with " The North

"to JfUL5'!5'®f^** •<r««nent wti forth th»t:

no cJ5j!r.t'fS?tenc?**l?l^''*''
'^'?"*^*' '^''^•"« ^^°- ** ^hat time hud

h-T-li if ', ^' ^"- '*''^*'" incorporated in Holland, and when

IS tij did it iS-tC*^ '• '
*"• ~°*''**°" '' '^'*°^ " •" ^^

OOMKSEY INCOBPORATION A PBMTOK FAMILY AFFAIR.

niJ'fT^r.T'
"'^^^

«!f
q"«^tion of re.pon.ibilWtJ;'Lp«ny *.,nuMd, a charter was secured in the Island of Ouernaey. with the SwfnJiaoorporater. each holding one £10 ihare (page 117) :

following

?f«rJ!r'=?'l?"*""^' ^»«""'' "otel proprtetor ....
'"""'^'

**{
'"''•••

John A^'*iJf
Alexander, Chl.wJck. engineer \John. Alfr^ Randall. Chl.wick, articled clerk ,Ororte Thoma, Hide Downey. BoUcltor'a clerk }

Vf^'L *"' ^'h'tin*". Chltwlck. builder ?JObn Renrjr Thompaon. Epaom, charte<^ seereUrr'
'.'"

iChar •• Ouy Underwood. Acton, W.. .oIldtorTclSrt . . .

.

}

PreaS* Mr^^Tn i'*' u ^^.P^'^ '"" ^- ^- Alexander, son-in-law of Mr.

M fi^«l,l.^
Alexander hunted up friends and relative^ of his own to acas figurehead, in this Guernsey incorporaHon. Alfred Hindlev Alexander^pneer, one of the incorporators, is his uncle. Another incoTporat'ris a

fonow?fH^L\^rd:"i';ot ;?gni;)r'"^"*^
^"^ "'"^^ ^ *^^ --"p-^ -

As Bonus

35.482.M
34,553.3S

38.933.3S

77.842.8S

6<,287.8S

As Allowance
for

Advertising
2,433.34

198.13

9.365.38

3,488.39

1901-02
1902-03
1908-04
1904-06 '.'.'.'.'.'.'.'.

^1906 half year '.\'.'.'.'.\::::\\
. „,«I7.«« 3,488 39

hrinJ^+J'T!",
P">™«"^ (including $61,234.8.3 paid since Ist .Tune, 1906)bmg the total amount up to $.%7,24.5.8.5. (StTtement of Mr. iver inParliament, Hansard, 1007-8, page 167.)

WHAT WE PAID FOB.

fr^J^l ^ ^f'''^
^P°° 7^°"* bonuses were paid in 1901-2. R 811 camefrom Au<!tro-Hungary and 1,168 from Russia.

•
,-ii came

(Wi^'tfTmC* S^l "»'-*' '•'"' ""' "- *« "-^ »' »K.
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In 1M4^ boaoM w«e fid on 11,884, of whflm 5,897 cuu fran
Anttro-Hungupr and l,8fiO frc _ BomI*.

In eftch of thete ymn th comjMnv nude up the nuuimnm number ol
5,000 from Qalicia, Bukowinu end Polend.

(Hanurd, 1006, pegce 830^31.)

THI IMMIOlUMn WKRK COMINO AKYWAY.
There is no evidence that the contractors evtf induced a single immi*

Ifrant to come to Canada. I^rd Strathcona lus stated that the number of
immigrants from continentui Europe would in any case hare greatly in-
creased. In the year Ixifore the contract was in operation, there was an
increase of 34 per cent in eleven months ovei the whole 12 monthM of the
previous year, without including Doukbobors. At no time htw the increase
been more rapid than immediately before the contract was r ade. During
the whole period in which we weie paying Mr. Preston's friends 85 a head
for continental immigrtnU, the Unii«d Sutcs were receiving them by hun-
dreds of thousands wi.hout paying a cent.

PAID roll ALL CLASSES.
Evidence of c^Bcials and other testimony show that thousands of immi-

grwts were paid for as agriculturists without any proof that they belonged
to this class, or intended to settle on farms. The statement of the immignint
to some agent of the contractor, or to the purser of the ship, or some officer,
aeems to have been sufficient.

CANADA PAID BUT U.S. OCT THEM.
Again, payment was made on immigrants coming to Canadian ports

who crosBcd the border and settled in the United States. Their immediate
destination was Canada, and it was not the business of anyoody to see whether
they became setUers. Immigrants could reach the Western States mow
cheaply by way of Canadian than American ports.

Mr. Monk produced evidence from U. S. ConiniiBsioner ot Immigration
ghowing that U. S. authorities during 1905, examined at the Clanadian border
40,488 immigrants coming from Europe to Canada and passing in the
Lnited States. Of these 18,881 were manifested thron^rli Canada ^, the
United States, 9,142 came manifested to Canada, and within a year migrated
to the United States, and 20,076 crossed over to the United Scutes after
remaining in Canada a year or more. From the continent of Europe omit-
ting those countnef on which no bonus was naid to the North Atlantic Trad-
ing Co^ 24,199 came acroM the Atlantic manifested to Car.ada and passed
to the United States. Of these, 5,778 belonRcd f. the class of agriculturists
and domestic servants, on whom the company could claim a bonus.

NO PROOF OF EypEXDITl'nK.

K. *J°v'iu iV'^'L^^m' ^-^ ^"J"^''^
^''^^ ''"™ *^«* ^^'^'^^ ^«« expended

by the North Atlantic Trading Co. in its genoral work, it may be noted that
the expenses at the head office wore put down at 30..'52!) marks, or about
88,000. The character of this head office is shown by evidence of MrJames A. Smart', who, in 1904, went to this head office. ' The followine is
nis evidence to the Public Accounts Committee (page 57)

:

HEADQUARTERS OF THE CORPORATION.

Yea
"'''*''"*"• '^'" ^'^ *''*' •*•» '" Amsterdam nnce this arranrem«ntT Adbwvk

Q. Did you Ko to their office? A. I did.
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Q.
Q.

#- ?»J"*!i. *"* ^°^ *"*** **'•'•' ^- ^ *"« "»' «nd anything, at least. I slmplrfound the office was locked up when I went there.
"i.

* wmpiy

'^' T^ "
w"

* '»'"''»'«" »«««»? A. Yes, sir. I think It v*-»8 on the first floor.
Above the »round floor, and what was It, a room? A. An officeWas there a name on the door? A. Yes, the North Atlantic Trad»n« Co
Did you make Inquiry of the neighbours? A. Yes.

, What did they say? A. They said the correspondence came there. Some
one, they said, came there and the place was visited quite often. It was visited by•ome person they did not know.

Q. Who took the letters. A. I suppose.

CONTRADICTED BY THE SUPKBINTEiTDiiNT.
Mr. W, D. Scott, Superintendent of Immigration, made a report in

June, 1903, in which he called attention to the evident fraud in the com-
pany's claims. Mr. Scott says (Hansard, 1906, page 1984)

:

"Of the whole 105,325 marks which Is equal to $25,067, I And that the malr
part of this amount Is for office rents, salaries of clerks, postage, commissions, sub-
Mrencles, and that out of this total $4,570 has been actually used for advertisingA iMge part of the advertising Is simply steamship advertising, not directed by the
North Atlantic Trading Co. at all. but by Mr. Karlsberg and Mr. Falk. A large
portion of the cost of office rent, etc., covers steamship offices estajbllshed for the
general ocean business, not only to Canada but for all portions of the globe."

This simply means that the alleged expenditure bv the Company for
the promotion of immigration was the outlay of steamsliip agents connected
with their own business.

Mr. Karlsberg is mentioned in connection with suspicious transactions
of the Arundel Printing Co.

QUITE INDIPFEKEXT.

The Superintendent of Immigration was called, and following is a
report of his examination. Questioned by Mr. Foster (pages 34-35) :

Question. What steps have you taken each year to make It certain that therhave .pent -$16,000. for instance, for the purposes shown In the con tract7-^B.werThey sent us a statement, together with the vouchers.

Trad^Jng^cT*^
^^ whom?-A. I cannot tell you that. It Is the North Atlantic

Q. You get a statement from the company that they spent $15.000?—A. Tea
»* ,r;

'^"y*'""K *'»« '^cept that they have spent $15.000?—A. They send sample*of
1 terature and copie, of the advertisements. Vouchers from the dlffe^ntprinters covering their statement of expenditure

u.ncreni

oorr?of'»^A''w**.''v M'' «fP\ *' all to ascertain whether these vouchers arecorrect?—A. We take them to be correct, they have every appearance.
Q. You make no examination on that head at all?-A. Nothing further

whi<S' .tr"" f1 "°*l '**v^'''
yourself that Ihey have distributed these samplw forwhich they claim they have paid?—A. No.

,^tJ^ir./Zl^V^^\
'""' ^''?^' *''*'^ "*** °' priming that they claim that they havepaid for may be lying waste somewhere?—A. For all that I know. Yes.

Q. You have never asked?—A. No.

K '^'
J^!i'*/°." rt" «=f

"tunicate with the Arms whose names are signed on
these receipts to find whether they wfre genuine or not?—A. No

Q. Have you taken any pains Inquire what kind of apectel work they didIn Norway. Sweden and Finland upon - hlch they claim they paid £1.000?—A. No.
* u&vv nOXa

DBPDTT MIKISTEB SMART.
Mr. Smart, who had been a political associate ^f Mr. Siftoa in the west,

became the tatter's deputy in 1897. Two years later he and Mr. Prwton
made the North Atlantic contract. Almc > immediatelv thereafter he varied
Its terms by withdrawing the restrictions as to the age of immigrants and as
to their possession of a certain sum of money. In 1903 he arranged a new
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Mr. Smart refused to ^ve the names of the persons with whom henegotiated He visited Europe while the contracts stood, and on o™e ofihese trips had his search for the company in Amsterdam. That was in th«.pnng of 1904, and on the 28th day November, iZ tlielna contractwith the company was signed.
, ,

i. .c mini coniraci

In his testimony before the committee, Mr. Smart savs he first met one

tit^hinfeidf
''''''"''' '"^ '''' ''• ''''' -^ ^«^ oorr2;^n1er

"Have you any objection to telllns us who that was." axk^H m, d .-Anawer.—-Yes, J have."
» ""u mai was, asked Mr. Barker.

MB. smart's double NEGOTIATIOXS.
At the end of 1904, one month after Mr. Smart made the ten-vear

r?irweeCater%XSh' '^
'^^^/l'^

""^^ ^ *'- Sove^ment"Sa lew weeKs later entered the service of the company. That he was confirm

It would be interesting to have these private letters between the syndi-

csX -nl
^'^"/^

'^^^";l"'
^^'^^ ^^^ "P *» the latters re^i^ation ofhM office and acceptance of the position of agent for the company in Canadawhen one considers that the new contract was made just bed Mr w'changed his relations, and after he had arranged to do so

But that correspondence is not available. What happened to it is thu*explained (pages 86-87 of Mr. Smart's evidence) :

^ "*

HE BURNED THE LETTERS.

,.„i.^T*^!l' ^."^ ''*'" reslgneil on December 31. 1904?—Answer I .hi^u i w »

.ere^,tnT'Sepry'^„^sre"r-^•'rerIC
"'''''''' °' '''' »>^a.c/teT^;Je%ou

A. « m^' h"ave"yes"°"^"'"'"'"''=*
'**" '' '""^ -"^sequent employment of you?-

cf sS.teSr.T905'""""'
""'" ''•"' ^"""''''^ ^''«- letters7-A. About the 1st

Q. Did you burn the press book?-A. Yes. I burned everything that 1 had.

MIGHT BE USEFUL.

•>, f?""*!-^"/"* ^n^^ *^** he became acquainted with this man in 1902.

;^V1llJT\'° ^'"r^i^'v''"^ *5^ ^™"* "'"t«^ h™ there. Mr. Smart

i ~ « T .»r L^? *''
\?"v

'^'"/'"^t" ^"^°^ that it was his intention toetire "I thought I might be of some use to the Government and to thecompany in carrying on a larger propaganda in Europe "
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^ V*^ and to look after th* IntWMU of tho omdleato gMMnlly.
Q. That led to your employment?—A. Tea.

Mr. Smart farther testified tiiat he was dauning on behalf of the com-
pany payment for a number of immigrants who had not been credited in
previous years.

Q. Tour accounU are not yet closed with the company?—A. Not for thla year
Q. Not for any year? Have they not an open account?—A. They have not

been paid fOr all they are entitled to.

Q. The company U claiming that they are entitled7—A. I am claiming for
tbe company.

(Evidence, pace 107).

BBMABKABLB TBAIN Or OIBOOUSTAKOES.
So we have Mr. Smart, Deputy Minister of the Interior, endoreing

Mr. Preston's arrangements with a syndicate, the members of which neither
he nor Mr. Preston nor the Minister will name. We find him changing
that arrangement in the interest of the contractors, replacing it with an-
other arrangement still more in the interest of the syndicate, construing
it in a remarkable way to the advantage of the contractors, making a new
contract three years after the first one, entering into negotiations with the
contractors with a view of joining them, and then before ratering the service
of the company negotiating with them .^s Deputy Minister a final ten-year
contract under which in the year followmg they were able to claim $100,000
or more. And then we find him carefully burning all the correspondence
leading up to this happy conclusion, and presenting a claim to the Gov-
ernment for additional amounts for the past services of the company.

pbeston's relations to thb company.
The case of Mr. Preston is even more interesting than that of Mr.

Smart. On the side of the Government he is the originator of the scheme,
though, as Lord Strathcona pointed out, the plan was made by the parties
who obtained the contract. They had sought an agreement of this kind
with the High Commissioner and he had refused to entertain it. With
Mr. Preston they had better success.

MR. JURY CONVINCED.
Mr. Alfred Jury was appointed Immigration Agent at Liverpool by the

Laurier Government, after faithful party service and one campaign as a
Liberal-Labor cMididate in Toronto. He has swore on the stand, his firm
belief ttiat Mr. Preston was from tie beginning financially interested in the
ODntract. Mr. Jury points out to the fact that Mr. Preston went about
Jiurope m the interest of tbp oompany, personaUy engaged the agents of the
company m Scandinavia and other oountnes, arranged with a Government
interpreter in Liverpool to obtain for the use of the company addresses of
possible immigrants, personally paying him from time to time for these
services with his own cheque, and in various other ways interest ,<t himselfm the business of the contractors. So firm is Mr. Jury in his opinion that
he swore he would not accept Mr. Preston's sworn statement to the contrary.
It was m this connection that Mr. Jury wrote to Mr. Preston in 1905, say-
^''

XT iu^^»^''*xPm*°l ^""^^ ™^°® '° *« *«P« of a Canadian Bureau
or a North Atiantic Trading Co. to draw from." And Mr. Jury further

wntes to Mr. Preston: "I should like to buy you at my price and seU you
at your own. I would not trade with you then for either of your irold

mines." -^ °
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Mr. Jury u still the GoTemment Immigration Ofiicer at liie port of
Liverpool.

A GOOD MABQIK IN 80AXDINAVIA.

Mr. Preston organized the work of the contracting company in Scan-
dinavia. The basis is shown by a letter from Mr. Charles Bennett, Febru-
ary 20th, 1905, and produced in the investigation bofore Hie Committee of
Agriculture.

" All the propaganda work for Canada that thU company baa done In Norway
baa been throush me. Tou will perhaps remember that in 1900, If I remember
rifhtly, Mr. Preston came over to Sweden and Norway to appoint ag'enta for the
said company. Mr. M. D. Ennis was appointed for Sweden and I for Norway, and.
we were to receive a commission of four shillings, to be divided between us for each
passenger of the agricultural class who emigrated from Norway and Sweden to
Canada.

Mr. Preston made a very good arrangement for the company, to pay the
agents in Sweden and Norway 4 shillings each for immigrants, and to receive

20 shillings from the Government for them. But Mr. Bennett made com-
plaint that he had not been paid even these sums.

" YOUH COMPANY."

There W8« a little correspondence between Mr. Smart at Ottawa and
Mr. Preston u\ London in July, 1900, which shows the remarkable interest

they both felt in the welfare of the company. At Mr. Smart's end of the
line the bonus to the company had been incr. ised in certain cases from
17b. 6d. to 208. Mr. Smart does not wait to write, but wires the announce-
ment, followed by a letter, in which Mr. Smart says:

" Tou will observe that the government has re-arranged the bonus so that there
will be a decided advantage reaped by your company in connection with all except
the Oaliciana."

These two officials appear to be concerning themselves altogether with
the advantage to be reaped by the contractors, whom one of them describee

to the other as "your company."

MANY LINES OF CONNECTION.

When it was discovered that there was no incorporation in Amsterdam,
Mr. Preston's son-in-law appears solicitor for the company .>iii. procures
the ridiculous Guernsey incorporation with friends and relative:? of his own
as incorporators. Mr. Preston's friend Lazarus, alias Leopold, became an
agent of the ( mpany and a beneficiary of his operations about the same
time that Mr. Preston and he were working togethor in the notorious Labor
Bureau business. Also, the Arundel Company printing deal, in which Vr.
Preston's department was concerned, leads up through one of the paymraits
to the North Atlantic Trading Company connection.

SUSPICIOUS SECRECY.

The next point to be considered is the suspicious secrecy and under-
handedness of the transaction. All the contracts with the company wero
made without parliamentary authority, though one of them had ten years
to run and obviously required parliamentary sanction.

They were concealed from parliament for five or six years, and anv
allusion to the arrangement made in the departmental report is so vague as
to convey no real hint of the nature of the deal.

Names of the contractors have been concealed, and neither parliament
nor public have been allowed to know who obtained the $367,247.
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In 1906 the contract itself was asked for and was obtainetl after the
Miniiter had made many objections, but the Government refused to give
the names of the contractors..

When, ait»r long efforts, the Opposition compelled the Government to
bnng down the contract, a mutilated paper was produced. The Minister
placed upon the table a document purporting to be the contract, but the
name of the person signing on behalf of the company had been torn off
evidently by order of the Minister.

At the beginning of the investigation in 1906 Superintendent of Immi-
gration Mr. W. D. Scott, was asked to procure the names of the contractors.He replied that he would cable for them if the Minister would consent, but
at the next meeting he returned stating that he had not obtained consent
and did not cable.

Mr. Smart was repeatedly asked to give the names of the members of
the company or the persons with whom he negotiated, and steadily refused
to do so. Mr. Preston, when asked for the names, declared that he wa»

L?ii ,^f
°ot to reveal the names, but would endeavor to obtain consent.

•
1 ii u ' • ^"^ton announced that the names had been sent to himm a letter but without permission to reveal them. He had authority toshow them to the Premier.

BOflDS HKASONS.
The only reason given for this mysterj- was that some of the countrie*where business was done were hostile to emigration. The single necessarrcomment upon this is that all the contracts require the contractors to re^p5

the laws of the countries where they operate.

OLIVER CHARGES FRAUD.

MiniS. ^fij""^^ *^t*
*^i<=o™P«°y was a fraud is tJie statement of theMmister of Interior, who, after persuading his party in the House to vote

^rord SfThT"'"^ *^'* ^'}"'^ ^'^""^^ "'•^^"d '^ cancellation on The

Z£.B^^^^^^- Si!S JSt-^-S^J^S^-i^

fro. Norwa. it\Z\Tr^Vnl Z.^'l^'^ZZ^'^l f^'on- '""""*^ *"'-'"

During the nine months of the fiscal year 1906, reported before MrOliver spoke, he returns for Norway, Sweden and Pin aXshowed that Tha

with'fhe d^r^'VhrMiJ'f' ^'r'^'7.
^^'' ^'^' «-«'ything else comi^cted

r^^J t„+r J .
Minister knew that immigration rose and fell witJiout

T£^ni:.
"'°'"^* ^' *^^ '"'"P"">' -^-" -« <^oing nothing but USing

The truth ^ as that the disclosures of the investigation huH mo<^. >.
necessary for the Minister to cancel the arran?«nent ^ ""^' ^*

WOULD XOT BE TAKEN ALIVE
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of the Interior Department, was sent to Amsterdam to examine the expendi-
ture statements and other clainu of the company. In the Session of 1907
Mr. Beddoe was a witness before the Ccmmitteo of Agriculture and Coloniz-
ation. Asked whether he had ascertained the names of the contractors,

he admitted that he knew them but had promised not to give away the
secret. It was on that condition only he was allowed to see the accounts.
The Government brough*- down its statement from Mr. Cohen, Secretary
of the Company, who stated that if the names were divulged, some of the
persons concerned might commit suicide.

Mr. Monk appealed to the House by moving a resolution declaring
that it wus the undoubted right and privilege of the House of Commons
to have information on public matters within its jurisdiction, and asking
that Mr. Beddoe be summoned to the Bar and required to give information
as to the business mattorp which he had investigated. This motion was
voted down by the usual party majority, except that Mr. Jjavergne and Mr,
Bobitaille, Liberals, voted for the motion. (Hansard, 1906-7, page 5858).
In the previous Session, May Ut, 1906, the Government majority had voted
down Mr. Foster's resolution that the contract was improvident and absurd
and should be terminated. This resolution will be found on page 1816 of
Hansard, 1906, and the vote on page 2449.
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PHE8T0H AND LBOPOLD.
Leopold's Ubour Bureau Works with the Lnmigrmtioxi Office.
Sending Artisans to Canada on False Reiuresentations. Ennis
Letters Show Relations Between Preston and Leopold.
Mr. Monk Demands Preston's Removal. Oliyer Promises
to Investigate but Preston is Promoted Without Inquiry.

i« f»,?f°l°^
the remarkable episodes in the history of Canadian inunigration

\Vhile the declared pohcy of the Government is to encourage no immi-grants except the agricultural and domestic servant classes, the Chief (^om-

Z^ZZf- ^'"°\'?™*''>° was for years associated with and giving assistance

%i!^^ '^""^'"^ °"* «'«*'^i«« and artisans to this country. GeueralWthere was close conjperation between Leopold's office and that of Mr Preston

crnvass'S ^^'""^ "' ''"'"' ""*'''"''' *" "^^'^^ aSv^Vt^sfngiTnd

STANDING INSTRUCTIONS TO PRESTON.
The professed policy of the Government was announced by the Ministerof the Interior in 1906. (Hansard, July 3, page 6870 )

'

C.S,°5
™""8~°'» «» C».d., b, holding tt«„«l,c. ont L wn" oTtoC.naai.n GoTCrnmmt, guuanteeing pcilio™ ,„d <™„mitting other fLT

L^.'-ing'""'
""^ ""' "" "o""--' ™ —» "fit o„d hfd

„.. T""' ^'"T" '^ "''!*' ""' ""I" "' *e parties making auch misrenre.

LFX)POLD MAKES PRESTON's .ACQUAINTANCE

/arlous towns of Canada. ' *" ""^^ ""^ '«"^'e- "» aU

^ «naXirrr„r/i-„V^^^^^^^^^^^ — --. as we..

bureau ha« to offer at the pre^nt tSe for me^wL ^T^^
vacancies that thi.

work, and who are anxious tolmpro^e thei^posTt^'.';?
«trons a*.e and w!l.h,» to

such excellent prospects .. ^oe. the^Sn'^of Sida
""'"'*"' """^^ "^""^ '"''

^^^
Generally speaK.ng: wages are h.|,her than .„ England, and the cost of Hvin,

arr.v^°r^ardra^\r.T^Vp^\r.^:^ne"v\^r^ ''^ '^'^"^ -"»'-* -"^ ^
direct opening for h.m to go to Tn Stroduct L fro™ ?h,T ""* """*" *•"•'* " *
manent work with a reliable firm to suKab.e meif ™ '''" '""**" •H'arantee, per-
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Cmioerning the intmuite oonnection of Mr. Prestoa and the Canadum
Government office with Leopold, lEr. VreaUm testifiet (page 184, Public
AcconntB Committee Evidence, 1906)

:

Question. When did you first have these relations with LMpo'.dT—Anawcr. I
became acquainted with Leopold. I think. In the spring of 1902.

Q. What was he then dolnr?—A. He came to liOndon for the purpose of es-
tabllshlnc a booklnc aceney,

Q. Do you know his real name?—A. His real name is Leopold Lasarus.
Q. He is not Louis I«opold?—A. No. He is like many other Hebrews who

came there and adopt Knslish names. There are hundreds of them in London.
Q. When he came to you In 1901 was he introduced to you as Leopold LaaarusT

—A. No, the Lasarus end of it I only learned about two years aaro.

Q. When did you drat becin to have relations with t«opold with regard to im-
migration?—A. Very shortly after he came there. It was when my office waa oa
Victoria Street

THB INTIHAOT 0H0W8.

While the Government c^ce was on Victoria Street that of I^eopold
was there also. He received bonusea from the Canadian Government on
British immigrants sent to this country. He was also receiving bonusee
from the North Atlantic Trading Co. for continental immigrantB whose
passage he booked. Mr. Preston admitted that his son-in-law, Mr. Alexander,
solicitor of tlie North Atlantic Trading Co., had also on Mr. Preston's recom-
mendation been engaged to do Leopold's law business.

In 1903 the Government immigration office was moved to Charing Cross
and Leopold's headquarters were transferred to the same building. Direct
telephone communication was established between Mr. Preston's office and
Leopold's.

It was at this time that Leopold, in his capacity as the Canadian Labor
Bureau, was causing trouble by sending out artisan laborers on representa-
tions said to be false, and by negotiating arrangements for breaking strikes
in Canada.

The Government was insisting that no public encouragement was given
to immigration other than agricultural or domestic, while complaints had
been made by labot organizations that Government offices were assisting
agencies accused of fraudulent representations.

THE ENNIS LETTEnS.

There was good ground for these charges. The following letters from
Commissioner Preston to Mr. J. Ennis, Manager of the Allan Line Co., has
a direct bearing on this matter (pages 144-145)

:

17, victoria Sftreet, London, Feb. 17, 190!.
Strictly private and confidential.

My Dear Mr. EnnIs,—Now that the Elder Dempster line has gone into the hands
of the Canadian Pacific Railway, I can confer with you upon the subject, and also
act with you In this matter In a^way in which it was not in my power at an earlier
date.

Of course you are aware that the Canadian Pacific Railway will open offices at
Cockspur street In the course of the year. You are also aware that there are one
or two agencies whose business Is principally drawn through being able to assure
those booking through them that positions in western Canada will be found for
them on their arrival.

I was called on yesterday by a very responsible fellow who wanted to discuss
with me a plan which he thinks he will be able to .arry out with the aid of this
office and the office at Winnipeg, and also the government officials in Toronto
through my intluence, so as to be assured of finding employment for all who l>ook
through htm.
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\i.-n

oorJiL^.!,
«•"••*•"«»'»• •dvtaabUIty. and with tbli objMt la vl«w Hm had

SI^!^h^^*. VI** * ll?1^^'
*** ••'^ •mploy.r. of labour in Canada. t« hTmiab

!!r v.J^ ob^^J"^"'
'""*'' *^'\'^y *•"' '«>™ ««»"• to tl»«. ..d Which Of cour,".f«»r vwy obvloua r»aw>na cannot be handlad throu«h th« dnMrtiMnt

.t-J-!i.I!l'!!
^oknow If In th* avant of makin* an arran«am«nt with ona of the

TOM^L Lrntr. T
•'"«''°y"?«'« through the »ovemment offlcaa at Wlnnlpe». or

fc^m ,f«! .^^r
' °' !'•**"•'• " »»" «••• '"y »>«. by referrlRS Inqulrera t7hlinfromjime to time, provided hi. office could be .ituated convanlently to our new

you ^uiiJil!L"?H "":?". '*Vf.u*""
»***'"* ^ *^ had a i-nndentlal conversation wLh

fmLdtaTelt^ofprth
'"•*'".«'' °' >'•"" company renlln, one of the .mall office.

tSl^?.
"^ ' *"• "**' °'""' «" the covernment on Charln* Crow, and that I

my c'cS-veCC u^'k?"'"'
""^ -"Wt'on In thi. partlcular!*A. the outcom* oj

yourTmn»,^v „ ,5 k""* ?.'
""'' '"*'*'• ^ '"ought I would write you to .ee whether

«mce«Tfh,7h^nH " *'* """".• *« """* ""'h hir, the rent of one of the .mall

comm^a^n I ,1^1 ^i
WPointln* him a. your llceneed agent, givl. 3 him the u.ual

burtneZr^i..i 1^ y.u*"' -'" *^ '"*"' " *'" "P"" •" ^•n"* »»«• considerable

a «nt™i^n^5 ir
*•" "'*''* '*" ''hich otherwise there la either a general hunt, ora general acramble now. .

to J^t^Z i"!'-!!!,*
Elder-Demp.ter people are out of the running, my hands are free

you than fomeriy
'*' "''* evidence of a more sympathetic co-operation with

to get*awlfy"e''vei%ora LI*".*,'"" "? t" 'i?'"
'"*'^^'- ""' " '• »"*o..lble for me

v?et onThl!^.
"^ * "'^ ** ""•*"*' ""* ^ *»""> ""«' very much to have y. ur

.haU S7hrourt ^t'hP^InT"' '": """i""*
anything of thI. kind that might h.. done

with ™ *"'<»"«'' the gentleman to whom I have referred. After hi. conversation

P^ace^anrone ;r" '**' *"*''
' """ ''^•'•'^'"'^ '«"" -"" -""' "« wartTg.r.

Your, very truly,

J. Ennls. Esq.. Liverpool.
^^^'^ ^- P"""^^'-

.,w. 1"HE PLOT DEVELOPS
•Private and confldentlal,"

«^v^i-ut-B.

Dear Mr Wnr,!. t i,
^"''* I'' 1903.

.gen^."p^%eroLVh^cry:u'runyr'sUd' U "in^lt'^^AH^^"'"
'''' ^'^'"-'''

labour unions In Canada-and vou h«v! ntn
' T °' '"e opposition of the

the dock labourers at Montfeal-awlnst^nv'llrn^''*''**;:*'* *" connection With
emigrants who are Hkelyirengie In i„y ofhe*^ ZT."Tm ,1'"""" P'''«««>^"ve
riving In Canada: and also IncK to the fLct that ?hel hil h^"

agriculture ar-

government mv recall or dismissal «ii»l.nJt„ ^ ^^"^ demanded from the
emigration other than aKrleunurfst, h^ f *"7'"-''«*"'«"t on my part respectl.ng

any specific InforlTtlon rejectS thVXs'lbTlUlls 'of "l"!;''' T'"
'"'•""''">«

C«,idli'n work*r^t\*'f\ ' .hould say whether I welcome thU ad "uncT o the
.« Jr.?^-.^ .. T

°*' *""* '" "^**^ <" the action of the labour party In Canada. I

ZSi.nl " ' *" "°* '"''"•"'*' ""' »" """"""- "' '"Is kC hL" ommencei

8atlsflld*tLt*'ft.'!;!^'"'
''"?*." «<'v«'-"««'' '»«• any particular trade or calling. I am

Canada who will furnish them with Immediate employment at stated wageron ar-
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T do not MM how a HtPkmxhlp eompAny Im Rolnc to prevent an employer of
labour from advertieinic hi* wantx and guarante<>tns employment and aecurlnc tba
labour he requtraa, and I am fret* to admit that I do not ace any greater eauaa for
complaint in this particular than, for Instance. Cnoke'x, Oaie's or Lunn'i offlea ad-
verti^lnc In towna or localltlea where they have not stated asenclea. Of course I

am wTttinr you this fully and frankly on the question, but I do not wish that my
letter ahall be made public.

Yours very truly,

(Bed.) %Y. Prkston.

MR. PBKSTOX AND DKfKPXIOX.

These letters were made pulilic through a ({uarivl between Cuuiinissioner

Prt'Eton and Mr. Jury, Iminij^ration Agent ^t Liverpool, who obtained pos-

session of the correspondence and asBlsttv] in exposing Mr. Preston's double

dealing. Mr. Jury had been active in the labor interest and did not hesitate

to show that while the Ciovernnicnt was professing to discourage artisan

immigration, its Immigration CoinmiHsioner was, in this underhand way.
giving all possible assistance to licopold's labour Bureau. Mr. Preston's

sneers at the labor organizations in (.'anada and his efforts to circumvent
them were displeasing to Mr. Jury. Mr. Preston was asked in the Public
Accounts Committee what he incant by the statements that the labor bureau
which I^eopold managed had been established by large employers of labor

and that he had made inquiries fn to its financial standing, when he knew
that the labor bureau had not a single employer of labor in it. Here is his

own sworn statement (page 187. Public .\ccounts Committee evidence, 1906).
Question. Where did Leopold establish his office? Answer.— ITo arot an office

In the samp building: as the arovernment office.

Q. Tour areneral offices were on the around flat and you had one room upstairs.
His room adjoined your room upatalrs.--A. Tea.

Q. Who con-itituted '.hat labour bureau?—A. Mr. Leopold. I toI<J you.
Q. Mr. ticopolci was the bureau?—A. Mr. Leopold was the bureau.
<i- Nobody else?—A. Nobody else.

Q. Jfou knew that?—A. I knew that.

PRESTON AXD THE STRIKG-BltKAKllKS.

AVxiiit tilis time there was a strike on the Crow's Nesb Pass Coal
Con»pany's works, and the management arranged with Leopold to send out
2.000 or ,3,000 miners to break the strike. The money for transportation
was .ent t» Mr. Preston, who paid it out for transportation of miners on
Lefjpold's certificates (see Preston's evidence, page 188).

On May 9th, 1906, Mr. Palph Smith, Liberal Labor Member for Nanai-
rao. vigorously denounced the misrepresentations of Leopold's Labor Bureau.
He showed that Leopold was sending out letters from the same building as
the Government Immigration Office in London, tliat he used the Canadian
Coat-of-Arms on his letterheads. He read one of these letters promising
work to builders and other skilled workmen at high wages and cheap living.

Mr. Smith showed that these letters conveved the impression that the Can-
adian Government was working with the Bureau. He protested that "it is

an indignity to the Nation as a whole that the symbol of its National au-
thority should be made an instrument of fraud to deceive and injure innocent
citizens."

THEY WERE LIKE PABTNER.S.

Commissioner Preston backed up liCopold in every possible way. He
recommended him to the Allan Company and got him appointed as their
agent. Leopold was an agent of the North Atlantic Trading Company, his
solicitor was Mr. Preston's son-in-law, whom Mr. Preston had recommended
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to him. Mr. Preston ittiMd a circular letter itatiiig that the Department
did not giTS adnbe respecting artiaan immigration, and adding, " it ia open
to Ton to ooounnnicate with the Canadian Labour Bureau, 18 Charing Croaa,
8.W., if you ao deaire." (Hansard, 1906, page 5875.)

Depnty-Miniater Smart reports in a memo., speaking of immigration
offices at London, that he found it "a practise for mechanics or laborers
who came to the office to seek for information for them to be referred to the
office upstairs " (Leopold's), which, as he said, gave the impression that there
waa some connection between the Govemment's office and Leopold's bureau
(Hansard, page 6901). Much more evidence was produced showing that
Preston officially wroto recommending this labor bureau.

TBI OASB IV PABLIAMENT.
In view of all these disclosures, Mr. Monk, M.P. for Jacques Cartier,

who had charge of the inquiry in the Agriculture Committee, proposed in
the House the following resolution:

'"In the opinion of this Houce, for th« eauiea dlaoloaed in tho eridenec taken
btfor* th* CommlttM on Public Aecounta, and tho CommlttM on Acrtoulture and
CoionlaaUon, and tor other reawma. w. T. R Preaton, Inapector of Imralcratlon.
should be no loncer continued In that oflloe."

**'• "on* charged amonr other thlnga that Mr. Practon " violated his duty by
MMouraclnc In a clandestine manner the Immisratlon of mechanics and helpinc
to eaUbUah and foater a Canadian bureau contrary to the aUndlns Instructions of
the covenunont.

Mr. Oliver could not contradict the charge connecting his Commissions
with the notorious labor bureau. Ho could not justify the transaction.
What he did was to ask the Bouse to vote down the resolution and solemnly
promised a thorough investigation. He declared that such an investigation
would be held, and that the Department would deal with Preston according
to the facts. His pledges will be found in Hansard, 1906, pages 6887.
6891, 6896 and 6905.

Three Liberal members, Mr. Guthrie, Mr. Verville and Mr. Johnston,
of Cape Breton, excused themselves for voting against the resolution, plead-
ing the Minister's promise to investigate and to dismiss Preston if the cir^
cumstances called for it. So the motion was rejected on July 4th, 1906
by a party vote of 89 to 39, recorded on page 6928 of Hansard.

'

NOT DISMISSED, BUT PROMOTED.
Mr. Preston was not dismissed. He was promoted. He was made

Commissioner to China and Japan at a salary of $3,600 and all his expenses
paid, whereas his previous salary was only $3,000.

Mr. Oliver says he held a private investigation, but he refused to pro-
duce the evidence, and has never stated whether he found Preston guilty or
not. If there was an investigation, it was absolutely private and no recordam be obtained. If Mr. Oliver removed him from the Immigration Office
oeoause he was guilty of duplicity and fraud in his relations to the labor
bureau, or because of collusion with the North Atlantic Trading Company
or of the corruption charged by Mr. Jury. Sir Bichard Cartwright was
not too dehcate to take Mr. Preston into his Department, give him a more
conspicuous position and a higher salary.

M^while Mr. Jury, who accused Mr. Preston o^ corruption and de-
daied he would not believe him on oath, remains Government Agent at
Live^l, and Mr. Just, who exposed the Arundel printing scandal, and was
turned out of the office by Mr. Preston has been restored and promoted.
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THE ASUHDBL C0HTRACT8.

DaaoRATiov FRnrrnio deals in lohdoh.

A Chief Ctork't Discovery, Followed by Ditmiisal From Office.

Cheques Went To Somerville, Karlsberg, Jid Leopold.

In the Auditor-General'! Report for 1901-8, for Printing, Advertising,

etc., in Europ-, there is a payment of $88,696.28 to the Arundel Adyertiiing

ft Printing Co., of liondon, Enfrland. In 1908-3 there is charged for th«

•ame serricea by the same people $21,185.44, in 11)03-4 $18,761.37, and in

1906 $1,810.40. ^, ^ ,

In 1904, Mr. C. F. Just, Secretary in Mr. Preston's office, cabled to

the Government in Mr. Preston's absence thi.t the prices paid to this con-

cern bad been excessive. He informed the Minister that the Arundel Co.

had been paid £2,900 sterling for work that could have been done for £900.

Mr. Preston suspended Mr. Just from his position in the Immigration

OfSce.

IT WAS ROY 80UERVILLE.

The Arundel Co. was Mr. Roy V. Somerville, whom Mr. Preston knew

as the son of a former Liberal M.P., and found in London acting as agent

of a lauies' fashion magazine. Mr. Preatwn transferred to him without

tender a large part of the printing, though Somerville had no printing office,

an(l farmed out the work.

In the Public Accounta Committee, Mr. Preston was shown one account

of the Arundel Co. amounting to £2,701 128. No certificate of the correct-

ness of this account could be found. The cheques showed that £250 was

paid in advance. The cheque was endorsed, " Arundel Advertising & Print-

"ing Co., per D. Somerville, Manager," and by Roy v. Somerville. D.

Somerville, who signed as manager, is the wife of Roy Somerville.

HOW ONE PAYMENT WAS DIVIDED.

The balance of the account, amounting to £2,451 128. was paid by four

cheques

:

Che<iu« No. 78«. dated May 16, 1908, for £610 0». Od.

Cheque No. 787, dated May 16, 1903, for £612 Os. Od.

Cbeatxe No. 788, dated May 26, 1903, for £609 12t. Od.

Cheque No. 789, dated May 26, 1903, for £620 Oa. Od.

The receipts were all given on the 26th of May, showing that the four

cheques were all delivered together.

WHO GOT THE MONET.

Cheques number 786 an' 787 were endorsed to Lloyds' Bank. They

were apparently cashed by Mr. Somerville for his own benefit.

Cheque number 788 was endorsed by the Arundel Co., " per D. Somer-

ville, Manager" (Mrs. Somerville). It bears the indorsement of B. Karls-

b«^, to the ord-T of thp Dresden Bank in Hamburg. B. Karlsberg, who
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M«w lo iwvc mvivwJ tlif prtH-ewU of thi« cliequt., i« « Ui.>kinK aMut atHunbur^ a gnat friend of Mr. Pretton. m i« flioirn bv th* following t«ti.mony of that Kintli-itian

:

' '

t .
^"•••j""' »" wh"« w*y had you eonnaotlon with KarUb«ri7—Anawar W«ll

Q. Wd you ao to •« him?—A. Frtquently, y«a.

Q Slli'*J-.^!i"'K°
*"• ""«»«•»• 7-A. Tou mu>t not aalc mo that. Mr. Bark«r

f^uiVt :^ ::i,:::.r'-^-
**"• ' "'" "•' -^ •"»*•""• "^* "•

a ./"q**"* connection it it well to recall the fact that in IIKM), when W. D
»cott, Superintendent of Immigration, criticized the North Atlantic Tr«din-
company • claim for expenditure for immigration adverti.ing and canvaa*.
ing, Mr. Scott pointed out that the outlay for which the claim was madi
•ppeared o be the ordmary busincsg expenses of this Mr. Karlsberg

Cheque number 789 was endorsed by D. SomerTiUe. Manager, and by

Vf /^ by whom it seems to have been cashed early in Junf.
Mr. I^uis lipoid, who received this €680, is the subject of another

cnapter.

A BEA80NABLK EXPI,AVATION.

This remarkable distribution of cheques was not clearly explained by
Mr. Preatnn. He could not say why he paid the balance of this account
in four cheques instead of one, or why they came to be divided up among
Mr. Somerviile, Mr. Karlsberg and Mr. Leopold.

M H' ^nl^^r^' H""-
'^'"* *'" """^'^ '^ •***•'»<? that £?,900 sterling was

paid fop £900 worth of work, it will be understood that after Mr. fitomer-
Tille was more than amply paid, there remained a verv sufficient rake-off to
cover the other two cheques to Mr. Preston's two verj- particular friends.

JCST RESTORED AND RECOMPENSED.
It has been stated that Mr. C. F. Just, who was Secretary iu the 1 nmi-

gration Office at London, was removed by Mr. Preston, this suspensionoccumd on the 14th of September, 1904. In 1906 Mr. Preston was "pro-
moted from the Immigration Office and made Commissioner to Japan
J-or two years lacking six weeks Mr. Just was out of the office. Then h^wap recalled restored to his old position with a subsequent increase of salary'
clearly establishing the fact that he had done no wrong.

Mr. Jusfs salarv was paid for the whole time he was out. This wasdone by a special vote as follows, in 1907

:

S^lc^Vct. «Si..?''*'
•«>'-"''-'*'"""« »''3't»"-« to the contS^Tn'ThrcVil

Mr. Oliver explained that the amount was required to pay the salaryof Mr. Ju!>t while he was under suspension. The Minister added that
" It wan thought advisable to re-in»tate Mr. Junt, and It waa found tiwt nr/J«.t could only be legally .uapended by order of the MIni.tlr. o^D^putJ MTni.JJr

acknowledge that there had been a mistake and to pay Mr. Ju.t."
'"

The suggeation was made by the Opposition that Preston ought to pay
this damage, hut the Government preferred to levy it on the country.
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THE WALLBBRG COHTRACTS.

samples of transacnohs with a favouutb i. c.r.

cohtractor.

Mr. A. E. Wallberg Menu to have about the ume relation to tbt

Railway Department that Metart. T. U Willaon and George T. Merwin bear

to the Department of Marine. Unfortanately, the Uoyal CommiMion did

not overhanl the Railway Department and the extent of contractor WalU
berff't inflaence i« not judicially stated. The ComntiMionera found record*

of Mr. Wallberg't tranaactiona with the Marine Department, and reviewed

them to the extent of thirty column*. Some which he carriml through and
tome that he attempted are worthy of notice, but they arc siiiall compared
with his Intercolonial contracts.

In the nine months of 1907 the Railway Department paid !ifr. Wallberg

over a quarter of a million dollars, on eight or nine contract!*. Thi-se con-

tracts, and otiiers made afterwards, ran up to many times this amount. Is

May, 1908, the Minister of Railways announced that Mr. Wallberg had
thirteen contracts running with his Department.

INVEaxrOATlOK UNDER DirPICULTIES.

The Public Accounts Committee made an nttvmpt to invtgtigate extra*

ordinary features of a few of these contracts. But members .«tarting these

inquiries were always impeded and gomotimcs bloci<ed by objections from
Liberal mombers. The most interesting inquiry of all was beaded off com*
plefrely by the fact that the contractor allowed his accounts to run on for a

year without payment, pnd the Government supporters toolt the ground that

inquiry into this irregular and improper contract could not pmceed. A few

Wallberg contracts t'hat are partially investigated may Iw briefly revie^-ed.

It may be leniarked that Mr. Wallberg came to Montreal from th? Ignited

States not long ago as a manufacturers' iigent, and niucli of the plant sup-

plied by him to the Intercolonial is of American manufacture.

NUMBER 1—HOISTING CRANES.

The first contract examined was for five hoisting cranes. Tenders were

received under specifications, and though Mr. Wallberg'a was not the lowest,

rhe department decided that this would be t. e best value for the money. He
was paid $6,380 for each crane delivered at l^evis. the (Jovernment kindly

remitting the duty. Mr. Wallberg turned over the contract to a rieveland,

Ohio, Company, which sold him the five cranes for $.5,200 each. After pay-

ing freight and expenses, his rake-off was $4,.').50. as he himself admitted.

There seemed to be no reason why the (Jovernment should not have bought

direct from the Cleveland Company. Moreover, the record shows that the

call for tenders asked quotations for one crane only, and the other tent ^ ."era

offered one, whereas Mr. Wallberg figured on five and sold five.

NUMBER 2—HEATING CONTRACT.

In November, 1905, the Government asked for tenders for a specified

system for heating the Moncton Car Shops. . Mr. Wallberg tendered at

$6,765. Next day, Sheldon & Sheldon, of Gait, Ontario, tendered at $4,300.

There was another tender at $4,700. Two days after this first tender, and
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one day after Sheldon's, Mr. Wallberg wrote again explaining that his offer
waa for a 3turtevant apparatus, and saying that he would build a smaller
plant for $3,900. The Government accepted Mr. Wallberg's higher tender,
without making further inquiries as to what the other tenderers proposed
to furnish, though their offer was in the same terms as Mr. Wallberg's first

one.

NCMBEB 3—WATBK TANKS.
The Government called for tenders in 1905 for two tanks. Mr. Wall-

berg's tender was for $4,470 each for tanks " made from stock lumber," or
$3,970 each " in case I can procure, saw and dry lumber." The Canadian
Fairbanks Company offered to build for $4,000 each, if given four and a
half months to complete the first tank and six months for the second. The
department was in a hurry when the tender was accepted, but recovered from
it immediately afterwards. It gave the contract to Wallberg at his highest
price. The tender was made the 5th of August, 1905. Mr. Emmerson
recommended acceptance on the 8th of November, and the contract waa
signed in February, 1906, or about the time that the Fairbanks Company
proposed to complete both tanks. Mr. Wallberg asked for an extension of
time to July Slst, 1906, stating: " It is impossible to saw and dry any of
"this material in the winter, and, consequently, some time must be taken
" ^1 this drying in the spring." (Evidence, page 86.) As Mr. Wallberg
was allowed to procure and dry the lumber his offer of $3,970 applied. But
that question was not raised, and he was paid the larger price, or,

'

more for each tank. The tanks were completed in May, 1907, more !

a year after the time in which the Fairbanks Company were willing to c

plete them for $340 less thaa was paid Mr. Wallberg.
These were only two tanks, one for Truro and one for Riviere du Loup.

Mr. Wallberg built nine others for the Intercolonial, which were not in-
vestigated.

NCMBEB 4—STEEL OIHDERS. .

This was a neat private contract. The Department needed two sets

of double girders, seven in each, for cinder pits at Truro and Chaudi^re.
The Chief Engineer made a private contract with Mr. Wallberg for this
material at 414 cents per pound, which amounted to $1,414.80. Mr. Wall-
berg went to the Locomotive and Machine Company of Montreal, and bought
ike goods for $911.76, regular price. The Government paid the freight,
and Mr. Wallberg made a rake-off of $503.04, or 55 per cent., for simply
passing in the order which the Government might itself have sent to the
manufacturers.

These figures were given in evidence by Mr. Wallberg himself, page 98

:

Question. By Mr. Boyce. Tou turned these girders over to the Intercolonial
for $1,414.80, the stuff that you bought from the Locomatlve and Machine Company
for $911.76?—An«w«r. Yes, Sir.

And Mr. Wallberg testified that the Government had paid the freight
The Chief Engineer of the I. C. R., who made this private bargain with

Mr. Wallberg, said that the rolling mills were all so rushed that it was useless
for the Government to try to get this material. But Mr. Wallberg could
get it, and it might be supposed that a Department which is paying hun-
dreds of thousand every year to rolling mills should be as well able to get a
favor from them as one of jts own contractors.

The Auditor-General has testified that he would not accept the certi-
ficates of certain Marine Department oflScers that the price was reasonable.
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But

What would he Bay to officers of the Railway Department who certify that

«^ AP?''°? " I
reasonable price for girders sold at the tiine in theopen market for less than 3 cents a pound?

" ui me

NUHBBR 5—PICTOU ENGINE HOUSE.
This was put up to tender and awarded to Mr. Wallberg at $13,790

for the structure, and with foundation -»n schedule tenders. The Govem-ment fibred out the tender makinp i\i, !..lo offer $62,523.55. The next

W^ ^*" '^^^^'^^ o"t by the '. >partnieai. at ?S5,0y9 95

P.. 1^^ Public Accounts inqi rv .vas litkla \tter was produced from
General Manager Pottinger to the L patiuent, on anuary 20th, 1908, stated

n„l Vjf« r°^1 ^^^'^ P^'1 *"" *'' " ' ''''' '^"« *100,221.99. (Evidence,

nT«f *i .oT5f
"*'*?

"°*^'I
* '^''*™^^ ^l^i'^h uie Department had figured

out at $62,523^, and was $35,000 more than one of the rejected tenders.

* «n
Department had figured that stone ballast at Mr. Wallberir's price

? „ /?.*f P^"" y*^*^ ^°''^'^ "'^t *1'185. Mr. Wallberg was paid for stone

SIllSf K ^* "'*'
'fr?'^ ''"'' ^'« *^°^^^ ^«^ concrete maZ^was $16,005. He was paid $32,808. Mr. Wallberg was not the lowert

tenderer for stone ballast or concrete masonry.

NDMBEp 6—MONCTON BUILDINGS.
These are four of which three were let in one contract, and one separately.

1
.''"^P'''ce for the three was $154,945, and for the one $56,630. Mr Wall-
berg's tender for the single building was not the lowest sent in, but theDeputy Minister explained that the lower tender was withdrawn by telegram
before it had been opened. Yet the officers of the department opened this
tender and set it forth on the statement of tenders. The Minister instructed
that It WM not to be considered, and Mr. Wallberg got this contract along
with his others. When the last repor^ was made the work on the $154 945

«^n^fla r^
not nearly completed, but the contractor had already received

!Siy,088 for additions outside of the specifications.
Among the changes was an increase in foundation which was carried

two feet deeper than was intended and made wider. This extra work forwhich most of the $10,000 was paid, was mostly excavation and concrete'

Wallberg was paid for concrete
He was paid for excavation
But the Rhodes, Curry Company, we're 'paid 'for" another 'bul'ldliiion the same ground
For concrete
For excavation

Per yard.
112.75

.69

8.00
.35

THE SEWER DEAL.

.n o?f ?r^ was another job. This is a sewer over half a mile long, 20
23 feet deep with a trench 8 feet wide at the bottom and 14 feet at the

h Dennll mL 7"' ^''? ^ ^^'^
Y""''''^ ^^ "^ P"^''*^ «'°t™<'t, which

(V.S2 ^ Minister admits was made improperly and without authority.

iSfiJ A
P«ge 186.) Deputy Minister and Chief Engineer Butler, whoteshfied about the sewer, supposed it would cost about $18,000 to $20 000But he thought then that it was only 2,000 feet long, and 5 to 8 feet wid^a^

Tu^pi.
^* *"™ "''^ *° ^ ''''' ^^* ^^°^' ""^ ^^^ «« -?« as Mr. Butlel

As this sewer is not in the specification^, and is not a part of the build-mg. It should natura ly be let by tender as a new contract.^ But aLrSing
to the statement of the Chief Engineer, the top or easy part of ttTS^ef

]20

'ti

r
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k included in ttie shedule contract (page 133). The hardest and principal

part is worked by ai new scheme.
,

THE FIFTEEN FEB OEKT. BONUS.

Mr. Wallberg, under this bargain, hires men and teams and charges the

cwst to the Qovemment, witii 15 per cent, extra as his own profit He is

carrying on his other contracts and places men on this job as it suits him. He
has his own teams on the ground and hires these teams from himself, pays

himself their wages and 15 per cent, extra. With fifty men and sufficient

teams, hiring his own foremen plus 15 per cent., using his own material

plus 15 per cent., there may be $20 to $30 a day profit for a year or two

in this business.

THE INQUIRY BUKKED.

The Committee tried to find out what check the Government had, and

the Chief Engineer, after much persuasion, produced a tough looking sort

of time book. It was a marvellous exhibit. The whole sheet was hardly

legible. Men and teams were mixed together. No names were given. It

would be utterly impossible to prove by this book what men were engaged

on any day. So negligent was the whole procedure that the obstructionists

in the Committee "found the inquiry was getting inconvenient. With

one conseut they began to find objections. They objected to the time-book

and had the unfortunate, record withdrawn or concealed quickly as possible.

Finally they discovered that though the sewer jou had been going on for

a year, Mr. Wallberg had never presented an account. The obstmctionista

insisted that there was therefore nothing to investigate, and so the whole

inquiry was choked off. Nobody knows whether it will be a job of $25,000,

or $50,000, or $100,000.

NUMBER 7—CHAELOTTET )WN STATION.

This is a contract for $58,900. After the contract was made, reductions

in the work were ordered, and Mr. Wallberg's deposit was reduced to $5,000.

implying that his contract would be for $50,000. At the time of the investi-

gation he had received $70,000.

On the eight contracts mentioned, including the two in Moncton, four

had been completed when the investigation took place. Outside the other

four, Mr. Wallberg had nine contracts running with the Railway Depart-

ment. According to the testimony given he had also several with the

Marine Department.
HIS GENTLE PLEADING.

The correspondence produced by the Royal Commission shows the charm-

ing way in which Mr. Wallberg went about attending business wiiii the

Marine Department. After submitting tenders, he wrote to the Chief En-

gineer who had to deal with them

:

"I trust tluit you will be able to recommend our tender aa I fear there may M
•« some peopls who do not understand this class of work who may quote less than

" it Is worth. • • • "We will be flad to call on you at any time If you consider It

"advisable."
. , , ^ ^

To the Deputy Minister, Mr. Wallberg wrote, trosting that the Depart-

ment i^.n consider "our experience in doing this class of work." (Royal

Commission Report, page 173). Again (page 183) Mr. Wallberg wrote to

Mr. Templeman, then Acting Minister, reminding him that

"the Hon. Mr. Brodeup has given us contracts for three towers at various timet

< recently without calllnr for other tenders, and I have no doubt that he has found

" our prices qulte~reasonable. We trust you will be able to do likewise on other

"work-
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THE HODGmS' CHARGES.

INQUIRT ORDERED BUT HEVER COMPLETED.

Major Hodgins Charges False Classification And.Over Payments
On Transcontinental, And G. T. P. Engineers Confirm

The Accusation.

This is the histoiy of an unfinished Parliamentary inquiry. Serious
charges were made by an engineer who had been in the Government service,
and the same accusation* were subsequently made in stronger terms and'
greater detail by the Assistant Chief Engineer of tiie Grand Trunk Pacific.
They stand to-day unrefuted and uninvestigated.

WHO IS MAJOB HODOINS.
Major A. E. Hodgins graduated from the Military College in 1882, was

engineer on C. P. E. construction till 1889, and afterwards on the Mexican
Inter-Oceanic, and in British Columbia until he volunteered for South Africa.
He served in the War, was promoted to the rank of Major, became chief officer
of construction on Imperial Railways and later Superintendent of Govern-
ment railways in the Transvaal. Returning in 1905 he was appointed Dis-
tnct Engineer for the 400 miles east of Winnipeg. In September, 1907
he was asked to resign, and the following April made statements 'to the
V ictoria, B.C., Colonist, which led to the pretended investigation.

THE CHABOES.
These charges, as afterwards foi-mukted, were substantially as follows:^•••t the Government CommlMlonp- onstructln* the TranscoBtlnental author!

^. J^
J^rmltted Improper claaaiflcr contracta ao that sand and loose rockwere paid for «« aoUd rock.

tract^^LT/b"*?^'"' .^"^f*"' '•«'T^ "" ^'f"*'" clMslflcaUon than the con-

;^iL^ J. ^ *^* contractor appealed ^ the Commissioners, or one of them, whotdvlaed him to use greater llberaUty. and Commissioner Young asked him to «o

«tiSld.'"
'"^ '"' ^ *"*^'*'' '"""" '"'"' ^"'*''°* ^- ^hereZ ^SictoTs we^

«„„'^**Vj!2.^'!"i"*
"'"*''*' district Major Hodglns found serious over cUssiflca-tlon and refused to permit that method In his district.

cutssmca

That the Commissioners sent Mr. Gordon Grant to inspect Major Hodgins'

c a-SSeaflon ™" *°""'*' '"'^ *^ contractor, and subordinate engineers that the

™^f!?thlir o^!!.I'^.r^*1' ^i*'-«''P«" the division officers under Major Hodglnsraised their elusiflcatlon, changing sand and loose rock to solid rock.
That, finding contractor McArthur - king unsatisfactory progresa. Major Hod-

^«r»i:H?L*M'''»-.^'''"'
^"»'°**' ' " *"« CcmmYjonS.^pfr^ed.^e

matter might be adjusted as to those places where Ihere was disputed claaslflcation

™«^tstl!f„ «-f*T "'"
fiJf*^ ""i'*"

' '"» " P*' •«»*• " * Qfick -etuement T^U
ZT^II^^ ^^^^^.^J ""• """"««"'«" "«"• acted upva in classification

S^^^w^^' "^**",? "n- " *" alternative to false clarelflcation.

for ^m^i^^„^. *'^'»^' dismissed without invertlgation although he asked

Ihat W- 5f;™iJ^, " "tft^*"^"*' t« the press Major Hodglns practicS^^y chargedthat his dismissal was In consequence of his refusal to over classify.
"•'*~

COMMISSION ASKS FOB A COMMITTEE.
On the 23rd of April Hon. S. M. Parent, Chairman of the Commission,

wrot« to the Premier declaring Major Hodgins' statements without founda^
bon, and asking thut the whole matter involved be referred to a Committee
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of the House, and that Major Hodging be assigned to appear and substan-

tiate his charges. On the SRth Sir Wilfrid moved that the statements of

Major Hodgins and of the Commissioners be referred to a special committee.

The five members named were Messrs. Qeoflrion, Carvell and Macdonald of

Pictou, Liberals; Messrs. Barker and Lennox, Conservatives. The Cunser-

vatives had made no charges in this matter, and had no share in the pro-

ceedings except to consent to them and to urge that the inquiry be as com-

plete as possible. The Committee met April 29th, and at the second meeting

Major Hodgins was present.

UNFAIR ATTITUDE.

Liberal members of the Committee at once showed the frame of mind
with which they approached the question.. The Transcontinental Commission
has a salaried lawyer on the staff, but engaged Mr. Charles Murphy, K.C..

of Montreal, at public expense, to defend the Commissioners. Mr. Frank
Hodgins, K.C., appeared for Major Hodgins, and asked that the Committw
provide counsel to conduct the inquirj'. He pointed out that tiie Govern-

ment had ordered the investigation in the public interest, but had thrown the

burden of it on Major Hodgins, who had no personal interest in the out-

come. Major Hodgins could not be expected to employ prosecuting counsel

for a protracted inquiry. It was shown that the Conservative Government
had paid the fees of counsel employed by Mr. Tarte for the prosecution

in the McGreevy investigation, and that in this case, where many vitnessos

were to be examined and much documentary evidence produced, services of

skilled counsel were absolutely necessary.

.JUDGMENT IN ADVANCE.

Messrs. GeofEribn, Macdonald and Carvell refused. The two latter

began by treating Major Hodgins as a kind of criminal. Mr. Carvell saiil:

" It is possible that Major Hodgins may feel his position to be a hardship to

some extent, but he has himself to thank for It. Nobody asked him to do it."

And again: "If a man deliberately puts himself in a position which may be un-

pleasant, I see no reason why the Country should go to the expense, at least at

this stage of the proceedings, of perhaps hundreds of thousands of dollars to

enable this man to make political capital."

Mr. Macdonald offered the further remark, that " Major Hodgins appears

"in the category of an official who had been dismissed from the service."

and added that in a court "the charges of a gentleman in that position

" would naturally be viewed with suspicion." (Page 74.) Again, Mr.

Macdonald said to Mr. Hodgins, K.C.

:

\"Taur client. In his letters and Interviews to the press undertook to malign

public men including the Commissioners and Sir Wilfrid Laurier" (page 79.)

Further (page 81)." I do not think Major Hodgins has any right to make such

Insinuations regarding public msn of this Country."

Lastly <pag« 84) we have this from Mr. Carvell. " This matter arises out of

certain charges by Major Hodgins in which he made reflections of the most seven

character upon prominent public men and that part has been referred to u»

Now his counsel will say whether ne is going on to prove that or whether he 1;

not. I notice that Mr. Barker does not indicate whether he thinks he can prove

It or not"
Mr, Barker. ** Do you know whether he can or not? **

Mr. Carvell. "We know he cannot"

THE BLOCKEBS AGAIN.

These pronouncements of the majority members of the Committee were

made before a word of evidence had been given. They show what prospect

of a fair inquiry Major Hodgins had to face.
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decLrn^ ? *'''^!°** ^" '^^*°' *^« "'^iority <>' the Committee

The;^v;i.h^%T °°*.f«°««™«d in any matter of ovewlasaSS!
ite/wSdd Wf^

hear endence comiecting the Commi«iion or some mSister with dehberate interference to procure over-payment

^nno^"?*"*
overK:la88ification alleged would mean millions of Governmentmoney mipropedy paid it would seem worth while for the CommiST«t

tt tVl^K "T^"^-
'^^ "'"t'^'t with the G. T. P. Corp^ytrOTiSLfor arbitration between the Government and the Company on tlSe S?tte«

i,«Hi\°'".^''
"^

IT'"""^
^^^ ^^^ring from contracto^a^^ oVeTpSSSSmade to them, while it does provide that tho r T u n ^ paymenn

payment to the Govemme^tTltf'e^xctV^e- sLt' "^Thr^'TveTSCanada are left in the gap. and a committee of thTtex payer^J pSlnJmight have been expected to ascertain these matters when appoint^ forXtpurpo*^; this is what the majority of the Committee refusK d^xne next obstruction thrown in the wav was thp rpfnaoi +« ^_j„' iv
duction of all reporte and documents be7oi l^^r^HodgTl jffi^*^'C
for the prosecution was not allowed to determine for himself i^ what orZ^he should call witnesses or in what manner he should produce evidence.

OBSTRUCTION BY THE MAJ^RITT.

tion SJ S°J^'°\°°
*^^ ^^^^ re-affirmed the statements of over-classifica-

Mav 9!;^*+"''^''^?^"""
*,nf

""^^ examination May 20th. He continued

&hv ;viTfn'!2'T- ?! Committee adjourned to Jun. 3rd, when Mr
cnZil^w? r^ ^^T^\ ^^'^ «'"'°g«' *°^ t*° on J»°e 4th when tiie3 ZZp", "T^'l,^?'

"^'''° ^"y'- ^° J"'^^ l^th Mr. Murphy re.um^
Mr M«.H ?/.r"^^ *r ''"'"'^'- There were two sittings Jn the 16th,Mr. Macdonald taking a hand on the latter date.

'

£on ^fno^i o

f'^^n kept forty days at Ottawa at his own cost. He had

ment I??if„1T'''V''^^ T'^f prosecuting would be paid by the Qovem-

a a Culprit «nd r"f ^'"tl
"* ^^' Ix'ginning, by the majority of the court

fL\?.^ ' ^«J°"n«i tho resources of the country employed in prolong-

chfr^s ^Th'^ p";:li""'
PT'".;°? ^™. *« ^"°^ ^" evidence ^ supJortJIicharges. The engineers who had made the classifications, and who couldgive important evidence had been summoned and were kept day afLrdaJ

a^^'fnd'ilir
°"' '" *'^ '^^™"^"^''" *^°* «-^ -<^ -- ti7sam?8i?^

*>,« Mo-''"'
'^**^ ^^/'- .^"'T'^-^ *° ^^- "«^^'°« tliat the Quebec cut which&e Major represented as having been classified as 86 per cent, solid rock hSDeen classified much lower. The witness said that if Mr. MurpvisStem^twaa correct he would admit that he had been misinformed ^

statement

• THE MACDONALD PROGBAMME.

in hZ^lfZ'tj ^""^'^^ proceeding. Mr. Macdonald took the witneM

Se ^i'^^fLn?rt-^'Tfu".?P°l""'*y *" ^^"''^ ^"rther expense and drop

Stn^f ? * •*^"'? ^'rK the charge of ovPr-classification Some legidopmions and engmeers' opinions had been produced, and Mr. HodSns wmasked whether the qu^tions involved were not techniWl. Witness fdmittedthat there might be differences of opinion, and that he could not o?er evSenc«
133



to show that Mr. Parent tried to inflnenoe Sir Wilfrid Lttirier. Then fol*

lowed thii question:
" Ton mad* um of the •zpronlon tha other day that yon did not ngard thia

CommlttM as the proper tribunal to determine the qoMttona at lame.

Major Hodflna answered. " With all due deference to the Committee I do not."

Replying to further questions Major Hodgins was willing to accept Mr.

Macdonald's view that a board of engineers would be a better tribunal, a

reaeonable view after a few weeks' experience with Mr. Macdonald and Mr.

Carrell.

Question. " Have you sn.s eicslre to go on glvlnc evidence here or do yon not

think that the proper tribunal to determine this question Is a board of arbitrators

composed of Mr. Woods, Mr. Lumsden and a third arbitrator?—Answer. I think

It la for the Committee to decide that.

Mr. McDonald. I understand you to say you do not desire to press before thla

Committee any charge of wrong doing on tl<e part of the Commission so far as
their Interference with the engineers is concerned?—^Answer. That Is right.

Q. And so far as that phase of the Inquiry Is concerned, you do not offer any
evidence for our consideration?—A. It is simply this that I do not see why I

should stand the expense of finding out whether this specification is right or ^^ronff.

Q. Or whether the academic question between engineers should l>e settled at

your expense? That Is the position you tal<e.—A. Tes.

POSITION OF HAJOK HODGINS.

Major Hodgins' position was simply this: If the Government chose to

pay out the people's money improperly and to treat him as an oflEender and

make him pay thousands and waste his whole summer fighting obstruction to

prove that he was right, he was willing to drop the case before a Committee

which he had found obstructive and partisan and to turn over the investigation

to a commission of engineers. He was led to believe that there would be

such a commission with some one to maintain the public interest before it.

In this he was deceived. There has been and will be no inquiry such as he

expected for the protection of the people, though there will be arbitration

for the protection of the G. T. P. Company from excessive payments, and

what the Company escapes the people will pay.

DUTY OF THE COMMITTEE.

When Major Hodgins was driven to flie conclusion that he could obtain

his vindication from a competent commission at far leas expense the question

arose what the Committee should do. The three Liberals proposed to abandon

the inquiry and report the charges unproved. They were now willing to

recommend payment of Major Hodgins' counsel by Government. That is,

they were ready to pay for Major Hodgins if he threw uo the case and allow

his charges to be reported unproven, while they had refused to recommend
payment when he proposed to go on with his proof. This was one way of

making it expedient for Major Hodgins to quit.

Tlie two Conservative members took another view. They held that they

were bound to find out if they could whether there was false classification and
over payment. They pointed out that Major Hodgins did not institute the

inquiry, but was only a witness. The investigation was not in his charge

and he had no authority to stop it. His evidence had been taken. Other

witnesses had been called and it was the duty of the Committee to examine
them.

STBONOES CHARGES THAN HODGINS'.

There was, in fact, more reason to continue the inquiry than there had

been to begin it, for the papers brought down contained accusations from the
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hipheat source, much Btrooger than thow originaUy referred to the Com-
mittee.

H. A. Woods, C.E., Assistant Chief Engineer of the Qnmd Trunk Pacific
was charged by his company with the duty of watching classification. The
following is one of the statements made officially by Mr. Woods after Major
Hodgins was retired. The document was given in evidence and is orinted on
page 393 and 394 of the proceedings.

^

Mr. P. D. Lum-den.
**'"''-'• *»"*• "^ '• ^•^-

Chief Engineer, Eaatem Division.
National Trancontlnental Railway,

Ottawa, Ont.

Clasaifloatlon of Materia], District 'B.'

r.c^i^Hv'" Juk'"'^***^*
request of District Engineer Armstrong, he was fumishadrecently wltli a statement of classification for the heavier work on the abov*

^ l.„.*.«*. L'^w'^*'"*'.
'"'*" »"'*" '" **'»"• <» Afferent from his expectations thathe requested the writer to visit the worlc.

During the past weeic we passed over portions of the worI< from the Batiscamriver west for fifteen or twenty miles, and later from 116 to 132.

„,
,"^"*','"«'««"ence to the former portion, the classiflcation was given In distances

Vi"" . . ! *° "^'^ "*"*' ""^ * "^^ **"J not have total quantities of graduatioto,
°^, "i". } '^^ ''"'' reference to any particular cutting, although percentages forentire distance seemed excessively heavy In both loose and solid roclc.

With the la.tter portion we had detailed percentage for each cut, and were
greatly surprised at the allowances made for solid and loose rock. In nearlyevery ca,se where the cuttings were not entirely all ledge the estimate given for
solid rock is double, or more than double, what It should be. In fact, the specifi-
cations had been entirely Ignored and an excessive allowance made, not by reasonor an error in Judgment, but. as I understand, by special instructions from the
assistant district engineer.

A FEW SAMPLES.
Let me give you some illustrations:
Take the cutting from stations 6818 to 5826, estimated 71 per cent solid rock«nd 29 per cent loose rock, slopes taken out 1% to 1. Very llttiriedge In thl.cut. some large boulders, but a very large percentage is conimon excavationStation 6842 to 5860.-Chissifled 94 per cent solid rock. 6 per cent iMse ^ck.Slopes taken out IH to 1. Solid rock over-classified at least 100 per cent
Station 5886 to 5875.-Estlmatea SO per cent solid rock, 20 per cent loose rock.

Xtiin «^«?.'" «n? ''"JS-
."^"'^ '^'•^ boulders, but a large amount of earth.Station 588.J to 5901.—Estimated 78 per cent solid rock, 22 per cent loose rock

^UK ft *'I)°""* °' HV' ''"' "'^'>*^^ *"h slip scrapers, and ploughing being done

Zr^Z\^\r' *""^ hundreds of yards of earth here without a stone!

*r»,. ^J*'ir f**'"
'° «046.-Estlmated 40 per cent solid rock, 10 per cent loose rock.

Zulu aw',"?,..'*"''/"* r"' °' O'Brien's camp. Of the 95,boo yards m^ed toAugust 81st In this cut, at least 80,000 yards was* pure sand
Station 6071 to 6078.-E8timated 40 per cent solid rock.' 1 per cent loose rock.Very little solid rock In place. Slopes out 1% to 1.

"^ * »^ ™»" "»°se rocK.

WEST OF ST. MAURICE HIVER.

«and ^ufwlt'hMw J!."m~^'"T*^"* " ^"^ ""' «°"'' ''^^- 83 Per cent loose rock,

faken out
boulders, and possibly 1,500 yards ledge in bottom of cut not yet

No fvldence'of'i.*^J^*'*r^*'"V*'*. ^° '**'" ""* •»""» "'='' " P^' «"» K*"" ">^^
Statton «Kft« ^«?'* ^7. '*'* ""«•* boulders: nearly ail sand.

Thl. -^ L?J. ' *" «512.-Estini*ted 16 per cent solid rock, 44 per cent loose rock.This U purely a sand cut, with very few boulders. Upper sl^e nearir'oo tort

Thi/i''"^ ""i** 6648.-Estlmated 26 per cent solid rock, 4» per cent loose rock

w^used^rwrnddr'ri^V'r"' ^^^ •'"'"• '^^^'^ ""•« •^•^ srowrexce^;^^was used for blind dr. ins, but some large bouMer. not placed In embankment.
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I

Ob aeoount of heavy ralna we were not a3a» to go wMt of station MOO, but we
•nAtntand that olanlflcation u made about as noted abovai

In erery eaae where cuttlnca were not entirely la ledc* we find tba material
orarolaaalfled very lartely. Mr. Armatronvvhaa beea over this work at dlffsrent
times, porhi^ quite as often as the assistant district eadnesr. 'His estlmata and
my own are not very different as to the amount of classlflsd omterfal, and unti
IM reoslved detailed quantities he had no InUmatlon that such heavy classtfloatlon
had Ibwen dven. In many eases, particularly in sand and gravel cuts, he had
apposed that no classlfleatlon would l>e (Ivan, ozoept pertiapf for a f''w boundersM loosa rook. )

I am Informed also that on the work east of ths St Lawrence river heavy
Slasslflcatlan Is being mi ie In borrowed material whsra ploughing la done with one
team and material move:. In slip scrapers.

As before stated, these over-classiflcatlons are not made through error In Judg-
irisBt, nor upon the decision of the resident or division engineers, who are fully
oqnalnted with the character of the worl^ but by arbitrary orders from their
opsrior. To such dassincatlon as mentioned above. Increasing the cost of the
woric to such an alarming extent,, we most seriously protest, and respectfully
vaqusst that either yourself or the assistant chief engineer visit the work and pass
Judgment upon the classification as made. Pleasa note that the percenUge given
above Indicate the work done to August Slst We are not advised what tho
lumber estimate will show.

Tour truly,

(Signed) H. A. Woods.
Assistant Chief ETnglneer.

NOTE TUB PRICES.
^^By way of explanation it may be said that when the engineer gives the
«^ as 11/2 to 1 where the estimate is 99 per cent, of solid rock and 1 per cent.
of loose rock, he proves that it could not be a true rock cut which would be
nearly perpendicular. It is necessary to make a slant where the cut is
ttrough earth, but not through solid rock. The term " wasted" means that
tte material excavated is not used in making fills or embankments but is
ttirown away, and the contractor is paid for filling besides. When the
aigmeer says that not more than 10 per cent, of the material should be classi-
fied, he means that there is only this percentage of both solid and loose rock,
and that 90 per cent, is common excavation. Notice how this works out on
tne contracts to which Mr. Woods' criticisms refer.

From Quebec for 151 miles West on two contracts the prices are as
fMlowB :

—

For solid rock „ m
Loose rock "...."..'..' ^11
Common excavation .'. .' .'.' '' '* " " " " "

,:

Down to March 1!)07 there was paid on those contracts-
"

Pur solid rock «2 o«« «7i
For loose rock Sn '?In
For c<Hnmon excavation ',',

., ' " '' "
'11 389On the McArtlirr en-itniot tlio .'oilnwins iwvments were made-
"

Loose rock at j^ 148 fl«nCommon excavation at ^^ 291968

WHAT IT MEANS IN DOLLARS.

It will be seen by these figures Um, it means to classify a cut 71 per ct-ut.

olid rock at $1.50, 29 per cent loose lock at 50 cents, and, no earth, if there
wag practically no solid rock, and a very Uwge percentage of common exca-
vation which should be charged at 21 cents.

Or to daasify 94 per cent, of solid rock at $1.50 when there should be
only 47 per cent, at that price, and the rest charged at 50 cents or 21 cents.
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And what it meuis to charge 78 per cent feolid rock, SS per cent looM
mck, and no earth, when a large part u common earth without a stone in it
and is ploughed up hy two horse-teams and thrown out by the scraper. Meet
people know that two horses cannot plough solid rock.

Take the work reported by Mr. Woods, stations 6030 and 6046, for th«
month of August, which may he calculated because the exact quantity is ffiven.
Here was 98,000 yards charged as follows

:

SS.000 yards at tl.CO 117,000
»,300 yards at 50 eta 4*750

47,600 yards at 21 eta (,'075

Total
^ 171710

Mr. Wooda aaya that 88.000 yarda waa pwa aand worth 21 eanta lie 800
If th« other ^5,000 waa aoUd rock It would b« worth 22,'500

'^°'»' tSMM
But probably half of It would be loose rock, making the value of

the 16,000 yarda 116,000

In thla oaae the total would be Ul 000

But the Govemment paya $71,72i
So that Mr. Woods' statement m uppliod to this portion of t*ip work is

that the cost has been doubled. It would probably work out the same with
ihe other samples.

THIS COVKIUMS HODOIN8.

These statements of tlie (irund Trunk Pacific Engineer and many others

of the same kind from him and his subordinates were on record when the
Ilodgins charges were referred to the Committee. Their existence was known
to the Government but not to the House. They were stronfer charges than
those of Major Hodgins and certainly equally worthy of investigation, coming
as they did from the representative of the company with which the people

are dealing.

In addition to iHiese statements, which were repeated and re-affirmed,

there was the testimony of Major Hodgins as to his own district, that after a
visit to his division by an inspecting engineer, sent out bv the Commission,
his subordinates, whom this inspector had interviewed, immediatelv be'^'"' to

raise the classification. They chu L!;ed common excavation into loose rock

and loose rock into solid rock. One of these subordinate eneineers explfiined

that he transferred certain amounts to the higher classification '"""inse of the

cost of working. This subordinate engineer was reported by Major Hodgins as

having changed muskeg in solid rock and having made various other improper

classifications. Mr. Hodgins had added in his letter to the Chief Entrineer

that " if common excavation and loose rock are to be dimiped n-^ilo^ale into

the column for solid rock against my orders I wish to be relieved of all re«T>on-

sibility."

COMMITTEE SHOULD HAVE GONE ON.

With these statements of Major Hodgins re-affirmed in his evidence, and

with the stronger and more authoritative and precise charges of Mr. Woods
before them, it was clearly the business of the Committee to go on and find

out the truth. The thing in which the public was most interested was the

matter of over-pa3rment8, end that question was not affected hv Maior hod-
gins' desire to have the case transferred to another tribunal, eso'v.innv since

that tribunal will be of no service in the matter. Mr. Barker and Afr. Len-
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aos desired to examine Chief Ea|iiMer Lomsden ud other either officen of
the TnaMcontinentml and Grand Tmnk Pamftc, who bad been aammoned and

.

wwa waiting to tertify. Meaara. Geoffri(r% McDonald and Carre^' Liberal
members of the Committee, refitted to go a step farther, and broaghi the
inqabir to an end.

1*110 majority of the Committee reported that Major Hodgins had failed

(o proTe his durr-^s, and had withdrawn some of them, apd that the qnestiMi*
of dassiflcatfon t ould be referred to <.nother tribunal.

THE BEJKCTED BEPOBT.

The minority of the Committee drew up a report, which, after reciting
the history of the case, concluded:

Aa Bhown by th« papers and doeumcnta produoad by tba aald oommlaslOBara to
yonr ooramlttM and set forth In the printed minutes of the prooaedlnga of your
oommlttee now reported, many charves of over-olasslflcation, of exeaartv allow-
•aoiM, and undue paynMnta by the said commissioners to the contractors, of a
Ulw daaoriptlon «o those chars«d by Major Hod(lns, have formally been made by
and on behalf of the Grand Trunk Pacific Railway Company, which charges Involve
and are examples of enormbus over payments out of the public funds, and art of
serious concern to this Dominion. They cover and Include not only the eharres
made by Major Rodglns, but other speclflc and moro serious complaints of the like
nature and description; and not merely for the period dealt with by Major fiTodglns
but are continuous up to the time of the order of reference to your committee.

Such complaints and chargea are within the scope of the order under which
your committee have been conducting this inquiry and should be Inrestlgated by
them.

On the 16th day of June, 1908, certain sUtements and opinions havlp* been
•Uctted from Major Hodgins as to the attitude he then assumed and his wishes
in the premises, as appears of record In the said printed evidence a majority of
your oommlttee despite the protest o. 'he minority ruled and thereafter maintained
that the matters and charges referr. i m your committee of investigation be not
further proceeded with \.y your con..- I'.tee.

Tour committee, therefore, humbly make this Interim report and recommend
that the subject-matter of the investigation be remitted to the committee with
Instructions to proceed therein until completion.

The majority report, blocking further investigation, was, of course,
adopted, and presented to the House.

Mr. L^inox moved an amendment that the minority report be substituted
and a straight party majority voted down the' motion and accepted tho resolu-
tion, bloclcinpr the inquiry.

THE END OF IT. I,

•^ .^° ,*® ^^^''^ inquiry was blocked and ended, and the public can eet no
further light on the subjeci

One thing the public does know and this is that the Government now

?ii?^/^o
"** °^ building the railway from Moncton to Winnipeg at

f114,403,219, whereas five years ago the Ministers produced statements that
the cost of exactly the same work would be $51,300,000.

How much of this additional cost is due to over-classification is not
known, and ttie majority of Parliament has decided not to aUow the people
to find ont.

188



SUB-TAKGBT DIAL.

OoTernnMnt Pays faso Bach For Machinoi That Coat I64.

—Proflti Go To Dead-Haad Stockholders, And Perhapa

To Campaign Contritmtiona.

la the Session of 1907 an investigation wu omunenced into the tram*
actions of the Militia Department with the Ontario SuliHTargot Company,
Limited. The inquiry was prolonged into 1908, and was then hijaded off by
obstructors. The sul^target is a machine used for iiistraction m ihooting.
It was exhibited in 1904 by Mr. J. H. Jewell, who obtnmed ttriooa tesU-
nionials in its favor from officers, some of whom afterwards recdved
blocks of stock. H. H. Dewart, K.C., of Toronto, a prominent Liberal
politician, joined Mr. Jewell in urging the Department to ouy th'**- machines.
It was mannged quickly. A contract was made on tlw 3')tn of June, 1904,
for 200 machines at $250 each, with a possible purchase o' 2,00U On the
2nd of July Sir Frederick Borden wrote to Mr. Jewell

:

WOULD WANT 1,000.

"I hav* looked somewhat carefully Into tbe rMiulrementa of the mllttitt force
In thia regard, and have sattafleil myself that It would be monfcy well expended to
supply each of the units in Canada with one or more of the machines. I am
eatlsfled that hi the matter of enltatment of recruits alone great saving oould b«
e((eoted by the use of this machine, and I hope that regulations will be Issued befor*
long requiring every recruit on enlistment to be tested with one of these machines

,

I think therefore that It Is probable that we shall require to repeat the order al-
ready given, annually, until at least one machine is In the possession of each
military unit of the militia in Canada. I have not myself carefully calculated the
number of units, but I l>elieve It is approximately 1,000.

Tours very truly,

(Signed) F. W. Bobsbm."

This signified the intention of buying at least 1,0)'), and tue contract

itself holds out tiie hope of still larger purchaocs. t>ue cleute states that
" the Government shall be bound and entitled to purchase twia. the contractor

all sub-target gun machines required " for five years, th? vKiutiactor agreeing

to deliver "not more than 2,000" if the Qovenmient ilpjinji, within a year

following the order. Mr. Jewell and Mr. Dewart seem to have thought that

they had a good agreement for about 2,000 machines. Tijit would have been

a $500,000 deal.

8AHE AS TU£ BOSS RIFLE.

The contract set forth t^at the machines were to be manufactured in

Canada, but in less than two months Mr. Dewart asked the privily; of import-

ing portions of the machine, and that these parts mighii be idmitted free of

duty. The Minister at first declined, but aiterwarda .'Agreed t!itt imported

parts might be used.

It has been stated that the Government paid $250 each for these ma-
chines. As the Company fanned out the work it was a simple nutter to

figure up the profit. The cost of machine was stated in the evidence by Mr.
George I. Riddell, Manager of the Sub-Target Company. He was aslred:

Question. " What la It you pay for the work done?—Answer. $64.

Q. Tor each machine?—A. Yes Sir.
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^fV J?*'"*^ ^ inMtrtal and att workf-^ Tm Mr.Thk indtoatM tlM profit. The next thing i« to find oat who got it

DBAD BBAO ITOOS.
ITie prorooten organiud • Companr. Cath csDital «m iia« nmniHwi

S i^u ""?u'""u'*r**^'"^ •* $1,000,000, of which $404,500 wL dSSS
aWhirwrf^rcotsLj"""-* '"' -'^ •*'^^- -ot«.rJ,t„'?t

vj P*' i'**"*?^"? nndertook t.. give Mr. Jewell $60,000, pint $500000 of

fOU,uoo. Mr. Jewell, however, handed out shtres ia well anortixl h1»i» 4»

iftodndS" " ^ '^"°*" *''^*°'*' ^^^' P^ «8 "»d «3
B. H, Dcwsrt •.. ,^.
W. O. Hurdnutn .. .s .. *\l^
Sir Adolpha Caron *•??*

F. O. Lawla. Montraal "'?J?

T^^^^ ¥• '^U***' Toronto, and hia flrm i4».ooftA. O. Paoeban, Toronto irJS;
Jamea W. Wooda, otuwa ?''*2!
H. H. Wlckwlre. Barrtater. KentvMle. N.S. ."Z i?"SJ?
Major B. T. Labom. London

'JJJJ
Mr. Dewart was a director of tiic Company, one of the party leadm. anda occauonal candidate in elections. Mr. Woods is a contractor with the

Government, and rents to the Militia Department the buildings which it occu-

^"*i^ i^^'^.;
He also takes a large interest in poliUcs. Mr. Wickwire

waa Sir Fred. Borden s chief political manager in King's County, Nova Scotia,
repreaenting the same constituency in the local Legislature.

INQUIKT 0B8TBUCTED.

An attempt was made in the Committee> find out whether anvthinir
was paid for this stock and to follow up the transfers. Hon. Mr. EmmersoT,
Uien Minister of Railways, Mr. Pardee and others objected, and the investiea^
toon was blocked in this direction.

*

One of these directors was H. H. Wickwire, M.P.P., who appeared as
witness on January 30th, 1908. He testified that he was one of throririnal
incorporators and directors, and that he gave a note for $500 which he never
paid (page 3, 1908). He also received a block of $25,000 worth of stodc
The following are extracts of his testimony

:

Queation. "What consideration did you »Jva for the atockT—Anawar I mve
• Bota tor 1600 and thaother conBlderatlon was that I waa a promoter andWnliwOf the Company the same as the other Dlrectora."

orwaniier

Mr. Macdonald, of Pictou, objected to further examination on this line
Mr. Wickwire stated later that he had sold his stock.

A OOINCIOENOE.

This issue and distribution of stock was made in the Summer andAutumn of 1904, which was election year. In 1906 a writ was issued in the
High Court of Justice between J. H. Jewell & Co., plaintiffs, and the follow-
ing defendants

:
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r. Orr Ijtwi*, H. H. Wickwire, WUliMU North, Charles N. Panet moA Sir

Traderick Bordan. Tha Btatement ci daim waa aa foUowa. ( Svi^anoe. IWT,
pife454):

1. Tti* plaliitittB ar* bankara and brokan ouTjrlna on btwtnM* at Um City at

Taroato In Um Provtaea at Ontario.
I. Tba dafandant* ara all Brltlah aabiacta. and with tba axeaptlon «( dafandaat

Nortk, raaMInc wttMn tba Dominion of Canada.
S. On or About tba Uth day of Ootobar, 1104, tba plaintiffs loanad to tiM

datfandanU tha aum of tt.OOO by draft payable to tha datendant H. H. WIekwIra,
and whteh draft wma andoraed by th« defendant Wlokwlra to th* dafandaat North,
and th* proaaada of /which draft ware Jointly raoalvad by all tha above nania<
dafandaBta.

4. On or about tha llth day of June IMC tha dafandanta, thronsb one J. H.
JawMI, repaid to tha plalntlffa tha aum of tT.OOO an account of aaM ladabtadaaaa.

i. >mount atlll dua to tha plaintiffs by the defendants on aocoont of saM
loan la tha aura of •Mtl.Tt and Intaraat tharaon at ( par cent on the Itnd day aC
May 1N«.

Pointa to be noted in thia are that the plaintiff waa the promoter of the

•ub-target contract and the diatribntar of Mm itock.

T£it two of the defendants were directors and three of them shareholden

in the Company, a fourth was the Minister of Militia, and the fifth a gentl»>

man living in Boston, with whom Sir Frederick Borden testified that he waa
acquainted.

That the $9,000 draft was made payable to Mr. Wickwire, M.P.P., who
had a great deal to do with Sir Frederick Borden's campaign organization in

King's County.

That the time waa shortly after the sub-target contract was made, and a
few days before the elections.

INQUIBT BLOCKED.

Mr. Wickwire waa questioned concerning this matter. Mr. Fogtcr asked

him if he had any recollection of two telegrams sent by him to Mr. Jew*>lL

One was on July dlst, 1904, reading

:

" lioavlnf via Boston. Oet letter forthwith and wire that same has been sent

proper party. Will arntnae meeting next week by wire. Must be prepared for

business on delivery of papers."
Tha next waa In Aucuat Sin ' Trust you appreciate the necenclty of having

letter beforj prorogation and Ministers leaving OtUwa."

Mr. Wickwire could not remember anything about these, and on the objec-

tion of Mr. Macdonald further questioning on the subject was ruled out. Mr,

Foster proposed to read a letter from Mr. Jewell to Mr. Wickwire, dated Sep-

tember 30th, 1904, when Mr. Macdonald objected that Mr. Foetcr only pro-

fessed to have a ccpy. Mr. Foster explained that Mr. Wickwire had failed to

bring the original. The acting Chairman, Mr. Carvell, supported the objec-

tion and also decided that the Committee could not go into transactions be-

tween different members of the Company, but must confine itaelf to the ques-

tion whether the Government got value for the money paid to the Company.

Mr. Foster appealed from the decision, which was supported by the Gov-

ernment majority m the Committee.

Mr. Foster moved that the ruling of the Chair and the action of the

Committee be reported to the House and a decision be asked tehreon.

Thereupon Hon. Mr. Pugsley, Minister of Public Works, made his ap-

pearance with a new form of obstruction. He took the ground that there

could be no appeal to the House until the sub-target inquiry was closed. Tlie

answer to this was that the appeal would be no good unless the inquiry could
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ttj'^^faiirttt'. motion the Conumttee adjonnied and the inquiry was d^j
THE nUTATB BEOHITABT.

ir«.*3Sf
P°^^*»^ tterefore have to draw their own oondnuonB aa to the

S?S^'^*'2S^"!l- f^Pyo'thewritinthemiitZS^m^SmS
f^iS^^ ^f«^' P^-te -ecretary, who had $2,000 worth of stock,

SL!^r^^* «*J* * '^^ ^^<^ '^*8 ne'er P*Jd. Mr. pi»et states that iS^
flTf ^^^"^"^^ ^^ »»te. "Sd that he SJdTri!; uS
« if I tJ^iJr "^l

l^yti'^ng^yronfi: in taking it^ and innocently rSnarked

some o?'S^s nTe ' °"1ff^°f •'^"^ ^r«^* ^^^^ ^^ «>« »*«''^ ^^ ^some one else's name. Mr. Panet is evidenUy an obawving official.

THS raonn.

wh^t^i nifflf]**'' ^^^i!? 'i? f* *^'' ?"**»' i* 0% 'e™»in« te figure outwhat the piofita would be. Unfortunately for the Company the truiaact^n

1^'t?^ **"*w*
investigation and exposure, and no more ordeS wSJgiven. The account for the 450 machines stands as follows •

450 machine. »t 1250 each „,,=«„
Cost the Company $64 each '.'."..!,.'.

;. 28*800

Balance
X<eBa prioe of patent rlalit

."....'.' fM""
Balance, profit 50,000

Government would pay ...

Maxdilnes would cost . .
$250,000

Profit 64,000
_ ^ 186,000 .

Leaving $136,000 after paying fof the ripht.
The second 1,000 mentioned in the contract wouKl have yielded thegratuitous stockholders another $186,000.

yieiaea tne
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DSSDGmG C0HTRACT8.

Many MiUians ^leiit In n Free And Basy Way With Political

Contractors And Easy, Inspectors.

Out of some $14,000 000 which the Public Works Dep;vrtineot is author-

ized to spend in 1908-9, $3,000,000 or more will be for contract dredging, in

addition to amounts expended on the Qovemmenfs own dredging plant

Dredging contracts given out by the Oovernment in receut years represent

an enormous expenditure, a very large part of which has gune into the hand*

of political groups and friends and families of members of Parliament
It would be extraordinary that witii so many lines of activity open to

politicians so many of them should gravitate tc this particular business if

it were not for the other fact that they seem to have found it exceedingly

profitable.

Corporate names disguise the connection of most of these politicians

with Qovemment contracts.

POLITICAL DBEDOEBS.

For instance, the Penetanguishene Dredging Company means Dr. Spohn,
ex-M.P., and former Ontario office holder.

The Owen Sound Dredging Company stands for Hon. A. Q. Macka}',

formerly Minister in the Boss Government, and now Leader of the Ontario
Opposition, and certain relatives of Dr. McDonald, ex-M.P., former deputy
speaker.

The Great Lakes Dredging Company is composed of Mr. Bowman,
M.P.P., and his brother, witi^ the son-in-law of James Comnee, M.P., and
his brother.

In another company the son of a senator, and the brothers of an M.P.
were the chief persons 'coiicerned.

In the Dominion Dredging Company the dominant power is Mr. Gordon
Stewart, son of the member for Ottawa.

The Windsor Company includes several active politicians and has for

president a former member of the Legislature.

Another contractor is one of the men mentioned by Pritchett, the in-

structor of ballot switching, as having introduced him to prospective students

in the art
When it is considered that one dredging company lias received over

$3,000,000, another $1,300,000, and several others between a quarter of a
million and a million each, we begin to understand the extent of the financial

relations between the Minister of Public Works and his political friends.

QUSXB TEKDEBS.

The Government contends that this work is generally given out by con-

tract to the lowest tenderer. This seems to be true in exactly the same
sense that timber limits are sold to the highest bidders. In 1906-07 and
190S Mr. Bennett and ottiers made persistent attempts, by examination of

original documents, to investigate these tmders. Various interesting dis-

coveries were made, in spite of the obstructionists in committee.

It was found that alleged competitive tenders for work about Port

Arthur and Port William were from the same parties. Mr. 'A. F. Bowman
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ttat one of these imd^y^i^^^l'^X'''^!^ *u^"*
^* " re,n«rkable

the other «ked only 9 S?Sw^ «,^U^^1*5*
***"'"' ^» '^t* »!>««

to his knowledge that a tSderf^J^ ?^ *^* "* ''"^ «*«« it had «»me
.nd that the??:tl*'th^*^V:^,PJ^-f.

flower *^ *»>«" ^-^ gone in

«.ndudrt£Tttei wLTrniroSi^?* '?'.
*"" *'^°'^*« '^ ^ ^^-

one a littte the higherS the Cl?b«nTJ!f*'*^f ^^^ P°* ^ t«°der8,
the second. Unfortuiiatelv »« !? ^ ' ^"^^ L^*

*'*''*'' » '»*«« ^e higher for
tract lowerC e^r^^hm X^*'" ^^ ^^ ^ ^"' '^' "^"^ *'^"

contracb with one of Sie first Xo.
^^""^tely the outsider divided his

i*nde«.Tnd"S/te^S Ton^^;^ wftl~T*^ ^^P^^- ?«* -
the other, indicating Lliion ** ^""^'^ '° *^« ^'^^elope of

land.^ ThtS;;r&V4^%,t,rn £: ^^^^ ^-^«-« «* Mid-
contracts with the Canadian -^Sn^P?^^ ^** ^° associated in dredging
oa tWs ^und a? iHS'lb c^r^r'^yTrn^'^',^ ^ «* ^^^
for, the Owen Sound Company thonJhi/S i ^ **°^^" ^«« «a»ed
no tender, while its assockKmnS ril^f .k*

P**^* °° *^« «?«*' P"* i°
«id another friendly TncSS 3Tr SS ^^P""' *^ ^^ "^^ « y"^,
ment that these three had e^^devB^T^^a „

""^ «»ggested in Parlia-
statement was made that sevSal^f t^e tS °°^ ^tfmselves, and the
hand. But an outside «,mp2y dLStj ^ Sf*^''' I"***^ ^y *« «ame
yard, but declined to go on witti tS^Sk ^ ? f^'^ °^ ^^^ «°<« P«r
then the Owen Sound Company came l^^A ^T/u"*^'" '^"''^ ««J^«d, and
I«« ta half the price asZ'^TwTpaS/'' "''^'^ ''^ «« --ts, o.

petition was ready to take at 9 5nta a ywd.
^^^^^^^^^ ^^^^ free com-

JCAWAonra a mikistbh,

ment^met'ntgTbeTaJi* "K/ofn^T'""^^ °^-««« «>« I>epart-
ning Dr. Pugsle/sL£i"tS tL^tZctt^'Sdl^K- ^V^^

^^^^-
at the prices received in 1907 ObiPPtin« 1? i • ^ *® ^°* for 1908
were new contracts and coid noJp'SX £ l™t i^ \ha^""^"^°i *\^* *^-«
ister afterwards stated that he had vSchlJ^}.!

"* ^*y' ''^'^ *e Min-
Pugsley announced that if t^e woSc were w^' ^^^^

Yet Mr.
would undoubtedly be higher. Naturalfv^rtln^ l**?**^'"

*«*"^ *« prices
word, and sent in very much highe? tender f°*^«f,*«"

took him at his
that the lowest t«ndeS would KLptdTo "£ ItT'ri^'^ ^^°*
It was an easy matter to raise the scale bi^h .« ^ .

''^ ^'^^ *ey were,
anticipation as there was wort for Si andt 31?, T*.^^" Minister's

Accordingly, Mr. Pugsley was able tn iT ^"i^^ ^ ^''^^^^
opened that the' Owen S^uSi pricfhad STSd"?'' t^et^ders were
^nts, Hamilton price from 13 to 16 ints Cob"^?/""",^^ «enf8 to 85
Goderich from 25 to 35 cents, MidlLrfrom 26^^ 9^"" l^

^ ^^ ««°te,
from isy, to 23 cuts. T^nto^ fromt S°?6 IS?, T:rt:%^l3ST
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call for tendeni woulTScr^ IL ? f?u^- ^'- ^««'«y '^^ that th?
over whaTS woKaJ^^W S'tl*te,T'' ^^ »1^«'00« to $800,000
same price.

^* ^"^ ^* ""^P*^ ^^ P"P««1 to go oa at the

vious offer by the'^t^CLXll" "orrX' Boi^::
'''"" ^V

work at 14 cents. When tenders wprp!«iinJ7 u-
" •"0'^««i «^«8 doing

he got the contract at S SrwEt iilrln/" T ^^"^ ""^^ ^^^^^ «°d
iater invited him to take itT leaTi^?.*. iS*^ f*

^r^^'^"-
^"^ the Min-

result? In another iL therl X!« - *
^**°*!' J^«* '^"'^^^ have been the

26 cents, whileTe pn^'^patd fasHear ^^Z "* f "".S^
»d another at

cided that the manS m2eLlSZnlt.^^ll .
^^' «ovemment de-

given at 26 cents to the man wholad bT^sr if1 **""^' «o the work was
that his tender need not be tSi irio^^ly

* ""*' *'**P^' ''^'''^ «how.

A ST. JOHN OPEBATION,

the Department made a private contract with theZ^^n- ^T"^ ^°'***'^'

pany, of which Mr. Stewart s SfSfn Tn siSl TS"!?''^^'"^ ^^'^
90 cente a yard without competition,Td prSd IhS^'^Z"^- K^Umted States In ten months thi's TomE r^xV^d $375 SS^^' rf

*^"

tKcS rr%^^ :ro??hif« if '~-^=^^
cost about $1.0,000.\nd left the oteS'a^'S m^J^^ifoftl^t^^^^^^^

T ,,.,. .
THB INSPECTOR.

in addition to this rough and tumble wav of fiTiS.T rv-;« j , •

contracts the Department is negligenTor wS t tKi^^^ ?"" ^'^^«

A SAMPLE INSPECTOR

and shoe cutter. Ur! ofnd^/Stird tha^tr opoU^^^ked Z^f^^would accept this appointment. Later he was emnlovTL '
.

"^
J*®

Spohn's own contract. He inspect^ for Te Ze^ent K^"" ^'•

receiving regular pay. and in the^hter he was mnS^d hv^^ '^^^'''
company looking after the dredees This rvvf!^ ^^ -^ *® ^^"^"^'ting

tha&g the Lmmer when K^s insX^^gT^rGo^St^^^i^acted as timekeeper for the contractor, '^^he'JZnm^'S^^'^ll.'l^^
:«6



Dr. Sfobn. He admitted that he did not tee all the aoowi lor vhich he
certified, and ez^ained ihat in those caiee he todc the word of the engineen.
He alw admitted the tnth of the Eastwood storj giren next His evidence
will be found on pages SI to 43 of the dredging evidence in the Public Ac-
eoonti Committee in 1908.

OHX WHO DID NOT INSPEOT.

The- second example is titat of C. S. Eastwood, appointed inspector on
the reoommendaticn of a former member for his county. During the year
1905-6 Mr. Eastwood was paid for 65 days inspection at $3 a day, 64 hours
overtime at 30 cents, and $33.33 boat hire.

Mr. Eastwood told his own story to the Committee. It will be found
<m pages 655 to 664 of the Committee reports of 1907. He confessed tJiat

he did not inspect He simply took his $3 a day, and remained at his work
keeping books in the neighborhood. He paid Mr. Oendron, the inspector
previously mentioned, $1.25 per day, and Mr. Gendron undertook to inspect
both his own dredge and Eastwood's. He certified in Mr. Eastwood's name
and the contractors were paid on these certificates. Mr. Eastwood kept the
other $1.75 for himself. He displayed a splendid imagination when he
charged for overtime, and showed still finer qualities in his claim for boat
hire, supported by vouchers from "L. L. Hubbard," from whom he was
supposed to have obtained the bpfet When questioned on tiiis, Eastwood
explained that L. L. Hubbard was the maiden name. of his wife, and that
the boat was her canoe.' He added that he adopted this little device, because
if he had presented the claim in his own name it might be questioned.

The public inay judge of the value of inspection in the hands of oflBcers
of this class, oi generally of local officers appointed as a matter of local
patronage to protect the public interests against local politicians who have
dredging contracts.
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GOVBRRMEHT WHASVES.
**" ?^ PT *" Jf« P»opl«-Oi» Wluta Then U HoPuMk Buiiun-Oiie Wlun Than U Ho W«t«r.

IXCBEASEO ELEV£N-FOU>.
In the last year of Conservative rule:
Public worka chargeable to current account .... ,, ,«. „.Public worka chargeable to caplUl »i.»».7«S

Total
Kxpenuitur* for public works in l»05-0«— I1.4U,SM
Public worka chargeable to current account .... „ „. -<.PubUc works chartfeable to capital *7,484,7IB

2,S59,Sn

Total
SeaPubllo Accounts, me pas^i« and M* '" ' W.844.a4«

The appropriation for 1907-8 was:
Public worka chargeable to current account I121«1«4Public works chargeable to capital .... ..fi.!„

3,629i600

Total •

Wnri?"f^ ''t ^^i
incr^d expenditure is due' to* the Departing" o'/puMio

sdnff ^ abandoning the practice of letting out wor£ by tendS.

h«il^?n™ ^ ^"'^ ^'^ been a perfect carnival of construction of pubUc

S^trS InrT""r "r^"^'
^^"'^^^ "°d breakwaters where there i^no traffac, and often where there is no water.

Three wharves were under discussion in Parliament on tKo mtu ^t
May, 1906 (Hansard, 1906, pages 3428-3501)

^"''"°*°* °° *^ ^^^^ of

A WHAEP WHICH THE COMMUNITT DH) NOT WANT

of p?S1/w«l.''^?w*
St Joseph, on Lake Huron, which tiie Ministerof PuWic Works buUt to satisfy some ^riend who had vast projects ALiberal newspaper m the neighborhood declared that the plaSe "ne^ds a

?a"w'I^'^V" * ««^,^°i^ "^ P<H=tete, and any sScrexpeSirJ
T -L^^^

** much money thrown away." The grant wm opposed by &e

The expenditure reached $14,921 in 1905, and over $1,000 since ThP«.
18 no business done at the wharf which is on ^n exposed ahoTan^^rojSfrom a high bank, where the Government did noterai purcha^ S l.nT

The net receipts of the post office of the villagr^pJ^STS ^J^^by this wharf, were, m 1905, $16.14. The wharf^l neJerbe m3 ^3
ttie contr«ct«r who built it rendered some return. He^isSd'^ ^1*
and monev m the scandalous London election of 1905.

"""•*** ^™ ^«
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wHAif lOB ptiTAn mm w A tmaaoiAM.

The next wharf is the Qruid Yallee Pier, which is simply a privat*

wharf <m the Oa«p6 ooaat» built at the request and for the accommodatioa
of a member of railiameDt, who had a lumber property there. The pier
•erres no pablio purpose, bat is simply used for this business. It cost

967,488.18, and after it was oonstmcted the lumberman was able to sdll oat
his property at a handswne profit

THIS WHABT IS A KtmOB.

Number three is the most absard of all. It is called a wharf, but is really

a bridge across a credc at a place called Disraeli, in the County of Wolfe^
Qnriwc Tfae'creek itodf is dry ezcq)t at freshet times or whoa the water

is backed up by a mill dam at the foot of a lake. If there were shimnng
on Lake Ayimer it could not reach this wharf, because there is a low ndlway
bridge oi\ <Hie side, and a highway bridse on the other. The bridge is oon-

demned. That explains the GrOTemm^t wharf, which is really half of

the proposed new highway brid^. The other half is to be built by the

munidiwlity. But it is interesting to notice that the portion built by the
municipality, some 400 feet, cost $8,875, while the Government end, 310
feet, cost $7,250. The contract for the municipal bridge calls for a railing

along the side, and in conformity with this the GoTemment wharf has a
simiUr railing which is not common with wharves. The gentleman who
owned the first mill built at that place, who has been mayor of Disnueliy

makes tiiis statement:

TESniCONT OF THE NEiaHBOBS.

" I knowl there Is no need for the cxpendttitre of public money upon a wharf
outalde the vlllase or near It, and that wherever and whenever the atrueture above
referred to haa been or la referred to or described as a wharf, It la a distinct
aubterfuKtt adopted for the purpose of diverting government money to an improp^
UM." (Hanaard, ItOt, p. 3440.)

The following affidavit read in the House further explains the situation:

Province of Quebec, City of Sherbrooke. ^

To wit:—^I, Robert Nathan Arkley. of the City of Sherbrooke, In the Province
of Quebec, millwright, do solemly declare and say:

—

That I have been in the habit of being at and working in IMaraell frequently
during the last twenty-nine years.

That there never has been a steamer or vessel of any kind carrying produce
or goods, or any vessel of any kind except a pleasure' boat plying to or from Disraeli
at any time, or Is there water for such purpose except at flood time and when
water Is dammed back.

Solemnly declared, and I take this solemn declaration conscientiously bellevlns
the aame to be true, by virtue of the Canada Evidence Act

—

R. N. Arklbt.

The estimated cost of this alleged wharf was $5,000, the actual cost was
$7,250.

The bills for stone alone were $1,291.67 and these were supplied at

election time by fifty different people.

HI WILL DO IT AGAIN.

The member for the counl^, on whose recommendation the Qovemraoit
built this so-called wharf, said in the House: "At my election I had 133
majority in that small town of Disraeli, where I suppose the entire vote is
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AX ABOPl OF LPXTOT.
A COSILY SCttT OF TOW BOAT.

What It Cost! To Frofide And Xidntain Tlie Sftdj,

The little tteamer "Speedy" of the Public Worta Depwtmeat it a
Tather coetly toy. S(nne of her bills were before the Public Accounts Com-
mittee, February 21st, 1908. The DepuiineDt of Pubhc WoAs nukes it

•PPM' tiiat the bott is used diiefly to tow dredges fwan place to plaee on
the St Lawrence and o<ter inland waters. She is rather a luxurious boat
for this purpose, and is apparentiT a favorite for Ministerial junketing trips.

SXOOND HAND AT 8TABT.

The " Speedy " was purchased in New York second-hand in 1904. The
Goremment paid $35,000 for her and gave an additional $1,750 cMnnussion
to the agent who made the purchase. It is true tha* Captain Howden
Superintendent of Dredging, swore that he made the purehase himself (page
3 of hu evidence), but the commissions were all^^ to be paid to a New York
broker.

3at fte purchase money was only part of the cost. One of the fi^st
bills presented afterwards was the following:

Mahogany table .,««
11 dining room chairs at $12 is,
Arm Chair *

J*

Total
MS.

CRUISE OF THE PIAKO.

This seems a rather costly dining-room furniture for a craft engaged
in towing dredges. The Superintendent explained that this outlay was
inade necessary by an accident. On the passage from New York to St. John
there was rough weather, the piano broke loose and travelled around the
^ning-room, smashing the chairs and tsitle, but itself receiving no injury
With aiese mahogany chairs and table replaced, and the piano in good shape
the Speedy " might be in a position to commence towing.

But it was found that her boilers were not fit, and $17,500 was naid
for a new boiler outfit

*^

In the fiscal year 1906, apparently before the "Speedy" had done any
work, she was taken to the shipyard of the Poison Company and received
treatment to the extent of $22,4W, including the following:

, OUTFIT AND UNIFORM.
New electric outfit

)3,000

3,500

2,780

3,300

Removing and replacing deck, making new acnppen and galleyNew deck cabin, new smoking room, new bathroom, new
upholstering .._ T. ..New wheel house and chart rooms, mahogany and teal^ 'first class
upholstery

New bathroom, new closet, now stateroom, another new stateroom!now electric light fixtures, new atcam heaters iisnNew closet, bath tub, linen hamper etc .' '

Plumbing etc , '/. ,.".'.

New refrigerator ,\' J*
_'

New pantry etc '..*.'.'.'.

Extra light In dining saloons

1,600

1.377

190
463
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TLif it qaitt InzurkiM for • tow^ioat Bat bmn wm needed. Th«
.taffmnetbedmeedtecomepond. So we heye, fa IW? 3^*Se .2mJthfag repeated m 1907, with eoine edditiooe:

»^, "a we tun*

• eOeen lolta at »m ^ „ .^
7 HMOa ratts «t m m !!5Unttom for th. 3t«Brde.s .. .. ." mm
« oapa at "J* ^
7 CAM at .

a.oe ••ell

IB. 00 Mieh

INDIBEOT OOBT OF 0KirOBX8.

«# ™!^ ™^"^ *"
?S' °?'y •.*^* '" themielve., but en indirect mean*of openae. The Committee found that this towing boat waa navinf nS^

i?iA"nT ^Z ^'"«"' ?**^' P^"™'' ^'««* pea., apring chiS^*B«Sorwater and other neceeeanes for crafts that are engajedin tcmiVdwd^The Captain was aaked to expUin why, for inst«n^ckeiu«S ISc^a pound. He said (evidence, page 14)

:

« wk lo cent*

"I will explain how the prloe was Increaaed if -rnH ... .. . .^"^e^iys" outfit, with bras. bSSonTVn/^Sr^lnto thriSaiTt-^SJ^K^v
'•••

l«v«tably they char,. ,o« Just about double whTt ^^^U^Jtw^^""'
U.A^ ^?^^ ?*"* "***" '*"°° '"^ ^«^ P"««' He waa aaked if hehad orders to go to some particular place and buy supplies, and testified •

u^ i!r* ^7* the patronage Uet but .ometlme. when they ieron the rTtZ^I."^ * ^L^'^K*^ "** everybody doe. it. but any unreasonable ,^1^11^15^
;;::;''^ ^^*^

"l**"* *" **• P«trona,e II.t they think you S^tTbuJ fJS^them and up soes the prtoe." (Page 14.)
'^ '™""

So, tetween the repairing and the luxurious equipment and the uni-
forms, and the lUCTeased price of provisions by reason of the uniforms, and

?f. ^*^«^ ^\^i "Speedy" has become wonderfully costly. Her
bills in 1906 were $36,337.55. In the short year, 1907, 9 months Sevwere $16,346. Down to 1908 she seems to have cost over $100,000. Thoueb
twelve years old she is sUU a very good picnic boat, and may even do a littie
towing when not required as a yacht.
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ramp WAoaiR,
A SncUL POLmCAL IMBWD OF MR. OUVXK.

PnMic Offlcer CoavJcfd Of anindliiiff Aii at ^H«r Bt«mmfaitid
To Tlw SttTiM At IncreMed Sdary. ^^

Jxpiwe of the oountry is PhiUp Warier, of Edmonton TWrhiHrwi™^

•V - *^J^ *V'
^^<'***"' "»8, Toder Warenka deported with Wwnar

^^'S ' S?^* *^irT ^^*^ '^tJ* «»« interp^r^ ^ ^"^^ '*'

The Secretarjr wrote to Wagner about it on November 9th iQon .n^

demanding ^ i,S«t reply. ^W^^ 1^ toW tL?^h?L'1Sarm^:one false statement to the department It does not aoDfiar ttwS S?^l ,

money was ever refunded. The departmLtTaid th^Wl^L «?*^'"'"icau«d the immigrant's clothing to he delS to hfn^^ ^ "^'"'^'^ "'^

PASTOB's TX8TIM0KT.

r-+>.^''
'^"•°°® •*' ^^^ "** incidente. Abbe Francois Ohaewski Rnn.'-t,Cathoh^j„«ajomi^^.er Uke, wrote to the deparfan"entr7oltow^°

'

conduct ofS feim?^'^ 'mXr."/* *^* compUlnf with regard t .e

I have kiiowT. !^Ji T - ^ !!• /»'"«•*• Interpreter at Bdmonton. For eom* n.>

advJ^'*onhe'Sor 5S.ctaS?'«d*abSL"S^ *^-"'* -«* >"• ^'^^ ^^
I have proof of thl^hat I^ ',."VnSSSJS^ '^^"'t^**

that they pU«e «n him.
a few Inetancee. It happenTand terv^^^SSHI" k ** »«w>tJme I will Hve you
hav» to stay three ortow daw a?«^« ?!!^*^ "^ST*'* ^^° *»^« J«"t «»rived
hlnwelf about thVm In the riSh?!^ ^t^?** Z^^'^'^l^- ^*«»«'' hotherln^
W5 to put In the bMk. Mr TvSS^r n.S^ w«»Ived frtm Mr. Jean Kryeta^
Aiwtrlan money of the value of |?S? toSSi J" J**" .V*? ""• "*'»• »• «"»
Oack. Oaiielan. but In.tead of i",* oT^J^^P " ?*^"* """ "«^- M**^'
hlmaelf. and M^. Matwi Oack hM ^t yet ^iCL^f*" ••'

'"V* " "*««««» to
received a letter fh)m »ambur» .^nJ it^ iSl"' S!^*''' »'«>«>««h I myself
Oallclan, giy, Mr. WasSerm^V^ pay Into O^UnT'^,'" '""•' *»*»•• """y
nwer r«nltted. Then Mr. Waw^ dv^ a «,rS?„ n* "?'*• *»'' **'« ™>n«y «
of the land office under the p^. f^fto.^",/"" ,;?' P*Pf ^'t" the etamp
taow that ^1. money la never pSd Info tto ^L ?^ ,

^^^ **«• *«»* ""« ^
of paper a. a proof. Theee fwt» «d S«nrmo« obH« ~ *

*"** *" *"•* '""'
the queetlon. I begr of you, th^reft^. ^ b*Tto7 «.« S^„^A '" ^, "^"^ **» *«<*«*»
clan, and to punleh him who abueea them and to ™f f^fi""^ "' **»*•• P«»- G*"-
be worthy of the confidence which the ^e«^*t"lJ^V*L'" '"" P'*"" '^»'«» '^'J
why I mtereat myself with the Queetlon nW™^ *" ""^ ^«"' undemtand
«.d m th* .««nd puce I am the Rein ^^'^c'^MonZ'T'^'X'^^
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SbaUjt JmtlBt ttet thto riMvM Bot fee

n iptvlMlf ]pa«r%
^*yy ^•P^ to you, «r. and In ofltarliw MnUmMto M |inttttt«% X

Vluifooni Ouiawncx,
CattoUe MlMioBkrr.

WACorn*! aaowiKo uoou> avo outki'i ixouubiko Amonox.
During 1900 at leut three crimihiU infomuitioiM were laid aninst

7^^!!:. X .V
**^ f!j*»Ked with havinff received $75 from Fred Lacmte to be

delirered to the aatd Uciute'i wife, and keeping the money himaeif ; alto with
•tealing ten dolian from one Ilia Chluitawek, and with converting to hia ownUM the aum of $783 received from Hamburg for one Matwi Gack In one
of theae caaea the jury disagreed, and in all of them there waa a failare to
oonvict.

Jlarly in 1901 the Yonng Men'a Liberal Club of Edmonton forwarded a
requeat to the Government for an increase in Wagner'a salary, and this reqneat
waa supported by a strong letter frwn Mr. Oliver, who clotted with the remark:
I cannot too strongly endorse the resolution of the Association." The

Superintendent of Immigration replied, referring to the trouble already ex-
perienced with Wagner, and remarking: "Until he replies satisfactorily to

ttie department it would scarcely be poasible to recommend him '-^ nn in-
crease of salary." Wagner was then receiving $40 a month.

lo March, 1901, Wagner was charged with fraud, " for that he did in-
duce one Aronetz to sign a certain lien note for $85 on a cow purchased by

' the said Aronetz by stating to the said Aronetz that the said lien note was
only a receipt for the amount paid by the said Aronetz for the said cow."

In the same month he was charged with receiving $80 from the same
Aronete to be deposited' in the Merchants Bank of Canada for the benefit of
Aronetz, and "did, contrary to his obligation, convert the said sum of $80 to
• his own use and thereby steal th? same." He was convicted or both
charges, sentenced to two months' imprisonment at hard labor at Fort Sas-
katchewan for the first, and to three months' hard labor at Fort Saskatchewan
for the second.

These convictions took place in June, 1901, but in May, 1901, the Justice
Department waa seeking witnesses from the Interior Office with regard to
other charges respecting payments on homestead entries.

WAONBR HAD TO GO, BUT OLIVER HAD HIS PAT EXTENDED.

While the charges upon which Wagner was convicted were pemVing, and
just one week before he was sentenced, Mr. Oliver wired to the Deputy Min-
ister as follows: "Edmonton, N.W.T., June 11. James A. Smart, Deputv
Minister of the Interior. Smith writes Wagner not employed since last

"March. Wagner never notified, has acted continuously. What uoes Smith
" mean. Wagner should be paid forthwith until June first."

Again Mr. Oliver had his way, and a telegrwn was sent from Ottawa to
J. Obed Smith, Commissionei of Immigration : "If Wagner has acte-^ con-
" tinuously during April and May pry his salary."

To make sure of his dismissai this time, the secretary of the deoarlment
wrote on June 15th, 1901

:

Mr. J. Obed Skith,
V sir,...-! am 'directed to Inform you that the services of Mr. P. Wagner an

Interpreter at Edmonton, have bMn dispensed with from the tUrt oit., and I am ta
aak you to kindly notlfjr Mr. Waaner and the local ac«nt accordlncly."

153

f

m

I
) I



i-.J?T. !5"i^.^*«^ imiUtvd that h* had Bot bMB nolUM aad lifetafiMBtU frieiid, ih» pnwnt Ml»ll^ r .f the Interior, etaeed him to *^' paidAwn to the Old of Jane.
*^

On hk nleeoe from prMon, to» rd^ the end of 1901, Wuner eaeme to
fcere mewed hie politicel ectiTity c . b. 1 .If of Mr. OUw aaJ his frSende.We WM on hand and eppemiUy active in i i.. election of 1904, whtn Mr. OliTerwas again a candidate.

OUVU A MINIsm; w cSKh iKTa TWO OmCKM.

A * i°
April, 1905, Mr. Oliyer 'ocv .. Wir .^ter of the Interim, and on the

fint day of July, 1908, ratored M . 1 1 (> ^ agner to the public kcrriofc But

ant unmigratMm agent at Edmontca. h a vilarjr r/ $%5 « month, and in-
terpreter at a Mlary of $75 a moni.. n'.i)- ; tota' moo'ne ul $l,fOO a year

Under the circums^ncee the ^r- utt x „„ „,„ to such officeo
tojurely a grave pnblic scandal. lint if * , ttoe whole of the Wagner

THE PBEXtEn's IOCS tV <\i lUNOK.
On Jnly 17, 1905, not three ^eeks .! ragner's appointment, the

Mouse of Commons, on the motion of Mr. Lake (Qu'Appelle), passed the
loUowmg resolution

:

«J2S!^^ Jlr^'^ ^''•*'* ''^' 'n »' PoMOoal opinion And Um iiiitrknmMned

S!Sr!« --^iT***!!."* **'"'** therewith, no official .hoald b* «icac«4 or pM-
Slil^ti ^^P^ '." P»ft««»7orli of any dMortpUon In Um .iMtloo of a rtvnmia.taUve to the Provincial or Dominion Lealilatnre."

Though this motion was moved by a Conservative, it was accepted bv the
Premier, who suid

:

-«v-lfJliT*.
"" '«"»«»<|<« »t all In sayln» that 1 am i«ady on the part of tb«

I^^T -H JS^'I.""' 'T'"*'^"-
'^*' *"">^ ««">» » •-<» "y hCtatlon about

S!f.i!;!^iI?J^f^'"
*"• "•""»"'"» •»»«>«»«» »« "mtted to Dominion election, or to

w. w^M .o^ ^''^K
••;.••• "^'•' '•flecOon I have come to tha conclusion^

^Tr^TtJ^^ ^.Ji"*
^°'''"<"*' P"""^' *• to make It advlwble that they Jbo«M

t>e treated In a difTerent manner fv>p my nart I Am mtmnmtv Ti *i!-
cpljOon I held When In Oppcltlon that an ooi^ whoTiSL « oSf.'^.S^*?^
«tootlon campaigns makes himself and his party a scandalT^

"""'""vo pan in

OUERRFUUiT DISREOAEOED.
In NoyemVer of the same year, a provincial election took place in Alberta
Mr. Ohyei: went west to take part in the campaign, which he made his

^iT^ir
^"^,'*^ ^**<^ ^own by the Premier, who was Mr. 01i\er's chief, and

tne House of Commons, of which he is a member, was violated at once in the
most outrageous fashion by Mr. Philip Wagner, former prisoner at Saskatche-

*/m °w " " ® office-holder in Mr. Oliver's department. The conduct
of Mr. Wagner is set forth in certain affidavits which have bfen submitted to
the Government, and read in the House of Commons. (Hansard, 1906
pages 4446-4447)

: The formal statements of the notary was attached totnem all.

CAMPAIGN' MEETINGS AND BEEB.
1. 1. Jacob Baronowtid, of the City of Edmonton, in the Provlnoe of Albertai,voMlnr-house keeper, do solemnly declare that I am pwaonally aeoualnted with

iTJlllp wlatner, above mentioned.
2. Th^ on the evening of the Sth of November last.past said Waanar came to«• and asked me to w<»rk la the Intereat, of the Liberal candidate hi tha CJlty ofOmonton to tha eleotlmi then pending. H- further told me that I would b» paMtor my aervlcea. I agreed to work as reQuested on this undersUndlng. Said
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to k« ImM tlwt Blcbt IB tto Tktatl* rink, mMI M w ladaMMal •» ttMiJ* ^t*>K'

fcalMte—

m

MM to pvetaM two tevnla o( bMr to b« dnak at aqr kMHtaC kOMw
flar Uw mnftn« In qwwnuii.

1. AMwrdliic^. I •ttoMttf th* aaM mMttav ud took wttk n* tMty aM^ all

of tlMm b^ng OallcUiM. BubMqmntiy tk«r eoawa—d tiw tw* teml« a< bMr la

4. Bald Wa«D«r saw me fr»qnMtlr aftor thia and alwaya nnred aa to work
and radooMa my ««orta to tha Intonata oftbo Ubaral caadidata. aa alOraaai a.

5. On or about tha Itb of Kovaanbar laat paat. aald Waciiar aallad upon ma
and aakad bm to *rtac aar boardara aad othan to a maatlac to ba ImM la a room
n«ar on* Paul nadyra plaoa of boalaaaa aad to Indveo mr boardara to attaed aa
bafore with two barraia of boar.

«. I attandad thta maatinc with mr bordara aad parehaaad two barraia of baar

wbteh waa eonaumed by my boardara and othcra on nay pramiaaa.
~. B^ora alaction day aald Wa«n«r took ma ap to tha Llbaral eoamiltte*

roonts fa tbo City of Edmonton aad qneatloaad ma aa to what I kad doaa. I In-

formed Mm fully and ba than and thar* proailaad ma tlB for my aanrloaa.

XNOAOED IN BCTIKO V0TB8.

I, Waayl FarbyJ. of tha City of Bdmontoa, la tha Pfwlaoa of Alberta, laborer,

do aolemnly darlara that:

1. On or about tha drat day of Novambar laat paat I araa aasacad by tka eaw
Wamar to work In tha intereats of tha Libaral caadUtota la tha eonatltoancy of

tha City of Edmonton. I waa partleularly ancacad to aacure aa many idia aian a*

poaaibla and take them to work in oartaln coal nilnc'a whet work and wagaa wcra

provided for them, aa 1 was Informed by the aald Wagner.

S. I iaUk to to one mln* and 17 to another, and 10 othMV ware auppUed wttn

amployinant on the city elet trie !»«ht plant.

d. Twenty of the peraona above named boarded and lodged at my honaa in

the City of Edmonton, and 27 othera I aupplied with wood, coal, water, ate, for »
period ot live daya, being tha five laya Immediately before tba elaetkm day (Nov-

ambar I).

4. Theae 47 personn I caueed to enter vartoua polling bootha for tho purpoa«

of voting and I verily bellevs that they did vote for the Uberal candidate In the

aald city. . ,

5. 1 applied to aald Wagner for funda to cover my expenaea and servlcaa

and reoelved from the !;aid Wagner on one oocaalon >40, and on anotbei' occaalon

$12, and waa to receive the balance due to me after the election.

DISTRIBUTES KLECTION MONEY AMONG THE QALiC'ANS.

1, Prokop Chakaluk, of the City of Edmonton. In the Province of Albwta mer-

chant, do iolemnly declare that: - , » rv »„»
1. I was engaged by the aald Wagner on or about the middle of laat o \ toer

to work In the Intereets of the Liberal party In the election which took place an tli«

•th of November laet paat. - w i v.

2. Said Wagner engaged a conveyance and drove me to Beavfr Creek, m ine

constituency of Victoria, and there he and I worked together among the Gftlician

and Ruthenian electora In the intereats of the Liberal candidate 'or that

constituency.
3. The said Wagner, at the time of my engagement, agreed t-i pa me the

sum of $50 then and a larger sum after the elections.

4. That I personally know the said Waifner, and I say that h w: 4 actively

engaged in working for the Liberal candidate In the local constltu "> s of Ed-

monton and Victoria for at least the two months Immediately p' <'edlng '»ie election.

B. Tiie aald Wagner paid me for expenses 126.

HAS OLIVER FOR HIS FRIEND.

Tliuugh these affidavito and a good many othcra of i : rtiiLr c-haraeter

have been forwarded to the Government, no action has been tiiker ^pon them.

Mr. Oliver practically endorsed the conduct of his officini wh s speaking

imblicly in Edmonton a few days before the election. The jM nist had been

rold wis. it Wagner was doing and asked about his record. Mr. Oliver ad-

iiiitted that Wagner had been in jail, and that he was an jmplovet; of the de-
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»* and their op^nents My aboot them* On the 14th d*fofMwch W06
tbme q«!rtions to Mr. OhTer in the Hooae of Comnions

:

«^S!t ' ^•^ *^ * wr tim. rin« woo to th« «nplor ot the

^^^J^^^h. .T* b.«x ,lT«i targT pv or promotton in offlc .Inc. th..e

Jl^^oUowing are Mr. OUver's r^Ueo io these qneetibos in their order:

1. Am Chtltolan Interpreter at Kdmonton at t40 nam tKA.*h «„_ ,_. « -
ItOl. to tOth of June, mi. and a^^^t ImnS^tl^ iL^T* *.«'' January,

j^dtoterprter to the DoaUnton LanlTSS: SlK2^otS"LtVA SSyTm":

F. ^t*;.,^!^ Sne"Sri£.r ^^*'*~"* «' «»• ^t-« to .how that

It wiU be Been that this vas a deUberate attempt to deceive the lT«„.oThe record of Wagner*. iinpri««m.ent was in anotherde^tSeS but uTsknown to the Minister and was not then known to ihp Hn^ „; r"
"*

He.was «ked a. to the fact and not as to t^r^oM irhifSin;"^^
rS^SS.^.'^"^'-^' '^'^ --*«™ members a?.r:S:lsclL^

WAQKM FBOTBOTKD VT THE LIBERAL SUJOBITT IN THB OOMlfQN8

^-nli^n?*!.^*^
**' •?"' ^^^J'- ^°''"' M-^- 'o' King's, set forth in a

!!S«L^''^T*^^ ''^ Wagner's first appointment, his offences, his

SSrt,?5.o^"^J'^^"*°i appointment, and later offences, clt^ing

'^W.^ZSlTh./^"l?'..**.''Pr*'° *»' *^« Hoa« the said Phili?

«»n^«?^ -^ forthwith dinnissed, or if he denies the truth of the said

^ auctions, an immediate investigation should be held into the matter afore-

OHvPifvT^^lllf
'2?t«^.»^*e "qiJest of Sir Wilfrid Laurier and M

Oliver, by a straight parly majority.
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CASK OF J08BPH IIXOH.

PuUic Money Taken, Books Falsified, and MutOated.

Officer Appointed to a^Better Position—He Was An Election

Worker.

On the 3rd of May, 1899, Joseph Nixon was ited sub-agent <rf

Dominion Lands at Madeod. Unta April, 1900, he was paid by commisBMHi.

After that he had a salary, beginning at $25 a month, and increased in March,

1905, to $50 a month. In May, 1904, he was made caretaker of the inunigr«-

tion building at Macleod at $25 a month, in addition to his other office. One

of Mr. Nixon's activities was the energetic service -* h'" uarty in that part of

the Northwest, where he acted as a member of Mr. Oliver's campaign com-

mittee.

In 1906 the Department of the Interior found reason to investigate Mr.

Nixon's accounts. In March, 1905, Mr. R. E. A. Leach, Inspector of

Agencies, was asked to go to Macleod and hold an investigation.

The irregularities discovered covered a period of four yea^^s. and were

rattier compli<»ted. However, he finished his investigation at Macleod in

lesB than 84 hours.

The result of this has^ research set forth in Mr. Leach's report (Han-

sard, pages 8101-8), contains the following:

VABIBTT OF FBAUDB.
1. Receipt book, with ttnbs. uaed pHor to November l«th, 1»M. mlulnf.

t. Counterfoils for Novein»)er, 1904, and February. 1805, alio counterfoil Xo.

SS,614 for December 8rd, mlsslngr.

S. Stub of receipt No. 33,670 torn out of th« receipt book and mlMlns, BuppoMd
to be fOr tSO, paid by M. McNaught on account of some land, and should be dated

liout February 16th.

4. Very often there was a great difference between the dates moneys were

were received at sub-asency, and dates of remittance to the Dominion tiands Offlce,

laethbrldce, the moneys being held by the sub-avenl.
5. On several applications for homestead entries the dates have been altered,

preaumably to suit the dates of makinK remittance. This also applies to dates

upon receipt of counterfoils.

a. No application could be found for the followln*, for which entry fees had
been paid to the sub-agent—one of December 3rd. from Burdette, and of February

ISnd. firom Barber.
7. Timber requisitions could not be found for the foliowlnr, who paid the te«a

<glvlnf names of seven men).
8. The following moneys wore received, for which apparently no receipts w«e

leaned. (Bums mentioned are $10, 25 cents and 25 cents).

•. For the sum of $100 reported by the agent of Dominion Lands, t«tbbrtdge.

Match 18, IMS, on account of one Clifton, there was no entry to show that It bad
iMen remitted direct to the department.

But the d^MLttment receipt of 20th March on form 42 was accepted by me as
evidence of the mmlttance.

10. Items of moneys received by the sub-agent and not noted In hla regtoter.

<This Include alx sums of $10 each and one of $2S).

The following la a Ust of moneys received by sub-agent Nixon other than
the town site Iota at Macleod. -which were not remitted to the Agtnt of I^ands,

iiethbrldge, from the let of November, 1*04, to the 37th of March, 1905, though no
atubs are to be found for dates between the 31st of October and 18th of November.
(Items amount to $$>t.0S).
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BroBtht torwart.. """"^ *• tli« asott of Dominion tenda, L«thbrtd«e.
IWt- tsat.M

1»M^ '"• "* '• ^"' '»» »«• »• ". W. Stl. .venue .. .. .. .. „ o«

^ f/t™^e%rx".o%^i..-J^^- ;;
;. ;•

~.J
JMe Hoc*, lot 7. & M. W. 6tli avenuo .

10.00
Total ahortace ....

t4t».05
• '^^•^lOD THX BOT AND OOBS FSBB.

public nKmk. forW 2nW^w«,^, **'* * '^^PtJ «» withholdiM of

bookB^dSfrniMp in the

-^iTaSrri^r^'S^fj-ti^^^^ .

"i^ and kept uSi^ wpS^ JX '-^ *™^ **»* ^* •"""ly to hU

fatherhS^^ Sm .5 .^"SL'tJS; '^t.^^^f ?** *^« ^"»- ^^<>^

irregularities coi^^ Th^wK S\**"^''^ **»« dcfalcationg and

that none of these SsThouldt ^^11^^^^°* •'°°? *** ^°^ •"^
pm-ible state of affal^ Mo^v^. Ui^sW in thfCfTi " ""^ ™-

he«t'l:;^rd;S;i&tr'^ ""'P*- personaU^from^^X SLtn'J:;

•econirt Of pttTohaae o;" loY 13 n! Inh ir^ w.S? ift^"'
Nbton thirty doIIa«oi

"I. William Henry 8truthe« of thfi?^^#V "^JJI'?"*'
Macleod townelte."d^^ that I am Z b^»^^otJ L^i^tbJ^^J^^^'^V*- "»° '"'•""'^

woelpt ftor thirty dollar*; paid on aeeonnt of l^t wT^ JS^k" »'^
wb-atent Nlxon'a

Xacleod townalte. date? «nd of jS^im/." ' ^^ *"•**• ^••* "" •«••••

Neither of these two payments was remitted to the Government,

HIXON SE8I0NS AKD GBTg A BSTTSR OmOK
But the failnre to prosecute either the defalcating officer or the son whoief.Aer «^sed hun of the thefi, was not the whoWtte wo^X'ZS^.
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Mr. Latch made the iBTeatifttion and the fall diaetrreries on the 27tb
and 28th of March, 1905. At tluit time Nixon handed in his resignation.

Mr. Leach'i report was sent to ^e GoTemment on tiie 3rd of April, and
would be reoeired about the 7th. Twelve days aftei-wards .Mr. Joseph Nixon,
whose defalcatitna had thus been made known to the Minister, was appointed
to a position in iHae Immigration Department as a checker of immigrants <hi

the train between Macleod and Femie, at a salary of $25 a montii. This w»
on the 19th of April, and on the 4th of May, uter an apprenticeship of two
weeks, his salary was increased to $75 a month.

Still later Mr. Nixon was in the onploy of the Qoremment Transcon-
tinental Commission.

OOVEBNUENT HAS NOTHIKQ TO DO WITH JUSTICE.

When the matter was brought up in the House Mr. Olivsr made a defence

somewhat the same as that for his other friend, Philip Wagner. Mr. Oliver

declared that if Nixon had committ^ a crime it was open to Mr. Foster or anj

ether member to institute prosecution. He assailed- Mr. Foster for hiis
"

•'* forts to expose to the gaze of Parliament and the country the misfortunes
'* of a man and his famUy, who, whatever their shortcomings may be, how-
" ever guilty he may be of having supported the Liberal pajfty in the past,

•* whatever sin he may have committed in that particular, !« not entitled to be
•• alluded to as a thief." Mr. Oliver added : "If there is criminal guilt the
" courts are established for the punishment of that guilt."

Mr. Foster. "Where does the hon. gentleman come In?"

Mr. Oliver. " The government of ihis country comes in as adminiJBter-

tng its public affairs, not as administering jnatioe.''

Mr. Foster a^kod Mr. Oliver whether he took the grouuu " that as a Min-
" ister he has no right to see that Lis officers are punished when they steal

•' public money," but Mr. Oliver still insisted that the law was open to any-

body else to administer, and refused to take any responsibility for the failure

to prosecute.

It should ^ farther stated that one of the parties who paid in m«iey
perscHully to Mr. Nixon, which money had not been accounted for, wroM a

letter to the crown prosecutor, an officer of the Department of Justice, lajrii^

the case before him and asking him to take the matter Up. The officer re-

plied, saying that " as crown prosecutor it is not part of ray duty to advise
" in connection with any matters of criminal nature until such are referred

" to me by the police."

It is unnecessary to state that the crown prosecutor filso is a good Liberal

and a friend and supporter of Mr. Oliver.

M
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HOW DID TOUK MEIDBS TOTI ?

Some Diyigions of the Houie in 1906, 1907 and 1908.

W-^k o. X
SB88ION OF 1906.

"^ tli^"^oi°^^f^^ii-ifd«^ Broder. Conservative-

l»«»««tt Of wwch they wUUn,ly made ?uch iLiS.^' *•»«««" »»>•» Empire on

March 26th, motion of Mr v n w 1 ' ^
"That It is de.Se th^t thi nf" ^- -^*°^' Conservative M.P.:

by oitf Canadian volmiteerl"
^"">«'*d durln, the Fenian raid. ofi86« and 1^

ln«t"Xl"J^„;S,lS:«c''S.Jin^"ct- '^' ft'.'""""""" " the coa-

x>ntr«!t. Motion rejecM bvT.St JS"",*"
"""iMlo the eii,t,ng

1906, page 3449. ' ^ " '""«" P"*? •*; "coried in Haosapd,

-fe I?".' T"*™ °' "• I«">M. Conserrotire-

MoHou dnttored bv an amBi,*™./ °<"^"»»»nt M Canadt-
which ,„ carted V a lITrlJ ™te"11Sr^^^ <he Minirter of J„.Uee,

pagelSS"
"''"'^ '"' " '^'«'" l»''y ""'^ ""'M in Hanaari, 1906,

to thf^t^^ritntn S't/T*'^- "'"«' •- "»«°^™«'t

the matior aforesaid,"
»"<>»>. an immediate InvestJ^atlon should be held Into

Mrd;S"
"^"^*'' '^ * ^^^--^^^^ P-^^y -*«' '^o'ded on page 5612, Han-

ing tt^on:i;.n''i:;.?-df.Y^™^^^^^^^^ bnt%""'f*^^" ^'''^^^
page 6836 of Hanwffd, 1906.

^ ^ * P"'*^ '"'^'' recoj^ed on

lAO



June tSth, the Houm dirided on the minoribr report of the Ccmmlttee
for the Investigation of the ''Arctic" outfit. Motion of Mr. Nordinqp,

ConaerratiTe, for the adopticMi of that report was rejected by a party vote;

recorded on page 6625 of Hansard, 1906.

July 3rd, motion of Mr. MoiJc, Conaerrative:
"< In the opinion of thla Hbnae, and for cauMa dlacloMd In the avtdanoa Ukaa

before tlie Committee on Public Acconnta and the Comnittee on Asrieoltnra mad
Cokmlaatlon, and for other reaaona, W. T. R Preaton, Inapeotor of Immlcrmtloa.
should be no lonser ccmtlnued In that office."

Rejected by a straight party vote; recorded on page 6928 of Hansard,
1906.

SESSION OF 1906-7.

December 10th, 1906, moUon of Mr. Herron, Conservative, that coal

lands owne<^ by Government should be alienated only under such conditions

and regulations as will provide for an immediate supply of coal for the

people at a reasonable price. Motion was headed off by an amendment,
which was carried by a straight party vote; recorded on pages 800 and 801,

Hansard, 1906-7.

January 9th, 1907, Mr. Borden moved for the appointment of a select

committee to inquire into the matter of legislation to prevecit strikes and
lock-outs and other labour troublen. Motion killed by an amendment, adopted

on a party vote; recorded in Hansard, page 3696.

February 28th, motion of Mr. Borden, condemning liie course of the

Government in holding Judgeships vacant for nearly a year, rejected by a

straight party vote; recorded in Hansard, page 3541>.

March 6th, motion of Mr. Northrup, Conservative, disapproving of the

conduct of Immigration Commissioner Obed Smith, who had been traflBcking

in lands, and, according to his own sworn statement, had used the reports

of Government officers to " make money on the side " ; rejected by straight

party vote; recordud in Hansard, page 4262.

On Mr. Lemieux's Conciliation Bill, Mr. Borden moved that the measure

be referred to a select committee, so that the train hands and others who
objected to the measure in its present form might have a hearing and sug-

gest amendments. Motion rejected by straight party vote; recorded in

Hansard, page 5008.

Mr. J. E. Armstrong, Conservative, moved that th • Conciliation Bill

be amended so that railway employers and employees in respect of whom
other provision had been made, would be exempt from its provisions. Motion

rejected by straight party vote.

March 26th, Mr. Barker, Conservative, moved a resolution authorizing

the Public Accounts Committee to inquire into the statements of accounls

of the G. T. P. Company, and to investigate the disappearance of certifiaites

which should be in the possession of the Government. I'-jtion killed 'by

amendmimta, adopted on a party vote; rccoraed in Hansard, page 6180.

March S6th, Mr. Lefnrgey moved in amendment to the Subeidy Act,

that the allowance to Prince Edward Island be increased by $28,000. Re-

jected by a straight party vote; recorded on page 5878. Several othtt i«o-

tions amending this Act to th6 advantage' of Prini^ Bdward Islaiid weM
rejected.'

March 26th, moti(HX of Mr. Bourassa, calling for an investigation into

charges against Monbers of Parliunoii, rejected by a maijority of 109 to 08.

161



lis

Mr. BouMia, Mr. Bobitull« and Mr. LaTogm wen the only Libenli to
rapport It IhTision recorded on page 6500.

April 8nd, Mr. Borden moved an ammdment to the TarUB Bill, taking
•way from the Govemor-in.Council the power to bring the intermediate
ttnff into operation without anthorily of Parliament, llejected by a itraight
party vote; recorded in Hanaard, page 6772.

AprU 2nd, Mr. Schaffner, ConaervaUve, moved that the duty on agricul-
tuna unidementa be reduced from 17^ per cent, to 10. Motion waa r^ected
oy 08 to 28, but aa it occurred in committee the names were not taken.

Apnl 4th, Mr. Monk moved that Mr. Beddoe, of the Interior Deparb-
ment, who had refuaed to disclose the names of the North AtUntic Company
contractors, be brought to the Bar of the House. Motion rejected by straight
party vote; recorded in Hanaard, page 59»3.

u-wJ*"}
^'^*^' ^5: ^*^°^« Conservativfi, moved a resolution regretting

that the Insurance Commission had lessened confidence in its work by lend-

^^.i^a^'on pSelS.^"'^"'-
''°"*'" "^"•*'^ 'y ' •*"'«»'* ^^ ^•>*^'

• 1
-^P^. ^^***' ^^•. -^'den moved a resolution expressing regret that offi-

^*!Sl*i^K^^ ^T^^ to «°«««« ^ campaign work in violation of a rule

;?°£^.*'^^To6.
''"^'*° "^"*^ ""'

'
«*"*«^^ ^'^y -^' '^^^^

r^T^trX^^^'
Burden submitted a resolution asking for efiEective sup-K Hili^'^^"'^ ^™."'* "» ^^'^°^- Motion rejected by straight partyvote; recorded m Hansard, page 6898.

^^
amJSl^:,

Mr. Borden moved that Railway Commissioners should in-

m3 y^«P«rt/hether passenger tariff rates should be reduced to a maxi-

ZS ^l*i^^^*!.^'
"'^^- ^"^^ ^y «" amendment adopted by a straightparty vote; recorded on page 7749.

otioigm,

April 26th Mr. Foster moved a general resolution setting forth the

coZnfann"^"f?°J^°J
condemning extravagance, maUdministraC andcorruption. Rejected by a straight party vote; recorde.1 on page 7870.

SESSION OF 1907-8,

of DS"!t'irfi.a'r''*''"l"K
^'•- C°«k8hutt, Consenative, that the conductOf public business has not been characterized by reasonable foresieht care

T^^T' "^""'"^ ^^ ' ''""'^^"^ ^"'y ^°*^' recorded oT?ag;27l

mail^ddTe^' ^rLZ^'T
°^ ^'••. ^^f^trong. Conservative, for free rural

D«2mS; luF r^ Vt^'^^^ ^""^y '"*^' ^^"^'^ ^n page 506.L»ecember 11th, motion of Mr. Barker, Conservative, condernnm? themibusm^ Ike arrangements and lack of public contn,! n r^SS to Se
^^otio" ?f M?T*f k'V ^*''"*'* ^^y ^^^' -corded r?ag?662
excent^f «^,Vni?,™i^h^""'.?''r""*'^"' ««"°«t '^^^^ in.m,S»tion,«cept of agricultural and domestic class. Headed off by Govemment^end:

Jmuary 28th, motion of Mr. Borden, Conservative, that Canada shonM

^ti"''' RdecShr^'^Pr^i"^"^^' °' '""^ cont^l o/heHtS
Sk™-^ 1^1,

' "
!
™'^^* ^^y ^''to; recorded in Hansard, page 2132

i««iW?5!!fJ **' •™''*'J?''
i?' ^'- ^^"°' Conservative, that Uie n«it«possible freedom of investigation should be enjoyed by the Public aSSCommittee, and any action of the Committee 'Jcludiig evid"n« ,ho^dt
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abject to the immdiate appeal to the Hmiae. Bejeeted by a atrai^t party

rote; lecotded in HanMra, page 3145.

March 18th, moti<Hi of Mr. Perley, ComerratiTe, condemning puWus

expenditoie on worica for private advantage and not for public ben^t Be-

jeeted by a itraight party vote; recorded in Hanurd, page 4959.

March 80ft, motion by Mr. Foster, that supplies purduaed by the

Government be bonght by public tender through a purchasing commijsion;

amendment by Mr. Fielding, that purchases be by tender as far as prac-

ticable and under the direction of Ministers. Amendments carried and

motion lost by straight party votes ; recorded on pages 6877 to 6882. ^end-
ment of Mr. Blain, that the present system of purchasing from middlemen

at excessive prices be discontinued. Hejected by party vote.

April 24th, motion of Mr. Monk, that the time has come to cease paying

a bonus of so much per bead for immigrants. Rejected by a straight party

vote; recorded on page 7092.

April 30th, motion of Mr. Borden, that the departmental mquiry by

Judge Cassells is too narrow, and that in view of the Boyal Commission

report of extravagance, waste, inefficiency, and mal-adrainistration, public

interest demands the appointment of a commission with full powers to in-

vestigate all departments. Rejected by a straight party vote; recorded on

page 7618.

May 22nd, motion of Dr. Worthington, Conservative, that the Ross Rifle

transactions were extravagant and improvident. Rejected by a straight party

vote, except that Col. Hughes voted against the motion; recorded on page

9090
May 26th, motion by Mr. Foster, that Civil Service appointments should

be made on merit after an examination, and by non-partisan commission. Re-

jected by a straight party vote; recorded in Hansard, page 9218.

May 29th, motion by Mr. Lennox, Conservative, in connection with Sir

Fred. Borden and the St. John Cold Storage deal, that Ministers should not

be connected with companies receiving contracts and subsidies from th€»

Government. Accepted by Sir Wilfrid.

July 8th, motion by Mr. Lennox, that the Committee appointed to in-

quire into charges of over-classiiication and over-payment on the Transron-

tinental Railway be instructed to resume and complete the investigation.

Rejected by a straight party vote ; recorded on page 12388.

July 17th, motion by Mr. Monk, Conservative, for the adoption of the

minority report of the Quebec Bridjje Committee, setting forth that the

Government had dealt negligently and improvidently with the matter, and

condemning the policy pursued. Rejected by a straight party vote ; recorded

in Hansard, page 13414.

Motion by Mr. Foster, setting forth and condemning the reckless and

impnident financial policy of the Government. Rejected by the same vote

as in the previous division; Hansard, page 13470.

In addition, there were about a score of motions in the House and in

Committee amending the Elections Act, by inserting more stringent pro-

visions against fraud and corruption, against interference by Government

officials, and giving greater publicity to election expenditure. These, with

the amendment against Federal interference with Ontario lists, were all

rejected by the Government majority.

168





nn>Bz.

Adamaon, A. J. (M.P.), 8aakateh«waa knd dMi, 17: obtains Oalway iMaa. M-cnnt mada irravoeabla. Mlla at Iai«a profit. M. ^ ^^ *

Amoa, R. B. (M.P.). teke homastaadiiw, II; motion re oridnal dooumanta. !•
iMfoa tandmra. 41; Ifoneton land deal. 71.

aa^mnam. w,

Aretio atoamahlp outfit, 17.

AniMtronv. J. B. (M.P.), motion ra raUwaya and conciliation bllL 111; mral naU
dallTarr, Ml.

•»•»• «»«

Bw^ar. 8. (M.P.), lavaatlgaHon of O. T. P. aecottnt« 1«1; Quabae Bridsa lit
Bannatt. W. H. (M.P.), dredstnc contracta. Ml. ^ * '"•

Blaln, R. (M.P.), Cknremmant wbarvaa, IM.
Blair, Hon. A. O., L C. R. autamant, 14.
Blalrmora town atta, St.

.Borden. R. L. (M.P.). Japaneaa trwtty. 111; CaMala Inquiry. Ml; eoat of tha
O. T. P, 11: ooncUiatlon bill. 1*1 ; vacant Judvaablpa. Ill; Aretio Invaatin-
tlon, IM; condamaa tariff by order-ln-counell. lU; railway imaaenaw rataaIM: moves reaolutlon raapeotte* bribery and fraud In elecUona, HI; r«Mln-
tlOB re parUsan offlelala, ISI; resolution re land for the aettlers. 11; demands
investigation of land deals. 12; motion re original documents, St: ICoose T.«ir.
timber llmita, 41; motion re Arctic, tO.

^^ ^^
Borden, Sir Fred. (IIJP.), sub-Urget deal, 1S9; defendant In law suit, 141
Bourassa, H. (ex-lf.P.), condemns Saskatchewan deal, H; condemns irricatlon

dsal, 11 : resolution re charges against members, 161.
Bowman (M.P.P.)i dredging contracts, 141.
Boyce, A. C. (M.P.), on sale of Indian Unds, Bl.
Brodar, Andrew (K.P.), land for South African veterans, 1«0.
Brown, H. P., a man who is hard to find, 29.

Brodeur, Hon. U P. (M.P.), expensive European tour, 81; refuses InformaUon, 81;
arrangement with Falconer, 82: complains of Royal Commission report, 104.

Burrows, T. A. (M.P.), one of the Big Four, 34: list of his limits, 38; connection
with Imperial Pulp Company disclosed, 89 ; issues orders to the department, 17;
dictates bids of tha Inq>erlal Pulp Company, 40; his peculiar tenders, 40, 41,
47, 48; remarkable coincidences, 40, 41, 47, 48. 49; obtains numerous limits for
the I. P. Co., 47, 60.

Butl'dT, Chief Engineer Railway Department, Wallberg contracU, 189, ISO.

Canadian Fog Signal Co., Judge Cassels' Inquiry concerning, 106; 1,000 per oent.
profit. 26.

Carveii, F. B. (M.P.), on Hodglns' Committee, gives Judgment beforehand. 181;
biocka inquiry. 1S8.

Cartwri^t. Sir Richard, pledges in opposition, I.

Cedar Lake limits, 41.

Clarke, A. H. (M.P.), Chairman Public Accounts Committee, condemns Turriff's
method of opening tenders, SO.

Coal Areas, resv.'.atioRs disregarded, «S; S85 applications from one man, 63;
chambermaids and bell boys as Investors, 64; tnterfereace of Mr. n%inh»r
(MJ».), 64.

Cockstautt, W. F. (ICP.), resolution re finance, 162; reaolutlon concerning aaslatad
Immigration, 161.

CogUin. B. 3. (Montreal), sells outfit for " Montcalm," 17.

Coamaak James (MJP.), relatives in the dredging business, 143.
Cowan. William. Prtnoe Albert, pays Burrows & Co. 184.000 for their shara in

Umbar UmltSL 41 to 46.
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Pfwart. B. tt, K.&, aad MriMMial «m1. in.
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Dmiaioa Oradctac Oo^ •&« St Jtrtm oMtraota, 141.
Drwdflac, poUUmI «M«i«r% ooUoatofta la tnUUn. wtc. mi.

MMvood, M liiip«etor who «l« aot laapcot. IM.moMMB, Hon. H. a, «m»M Moaotoa Uui4 dwi, T»; Tnira lud dMl 7J
objtfttot. rab-tarcat InrMt^tion. iM; imUcm eontruta wltk WaUbm msp«i«ltttr% oompwlaoB oft •; by dnwrtntraU, 7: MtlmtM tor oarrontyMr, r

VWn hoiaMtMdIiw, M.
FMdlnc. H«»-,W. a. aUUiMBt on tho debt. I; Mtlmataa eoat of tbo Tnaaco*.

ttaonui. 10. II: Miriats to rappran »oord% M.
»""«:«

FuherlM concMalons, M.
PoMwr, Hon. Om. ., rMolutlon on flnanclnl situatloa. 1; prMOM mb-trntt

taquiry 141: rMoltttlon r« North Atlantlo oontnou, IM; flnaaclal rosoln.
uon, 11^ 111: motion that aai^llea b« purchaaMl by tandcr. 111: motion la
ftiTor of aon-pwtlaan olvll Mrvlee, IM.

#
. .

mmion a

Fowlar, Oaorgo W. (IC.P.). r« Philip Wacnor, IN.
Fraaw, J. F., Commlaalonar of Lirhta. ra Marwln contraeta, It; truMMtlona witliWlUaon. 104: robukod by Judra Caaaaia. lOS.

wmn^ouona wiu

ITraaar, John. Audltor>aanaral, auapleloua of Marina Dapartmant eartlflcataa. 104
Fraacr, A. W.. Oovommant candidate In OtUwa. idantlttaa Iraparlal Pulp Com

^l' i!' "i!*"*" ^^ ^^* ""** *"» '**y t*'™»^ *U allowad to lncrea»
hia hotdinc fraa of charca, 41; bida acatnat hlmaalf for Mooaa Laka limit «
borrowa Mr. Nolan'a name, 41; a bidder for Mr. Burrowa, 45; Prtnce Alb«rt
deal, 40: teadera for the Imperial Pulp Co., 41. 49.

Tt— Preaa, Wlanlpe*, "darlnc oold-blooded hold-up." 10.

Oalway deal. II.

OaUlher, W. A. (M.P.). Interferea with coal leaaea, 04.
Oendron. J. W.. Dredfinc Xnapector. 146; aubitltute for Baatwood. 140
Oovemment whaivea. St. Joaepha, Grand Vallee and lyiaraall. 147, 14|.
Graham. Hon., Mlnlater of Railway*, coat of Orand Trunk Paclflc, n
a. T. p.. coat of. 10; Hodflna' Inquiry concerning. 111.
Orand Forka Cattle Co., 25.

Omalns leaae deala, 18 to 12.

Halifax land deal, 72.

"Herald," Halifax, libel auit re Hallfu land deal. 70.
Herron. John (M.P.), on fake homeateadlnc, 21; reaolutlon re Oalway deal SJ-

motion reapectlnc Weatem coal supply. 101.
Hitchcock, A., obtains sraslnar leases, 25.

Hoddns. Major A. B., O. T. P. over-classlflcatlon, 181; re-afflrma his charces, 131;
no confidence In the Committee, 134; consents to transfer the Inquiry to %
board of enclneers, 134.

Hodclns charges referred to Committee, 131; Investlsation obatructed, 133; Liberal
Committeemen pronounce Judgment In advance. 133; Inquiry blocked, IJI;
Hodglns charges supported, 185.

Imperial Pulp Company, 87; never bids In vain. 87; small margins. 38; a secrrt
concern. 89; Us peculiar methods. 88; found out to be Mr. Burrows M'
enormous inroflts. 40; obtains Moose Lake limit 42; limlU In Edmonton dlt-
trtcU. 47; suspicious character of tenders and cheques. 47. 48; obtains At*
other limits, through Mr. Burrows and Mr. Fraaer. 47. 48. 49; nae of borrowed
namea, 49.

Intercolontatl finance. 14; Wallberg contraeta, 127.

Indiana defrauded. 58>

Jewell, J. H.. sub-target deal. 139; aues Sir F)rod. Borden at al.. 141.

Kara, J. H.. sells St Boniface land to the Government, 71. .

Lake. R. S. (M.P.), tUce homeateadlng. 21; motion that Umber llmlto obtained hj
fraud be restored. 52; motion re Blainnore Towa Site. 17.
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I dMkl. 77;

UlMrt, in

Uoriar, Mr WUirM, pM«M la eppoattloii. •; eoal «( O. T. P.. !•; tntuatm orlfta*!
4oeamMt«, M: •dnlts tli* richt to !»• them, U: votM aanktrnt tola •wa doe^
triat, tl; fiaaUir wamnitn, tl.

Uftti««]r. A. A. (M^.). motlOB Napaotiac PrtaM B4war4 Maad aubaldy, Ml.
Lnaoa; H. (M.P.), motion n lasuranco CoaiinlaaloB. IM: mlHaiU aiinorlijr report

Bo«cino CommlttM. 111.

Leopold. «Um Laiarua, groat frioad of Proaton, ISO; uaaa Oovamnwat offloa, 111;
flcuraa la Baala lattara. itl: artiaaaa aant out on telaaa pratMioaa, ISS; obtalna
ohaqua tor Arandal eontract, IM; oondamaad by t4baMl mambara, l<4.

Lodca, Matthaw, Moaoton laad daala, •• to 71.

Lyon. H. E., elalBM Blalrmora Town Mto, U, 17.

Marina Dapartmant axpandltura, SO; lack of eonaeianea, 10; Mr. Brodaur'a trav^«
line axpenaaa, SI; Falconer deal, SI,

Menrln. Ooo. T., aalaa to tha Ctovemmaat, 83; aomo of hia proflta, S4: hia tutf
"Victor." S«.

"Montealm" <ca-br«akar, ST: her equipment, S7, It; bar unfortunate hiatonr, IM.
Konk, F. D. (M.P.), reaolution condamnlnv Preaton, 124; reaolutton demandlag

namaa of contractora. US; motion re Fenian Raid vetorana. ISO; motion acalaat
immlrratloa bonua, ISS.

Moncton land daala. SS, 71.

MonUlbattI, F., affidavit re Blairmore, SS; declared to be falae, BS.

Mooaa Lake timber limit, 42.

McCarthy, M. 8. (M.P.), fake homeaCeadlns, 21; reaolution on Robins deal, 2S.

Macdonald. E. M. (M.P.), on Hodclna Committee, 132; (Ivea decision beforehand,
ISS: delaya and blocka Inquiry, 133, 138; obatructa aub-target Inquiry, 141.

Mackay, Hon. A. O., dreddnr contractor, 143.

McGrecor, J. D., obtalna (raainf laaaea, 23: Robina land deal, 25; "per J. D. M.",
2S.

Macllralth, R. T., Halifax land deal, 75, 7C.

Mackeniie, Chief Engineer I. C. R., Wallberg contracta, 128, 129.

Mackenate, Malcolm (M.P.P.), obtalna Blairmore Town Stta, 80.

.MacMlllan, Sir Daniel, member of Impfrlal Pulp Company, 39.

Nixon, Joaaph, a public defaulter rewarded. 157.

North Atlantic Trading Co., contract with tha Government, 109; Lord Stratheona
objecta, 110; Preaton and Smart arrange it notwithstanding, 110; contract
changed in rompany'a Interest, 111; policy of concealment, 113, 119; Informa-
tion refused, 119; Oliver charges company with fraud, 118.

Nob'o, W. H., Aaaistant Commissioner of Lights, punlnhed for refusing to cer-
tify, 105.

Nolan, W. H., lends his name to PVaser and Burrows, 42, 49.

Nnrthrup, W. B. (MP.), motion re original documents, 38; respecting the Arctic, 94;
concerning Obed Smith, Commissioner, 161.

Oliver, Hon. Prank, misleading statements re land sales, 24; surrenders to Adam-
son aiid Turriff, 32; refuses timber limit documenta, 38: Anally surrenders, 39;
stands by Wagner, and deceives the House about htaa, 182, 166.

Original documents refui^ed, 38; Ames resolution reapecting, 38: Mr. Borden'a
motion, 38; Mr. Nortbrup's motion, 38; obstruction, 39; the Government
comea down, 39.

Patronage pricea, 107.

Pearaon, Hon. B. F., Halifax land deal, 72; Truro land deal, 77.

Perley, Geo. H. (M.P.), condemn-* improper expenditure, 163.

Pugaley, Hon. Wm. (M.P.), obstructs sub-target inquiry, 141; dredging eon-
traieta, 143,

Preston, W. T. R.. party organiser, 108; hugs the machine, 109; made Commis-
sioner, 109; N. A. T. eontract, 110; dealings with Leopold, 120, 126; Ennis
letters, 121; Monk's resolt'tton respecting, 124: Mr. Jury's opinion of, l23:
Arundel contracts, 12S; dismisses Mr. Just for telling the truth, 125; promoted
to Japan, 124.

Prlnea Albert timber deal, 43; Oliver's misleading statement, 43; the transaction
itaelf, 44; Prince Albert people protest, 44; Mr. Burrows was In It, 45; raka-
off for Burrowa, 46; A. W. Fraaer there alao, 45; another borrowed name, 45.

PuMlo domain, how admlnlatered. 16.
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«»^0. H, accountant, trio.Tn vain to^«^ .f"* *V • ">«»«»' «' «». 10«.

~*«ofc«waB land d.«|. i,.

man, Jamva A.. mak>a ft a m

"iSI!?*.P-^ ««'*d»ln» contract* i«
"^^ '"' •""*• «>"*«Pon<Jenc». m.

8». Bonlteca land dual. 71,

Taxation, s. «.

Truro land d«al. 77. ' '
"'

'^t'f^''i'^Z^n'l^^\?b^:rl^^^^^^^ ?i !f";i''
8a.k.tchexv«„ ,.„rt deal,

openin, tender.. 60; «,«„ of ,|» official ^^c "-..,"•'•' "^ »«' '"•t»»o« «>»
»t: haaty action In Blalrmore, 54

P""***"'"*". M: two remarkable letter*

" Victor." The, S<.

^''fcii.nt'nTlr' """ '^'' '^'"'•^ Dep.rtn.„e. !„: with .he Marine
Wa«ner. PhlUp, H2

WaiBon. T. L.. Carbide contrS^oi m "' ^'"•''«» • C°"nty. 141.

Wo^Hrr^V^r*' Prc^nrjr^r.:! '^"^- "= -—
•
—

Wood* H. A., a-TP. SneTr iCL''"?''',?"'"*
"**•" ^"•« contract.. 163.

Toun r A

^»'"*«'-' •"PPO'-t- Hodrin. charge, of ov^r-clawincatlon. 135.

tafluenc1'M^,ror'S"n;^J,^—-oner. fit. Boniface land deal. 78: trie, to
Tulll, Hiram W.. Truro land' dcai. 77.






